
           
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT
June 11, 2024

9:30 A.M.
           

The Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in regular
session in the Commissioners Courtroom, 710 Main Street, in Georgetown, Texas
to consider the following items:

  

 

1. Review and approval of minutes.   
 

2. Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic
payments submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval
for payment provided said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the
county.

  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with
one single vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order
that the court discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.
( Items 3 – 24 )

  

 

3. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Constable 4.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
FROM 0100-0554-003010 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT < $5000 $1484.40
TO 0100-0554-001114 CERTIFICATIONS $1200.00
TO 0100-0554-002010 FICA $91.80
TO 0100-0554-002020 RETIREMENT $192.60

 
4. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Purchasing.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0494-004999 Miscellaneous $100.00
From 0100-0494-004350 Printed Materials& Binding $415.00
To 0100-0494-003900 Membership Dues $515.00

 



5. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Road and Bridge
Division.

 
Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0200-0210-000777 Transfer to Cap. Projects-P487 $81,200.00
To 0200-0210-004711 Tax Appraisal District $81,200.00

 
6. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position

title changes, position grade changes, and any corresponding line item transfers.
 

7. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving property tax refunds over $2,500.00
through 06/06/2024 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

 
8. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace, Pct. 4, May 2024

Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Crim. Proc. § 103.005.
 

9. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a request for the Williamson County Regional
Animal Shelter to accept a grant from Best Friends Animal Society.

 
10. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the termination of the Services

Contract for Livestock Wrangler for Impoundment & Disposition of Estrays with Keith Pajestka,
effective July 11, 2024, and that appropriate officials take necessary actions to provide notice of
such termination of the agreement.

 
11. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding approval and receipt of Vehicle

Reimbursement Agreement with Santa Rita Master Community for off duty contracting of County
Sheriff Deputies to be effective June 11, 2024 (located in Liberty Hill).

 
12. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on rejecting proposals submitted for RFP #24RFP35

Countywide Disaster Related Debris Removal Services and request that information related to the
competition be excepted pursuant to Texas Government Code 552.104 and authorize the
Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive sealed bids under the new RFP #24RFP60.

 
13. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFSQ #21RFSQ2, providing design &

engineering services relating to the Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes to Ramirez-Simon Engineering,
LLC, in the amount of $51,900.00 and authorize execution of the agreement.

 
14. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFSQ #21RFSQ2 to Ramirez Simon

Engineering, LLC, relating to the Chilled Water (CHW) System Evaluation at SO/JAIL for Facilities
Management, in the amount of $15,300.00 and authorize execution of the agreement.

 
15. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving rental Contract #2024208 with Kinloch

Equipment & Supply, Inc. to rent a heavy equipment mechanical sweeper in the amount of
$36,000.00 for a 3-month term and authorizing the execution of the lease agreement.

 



16. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the Purchase Contract #2024203 for
truck mounted attenuators for the Road and Bridge Department from Traffic & Parking Control Co.
Inc. in the amount of $74,826.00 pursuant to Co-Op OMNIA Partners Contract #2020-200 and
authorizing the execution of the contract.

 
17. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Change Order No 1 to contract number 23IFB91

for Texas Materials Group in the amount of -$307,923.76 for O'Connor Drive Milling and Overlay.
Funding source: 01.0200.0210.003599.

 
18. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 1 in the amount of

$50,000.00 to expire December 31, 2026 under Williamson County Contract for Engineering
Services between Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. and Williamson County dated March 19, 2024
for On Call Traffic Engineering Services. Funding source: 01.0200.0210.004100.

 
19. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the submission of a formal

protest/request for a contested case hearing and written comments, information and
recommendations by legal counsel for Williamson County to the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality relating to a petition for the creation of Bartlett Farms MUD of Williamson
County, Texas.

 
20. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Santa Rita Ranch

Phase 6 Section 3 subdivision – Precinct 2.
 

21. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the BC 207
subdivision – Precinct 2.

 
22. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for The Cove Phase 2

subdivision – Precinct 4.
 

23. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the final plat for the Beyersville
Expanse subdivision – Precinct 4.

 
24. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on ratifying and approving the final plat for the Firefly

Pointe Phase 1 subdivision – Precinct 4.
 

REGULAR AGENDA   
 

25. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a proclamation celebrating that most Texan of
holidays, Juneteenth.

 
26. Discuss and take appropriate action on Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) funding and HOME

Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funding from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development.

 
27. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on naming two roads at the Williamson County

Exposition Center.
 



 
28. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the engagement of the firm of Secretariat

Advisors, LLC to provide expert litigation consulting services in relation to the matter of Williamson
County, Texas vs. Ritter Botkin Prime Construction, Inc and Great American Insurance Company
of New York in the 368th Judicial District Court, Williamson County, Texas; and exemption of those
services from the competitive bid/proposal requirements of the County Purchasing Act pursuant to
the discretionary exemption for personal or professional services, as set forth under Tex. Loc. Gov’t
Code § 262.024(a)(4).

 
29. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on directing the Williamson County Attorney's office

to file a Declaratory Judgment Action on a Public Information Act request based on conflicting
rulings.

 
30. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the engagement of the law firm of White

Espey, PLLC to provide legal representation as it relates to workers’ compensation matters on
behalf of Williamson County; and exemption of these services from the competitive bid/proposal
requirements of the County Purchasing Act pursuant to the discretionary exemption for personal or
professional services, as set forth under Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code § 262.024(a)(4).

 
31. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding RFP #24RFP36 Countywide Disaster

Related Debris Monitoring Services to the highest scoring proposer, Tetra Tech, Inc. and
authorizing the execution of associated documents.

 
32. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFP #24RFP46 for the HVAC Air Filter

Maintenance Services for Williamson County, Texas, to Tex-Air Filters and authorizing execution of
the agreement.

 
33. Receive and acknowledge approval of Change Order No. 1 from J.T. Vaughn Construction Co. for

the Historic Courthouse - Exterior Painting Project in the amount of $13,327.00, which was
approved by Williamson County Facilities County Architect, Trenton Jacobs pursuant to the
Commissioners Court’s prior delegation of change order approval authority pursuant to Loc. Gov’t
Code Sec. 262.031.

 
34. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave

necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge
additional revenues for Park Donations.

 
Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367403 Park Donations $441.00

 
35. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave

necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge
additional expenditures for Park Donations.

 
Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount



0100.0510.003670 Use of Donations $441.00

 
36. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Park's Department. 
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0510.004509 Facility Enhancements $60,000.00
From 0100.0510.004510 Facility Repairs $20,000.00
From 0100.0510.004542 Grounds Maintenance $25,000.00
From 0100.0510.005711 Heavy Equipment >$5,000 $30,000.00
To 0100.0510.004514 Park Maint-Roads & Parking Lot $135,000.00

 
37. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on transferring $40,000 from P374 (Thrall Street) to

P371 (East Wilco Highway Corridor E2) and move the remaining amount of $20,344.80 from P374
(Thrall Street) to P372 (East Wilco Highway Corridor E3). Also to transfer $2,000,000 from P399
(2019 Road Bond Non-Departmental) to P366 (CR 332 Realignment).  

 
38. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on transferring $145,000 from P457 (LTP ROW) to

P600 (Chandler Corridor Segment 2).
 

39. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on transferring $24,649.54 from P592 (Blackland
Hailstorm) and $42,926.46 from P589 (Berry Springs Hailstorm) to P696 (SWRP Parking Lot
Paving).

 
40. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Development Agreement with Hutto 525

Development Partners for improvements to CR 133.
 

41. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Contract Amendment No. 4 to the Corridor C
(SH 29 Bypass) contract between Williamson County and AtkinsRéalis relating to the Road Bond
Program. Project: P459 Fund Source: Road Bonds

 
42. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a purchase contract with LCRA Transmission

Services for 8.396 acres needed as right of way on the Hero Way project. Funding Source: TANS
P588

 
43. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a correction deed with Santa Rita Commercial

LLC regarding 0.1956 AC required as right of way on the Ronald Reagan Widening construction
project (Parcel 14P1). Funding Source: Road Bonds P366

 
44. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution determining the necessity and

authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn (Lot 1 of Teichelman acres and 2.69 acres out
of the Jacob Ebberly survey) required for the construction of Corridor A-2. (2600 Bluebonnets LLC)
Funding Source: TANS P588

 
45. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Donation Deed of 0.576 acres on Stubblefield



45. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Donation Deed of 0.576 acres on Stubblefield
Lane owned by Williamson County to the City of Liberty Hill in exchange for right of way required for
the construction of the Liberty Hill Bypass construction project. 

 
46. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an Interlocal Agreement regarding the

participation of the City of Copeland, Texas and Williamson County, Texas in the design and
construction costs related to the CR 458 project. Funding Source: Road Bonds P678

 
47. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a purchase contract with JBS Holdings LP for

3.854 acres needed as right of way on the Bagdad Rd. @ CR 278 project. (parcel 6). Funding
Source: Road Bond P438

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION
"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to
adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting
to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultations with Attorney), 551.072
(Deliberations regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations regarding
Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations
regarding Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic
Development Negotiations)." 

  

 

48. Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072
Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a
detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with third person.)
A.    Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
   Preliminary discussions relating to the proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned
by third parties
          
        a)   Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 332
        b)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 143
        c)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
        d)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 255. 
        e)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 195 @ Ronald Reagan.
         f)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor. 
        g)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Hero Way.
        h)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for E. Wilco Highway.
         i)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor A. 
         j)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor B     
        k)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
         l)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.
       m)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor E.
        n)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F
        o)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor H
        p)   Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Corridor J.
        q)   Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Corridor K.
        r)   Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Corridor I.
        s)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Ronald Reagan Widening.
         t)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for CR 313.
        u)   Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Bagdad Road/CR 279.
        v)   Discuss the acquisition of right of way for CR 314. 
       w)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Seward Junction Loop   
        x)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 110N
        y)   Discuss acquisition of real property located near 6531 RM 2243, Leander, Texas 



        z)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Long Range Transportation Plan. 

B.   Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
      Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by the
County
    
    a)    Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.
    b)    Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St. between 3rd and
4th Streets. (Formerly occupied by WCCHD)        
    c)    Sale of property located 747 County Rd. 138 Hutto, Texas
    d)    Discuss Blue Springs Blvd. property

 
49. Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government Code,

Section 551.087:
        Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
      
  a) Project Skyfall  
  b) Project Soul Train  
  c) Project School Bus

 
50. Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential attorney-client

legal matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per Section 551.071, Texas Government Code,
"Consultation with Attorney"), including the following:

a. General: 
1. Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the County
2. Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims
3. Employee/personnel related matters
4. Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters related to
county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body within the
attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

b. Litigation: 
1.   Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In the
District Court of Williamson County, Texas/County of Williamson v. Purdue Pharma, L.P., et
al.,  MDL PRETRIAL CAUSE NO. 2018-63587, in the 152d District Court of Harris County,
Texas. 
2.   Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00074-LY; Scott Phillip Lewis v. Williamson County, Texas; In
the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
3.   Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00374-RP; Gary Watsky v. Williamson County, Texas, and
Robert Chody, Mark Luera, Steve Deaton, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District of Texas, Austin Division
4.   Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00615-LY; Bernardo Acosta v. Williamson County, Texas, et al.;
In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
5.   Cause No. 22-0159-C395; Gary Watsky v.  Mike Gleason, et al.; In the 395th District
Court of Williamson County, Texas
6.   Civil Action No. 1:22-cv-00254-RP; Rodney A. Hurdsman, #0217082 v. Mike Gleason, et
al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
7.   Cause No. 22-2067-C395; Chauncy Williams v. Williamson County Attorney's Office
Victim Services Division, et al.; In the 395th Judicial District Court of Williamson County,
Texas
8.   Civil Action No. 4:22-cv-00576-P; Kyle Strongin, et al. v. Williamson County, et al.; In the
United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas
9.   Cause No. 22-1213-C425; Williamson County, Texas v. Ritter Botkin Prime Construction
Company, Inc. and Argonaut Insurance Company; In the 425th Judicial District Court of
Williamson County, Texas
10. Cause No. 22-1359-C368; Williamson County, Texas v. Ritter, Botkin Prime Construction
Company, Inc. and Great American Insurance Company of New York; In the 368th Judicial
Court of Williamson County, Texas

  



11. Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-00019; Cindy McNatt, individually and as dependent
administrator of Estate of Joshua Ray McNatt, et al. v. Williamson County, Texas, et al.; In
the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
12. Cause No. 23-0297-C368; Texas Fair Defense Project v. Williamson County Sheriff’s
Office; In the 368th Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas 
13. Cause No. 23-0612-C395; Kirsten Davis v. Williamson County, Texas, et al.; In the
395th Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas
14. Cause No. 23-1061-C368; Heather Lorenzen v. Williamson County; In the 368th Judicial
District Court of Williamson County, Texas
15. Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-01120; Jeremy Story v. Williamson County, Texas, et al.; In the
United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
16.  Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-01117-RP; Adam Mirelez #02413581 v. Llano County, Texas, et
al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
17.  Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-01223-RP; Siddharth Kode v. Williamson County; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division 
18.  Civil Action No. 1:24-cv-00086; Kailey Padilla v. Daniel Osvaldo Perez and Williamson
County; In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division 
19.  Civil Action No. 1:24-cv-00318-DII; Laura Pressley et al. v. Jane Nelson et al.; In the
United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
20.  Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-00759-RP; Derrick Neal v. Williamson County and Cities Health
District, et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin
Division
21.  Cause No. 23-2583-C480; Chauncy Williams v. Adrianne Pernell, et al.; In the 480th
Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas
22.  Cause No. 3-2566-C480; Williamson County, Texas v. DM Medical Billings, LLC and
Dina Mueller; In the 480 th Judicial District Court; Williamson County, Texas

c.  Administrative Complaints:
1.  EEOC Charge No. 451-2023-00766 - K.B

d. Claims:
1.  Claim No. 07192023-560-109 - auto liability claim by Edge Electric, Inc. for incident
occurring on or about 7/19/2023 

e. Other:
1.  Legal matters relating to U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s Final Rule Designating Critical
Habitat for the Georgetown and Salado Salamanders.
2.  Legal matters pertaining to tax exemptions for private apartment developers under
303.042(f) of the Texas Local Government Code.

 

51. Discuss security assessments or deployments relating to information resources technology;
network security information as described by Texas Gov’t Code Section 2059.055(b); and/or (3)  the
deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security personnel, critical infrastructure, or
security devices. (Executive Session as per Texas Gov’t. Code § 551.089).

  

 

52. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline and/or
dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors, employees and/or positions, including but not
limited to conducting deliberation and discussion pertaining to annual reviews of department heads
and appointed officials (Executive Session as per Tex. Gov. Code Section 551.074 – Personnel
Matters).

  

 

53. Discuss the deployment or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or devices;
or security audits in relation to the Williamson County Justice Center/Williamson County
Courthouse (Executive Session as per Texas Gov’t. Code § 551.076).

  

 

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)   
 



 

54. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning economic development.   
 

55. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning real estate.   
 

56. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on pending or contemplated litigation, settlement
matters and other legal matters, including the following:

a. General: 
1. Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the County
2. Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims
3. Employee/personnel related matters
4. Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters related to
county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body within the
attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

b. Litigation: 
1.   Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In the
District Court of Williamson County, Texas/County of Williamson v. Purdue Pharma, L.P., et
al.,  MDL PRETRIAL CAUSE NO. 2018-63587, in the 152d District Court of Harris County,
Texas. 
2.   Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00074-LY; Scott Phillip Lewis v. Williamson County, Texas; In
the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
3.   Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00374-RP; Gary Watsky v. Williamson County, Texas, and
Robert Chody, Mark Luera, Steve Deaton, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District of Texas, Austin Division
4.   Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00615-LY; Bernardo Acosta v. Williamson County, Texas, et al.;
In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
5.   Cause No. 22-0159-C395; Gary Watsky v.  Mike Gleason, et al.; In the 395th District
Court of Williamson County, Texas
6.   Civil Action No. 1:22-cv-00254-RP; Rodney A. Hurdsman, #0217082 v. Mike Gleason, et
al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
7.   Cause No. 22-2067-C395; Chauncy Williams v. Williamson County Attorney's Office
Victim Services Division, et al.; In the 395th Judicial District Court of Williamson County,
Texas
8.   Civil Action No. 4:22-cv-00576-P; Kyle Strongin, et al. v. Williamson County, et al.; In the
United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas
9.   Cause No. 22-1213-C425; Williamson County, Texas v. Ritter Botkin Prime Construction
Company, Inc. and Argonaut Insurance Company; In the 425th Judicial District Court of
Williamson County, Texas
10. Cause No. 22-1359-C368; Williamson County, Texas v. Ritter, Botkin Prime Construction
Company, Inc. and Great American Insurance Company of New York; In the 368th Judicial
Court of Williamson County, Texas
11. Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-00019; Cindy McNatt, individually and as dependent
administrator of Estate of Joshua Ray McNatt, et al. v. Williamson County, Texas, et al.; In
the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
12. Cause No. 23-0297-C368; Texas Fair Defense Project v. Williamson County Sheriff’s
Office; In the 368th Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas 
13. Cause No. 23-0612-C395; Kirsten Davis v. Williamson County, Texas, et al.; In the
395th Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas
14. Cause No. 23-1061-C368; Heather Lorenzen v. Williamson County; In the 368th Judicial
District Court of Williamson County, Texas
15. Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-01120; Jeremy Story v. Williamson County, Texas, et al.; In the
United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
16.  Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-01117-RP; Adam Mirelez #02413581 v. Llano County, Texas, et
al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
17.  Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-01223-RP; Siddharth Kode v. Williamson County; In the United

  



States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division 
18.  Civil Action No. 1:24-cv-00086; Kailey Padilla v. Daniel Osvaldo Perez and Williamson
County; In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division 
19.  Civil Action No. 1:24-cv-00318-DII; Laura Pressley et al. v. Jane Nelson et al.; In the
United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
20.  Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-00759-RP; Derrick Neal v. Williamson County and Cities Health
District, et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin
Division
21.  Cause No. 23-2583-C480; Chauncy Williams v. Adrianne Pernell, et al.; In the 480th
Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas
22.  Cause No. 3-2566-C480; Williamson County, Texas v. DM Medical Billings, LLC and
Dina Mueller; In the 480 th Judicial District Court; Williamson County, Texas

c.  Administrative Complaints:
1.  EEOC Charge No. 451-2023-00766 - K.B

d. Claims:
1.  Claim No. 07192023-560-109 - auto liability claim by Edge Electric, Inc. for incident
occurring on or about 7/19/2023 

e. Other:
1.  Legal matters relating to U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s Final Rule Designating Critical
Habitat for the Georgetown and Salado Salamanders.
2.  Legal matters pertaining to tax exemptions for private apartment developers under
303.042(f) of the Texas Local Government Code.

 

57. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors or
employees, including but not limited to any necessary action pertaining to conducting annual
reviews of department heads and appointed officials.

  

 

58. Comments from Commissioners.   
 

59. Public Comment Period. The Commissioners Court will conduct a Public Comment Period to allow
members of the public to address the Court regarding matters pertaining to or affecting Williamson
County but that do not appear as an Agenda Item on a meeting’s Agenda.  During such Public
Comment Period, speakers shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) minutes to make his/her
remarks and the maximum overall discussion time allowed for the Public Comment Period,
regardless of the number of members of the public wishing to address the Court during such period,
shall be limited to ten (10) minutes.  Speaking time, to the extent possible, will be evenly allocated
among speakers should more than five (5) speakers desire to speak during the Public Comment
Period.  Please note that the members of the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters
that are not on the agenda.

  

 

_________________________
Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge

This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson County
Courthouse, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 7th day of June 2024 at 3:00 P.M.
and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 3.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Constable 4 Line Item Transfer
Submitted By: Brian Olson, Constable Pct. #4
Department: Constable Pct. #4
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Constable 4.

Background
During the FY 25 budget preparation period, it was discovered that PCN 0309 is entitled to receive TCOLE
Advanced Certification pay at $100 per month, which is currently not being paid.  To properly compensate the
employee and at the direction of the Auditor's office, a line item transfer is being requested to cover the shortfall
for this fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
FROM 0100-0554-003010 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT < $5000 $1484.40
TO 0100-0554-001114 CERTIFICATIONS $1200.00
TO 0100-0554-002010 FICA $91.80
TO 0100-0554-002020 RETIREMENT $192.60

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/05/2024 03:42 PM
Budget Office Saira Hernandez 06/06/2024 07:54 AM
Form Started By: Brian Olson Started On: 06/03/2024 04:04 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 4.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Approval of Line Item Transfer to cover additional membership expenses
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Kerstin Hancock, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Purchasing.

Background
This is to cover additional membership expenses for additional staff position, and additional memberships for
existing staff to obtain a discounted rate for conference registration. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0494-004999 Miscellaneous $100.00
From 0100-0494-004350 Printed Materials& Binding $415.00
To 0100-0494-003900 Membership Dues $515.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 06/06/2024 08:19 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:30 AM
Budget Office Saira Hernandez 06/06/2024 09:26 AM
Form Started By: Kerstin Hancock Started On: 05/30/2024 04:41 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 5.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Line item transfer for the Road and Bridge Division
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Jenifer Favreau, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure Division: Road & Bridge
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Road and Bridge Division.

Background
This transfer has been requested by the Budget Office in order to cover a shortfall due to the actual WCAD
numbers calculated after the adoption of the FY24 budget coming in above the estimated amount budgeted.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0200-0210-000777 Transfer to Cap. Projects-P487 $81,200.00
To 0200-0210-004711 Tax Appraisal District $81,200.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/05/2024 03:41 PM
Budget Office Saira Hernandez 06/06/2024 07:54 AM
Form Started By: Jenifer Favreau Started On: 06/03/2024 08:19 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 6.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Compensation Items
Submitted By: Kayla Marek, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position title changes,
position grade changes, and any corresponding line item transfers.

Background
See attached documentation for details.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Merit Report 
Merit LIT 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Human Resources (Originator) Rebecca Clemons 06/06/2024 08:27 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:36 AM
Form Started By: Kayla Marek Started On: 06/06/2024 08:14 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



Department Position
Emp 
Num

Current Annual 
Salary Merit Amt Merit %

New Annual 
Salary

Lump-
sum 
Merit

Pay 
Proposal 
Reason

Effective 
Date of 
Change

County Clerk Judicial Division Supervisor.0665.001100. 16203 $65,567.06 $1,966.90 3.00 $67,533.96 - MERIT 21-Jun-24
Elections Elections Administrator.0770.001100. 16835 $125,454.16 $5,018.26 4.00 $130,472.42 - MERIT 7-Jun-24



(TO) (FROM)
entity fund dept object dr cr
01 0100 8002 001130 1,966.90   
01 0100 8002 002010 150.47       
01 0100 8002 002020 315.69       
01 0100 0404 001100 1,966.90   
01 0100 0404 002010 150.47       
01 0100 0404 002020 315.69       
01 0100 8001 001130 5,018.26   
01 0100 8001 002010 383.90       
01 0100 8001 002020 805.43       
01 0100 0492 001100 5,018.26   
01 0100 0492 002010 383.90       
01 0100 0492 002020 805.43       



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 7.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Property Tax Refunds – Over 2500 – Thru 06/06/2024
Submitted For: Larry Gaddes  Submitted By: Renee Clark, County Tax Assessor

Collector
Department: County Tax Assessor Collector
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving property tax refunds over $2,500.00 through
06/06/2024 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
041224-060624 Refunds Over 2500 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:34 AM
Form Started By: Renee Clark Started On: 06/05/2024 04:02 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



MISSION STATEMENT 
Our dedicated team is committed to providing innovative and exceptional 
customer service in the assessment, collection, and distribution of taxes and fees.  

Main Office:                                                  Annex Locations:  

904 South Main Street                                      1801 E Old Settlers Blvd, Ste 115     350 Discovery Blvd, Ste 101         412 Vance St, Ste  1 

Georgetown, TX  78626                                      Round Rock, TX 78664                     Cedar Park, TX 78613                  Taylor, TX 76574 

Telephone : 512.943.1601           

www.wilcotx.gov/taxoffice  

 
Larry Gaddes PCAC, CTA 

Tax Assessor/Collector 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: June 6, 2024 
 
To: Members of the Commissioners Court  

From: Larry Gaddes PCAC, CTA 

Subject: Property Tax Refunds 
 
  
 

In accordance with Section 31.11 of the Property Tax Code, the court needs 

to approve all refunds in excess of $2,500.00. We are presenting the attached 

list, which includes these property tax refunds, for your approval. 

Please contact me at (512) 943-1954, if you have any questions. 

Thank you. 



Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

Refunds Payable - Taxpayers
Check 05/31/2024 105834 CORELOGIC TAX SERVICES, LLC R465455 - Overpayment -9,713.33
Check 05/31/2024 105835 CORELOGIC R567769 - Overpayment -6,270.48

Total Refunds Payable - Taxpayers -15,983.81

TOTAL -15,983.81

3:57 PM Property Tax

06/05/24 Account QuickReport
As of June 6, 2024

Page 1



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 8.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Justice of the Peace 4 May 2024 Monthly Report
Submitted By: Veronica Bolander, J.P. Pct. #4
Department: J.P. Pct. #4
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace, Pct. 4, May 2024 Monthly Report
in compliance with Code of Crim. Proc. § 103.005.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
JP4 EOM MAY 2024 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:34 AM
Form Started By: Veronica Bolander Started On: 06/05/2024 05:37 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



IN COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE 103.005 
CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared 
Rhonda Redden, Justice of the Peace, Precinct 4, Williamson County, who on her 
oath, stated that the attached report of money collected is a true and correct report 
for the month of May 2024. 

This 4th day of June 2024, to certify which witness my hand and seal of office . 

.• •;~~:~~a;·•.. VERONICA BOLANDER tr~:):] ~liy Notary ID# 2676312 
·-.::,;~·---,~;::-· Expires November 2, 2027 

•. , .. '!f ....• 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Texas 



Payment Report - Transaction/Adjustment Detail 
Deposit Date : 05/01/2024 - 05/31/2024 
Locations: JP4 

Final Totals 

Total Payments 

Total Adjustments Impacting Payments 

Final Fee Code Totals 

Tender Method Summary 

Cash 

Case Categories: Civil; Criminal 

Cashier's Check 

Certified Payments Credit Card 

Tender Types Check 

Credit Card 

E-File Credit Card 

Money Order 

Printed on 06/04/2024 at 10:41 : 1 O AM 

TXWI LLIAMSON PROD 

Payment Type: Cash Bond Deposit; Counter Payment; ... 

Fee Totals Transaction Totals 

91 ,850.09 91,850.09 

(276.00) (276.00) 

91,574.09 91 ,574.09 

10,370.34 10,370.34 

331.39 331.39 

40,703.71 40,703.71 

2,095.00 2,095.00 

20,670.40 20,670.40 

16,242.25 16,242.25 

1,437.00 1,437.00 

Page 34 

Detailed report is available through the Auditor’s Office. 



Payment Report - G/L and Fund Summary TXWILLIAMSONPROD 

Deposit Date : 05/01/2024 - 05/31/2024 
Locations: JP4 

Case Categories: Civil ; Criminal 

G/L Account 

0100 - General Fund 

01-0100-0000-207008 - JP 4-CASH BONDS 

01 -0100-0000-207017 - Collections Agency Fee 

01 -0100-0000-209600 - FINES DUE TO TX PARKS WILDLIFE 

01-0100-0000-209700 - JP COURTS-REFUNDS 

01-0100-0000-341804 - FEES OF OFFICE, JP PCT-4 

01 -0100-0000-341904 - CIVIL FEES/OFFICE, CONST 4 

01 -0100-0000-341913- CRIMINAL FEES/OFFICE, CONST 3 

01-0100-0000-341914 - CRIMINAL FEES/OFFICE, CONST 4 

01-0100-0000-342860 -Time Payment Fee County 2.50 

01 -0100-0000-351304 - FINES, JP PCT-4 

01 -0100-0000-365103 Language Access Fund 

99-9999-9999-000003 - LOCAL Consolidated CC-Misd C 

0361 - JP Security Fund 

Jo1-0361-0000-341154 - JP 4 SECURITY FEES 

0365 - Child Safety Fund 

io1 -0365-0000-341161 - JP CHILD SAFETY FEE 

0369 - JP-4 Truancy Program Fund 

01-0369-0000-341917 - JP4 Truant Conduct (HB 2398) 

01-0369-0000-370000 - JP-4 Truancy Program Fees 

0370 - Alternate Dispute Resolution Fund 

01-0370-0000-341170 -Alternate Dispute Resolution Fees 

Printed on 06/04/2024 at 10:41 :10 AM 

Payment Type: Cash Bond Deposit; Counter Payment; ... 

G/L Account Number Fee Totals 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-207008: 01-0100-0000-207008 - JP4 Cash Bonds 500.00 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-207017: 01 -0100-0000-207017 - Collections Agency Fee 2,051 .97 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-209600: 01 -0100-0000-209600 - Fines Due to TX Parks Wildlife 515.53 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-209700: 01-0100-0000-209700 - JP Courts Refunds 50.00 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-341804: 01-0100-0000-341804 - Fees of Office, JP Pct. #4 11 ,168.69 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-341904: 01 -0100-0000-341904 - Fees of Office , Const. PCT #4 10,200.00 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-341913: 01 -0100-0000-341913 - Fees of Office , Crim. Const PCT #3 2.92 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-341914: 01-0100-0000-341914 - Fees of Office, Crim. Const PCT #4 573.53 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-342860: 01-0100-0000-342860 - Time Payment Fee County 2.50 693.16 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-351304: 01 -0100-0000-351304 - FINES, JP PCT #4 36,268.31 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-365103: 01 -0100-0000-365103 - Language Access Fund 918.00 

L-004-4-99-9999-9999-000003: 99-9999-9999-000003 - LOCAL Consolidated CC-MISD C 3,655.05 

0100 - General Fund Total : 66,597.16 

IL-004-4-01-0361-0000-341 154: 01-0361-0000-341154 - JP 4 SECURITY FEES 

0361 - JP Security Fund Total : 0.97 

IL-004-4-01-0365-0000-341161 : 01 -0365-0000-341161 - JP CHILD SAFETY FEE 

0365 - Child Safety Fund Total: 8.33 

L-004-4-01 -341917: 01-0369-0000-341917 - JP4 Truant Conduct (HB 2398) 100.00 

L-004-4-01-0369-0000-370000: 01 -0369-0000-370000 - JP-4 Truancy Program Fee 1.22 

0369 - JP-4 Truancy Program Fund Total: 101.22 

L-004-4-01-0370-0000-341170: 01-0370-0000-341170 - Alternate Dispute Resolution Fees 1,530.00 

0370 - Alternate Dispute Resolution Fund Total: 1,530.00 

Page 35 



Payment Report - G/L and Fund Summary TXWILLIAMSONPROD 

Deposit Date: 05/01/2024 - 05/31/2024 
Locations: JP4 

Case Categories: Civil; Criminal 

G/L Account 

0372 - Justice Court Technology Fund 

101 -0372-0000-341144 - JP 4 TECHNOLOGY FEES 

0399 - State Agency Fund 

01-0399-0000-208034 - JP 4 Truancy Prev/Diversion - State 

01-0399-0000-208160 - CCC FEES DUE TO STATE COMP 

01 -0399-0000-208165 - CCC 01 .2020 Fee's Due to State 

01-0399-0000-208181 - State Consolidated Fee 

01-0399-0000-208235- JURY SERVICE FEES DUE TO STATE 

01-0399-0000-208352 - CRIMINAL JUDICIAL SUPPORT DUE 

01 -0399-0000-208400 - DPS ARREST FEES DUE TO STATE 

01-0399-0000-208425 - ST TRAFFIC FEES DUE TO STATE 

01 -0399-0000-208426 - State Traffic Fine Due To State 

01-0399-0000-208703- INDIGENT DEF FEES - DUE TO ST 

01 -0399-0000-208720 - SEATBELT FINES 

01-0399-0000-208850 - WEIGHT VIOLATION FINES DUE TO 

01-0399-0000-208860 - TIME PYMT FEES DUE TO STATE 

Printed on 06/04/2024 at 10:41:10 AM 

Payment Type : Cash Bond Deposit; Counter Payment; ... 

G/L Account Number 

IL-004-4-01-0372-0000-341144: 01-0372-0000-341144 - JP #4 TECHNOLOGY FEES 

0372 - Justice Court Technology Fund Total : 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208034: 01-0399-0000-208034- JP 4 Truancy Prev/Diversion - State 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208160: 01-0399-0000-208160 - Consolidated Court Costs 

L-004-4-01 -0399-0000-208165: 01-0399-0000-208165 - State Con Court Cost LGC 133.102(a)(3 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208181 : 01-0399-0000-208181 - State Consolidated Fee 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208235: 01-0399-0000-208235 - Jury Service Fee 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208352: 01-0399-0000-208352 - Support of the Judiciary Fund 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208400: 01-0399-0000-208400 - Texas Highway Patrol Arrest Fees 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208425: 01-0399-0000-208425- State Traffic Fee 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208426: 01-0399-0000-208426 - State Traffic Fine Due To State 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208703: 01-0399-0000-208703 - Indigent Defense Fee 

L-004-4-01 -0399-0000-208720: 01 -0399-0000-208720 - Seatbelt Fines 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208850: 01-0399-0000-208850 - Weight Violation Fines 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208860: 01-0399-0000-208860 - Time Payment 

0399 - State Agency Fund Total: 

Fee Totals for All Funds: 

Fee Totals 

0.98 

0.49 

9.73 

15,690.20 

504.00 

0.98 

1.46 

261.75 

3.12 

6,141.88 

0.49 

448.50 

269.35 

3.48 

23,335.43 

91,574.09 

Page 36 



Payment Report - Fee Code Summary 
Deposit Date: 05/01/2024 - 05/31/2024 
Locations: JP4 

Case Categories: Civil; Criminal 

Fee Code Summary 

Code Word Description Gross 

Amount 

2020AFC3 Arrest Fee- Constable 3 CCP 102.011(a)(e), 
102.011(e) 2.92 

2020AFC4 Arrest Fee - Constable 4 CCP 102.011 (a)(1 ), 
102.011(e) 24.19 

2020AFDPS Arrest Fee - DPS CCP 102.011.(a)(1), 102.011(e, 246.23 

2020AFJISD Arrest Fee - Jarrell I SD PD CCP 102.011 (a)(1 ), 
102.011(e) 13.18 

2020AFPW Arrest Fee - TX P&W CCP 102.011 (a)(1 ), 102. 
011(e) 20.00 

2020AFSO Arrest Fee - Sheriffs Office 102.011 (a)(1 ), 
102.011 (e) 998.77 

2020CCC State Cons Court Cost LGC 133.102(a)(3) 15,752.20 

2020CDF Compliance Dismissal Fine 250.00 

2020DSCM Driving Safety Course Mandatory CCP 45. 
0511 (f)(1) 266.66 

2020LCCC-C LOCAL Consolidated Court Cost LGC 134.103(a) 3,669.05 

2020LTF Local Traffic Fine (TC 542.403) 368.48 

2020STF State Traffic Fine (TC 542.4031) 6,141.88 

2020TPF Time Payment Fee CCP 102.030 693.16 

2020WFC4 Warrant Fee - Const Pct 4 CCP 102.011 (a)(2), 
102.011(e) 543.64 

AB Abstract 20.00 

AFDPS Arrest Fee - DPS (CCP 102.011) 0.52 

AFSO Arrest Fee - Sheriffs Office (CCP 102.011) 0.70 

CB Cash Bond 500.00 

CCC Consolidated Court Costs [Loe. Gov'! Code, 
133.102] 9.73 

CCOP Civil Copies 2.25 

CERT Certified Copy 9.75 

CFINE County Fine 36,172.99 

CHS Courthouse Security Fee (CCP 102.017) 0.73 

CHSJC JP Security Fee (CCP 102.017) 0.24 

CJS Criminal Judicial Support Fee (LGC 103.105) 1.46 

COLLFEE Collection Agency Fee 2,051 .97 

CONT4 Constable Service Fee Pct #4 6,800.00 

Printed on 06/04/2024 at 10:41 :10 AM 

TXWILLIAMSONPROD 

Payment Type: Cash Bond Deposit; Counter Payment; ... 

Positive Adjustments Negative Adjustments Net 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 2.92 2 

6 0.00 0 0.00 0 24.19 6 

63 0.00 0 (5.00) 1 241 .23 64 

6 0.00 0 0.00 0 13.18 6 

4 0.00 0 0.00 0 20.00 4 

245 0.00 0 0.00 0 998.77 245 

319 0.00 0 (62.00) 1 15,690.20 320 

25 0.00 0 0.00 0 250.00 25 

28 0.00 0 0.00 0 266.66 28 

327 0.00 0 (14.00) 1 3,655.05 328 

149 0.00 0 0.00 0 368.48 149 

149 0.00 0 0.00 0 6,141 .88 149 

88 0.00 0 0.00 0 693.16 88 

12 0.00 0 0.00 0 543.64 12 

1 0.00 0 0.00 0 20.00 1 

1 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.52 1 

1 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.70 1 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 500.00 2 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 9.73 2 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 2.25 2 

1 0.00 0 0.00 0 9.75 1 

305 290.32 4 (195.00) 1 36,268.31 310 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.73 2 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.24 2 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 1.46 2 

27 0.00 0 0.00 0 2,051.97 27 

70 0.00 0 0.00 0 6,800.00 70 

Page 37 



Payment Report - Fee Code Summary 
Deposit Date : 05/01/2024 - 05/31/2024 
Locations: JP4 

Case Categories: Civil; Criminal 

Fee Code Summary 

Code Word 

CSFF 

CSSF 

DDF 

FNTC1 

IDF 

JCTF 

JFR 

JTP 

JURY 

SB41CDRF 

SB41JCSF 

SB41LAF 

SB41SCF 

SCH 

SFC4 

SFMCWV 

STF 

TCC 

TFC 

TP 

TPDF 

TPWF 

WEXEC 

WF 

WPOSS 

WSF4 

Description 

Child Safety Fee (CCP 102.014(d)) 

Child Safety School Fee (CCP 102.014(c)) 

Deferred Disposition Fee 

Child Safety Seat Fine Trauma Center 

Indigent Defense Fee (LGC 133.107) 

Justice Court Technology Fee (CCP 102.0173) 

Jury Reimbursement Fee (CCP 102.0045) 

Juvenile Truancy Program (CCP 102.0174) 

Jury Fee 

County Dispute Resolution fund - LGC 135.157 

Justice Court Support Fund 

Language Access Fund - LGC 135.155 

State Consolidated Fee 

School District Fine 

Service/Arrest Fee - Const. 4 

State Fine - Motor Carrier Weight Violation 

State Traffic Fee (TC 542.4031) 

Truancy Court Cost (HB2398) 

Traffic 

Time Payment Fee 

Truancy Prevention and Diversion Fund - JP4 
eDoc Conversion 

Texas P&W Fine 

Writ of Execution 

Warrant Fee 

Writ of Possession 

Constable #4 - Writ Service Fee 

Fee Code Summary Totals 

Printed on 06/04/2024 at 10:41: 1 O AM 

Gross 

Amount Number 

20.00 

8.33 

1,695.99 22 

448.50 4 

0.49 2 

0.98 2 

0.98 2 

1.22 2 

66.00 3 

1,530.00 307 

7,650.00 307 

918.00 307 

504.00 25 

50.00 

5.70 2 

269.35 5 

3.12 

100.00 2 

0.31 

3.48 

0.49 2 

515.53 8 

25.00 6 

6.92 

65.00 13 

3,400.00 18 

Gross 

Amount Number 

91 ,850.09 2,887 

TXWILLIAMSONPROD 

Payment Type: Cash Bond Deposit; Counter Payment; ... 

Positive Adjustments Negative Adjustments Net 

Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number 

0.00 0 0.00 0 20.00 

0.00 0 0.00 0 8.33 

0.00 0 (290.32) 4 1,405.67 26 

0.00 0 0.00 0 448.50 4 

0.00 0 0.00 0 0.49 2 

0.00 0 0.00 0 0.98 2 

0.00 0 0.00 0 0.98 2 

0.00 0 0.00 0 1.22 2 

0.00 0 0.00 0 66.00 3 

0.00 0 0.00 0 1,530.00 307 

0.00 0 0.00 0 7,650.00 307 

0.00 0 0.00 0 918.00 307 

0.00 0 0.00 0 504.00 25 

0.00 0 0.00 0 50 .00 

0.00 0 0.00 0 5.70 2 

0.00 0 0.00 0 269.35 5 

0.00 0 0.00 0 3.12 

0.00 0 0.00 0 100.00 2 

0.00 0 0.00 0 0.31 

0.00 0 0.00 0 3.48 

0.00 0 0.00 0 0.49 2 

0.00 0 0.00 0 515.53 8 

0.00 0 0.00 0 25.00 6 

0.00 0 0.00 0 6.92 

0.00 0 0.00 0 65.00 13 

0.00 0 0.00 0 3,400.00 18 

Positive Adjustments Negative Adjustments Net 

Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number 

290.32 4 (566.32) 8 91,574.09 2,899 

Page 38 



Deposit Date: 5/0l/2024-5/31/2024 

Local CCC-Class C 

Court Security Fee 

Local Truancy Prevention & Diversion Fund Fee 

Justice Court Technology Fund 

County Jury Fund Fee 

Percentage Distribution Total: 

Collected 

DR 

$1,279.27 

$1,305.38 

$1,044.30 

$26.10 
$3,655.05 

$3,655.05 

Justice of the Peace 4 

Consolidated Court Cost Calculation Sheet 

CR GLCode 

$3,655.05 99-9999-9999-000003 

01.0361.0000.341154 

01.0369.0000.370000 
01.0372.0000.341144 

01.0100.0000.342853 

$3,655.05 

GL Description ALLOCATION% 

Local CCC-Class C Due to County 

COURTHOUSE SECURITY FEES 35.000000% 
Local Truancy Prevention & Diversion Fund Fee 35.714300% 

Justice Court Technology Fund 28.571400% 
County Jury Fund Fee 0.714300% 

100.000000% 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 9.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Best Friends Agreement and Investment
Submitted By: Misty Valenta, Animal Services
Department: Animal Services
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a request for the Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter to
accept a grant from Best Friends Animal Society.

Background
Best Friends Animal Society recognizes the Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter as a mentor organization
and wants to support the lifesaving efforts of the shelter with a $2,500 investment. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Best Friends Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/05/2024 03:43 PM
Form Started By: Misty Valenta Started On: 06/05/2024 11:12 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/05/2024 



BEST FRIENDS ANIMAL SOCIETY 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
  

BACKGROUND 
  

Best Friends Animals Society (“Best Friends”) is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation based in Kanab, Utah, 

whose mission is No More Homeless Pets®. Best Friends feels privileged to help save lives by working 

with organizations and agencies by providing funding for specific projects and/or needs in its 

commitment to No Kill 2025. 
  
Recipient is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit animal welfare charity or a municipal shelter which has submitted a 

grant request to Best Friends requesting to be awarded a grant pursuant to the below terms (the “Grant”). 

The Grant funds shall be disbursed upon receipt of the signed agreement and copy of the Recipient’s IRS 
FORM W9.  
  
This grant agreement (“Agreement”) will govern the terms of the Grant. Each party shall be referred to 

herein individually as a “Party,” and collectively as the “Parties.” The Parties hereby agree to the 

following terms and conditions as of the date on which it is fully executed by both Parties (the “Effective 

Date”). 
  

AGREEMENT 
  

  
Grant Agreement Reference: 
 

Recipient Business Name: Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter 
Recipient  Contact Name: Misty Valenta 
EIN: 74-6000978 
Grant Name: Hill Country Humane Society Mentorship Grant 
Amount: $2,500 
Grant Term:  6 months (the “Term”) 
Best Friends Representative: Leah Long 

  
Section 1. Use of Grant Fund. 
  
The project is generally described as the following and more specifically described throughout 

this Agreement (the “Project”). Under this Agreement, Best Friends will provide unrestricted 

grant funding to the recipient as recognition of the support it will provide to other shelters 

(“Fellow,” identified in workplan) to identify and assist Fellow in projects designed to sustain 

Fellow’s overall save rate to 90%.  

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D989F2E-FDDE-4867-83C0-7A2A68A0D628

http://chrome-extension/efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf
http://chrome-extension/efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf


The Term of this Agreement, unless terminated pursuant to the language below will be from the June, 

15th, 2024 through December 15th, 2024. 

  

Grants will be provided in one-time payment with Best Friends’ obligation to disburse funds conditional 

upon receipt of Recipient’s completed IRS Form W-9.  
  
Grant Periodic Payments are set below: 
Payment #1 (Paid within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date): $2,500 
 
 

Section 2. Goals 

  
The goal of the Project is to support Hill Country Humane Society and help them to sustain a 90% save 

rate and create a sustainability plan to maintain it thereafter. Goals are set as follows: 

  

• Guide Fellow in implementing or expanding lifesaving programs such as: 

o Pathway planning 

o Shelter medicine 

o Foster and volunteer programs 

o Optimization of municipal contracts 

• Regular check-ins with Fellow, cadence to be determined by Recipient 

 

  
Section 3. Recipient Requirements  

  
A. Recipient will provide a final progress update virtually or via email to the regional contact for the 

purpose of tracking progress.  

B. Recipient must arrange and determine the amount of in-person or virtual visits to the Fellow. Best 

Friends staff member/s may accompany Recipient on visits to the Fellow. 

C. Recipient acknowledges and agrees to use its best efforts to work with Fellow on ensuring 

sustainability is considered for any programmatic changes.   
 

Section 4. Grant Branding Terms and Promotion  
  
Recipient shall cooperate with Best Friends regarding the promotion of the Grant.  Both Parties may issue 

reports or statements to its members, the media, and the public about the Grant.  This includes, but is not 

limited to websites, newsletters, press releases, magazine articles, blogs, and podcasts. Recipient shall 

reasonably cooperate with Best Friends staff, volunteer team leaders, and news or magazine writers in the 

production of such news content. Recipient agrees to cooperate with Best Friends and facilitate promotion 

of the Grant through the Best Friends website, newsletters, electronic news distributions, press releases, 

and other media outlets.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D989F2E-FDDE-4867-83C0-7A2A68A0D628



Section 5. Photo, Video, Digital and Audio Release 
  
Recipient grants to Best Friends permission and rights to photograph, video, and audio record any of 

Recipient’s programs or events for the duration of the Grant. Recipient grants Best Friends the right to 

indefinitely use such photographs, videos or digital images and voices. This release covers all photos, 

videos, and audio recordings made by Best Friends or its employees, contractors, or agents. Recipient 

understands and agrees that these photographs, videos, or digital images and recordings may be used by 

Best Friends in its sole discretion including for identification purposes, to promote or report about Best 

Friends events, activities, and mission; to raise donations, or for other purposes. This includes, but is not 

limited to, any royalties, proceeds, or other benefits derived from such images or recordings. This release 

remains in effect even after the end of the Grant Period. 
  

Recipient further agrees not to make any claim against Best Friends or its employees, contractors, or 

agents for the use of these photographs, videos or digital image or voice recordings. Recipient 

understands this agreement releases and forever discharges Best Friends from any liability to Recipient, 

its successors, and assigns with respect to personal injury, property damage or other loss or damages that 

may result as a result from the making and use of photographs, videos or digital image or voice 

recordings. 
  
Section 6. Non-Disparagement 
  

During the Term of this agreement and for a period of one (1) year after, Recipient agrees to take 

reasonable commercial measures to ensure that its representatives and Recipient's official media outlets 

do not make statements, including but not limited to social media posts, regarding the activities covered 

by this Agreement that are intended to or likely to bring Best Friends into disrepute.  
  

 

  
Standard Terms 

  
  
Section 7. Grant Recipient Representations and Warranties Recipient represents and 

warrants as follows during the Term of this Agreement: 
  

A. Recipient is a qualified 501(c)(3) entity or government organization. 

B. Recipient acknowledges that its animal welfare activities may be governed by a variety of federal, 

state, and local laws. Recipient hereby warrants that it shall use its best efforts to comply with all 

applicable laws and shall not knowingly violate same. 

C. There are no claims, investigations, or proceedings in progress, pending or threatened against 

Recipient which, if determined adversely, would have a material effect on Recipient’s ability to 

fulfill its obligations pursuant to this Agreement and there are no claims, investigations, or 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D989F2E-FDDE-4867-83C0-7A2A68A0D628



proceedings in progress, pending or threatened against Recipient which involve animal neglect or 

abuse. 

D. The individual signing this Agreement on behalf of Recipient is legally competent to enter into 

this Agreement duly authorized to do so by the Recipient. 

  
Section 8. Grant Restrictions 
  
In addition to abiding by the requirement that the Grant funds be used in furtherance of the program 

described in Recipient’s grant application, Recipient specifically agrees that no portion of the Grant funds 

will be used for any of the following: (i) to lobby or otherwise attempt to influence legislation; (ii) to 

influence outcome of any specific public election or participate or intervene in any political campaign on 

behalf of any candidate for public office or conduct, directly or indirectly; (iii) to support or oppose any 

elected official or candidate for public office or on any particular issue. 
  
Section 9. Termination 
  
Recipient may terminate this Agreement upon providing ten (10) business days written notice to Best 

Friends in the event of the following events of default:  
(i) By its actions or statements, Best Friends materially harms Recipient as determined by 

Recipient in its reasonable judgment;   
(ii) Best Friends files for bankruptcy, sells, assigns, or transfers the majority of its assets to 

another entity, or ceases to operate as a nonprofit corporation.  
  
Best Friends may terminate this Agreement upon providing ten (10) business days written notice to the 

Recipient in the event of the following events of default:   
(i) By its actions or statements, Recipient materially harms Best Friends as determined by Best 

Friends in its reasonable judgment: 
(ii) Recipient files for bankruptcy, sells, assigns, or transfers the majority of its assets to another 

entity, or ceases to operate as a nonprofit corporation (if a nonprofit corporation); or  
(iii) Recipient fails to perform its commitments as set out in this Agreement, including, in the 

reasonable judgment of Best Friends, failing to carry out the Project with reasonable diligence to 

meet the goal of saving as many animal lives as possible or has not worked in good faith with 

professionalism to achieve the mutually agreed upon Goals.  
  

[In the event Best Friends terminates this Agreement pursuant to this section, Best Friends, has no 

obligation to pay Recipient any grant payment not yet due at the time of the notice of such termination.] 

  

Section 10. Intellectual Property License  
  
For the Term of this Agreement, Recipient grants Best Friends a non-exclusive, royalty free license to use 

Agency’s name and/or logo to promote Agency’s lifesaving activities associated with the Grant.   Other 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D989F2E-FDDE-4867-83C0-7A2A68A0D628



than the foregoing, neither Party may use the other Party’s logos, trademarks, or other intellectual 

property without express written permission of the other Party. 
  

Section 11.  Release 
  
To the full extent permitted by law, the Recipient, their directors, officers, employees, representatives, 

agents, successors, and assigns, agree never to bring a claim or suit against Best Friends relating to the 

Grant and its receipt of service.  The Recipient agrees Best Friends and its directors, officers, employees, 

representatives, agents, contractors, successors and assigns (“Releasees”) are not responsible for any of 

the decisions, plans, guidelines, work, or activities related to or arising from the Grant. The Recipient 

releases Best Friends and its directors, founders, employees, officers, agents, representatives, contractors, 

volunteers, successors and assigns from all liability arising from any work or activities related to the 

Grant.  The Recipient understands this agreement discharges Releasees from any liability to the 

Recipients with respect to bodily injury, personal injury, illness, death, property damage or other loss of 

any kind or nature whatsoever, direct, or indirect, known or unknown, that may result as a result of the 

Recipient’s work, participation and activities related to this Grant. 
  
Section 12.  Indemnity Agreement  
  
To the full extent permitted by law, the Recipient and its directors, officers, agents, employees, 

representatives, successors and assigns, agree to indemnify and hold Releasees harmless for all bodily 

injury, personal injury, illness, death, property damage or other losses of any kind or nature whatsoever, 

direct or indirect, known or unknown, including attorney’s fees and costs of litigation that result to 

anyone else or any other entity because of Recipient’s actions or omissions related to the Project or any 

breach by Recipient of this Agreement.  This includes lone acts or omissions by the Recipient as well as 

the combined acts of the Recipient with others. 
  
Section 13. Proprietary Information 
  

Recipient acknowledges and agree that the following constitute “Proprietary Information”: any secret or 

proprietary information relating direction to Best Friends business, including, but not limited to, the Best 

Friends Network and donation process, services, members, donor and volunteer lists, business policies, 

employment records and policies, operational methods, marketing plans and strategies, business 

development plans, new personnel acquisition plans, technical processes, designs and design projects, 

inventions and research programs, trade know-how, trade secrets, specific software, algorithms, computer 

processing systems, object and source codes, user manuals, systems documentation, and other business 

and financial affairs of Best Friends. It is not anticipated that Recipient will have access to Best Friends 

proprietary information as a result of this Agreement. Nonetheless, Recipient acknowledges and agrees 

that in the event Recipient learns of or come into possession of any Best Friends proprietary information, 

Recipient will notify Best Friends and return said information. Recipient agrees that they will not use, 

supply or disclose any Proprietary Information it happens to learn of to any third party. 
  
Section 14. No Third-Party Beneficiaries 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D989F2E-FDDE-4867-83C0-7A2A68A0D628



Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any person or entity other than the Parties to this 

Agreement any legal or equitable claim, right or remedy; rather, this Agreement is intended to be for the 

sole and exclusive benefit of the Parties hereto. 

Section 15. Survival of Terms 
  
The intellectual property rights, including the rights to use photos, digital, audio and video materials, 

agreed to in this agreement are perpetual. The releases are perpetual. The agreement to maintain 

Proprietary Information confidential is perpetual. The Non-Disparagement clause survives for one (1) 

year following the terms of the Agreement.  
  
Section 16. Other Terms 
  
The provisions in this Agreement bind the successors and assigns of Recipient. Each term of this 

Agreement is material. Recipient agrees that in the event that any clause or provision of this agreement 

shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such clause or 

provision shall not otherwise affect the remaining provisions of this agreement. This is the entire 

agreement between the Parties and supersedes any other verbal or written statements, representations, or 

promises. 
  
This Agreement shall not be construed to constitute any form of partnership, agency, or joint venture 

between Best Friends and Recipient. Neither Party is responsible in any way for the debts of the other or 

any other party, or any breach of any law, rule, regulation, complaint, grievance, custom, or guideline of 

the other. Neither Party has authority to bind the other to any contractual or other agreements and in no 

event shall either Party represent or hold itself out as acting on behalf of the other Party hereto. 
  
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D989F2E-FDDE-4867-83C0-7A2A68A0D628



By signing below, Recipient and Best Friends acknowledge and agree to the terms of this Agreement. If 

signing electronically, the Parties acknowledge that they have read this Agreement and indicate their 

intent to electronically sign and be bound by the terms and conditions therein. They agree that their 

electronic signatures are intended to authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as a 

manual signature for purposes of validity, enforceability, and admissibility. 

  
Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter 
 Signature: 

Printed Name: 
Title:  
Date: 
  
Best Friends Animal Society 
Signature:  
Printed Name:  
Title:  
Date:  
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D989F2E-FDDE-4867-83C0-7A2A68A0D628

Leah Long

May 31, 2024

South Central - Regional Senior Specialist

Misty Valenta



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 10.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Termination of Service Contract with Keith Pajestka
Submitted By: Jacqueline Lentz, General Counsel
Department: General Counsel
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the termination of the Services Contract for
Livestock Wrangler for Impoundment & Disposition of Estrays with Keith Pajestka, effective July 11, 2024, and
that appropriate officials take necessary actions to provide notice of such termination of the agreement.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Notice of Termination Letter 
Service Contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 05/30/2024 08:07 AM
Form Started By: Jacqueline Lentz Started On: 05/29/2024 04:30 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/30/2024 



 

GENERAL COUNSEL 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 

 
401 W 6TH STREET, GEORGETOWN, TEXAS 78626 

 
HAL C. HAWES 

GENERAL COUNSEL 
 

SHANNON C. FRANCIS                 JACQUELINE LENTZ                     
                                            Assistant General Counsel       Assistant General Counsel       
 

 
 
June 11, 2024  

 
Via First Class U.S. Certified Mail:  
Keith Pajestka 
13710 Cathy Creek Rd.  
Holland, Texas 76534 
 
RE: NOTICE OF CONTRACT TERMINATION  
 
   
Dear Keith Pajestka:  
 
As per the terms outlined in Section 10 of the Service Contract, effective March 29, 2022, the 
County may terminate this Service Contract at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice.  
 
Therefore, the purpose of this letter is to give you official notice that the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court, as the legislative and governing body for Williamson County, has decided 
to terminate the Service Contract. The Service Contract will terminate as of midnight on Thursday, 
July 11, 2024.  
 
Williamson County would like to thank you for your assistance, cooperation, and services 
provided. If you would like to discuss this matter in further detail, please do not hesitate to contact 
me.  
 
        Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 
Jacqueline C. Lentz 
Assistant General Counsel  
Phone: (512) 943-3824  
Email:  jacqueline.lentz@wilco.org   

 

mailto:jacqueline.lentz@wilco.org
















   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 11.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Santa Rita Master Community Vehicle Reimbursement Agreement for County Sheriff
Submitted For: Mike Gleason  Submitted By: Starla Hall, Sheriff
Department: Sheriff
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding approval and receipt of Vehicle Reimbursement
Agreement with Santa Rita Master Community for off duty contracting of County Sheriff Deputies to be effective
June 11, 2024 (located in Liberty Hill).

Background
This agreement gives permission for Santa Rita Master Community to contract County Sheriff Deputies in a
private capacity and the County to invoice them for deputies' vehicle usage for traffic control. This agreement will
terminate on September 30, 2024. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Santa Rita Master Community 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:05 AM
Form Started By: Starla Hall Started On: 06/06/2024 08:29 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 











   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 12.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Reject RFP #24RFP35 and Reissue #24RFP60 Countywide Disaster Related Debris Removal Services for County via
Office of Emergency Management
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Kerstin Hancock, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on rejecting proposals submitted for RFP #24RFP35 Countywide
Disaster Related Debris Removal Services and request that information related to the competition be excepted
pursuant to Texas Government Code 552.104 and authorize the Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive
sealed bids under the new RFP #24RFP60.

Background
 
It is the recommendation to reject all submissions for RFP #23RFP35 – Countywide Disaster Related Debris
Removal Services to allow for additional line items to be priced that would serve in the best interest of the county
and authorize the Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive sealed proposals under the new RFP #24RFP60
Countywide Disaster Related Debris Removal Services. Williamson County Office of Emergency Management,
herein the County, seeks to establish pre-event contracts for Countywide Disaster Debris Removal Services with
qualified Individuals, Firms or Corporations, herein after “Respondent(s)”. The primary purpose of this contracting
exercise is to create at-the-ready resources, at established prices, for the County’s disaster response and
recovery operations in the event of a weather event or disaster situation. The County intends to award one (1)
contract to be utilized on an “as-needed” basis to provide clean-up, demolition, removal, reduction, and disposal
of debris as directed by the County following a natural or man-made disaster. The intent of this proposal is to
enable the County to acquire a qualified contractor to perform emergency debris removal services on an on-call
basis for Williamson County. Eligible debris to be removed shall be determined to eliminate immediate threats to
life, public health, and safety; determined to eliminate immediate threats of significant damage to improved public
or private property; and/or considered essential to ensure economic recovery of the affected community to the
benefit of the community at large. All contractors providing disaster-generated debris removal services are invited
to submit a proposal. The successful Offeror (Contractor) must meet all requirements of this RFP, maintain
proper licensing, and comply with all federal, state, and local laws and mandates relative to the services specified
in this RFP.  Funding Source: Various funding sources depending on need. Point of Contact: Bill Zito and Bruce
Clements.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Award Recommendation Letter 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 06/06/2024 07:00 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:34 AM
Form Started By: Kerstin Hancock Started On: 06/04/2024 04:20 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 





Williamson County 
Office of Emergency Management 
911 Tracy Chambers Lane 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 
512-864-8267
oem@wilco.org

June 5, 2024 

Williamson County Purchasing Department 
Attn: Joy Simonton, Director/Purchasing Agent 
100 Wilco Way, Suite P101 
Georgetown, TX 78626 

Re: 23RFP36 - Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring Services - 
Recommendation of Award 

The recommendation from the RFP Evaluation Committee is to award the 
Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring Services for Williamson 
County contract to Tetra Tech, Inc. This evaluation is based on company 
information, relevant experience and qualifications, methodology on 
carrying out contract, compensation and fees, and references. 

Tetra Tech, Inc is a reliable, well-known leader in the field of emergency 
management with extensive experience related to debris monitoring 
services and highly competitive rates. The Office of Emergency 
Management recommends the Williamson County Commissioners Court 
award the contract to Tetra Tech, Inc based on the committee's evaluation. 

Sincerely, 

Bruce Clements 
Director 
Williamson County Office of Emergency Management 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 13.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Award of RFSQ #21RFSQ2 for Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes to Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC., for Facilities
Management
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Stacian Williams, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFSQ #21RFSQ2, providing design & engineering
services relating to the Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes to Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC, in the amount of
$51,900.00 and authorize execution of the agreement.

Background
Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC, is recommended for award through RFSQ #21RFSQ2 which established a pre-qualified
consultant pool to be contracted on an as-needed basis. Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC., is being recommended for this
project following a project specific evaluation of the firms from the 21RFSQ2 pool wherein Ramirez-Simon Engineering,
LLC received the highest score. This PSA for Design & Engineering Services between Williamson County and
Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC., relates the Animal Shelter HVAC fixes, 1855 SE Inner Loop Georgetown, TX 78626.  A
detailed Scope of Basic/Additional Services is attached, and the agreement has a substantial completion date of 8/26/2024.
Funding Source is 01.0100.0509.004509. Point of contact is Christy Matoska, Facilities Management.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Agreement 
Form 1295 - Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 06/06/2024 07:27 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:24 AM
Form Started By: Stacian Williams Started On: 05/16/2024 01:57 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



5/13/2024
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 1 of 23 0509-24-1092-06
Form rev. 11/2023 1092-4100

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN & ENGINEERING SERVICES

PROJECT: Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes (“Project”)

ARCHITECT/  
ENGINEER:   Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC (“A/E”)

Steven Simon, PE, Principal
1 Chisolm Trail, Suite 450
Round Rock, TX 78681

COUNTY’S DESIGNATED
REPRESENTATIVE:  Williamson County Facilities Department

Director of Facilities 
3101 SE Inner Loop
Georgetown, Texas 78626

THIS AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN AND ENGINEERING SERVICES (“Agreement”) is made and 
entered into effective as of the latest date of the signatories indicated at the conclusion of this 
document (the "Effective Date"), by and between Williamson County, Texas a political 
subdivision of the State of Texas (“County”) and A/E. 

R E C I T A L S

WHEREAS, V.T.C.A., Government Code §2254.002(2)(A)(vii) under Subchapter A entitled 
“Professional Services Procurement Act” provides for the procurement by counties of services of 
professional architects and engineers; and

WHEREAS, County intends to evaluate recommended upgrades to current HVAC system as 
well as an estimated construction cost of each; and

WHEREAS, County desires that A/E perform certain professional services in connection with the 
Project; and

WHEREAS, A/E represents that it is qualified and desires to perform such services;

NOW, THEREFORE, County and A/E, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein contained, do mutually agree as follows:



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 2 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

ARTICLE 1
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

A/E agrees to perform professional services in connection with the Project as stated herein, and 
for having rendered such services, County agrees to pay to A/E compensation as stated in the 
articles to follow. 

ARTICLE 2 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS 

2.1 Contract Documents.   
Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, any exhibits attached hereto (which exhibits are 
hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement), and all fully executed Supplemental 
Agreements which are subsequently issued.  These form the entire Agreement, and all are as 
fully a part of this Agreement as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. 
 
2.2 Existing Information.   
County shall provide A/E with all existing plans, maps, studies, reports, field notes, statistics, 
computations, and other data in its possession relative to existing facilities and to this particular 
Project at no cost to A/E; however, any and all such information shall remain the property of 
County and shall be returned, if County so instructs A/E. 

2.3 Project Documents. 
In addition to any other pertinent and necessary Project documents, the following documents shall 
be used in the development of the Project: 

 
2.3.1 
2012 Edition of the Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) regarding the Elimination of 
Architectural Barriers Program, including latest revisions (see 16 Tex. Admin. Code § 
68.100; see also Tex. Gov’t Code, Ch. 469). 
 

 2.3.2 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
 
2.3.3 
Williamson County Facilities Building Code Adoption List, 2020 edition as updated 
 

 2.3.4 
Williamson County Consultant Design Submittal Guidelines, 2020 edition as updated 

 
 

ARTICLE 3 
NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED 

3.1 Non-collusion.   
A/E warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or persons, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for A/E, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or 
agreed to pay any company or subconsultant any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 3 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, County reserves and shall have the right to 
annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion and at its sole election, to deduct from 
the Agreement price or compensation, or to otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee. 

3.2 Debarment Certification. 
A/E must sign the Debarment Certification enclosed herewith as Exhibit E. 

 
3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.  
A/E covenants and represents that A/E, its officers, employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors will have no financial interest, direct or indirect, in the purchase or sale of any 
product, materials, or equipment that will be recommended or required for the construction of the 
Project. 
 
 

ARTICLE 4 
CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES

4.1
In consideration of the compensation herein provided, A/E shall perform professional design and 
engineering services for the Project, which are acceptable to County, based on standard 
architectural and engineering practices and the scope of work described on the Exhibits attached 
to this Agreement.  A/E shall also serve as County's professional architect and engineer in those 
phases of the Project to which this Agreement applies and will consult with and give advice to 
County during the performance of A/E's services. 

 
4.2 
A/E shall perform the following Basic Scope of Services (sometimes referred to herein as the 
“Basic Scope of Services”, “Basic Services” or the “Scope of Services”): 

 
4.2.1 

The Basic Scope of Services shall generally consist of all elements of work, meetings, 
materials, and equipment required for the development of the Project in accordance with 
the requirements, policies, and general practices of Williamson County.  

 
4.2.2 

As part of the Basic Services, A/E shall submit its work products to County for review as 
requested by County. 

 
4.2.3 

The detailed Basic Services for the Project is set forth herein as Exhibit A to this 
Agreement, which is expressly incorporated and made a part hereof. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 4 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

ARTICLE 5
TIME FOR PERFORMANCE

5.1 Commencement.
A/E shall not commence work until A/E has been thoroughly briefed on the scope of the Project 
and has been notified in writing to proceed, as evidenced by a Notice to Proceed. 

5.2 Duration.
A/E agrees to complete the Basic Services within the time period set forth in Exhibit C.  The time 
limits set out therein may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the Project 
proceeds.  

ARTICLE 6 
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES

6.1 Basic Fee.   
For and in consideration of the Basic Services rendered by A/E, County shall pay to A/E up to 
Fifty-One Thousand, Nine Hundred Dollars ($  51,900.00 ) hereinafter called the "Basic Fee".   

The Basic Fee is based upon all estimated labor costs required in the performance of all items 
and phases of the Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A.  Compensation for Basic Services will be 
paid by County by monthly invoices of percentage completion of fees by phase of the Basic Fee 
as set forth in Exhibit B. County will only be obligated to pay A/E for the performance of items 
and phases of the Basic Services actually rendered and incurred, which may be less than the 
above stated Basic Fee. 
 
6.2 Expenses.   
A/E shall be reimbursed for actual non-labor and subcontract expenses incurred in the 
performance of the services under this Agreement in accordance with the Williamson County 
Vendor Reimbursement Policy set forth under Exhibit D.  Invoices requesting reimbursement for 
costs and expenditures related to the Project (reimbursables) must be accompanied by copies of 
the provider’s invoice and must strictly comply with the Williamson County Vendor 
Reimbursement Policy.  The copies of the provider’s invoice must evidence the actual costs 
billed to A/E without markup.  Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic 
and Additional Services and must not exceed Five Hundred Nineteen Dollars ($ 519.00 ). 

 
ARTICLE 7

ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES

For the performance of services not specifically described as Basic Services under Article 4 
above (sometimes referred to herein as “Additional Services”), County shall pay and A/E shall 
receive, under a negotiated, written Supplemental Agreement, Additional Services compensation 
based upon invoices of percentage completion. 
 
A/E shall not, however, be compensated for work made necessary by A/E’s negligent errors or 
omissions.  In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s services as Basic or 
Additional Services under this Agreement, the decision of County shall be final and binding on 
A/E. 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 5 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

It is expressly understood and agreed that A/E shall not furnish any Additional Services without 
the prior written authorization of County by a negotiated Supplemental Agreement.  County shall 
have no obligation to pay for such Additional Services which have been rendered without prior 
written authorization of County as hereinabove required. 
 
 

ARTICLE 8 
TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT

8.1  Time of Payment.  
During the performance of the services provided for in this Agreement, monthly payments shall 
be made based upon that portion of the services which has been completed.   

On or about the last day of each calendar month during the performance of the Basic Services to 
be provided under this Agreement, A/E shall submit to County working documents in any stage 
of completion to demonstrate incremental progress of Basic Services and the compensation 
which is due for percentage completion of Basic Services. 
 
On or about the last day of each calendar month during the performance of the Additional Services 
to be provided under Article 7, A/E shall submit to County working documents in any stage of 
completion to demonstrate incremental progress of Additional Services under an applicable 
Supplemental Agreement related thereto, and the compensation which is due for percentage 
completion of particular Additional Services. 
 
 
County shall review the documentation and shall pay each statement as set forth in this Article 
8, however, the approval or payment of any statement shall not be considered evidence of 
performance by A/E to the point indicated by such statement or of receipt or acceptance by County 
of the services covered by such statement.  Final payment does not relieve A/E of the 
responsibility of correcting any errors or omissions resulting from A/E’s negligence. 
 
Upon submittal of the initial invoice, A/E shall provide the County Auditor with an Internal Revenue 
Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is complete in 
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations. 
 
8.2 Prompt Payment Policy.  
In accordance with Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A., Texas Government Code, payment to A/E will be 
made within thirty (30) days of the day on which the performance of services was complete, or 
within thirty (30) days of the day on which the County Auditor receives a correct invoice for 
services, whichever is later.  A/E may charge a late fee (fee shall not be greater than that which 
is permitted by Texas law) for payments not made in accordance with this prompt payment policy; 
however, this policy does not apply in the event: 

 
8.2.1 

There is a bona fide dispute between County and A/E concerning the supplies, materials, 
or equipment delivered or the services performed that causes the payment to be late; or 

 
8.2.2 

There is a bona fide dispute between A/E and a subcontractor/ subconsultant or between 
a subcontractor/ subconsultant and its supplier concerning supplies, materials, or 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 6 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

equipment delivered or the Basic Services performed which causes the payment to be 
late; or 

 
8.2.3

The invoice is not submitted to Williamson County in strict accordance with instructions, if 
any, on the purchase order, or this Agreement or other such contractual agreement. 

 
The County Auditor shall document to A/E the issues related to disputed invoices within ten (10) 
calendar days of receipt of such invoice.  Any non-disputed invoices shall be considered correct 
and payable per the terms of Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A. 

 
 

ARTICLE 9 
PROJECT TEAM

County’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows: 
 

Williamson County Facilities Department 
Attn:  Director of Facilities  
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
County shall have the right, from time to time, to change the County’s Designated Representative 
by giving A/E written notice thereof.  With respect to any action, decision, or determination which 
is to be taken or made by County under this Agreement, the County’s Designated Representative 
may take such action or make such decision or determination or shall notify A/E in writing of an 
individual responsible for, and capable of, taking such action, decision, or determination, and shall 
forward any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.  
Actions, decisions or determinations by County’s Designated Representative on behalf of County 
shall be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters 
therefor are included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by County’s Designated 
Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters.  Any consent, 
approval, decision, or determination hereunder by County’s Designated Representative shall be 
binding on County; provided, however, County’s Designated Representative shall not have any 
right to modify, amend, or terminate this Agreement or executed Supplemental Agreement.  
County’s Designated Representative shall not have any authority to execute a Supplemental 
Agreement unless otherwise granted such authority by the Williamson County Commissioners 
Court.   
 
 A/E’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows: 
 

Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC 
Steven Simon, PE, Principal 
1 Chisolm Trail, Suite 450 
Round Rock, TX 78681 

 
A/E shall have the right, from time to time, to change A/E’s Designated Representative by giving 
County written notice thereof.  With respect to any action, decision, or determination which is to 
be taken or made by A/E under this Agreement, A/E’s Designated Representative may take such 
action or make such decision or determination, or shall notify County in writing of an individual 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 7 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

responsible for and capable of taking such action, decision, or determination and shall forward 
any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.  Actions, 
decisions, or determinations by A/E’s Designated Representative on behalf of A/E shall be done 
in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters therefor are 
included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by A/E’s Designated Representative 
shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters.  Any consent, approval, 
decision, or determination hereunder by A/E’s Designated Representative shall be binding on 
A/E.  A/E’s Designated Representative shall have the right to modify, amend, and execute 
Supplemental Agreements on behalf of A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 10 
NOTICE 

Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be duly served when it shall have been deposited, enclosed in a wrapper with the proper 
postage prepaid thereon, and duly registered or certified, return receipt requested, in a United 
States Post Office, addressed to County or A/E at the following addresses.  If mailed, any notice 
or communication shall be deemed to be received three (3) days after the date of deposit in the 
United States Mail.  Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices shall be delivered to 
the following addresses: 

County: Williamson County Judge 
710 Main Street, Suite 101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
With copy to:  Williamson County Facilities Department 

Attn: Director of Facilities 
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626  

 
and to:  Office of General Counsel 

Williamson County Commissioners Court 
401 W. 6th Street 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 
A/E:  Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC 

1 Chisolm Trail, Suite 450 
Round Rock, TX 78681 

 
Attention: Steven Simon, PE 

    Principal 
  
Either party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten (10) days written 
notice. 

 
 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 8 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

ARTICLE 11 
PROGRESS EVALUATION

A/E shall, from time to time during the progress of the Basic Services and, when applicable, 
progress of Additional Services, confer with County at County’s election.  A/E shall prepare and 
present such information as may be pertinent and necessary, or as may be reasonably requested 
by County, in order for County to evaluate features of the Basic Services and any applicable 
Additional Services.  At the request of County or A/E, conferences shall be provided at A/E's 
office, the offices of County, or at other locations designated by County.  When requested by 
County, such conferences shall also include evaluation of the Basic Services and any applicable 
Additional Services.  County may, from time to time, require A/E to appear and provide information 
to the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 
 
Should County determine that the progress in Basic Services or any applicable Additional 
Services does not satisfy the terms of this Agreement, then County shall review same with A/E 
to determine corrective action required. 
 
A/E shall promptly advise County in writing of events which have or may have a significant impact 
upon the progress of the Basic Services and any applicable Additional Services, including but 
not limited to the following: 
 
11.1
Problems, delays, adverse conditions which may materially affect the ability to meet the objectives 
of this Agreement or preclude the attainment of Project Basic Services and any applicable 
Additional Services by established time periods; and such disclosure shall be accompanied by 
statement of actions taken or contemplated, and County assistance needed to resolve the 
situation, if any; and 

 
11.2
Favorable developments or events which enable meeting goals sooner than anticipated in 
relation to this Agreement or any applicable Supplemental Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 12 
CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES 

If County deems it necessary to request changes to previously satisfactorily completed Basic 
Services or parts thereof which involve changes to the original Basic Services or character of 
Basic Services under this Agreement, then A/E shall make such revisions as requested and as 
directed by County.  Such revisions shall be considered as Additional Services and paid for as 
specified under Article 7 and Article 8.  A/E shall make revisions to Basic Services authorized 
hereunder as are necessary to correct errors appearing therein, when required to do so by 
County.  No additional compensation shall be due for such Basic Services. 

 
 
 
 
 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 9 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

ARTICLE 13
REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT

13.1 Review Process. 
A/E's Work Product will be reviewed by County under its applicable technical requirements and 
procedures, as follows: 

 
13.1.1 Submittal.   

Reports, plans, surveys, field notes, original drawings, computer tapes, graphic files, 
tracings, calculations, analyses, reports, specifications, data, sketches and/or schematics 
prepared by A/E and supporting documents (collectively referred to hereinabove and 
hereinafter as the "A/E Work Product(s)"), shall be submitted by A/E on or before the dates 
specified for completion, as set out in the Production Schedule set forth in Exhibit C. 

 
13.1.2 Completion.   

Reports, plans, specifications, and supporting documents shall be submitted by A/E on or 
before the dates specified in Exhibit C.  Upon receipt of same, the submission shall be 
checked for completion. "Completion" or “Complete” shall be defined as all of the required 
items, as set out in Exhibit A, have been included in compliance with the requirements of 
this Agreement.  The completeness of any Basic Services submitted to County shall be 
determined by County within thirty (30) days of such submittal and County shall notify A/E 
in writing within such thirty (30) day period if such Basic Services have been found to be 
incomplete.  If the submission is Complete, County will notify A/E and County’s technical 
review process will begin. 

 
If the submission is not Complete, County will notify A/E, who shall perform such professional 
services as are required to complete the Basic Services and resubmit it to County. This process 
shall be repeated until a submission is Complete. 

 
13.1.3 Acceptance.   

County will review the completed Basic Services in each design phase for compliance with 
this Agreement and general conformance with the Design Deliverable Guidelines.  
"Acceptance" or “Accepted” shall mean that in County’s reasonable opinion, substantial 
compliance with the requirements of this Agreement has been achieved. 
 
If a lack of coordination between subconsultant documents is discovered in the A/E work 
product, which is not specifically called-out by A/E as a pending coordination item, the 
work product will be returned to A/E along with written email notification which may 
describe preliminary deficiencies discovered and may reference the terms of Paragraph 
13.1.3 of this Agreement.  A/E shall perform any required corrections to Basic Services 
and resubmit to County. 
 
Should this process need to be repeated for the same or subsequent deficiencies related 
to the initial deficiencies, County will issue a marked-up work product to A/E indicating 
specific deficiencies for correction.  County will also issue a notice for A/E to deduct One 
Thousand Dollars ($ 1,000 ) from the A/E ‘s Basic Fee on the next invoice for each 
occurrence until the Basic Services are Accepted. 

 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 10 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

13.1.4 Final Approval.  
After Acceptance, A/E shall perform any required modifications, changes, alterations, 
corrections, redesigns, and additional work necessary to receive Final Approval by 
County.  "Final Approval" in this sense shall mean formal recognition that the Basic 
Services have been fully carried out. 

 
13.2  Revision to A/E Work Product.  
A/E shall make, without expense to County, such revisions to A/E Work Product as may be 
required to correct negligent errors or omissions so A/E Work Product meets the needs of County, 
but after the approval of A/E Work Product any revisions, additions, or other modifications made 
at County's request which involve extra services and expenses to A/E shall entitle A/E to 
additional compensation for such extra services and expenses; provided, however, A/E hereby 
agrees to perform any necessary corrections to A/E Work Products which are found to be in 
negligent error or omission as a result of A/E’s development of A/E Work Product, at any time, 
without additional compensation.  If it is necessary, due to such error or omission by A/E, to revise 
any A/E Work Product in order to make the Project constructible, A/E shall do so without additional 
compensation.  In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s Work Products as 
Complete, Accepted, or Approved under this Agreement, the decision of County shall be final and 
binding on A/E, subject to any civil remedy or determination otherwise available to the parties and 
deemed appropriate by the parties. 
 
13.3  Days.   
All references to a “day” in this Agreement shall mean a calendar day unless otherwise specified. 
 
13.4 County’s Reliance on A/E.   
A/E’s duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any 
review, evaluation, or approval by County nor shall A/E be released from any liability by 
reason of such review, evaluation or approval by County, it being understood that County, 
at all times, is ultimately relying upon A/E’s skill, ability, and knowledge in performing the 
Basic Services required hereunder. 

 
 

ARTICLE 14 
SUSPENSION

Should County desire to suspend the Basic Services, but not to terminate this Agreement, then 
such suspension may be effected by County giving A/E thirty (30) calendar days’ verbal 
notification followed by written confirmation to that effect.  Such thirty (30)-day notice may be 
waived in writing by agreement and signature of both parties.  The Basic Services may be 
reinstated and resumed in full force and effect within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice 
from County to resume the Basic Services.  Such sixty (60)-day notice may be waived in writing 
by agreement and signature of both parties.  If this Agreement is suspended for more than thirty 
(30) days, A/E shall have the option of terminating this Agreement and, in the event, A/E shall be 
compensated for all Basic Services performed and reimbursable expenses incurred, provided 
such Basic Services and reimbursable expenses have been previously authorized and approved 
by County, to the effective date of suspension. 
 
County assumes no liability for Basic Services performed or costs incurred prior to the date 
authorized by County for A/E to begin Basic Services, and/or during periods when Basic Services 
are suspended, and/or subsequent to the completion date. 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 11 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

ARTICLE 15
VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT

Violation of contract terms or breach of contract by A/E shall be grounds for termination of this 
Agreement, and any increased costs arising from A/E’s default, breach of contract, or violation of 
contract terms shall be paid by A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 16
TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated as set forth below. 

16.1
By mutual agreement and consent, in writing, of both parties. 

 
16.2
By County, by notice in writing to A/E, as a consequence of failure by A/E to perform the Basic 
Services set forth herein in a satisfactory manner. 

 
16.3
By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth herein. 

 
16.4
By County, for reasons of its own and not subject to the mutual consent of A/E, upon not less than 
thirty (30) days written notice to A/E.

 
16.5
By satisfactory completion of all Basic Services and obligations described herein. 

Should County terminate this Agreement as herein provided, no fees other than fees due and 
payable at the time of termination plus reimbursable expenses incurred shall thereafter be paid 
to A/E.  In determining the value of the Basic Services performed by A/E prior to termination, 
County shall be the sole judge.  Compensation for Basic Services at termination will be based on 
a percentage of the Basic Services completed at that time.  Should County terminate this 
Agreement under Section 16.4 above, then the amount charged during the thirty (30)-day notice 
period shall not exceed the amount charged during the preceding thirty (30) days. 
 
If A/E defaults in the performance of this Agreement or if County terminates this Agreement for 
fault on the part of A/E, then County shall give consideration to the actual costs incurred by A/E 
in performing the Basic Services to the date of default, the amount of Basic Services required 
which was satisfactorily completed to date of default, the value of the Basic Services which are 
usable to County, the cost to County of employing another firm to complete the Basic Services 
required and the time required to do so, and other factors which affect the value to County of the 
Basic Services performed at the time of default. 
 
The termination of this Agreement and payment of an amount in settlement as prescribed above 
shall extinguish all rights, duties, and obligations of County under this Agreement. If the 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 12 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

termination of this Agreement is due to the failure of A/E to fulfill its contractual obligations, then 
County may take over the Project and prosecute the Basic Services to completion.  In such case, 
A/E shall be liable to County for any additional and reasonable costs incurred by County. 

A/E shall be responsible for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out 
of any procurements made by A/E in support of the Basic Services under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 17 
USE OF DOCUMENTS

All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, and data or programs stored 
electronically, (hereinafter referred to as “A/E Work Products”) prepared by A/E and its 
subcontractors/ subconsultants are related exclusively to the services described in this 
Agreement and are intended to be used with respect to this Project.  However, it is expressly 
understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that all of A/E’s designs under this 
Agreement (including but not limited to tracings, drawings, estimates, specifications, 
investigations, studies and other documents, completed or partially completed), shall be the 
property of County to be thereafter used in any lawful manner as County elects.  Any such 
subsequent use made of documents by County shall be at County’s sole risk and without liability 
to A/E. 

 
By execution of this Agreement and in confirmation of the fee for services to be paid under this 
Agreement, A/E hereby conveys, transfers, and assigns to County all rights under the Federal 
Copyright Act of 1976 (or any successor copyright statute), as amended, all common law 
copyrights and all other intellectual property rights acknowledged by law in the Project Designs 
and Work Product developed under this Agreement.  Copies may be retained by A/E.  A/E shall 
be liable to County for any loss or damage to any such documents while they are in the possession 
of or while being worked upon by A/E or anyone connected with A/E, including agents, employees, 
Engineers or subcontractors/ subconsultants.  All documents so lost or damaged shall be 
replaced or restored by A/E without cost to County. 
 
Upon execution of this Agreement, A/E grants to County permission to reproduce A/E’s work and 
documents for purposes of constructing, using, and maintaining the Project, provided that County 
will comply with its obligations, including prompt payment of all sums when due, under this 
Agreement. A/E shall obtain similar permission from A/E’s subcontractors/ subconsultants 
consistent with this Agreement.  If and upon the date A/E is adjudged in default of this Agreement, 
County is permitted to authorize other similarly credentialed design professionals to reproduce 
and, where permitted by law, to make changes, corrections, or additions to the work and 
documents for the purposes of completing, using, and maintaining the Project. 

 
County shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge, or otherwise transfer any permission 
granted herein to another party without the prior written consent of A/E.  However, County shall 
be permitted to authorize the contractor, subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers to 
reproduce applicable portions of A/E Work Products appropriate to and for use in the execution 
of the Work.  Submission or distribution of A/E Work Products to meet official regulatory 
requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is permitted.  Any unauthorized 
use of A/E Work Products shall be at County's sole risk and without liability to A/E and its 
subconsultants. 

 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 13 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

Prior to A/E providing to County any A/E Work Products in electronic form or County providing to 
A/E any electronic data for incorporation into A/E Work Products, County and A/E shall, by 
separate written agreement, set forth the specific conditions governing the format of such A/E 
Work Products or electronic data, including any special limitations not otherwise provided in this 
Agreement.  Any electronic files are provided by A/E for the convenience of County and use of 
them is at County’s sole risk.  In the case of any defects in electronic files or any discrepancies 
between them and any hardcopy of the same documents prepared by A/E, the hardcopy shall 
prevail.  Only printed copies of documents conveyed by A/E shall be relied upon.   

 
A/E shall have no liability for changes made to the drawings by other consultants subsequent to 
the completion of the Project.  Any such change shall be sealed by A/E making that change and 
shall be appropriately marked to reflect what was changed or modified. 
 
 

ARTICLE 18 
PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL

A/E shall furnish and maintain, at its own expense, quarters for the performance of all Basic 
Services, and adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the Basic Services as 
required.  All employees of A/E shall have such knowledge and experience as will enable them 
to perform the duties assigned to them.  Any employee of A/E who, in the reasonable opinion of 
County, is incompetent or whose conduct becomes detrimental to the Basic Services shall 
immediately be removed from association with the Project when so instructed by County.  A/E 
certifies that it presently has adequate qualified personnel in its employment for performance of 
the Basic Services required under this Agreement, or will obtain such personnel from sources 
other than County.  A/E may not change the Project Manager without prior written consent of 
County. 
 
 

ARTICLE 19 
SUBCONTRACTING

A/E shall not assign, subcontract, or transfer any portion of the Basic Services under this 
Agreement without prior written approval from County.  All subcontracts shall include the 
provisions required in this Agreement.  No subcontract shall relieve A/E of any responsibilities 
under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 20
MODIFICATIONS

This instrument contains the entire Agreement between the parties relating to the right herein 
granted and obligations herein assumed.  Any oral or written representations or modifications 
concerning this instrument shall be of no force and effect excepting a subsequent written 
modification signed by both parties hereto. 

ARTICLE 21 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 14 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

21.1 Compliance.  
A/E shall render the services hereunder in accordance with generally accepted standards 
applicable thereto and shall use that degree of care and skill commensurate with the architecture 
and engineering professions, and in recognition of such standards, A/E shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and 
the orders and decrees of any court, or administrative bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting 
the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, minimum/ maximum salary and 
wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations.  A/E shall furnish County with 
satisfactory proof of its compliance. 

A/E shall further obtain all permits and licenses required in the performance of the Basic Services 
contracted for herein. 

 
21.2  Taxes.  
A/E shall pay all taxes, if any, required by law arising by virtue of the Basic Services performed 
hereunder.  County is qualified for exemption pursuant to the provisions of Section 151.309 of 
the Texas Limited Sales, Excise, and Use Tax Act. 

ARTICLE 22 
INDEMNIFICATION 

A/E AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY 

HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS,
LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE 

ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A 

NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION, NEGLIGENCE, OR INTENTIONAL TORT COMMITTED BY A/E, A/E’S 

EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY UNDER CONTRACT WITH A/E INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, A/E’S SUBCONSULTANTS, OR ANY OTHER ENTITY OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES 

CONTROL.
 
A/E FURTHER AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY 

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS,
DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES,
(“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A/E’S FAILURE TO PAY 

A/E’S EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, IN CONNECTION WITH ANY 

OF THE WORK PERFORMED OR TO BE PERFORMED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT BY A/E.  
 
A/E FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES,
LOSSES, PENALTIES, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 

LIMITED TO, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED 

BY OR RESULTS FROM THE INFRINGEMENT OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF THE USE 

OF ANY PLANS, DESIGN, DRAWINGS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FURNISHED BY A/E IN THE PERFORMANCE OF 

THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
THE LIMITS OF INSURANCE REQUIRED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

SHALL NOT LIMIT A/E’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS ARTICLE 22. THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

CONTAINED IN THIS ARTICLE 22 SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS OR THE SUSPENSION OF THE WORK HEREUNDER. TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY 

LIABILITIES, PENALTIES, DEMANDS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 15 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

ARE CAUSED IN PART BY THE ACTS OF COUNTY OR THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM A/E IS NOT LEGALLY 

LIABLE, A/E’S OBLIGATIONS SHALL BE IN PROPORTION TO A/E’S FAULT. THE OBLIGATIONS HEREIN 

SHALL ALSO EXTEND TO ANY ACTIONS BY COUNTY TO ENFORCE THIS INDEMNITY OBLIGATION. 
 
IN THE EVENT THAT CONTRACTORS INITIATE LITIGATION AGAINST COUNTY IN WHICH CONTRACTOR 

ALLEGES DAMAGES AS A RESULT OF ANY ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF A/E OR ANY OF ITS 

EMPLOYEES OR ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E,
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DEFECTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS IN THE CONSTRUCTION 

DOCUMENTS OR IN THE ADMINISTRATION OF THIS AGREEMENT BY A/E OR ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES OR 

ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E, AND/OR 

INADEQUATE SERVICES PURSUANT TO THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE-ADMINISTRATION OF THE 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AS DEFINED AND REQUIRED BY THIS AGREEMENT, AGREEMENT EXHIBITS 

AND THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, THEN COUNTY SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO JOIN 

A/E AT COUNTY’S COST.  A/E SHALL ALSO HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY COUNTY TO THE 

EXTENT THAT A/E, ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR 

SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES CONTROL, CAUSED SUCH DAMAGES TO 

CONTRACTOR, INCLUDING ANY AND ALL COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES INCURRED BY COUNTY IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS WHERE A/E, ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS,
SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH A/E
EXERCISES CONTROL, ARE ADJUDICATED AT FAULT. 
 
 

ARTICLE 23 
PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

A/E shall be responsible for the accuracy of its Professional Services and shall promptly make 
necessary revisions or corrections to its Work Product resulting from errors, omissions, or 
negligent acts, and same shall be done without compensation.  County shall determine A/E’s 
responsibilities for all questions arising from design errors and/or omissions, subject to the dispute 
resolution provisions of Article 31.  A/E shall not be relieved of responsibility for subsequent 
correction of any such errors or omissions in its work product, or for clarification of any ambiguities 
until after the construction phase of the Project has been completed. 
 
 

ARTICLE 24 
PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL 

The responsible architect and engineer shall sign, seal, and date all appropriate submissions to 
County in accordance with Texas laws and the rules of the State Boards of Registration for 
Professionals. 

 
 

ARTICLE 25 
INSURANCE 

A/E shall comply with the following insurance requirements, at all times, during this Agreement: 
 
25.1  Coverage Limits.   
A/E, at A/E’s sole cost, shall purchase and maintain, during the entire term while this Agreement 
is in effect, the following insurance: 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 16 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

 25.1.1 
Worker's Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements. 

 
25.1.2
Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. 

25.1.3
Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with combined 
minimum limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage limits of $500,000 per occurrence 
and $1,000,000 in the aggregate. 

25.1.4
Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in the amount of $ 1,000,000  per 
claim.

 
25.2 Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.  
County, its directors, officers and employees shall be added as additional insureds under policies 
listed under (2) and (3) above, and on those policies where County, its directors, officers and 
employees are additional insureds, such insurance shall be primary; and, any insurance 
maintained by County shall be excess and not contribute with it.  Such policies shall also include 
waivers of subrogation in favor of County. 
 
25.3 Premiums and Deductible.  
A/E shall be responsible for payment of premiums for all insurance coverages required under this 
Article 25.  A/E further agrees that for each claim, suit, or action made against insurance provided 
hereunder, with respect to all matters for which A/E is responsible hereunder, A/E shall be solely 
responsible for all deductibles and self-insured retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured 
retentions over $50,000 in A/E’s insurance must be declared and approved in writing by County 
in advance. 

25.4 Commencement of Work.  
A/E shall not commence any work under this Agreement until it has obtained all required 
insurance and such insurance has been approved by County.  As further set out below, A/E shall 
not allow any subcontractor/ subconsultant(s) to commence work to be performed in connection 
with this Agreement until all required insurance has been obtained and approved; and, such 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Approval of the insurance by County shall not 
relieve or decrease the liability of A/E hereunder. 
 
25.5 Insurance Company Rating.   
Required insurance must be written by a company approved to do business in the State or Texas 
with a financial standing of at least an A-rating, as reflected in Best’s insurance ratings or by a 
similar rating system recognized within the insurance industry at the time the policy is issued. 

 
25.6 Certification of Coverage.  
A/E shall furnish County with a certification of coverage issued by the insurer.  A/E shall not cause 
any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse.  In addition to any other 
notification requirements set forth hereunder, A/E shall also notify County, within twenty-



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 17 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

four (24) hours of receipt, of any notices of expiration, cancellation, non-renewal, or 
material change in coverage it receives from its insurer. 

 
25.7 No Arbitration.  
It is the intention of County and agreed to and hereby acknowledged by A/E, that no provision of 
this Agreement shall be construed to require County to submit to mandatory arbitration in the 
settlement of any claim, cause of action or dispute, except as specifically required in direct 
connection with an insurance claim or threat of claim under an insurance policy required 
hereunder or as may be required by law or a court of law with jurisdiction over the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

 
25.8 Subcontractor/ Subconsultant’s Insurance.   
Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of A/E, A/E shall require each 
subcontractor/ subconsultant performing work under this Agreement (to the extent a 
subcontractor/ subconsultant is allowed by County) to maintain during the term of this Agreement, 
at the subcontractor/ subconsultant’s own expense, the same stipulated minimum insurance 
required in this Article 25 above, including the required provisions and additional policy conditions 
as shown below in this Article 25. 

 
A/E shall obtain and monitor the certificates of insurance from each subcontractor/ subconsultant 
in order to assure compliance with the insurance requirements.  A/E must retain the certificates 
of insurance for the duration of this Agreement and shall have the responsibility of enforcing these 
insurance requirements among its subcontractor/ subconsultants.  County shall be entitled, upon 
request and without expense, to receive copies of these certificates of insurance. 

 
25.9 Insurance Policy Endorsements.   
Each insurance policy shall include the following conditions by endorsement to the policy: 

25.9.1 
County shall be notified thirty (30) days prior to the expiration, cancellation, nonrenewal 
or any material change in coverage, and such notice thereof shall be given to County by 
certified mail to: 

 
Williamson County Purchasing 
100 Wilco Way 
Suite P101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 25.10.1 

The policy clause “Other Insurance” shall not apply to any insurance coverage currently 
held by County, to any such future coverage, or to County’s Self-Insured Retentions of 
whatever nature. 

 
25.10 Cost of Insurance.   
The cost of all insurance required herein to be secured and maintained by A/E shall be borne 
solely by A/E, with certificates of insurance evidencing such minimum coverage in force to be filed 
with County.  Such certificates of insurance are evidenced as Exhibit F. 

 
 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 18 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

ARTICLE 26
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their 
successors, lawful assigns, and legal representatives.  A/E may not assign, sublet, or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, without obtaining 
the prior written consent of County. 

 

ARTICLE 27 
SEVERABILITY 

In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason 
be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be construed 
as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

 
 

ARTICLE 28 
PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED

This Agreement constitutes the sole agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes any prior 
understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the subject matter 
defined herein.  This Agreement may only be amended or supplemented by mutual agreement of 
the parties hereto in writing. 

 
 

ARTICLE 29 
A/E’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS 

A/E agrees to maintain, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, 
detailed records, books, documents, and papers which are directly pertinent to the services to be 
performed under this Agreement and records of reimbursable costs and expenses of other 
providers and provide such other details as may be requested by the County Auditor for the 
purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  A/E agrees that County 
or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final 
payment under this Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and 
all detailed records, books, documents, and papers which are directly pertinent to the services to 
be performed under this Agreement and records of reimbursable costs and expenses of other 
providers for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  A/E 
further agrees that County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary A/E 
facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate workspace in order to conduct audits in 
compliance with the provisions of this Article 29.  County shall give A/E reasonable advance 
notice of intended audits. 
 
 

ARTICLE 30 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 19 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

30.1 Time is of the Essence. 
A/E understands and agrees that time is of the essence and that any failure of A/E to complete 
the Basic Services within the agreed Production Schedule set out in Exhibit C may constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement.  A/E shall be fully responsible for its delays or for failures to 
use its reasonable efforts in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and A/E’s standard of 
performance as defined herein.  Where damage is caused to County due to A/E’s negligent failure 
to perform, County may accordingly withhold, to the extent of such damage, A/E’s payments 
hereunder without waiver of any of County’s additional legal rights or remedies. 
 
30.2 Force Majeure.   
Neither County nor A/E shall be deemed in violation of this Agreement if prevented from 
performing any of their obligations hereunder by reasons for which they are not responsible or 
circumstances beyond their control.  However, notice of such impediment or delay in performance 
must be timely given, and all reasonable efforts undertaken to mitigate its effects. 

 
30.3 Enforcement and Venue. 
This Agreement shall be enforceable in Georgetown, Williamson County, Texas, and if legal 
action is necessary by either party with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms or 
conditions herein, exclusive venue for same shall lie in Williamson County, Texas.  This 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and court decisions 
of the State of Texas excluding, however, its choice of law rules. 

 
30.4 Standard of Performance.   
The standard of care for all professional architecture, engineering, consulting and related services 
performed or furnished by A/E and its employees under this Agreement will be the care and skill 
ordinarily used by members of A/E’s profession, practicing under the same or similar 
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. 

 
30.5 Opinion of Probable Cost.   
Any opinions of probable Project cost or probable construction cost provided by A/E are made on 
the basis of information available to A/E and on the basis of A/E’s experience and qualifications 
and represents its judgment as an experienced and qualified professional.  However, since A/E 
has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or 
over the contractor(s’) methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market 
conditions, A/E does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual Project or construction cost will 
not vary from opinions of probable cost A/E prepares. 

 
30.6 Opinions and Determinations.   
Where the terms of this Agreement provide for action to be based upon opinion, judgment, 
approval, review, or determination of either party hereto, such terms are not intended to be and 
shall never be construed as permitting such opinion, judgment, approval, review, or determination 
to be arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable. 

 
30.7 Reports of Accidents.
Within twenty-four (24) hours after A/E becomes aware of the occurrence of any accident or 
other event which results in, or might result in, injury to the person or property of any third person 
(other than an employee of A/E), whether or not it results from, or involves, any action or failure 
to act by A/E or any employee or agent of A/E and which arises in any manner from the 
performance of this Agreement, A/E shall send a written report of such accident or other event to 
County, setting forth a full and concise statement of the facts pertaining thereto.  A/E shall also 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 20 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

immediately send to County a copy of any summons, subpoena, notice, or other documents 
served upon A/E, its agents, employees, or representatives, or received by it or them, in 
connection with any matter before any court arising in any manner from A/E’s performance of 
work under this Agreement. 

 
30.8 Gender, Number, and Headings. 
Words of any gender used in this Agreement shall be held and construed to include any other 
gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, unless the context 
otherwise requires.  The headings and section numbers are for convenience only and shall not 
be considered in interpreting or construing this Agreement. 

 
30.9 Construction. 
Each party hereto acknowledges that it and its counsel have reviewed this Agreement and that 
the normal rules of construction are not applicable and there will be no presumption that any 
ambiguities will be resolved against the drafting party in the interpretation of this Agreement. 
 
30.10 Independent Contractor Relationship.   
Both parties hereto, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an individual capacity and 
not as agents, employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees 
or agents of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the 
other party for any purposes whatsoever. 

 
30.11 No Waiver of Immunities.   
Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify, or amend any legal defense 
available at law or in equity to County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to 
create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party.  County does not waive, modify, or 
alter, to any extent whatsoever, the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under 
the laws of the State of Texas and of the United States. 

 
30.12 Texas Public Information Act.   
To the extent, if any, that any provision in this Agreement is in conflict with Texas Government 
Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no force 
or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that County, its officers and 
employees may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of 
Texas in regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to 
County as to whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that 
County’s officers and employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions 
of the Attorney General, and that County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or 
obligation to any party hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any 
items or data furnished to County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion 
of the Attorney General of the State of Texas. 

 
30.13 Governing Terms and Conditions.
If there is an irreconcilable conflict between the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
or any Supplemental Agreement and the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix 
to this Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement or any Supplemental 
Agreement shall control over the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix to this 
Agreement. 

 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 21 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

30.14 Appropriation of Funds by County.
County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for expenditure to 
finance the costs of this Agreement. A/E understands and agrees that County’s payment of 
amounts under this Agreement is contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments under this Agreement. It is further understood and 
agreed by A/E that County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at the end of any 
County fiscal year if the governing body of County does not appropriate sufficient funds as 
determined by County’s budget for the fiscal year in question.  County may affect such termination 
by giving written notice of termination to A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 31 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Except as otherwise specifically set forth herein, County and A/E shall work together in good faith 
to resolve any controversy, dispute, or claim between them which arises out of or relates to this 
Agreement, whether stated in tort, contract, statute, claim for benefits, bad faith, professional 
liability or otherwise ("Claim").  If the parties are unable to resolve the Claim within thirty (30) 
days following the date in which one party sent written notice of the Claim to the other party, and 
if a party wishes to pursue the Claim, such Claim shall be addressed through non-binding 
mediation.  A single mediator engaged in the practice of law, who is knowledgeable about subject 
matter of this Agreement, shall be selected by agreement of the parties and serve as the mediator.  
Any mediation under this Agreement shall be conducted in Williamson County, Texas.  The 
mediator’s fees shall be borne equally between the parties.  Such non-binding mediation is a 
condition precedent to seeking redress in a court of competent jurisdiction, but this provision shall 
not preclude either party from filing a lawsuit in a court of competent jurisdiction prior to completing 
a mediation, if necessary to preserve the statute of limitations, in which case such lawsuit shall 
be stayed pending completion of the mediation process contemplated herein.  This provision shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 32 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT

The parties to this Agreement agree that during the performance of the services under this 
Agreement they will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 
of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The parties to this Agreement will take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  

 
 

ARTICLE 33 
MERGER

The Parties agree that this Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions of the 
understanding of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  All prior negotiations, 



5/13/2024
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 22 of 23 0509-24-1092-06
Form rev. 11/2023 1092-4100

discussions, correspondence and preliminary understandings between the parties and others 
relating hereto are superseded by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 34 
PUBLIC CONTACT

Contact with the news media, citizens of Williamson County or governmental agencies shall be 
the responsibility of County.  Under no circumstances shall A/E release any material or 
information developed in the performance of its services hereunder without the express written 
permission of County.

ARTICLE 35 
A/E’s REPRESENTATIONS

A/E represents that it is financially solvent, able to pay its debts as they become due, and 
possesses sufficient working capital to complete the services and perform its obligation under this 
Agreement and under the Contract Documents.  A/E further represents and acknowledges that: 
(a) it is a sophisticated business entity that possesses the required level of experience and 
expertise in business administration, construction, and contract administration of projects of 
similar or like size, complexity, and nature as the Project and (b) the fee stated in this Agreement 
is adequate compensation for the timely completion of the Basic Services.

ARTICLE 36 
SIGNATORY WARRANTY

The undersigned signatory for A/E hereby represents and warrants that the signatory is an officer 
of the organization for which he/she has executed this Agreement and that he/she has full and 
complete authority to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the firm. The above-stated 
representations and warranties are made for the purpose of inducing County to enter into this 
Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County has caused this Agreement to be signed in its name by its duly 
authorized County Judge, or presiding officer of the Williamson County Commissioners Court in 
the absence of the County Judge, thereby binding the parties hereto, their successors, assigns 
and representatives for the faithful and full performance of the terms and provisions hereof. NO 
OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COUNTY HAS ANY 
AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO AMEND, TERMINATE OR MODIFY THIS 
AGREEMENT, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE 
GRANTED BY THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT.

A/E:       COUNTY: 
Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC   Williamson County, Texas  

By:        By:        
Signature Signature



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Professional Services Agreement – PLAE  Page 23 of 23 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2023  1092-4100 

              
Printed Name Printed Name

 
              
Title Title

 
 
Date Signed:  Date Signed: 

 

Steven Simon, PE

Principal

5/14/24



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Exhibit A – Scope Page 1 of 6 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 04/2024  1092-4100 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF BASIC SERVICES 

THE FOLLOWING SCOPE OF SERVICES IS INTENDED TO BE CONSISTENT WITH THE 
AGREEMENT.  TO THE EXTENT THIS SCOPE OF SERVICES IS INCONSISTENT WITH THE 
AGREEMENT, THE AGREEMENT WILL SUPERSEDE THE SCOPE OF SERVICES AND WILL 
BE CONTROLLING. 

In consideration of the Basic Fee provided in the Agreement, A/E shall perform the following Basic 
Services, based on standard architectural and engineering practices: 

These services may include, but are not limited to as-built drawings, programming, architectural, 
structural, civil, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, hazardous materials, IT and security, landscape 
and irrigation, cost estimates and construction administration, master planning, facility condition 
assessment, forensic investigations, real estate evaluations, and specialized studies and 
analyses as agreed to by County and A/E. 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Design Criteria.  A/E shall prepare all work in accordance with the latest version of applicable 
County’s procedures, specifications, manuals, guidelines, standard drawings, and standard 
specifications. A/E shall prepare each Plans, Specifications, and Estimates (PS&E) package in a 
form suitable for letting through County’s construction contract bidding and awarding process. 

Right-of-Entry and Coordination.  A/E shall notify County and secure permission to enter 
private property to perform any surveying, environmental, engineering or geotechnical activities 
needed off County property.  In pursuance of County’s policy with the general public, A/E shall 
not commit acts which would result in damages to private property, and A/E shall make every 
effort to comply with the wishes and address the concerns of affected private property owners.  
A/E shall contact each property owner prior to any entry onto the owner’s property and shall 
request concurrence from County prior to each entry. 

A/E shall notify County and coordinate with adjacent A/Es on all controls at project interfaces.  

A/E shall prepare each exhibit necessary for approval by each utility, and other governmental or 
regulatory agency in compliance with the applicable format and guidelines required by each entity 
and as approved by County. A/E shall notify County in writing prior to beginning any services on 
any outside agency’s exhibit. 

Progress Reporting.  A/E shall submit monthly (at a minimum) a progress status e-mail to 
County’s Project Manager (PM) regardless of whether A/E is invoicing for that month. 

A/E shall prepare and maintain a design and estimated construction schedule in a format 
reasonably acceptable to County during project phases prior to the Construction Administration 
Phase.  A/E shall schedule milestone submittals per Exhibit C – Production Schedule.  
Contractor shall prepare and maintain a construction schedule in Gantt chart format during the 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Exhibit A – Scope Page 2 of 6 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 04/2024  1092-4100 

project Construction Administration Phase through the Close-out Phase.  

Within thirty (30) days of completion of construction of the project, A/E shall deliver all electronic 
files in formats reasonably acceptable to County. 

Final payment is contingent upon County’s receipt and confirmation by County’s PM that the 
electronic files function and are formatted in accordance with the Agreement and all review 
comments are addressed. 

A/E shall prepare a letter of transmittal to accompany each document submittal to County. At a 
minimum, the letter of transmittal must include County’s project name, Agreement and Work 
Authorization numbers, as well as facility name and address.

Coordination.  A/E shall coordinate issues through County’s PM.  County will communicate, in 
writing, resolution of issues and provide A/E direction through County’s PM.

Level of Effort.  A/E shall base the level of effort at each phase on the prior work developed in 
earlier phases without unnecessary repetition or re-study. 

Quality Assurance (QA) and Quality Control (QC).  A/E shall provide peer review at all levels.  
For each deliverable, A/E shall maintain evidence of A/E’s internal review and mark-up of that 
deliverable as preparation for submittal.  When internal mark-ups are requested by County in 
advance, County, at its sole discretion, may reject the deliverable should A/E fail to provide the 
evidence of internal mark-ups.  A/E shall clearly label each document submitted for quality 
assurance as an internal mark-up document. 

A/E shall perform QA and QC on all consultant products (when applicable to the project) prior to 
delivery to County.  If, during the course of reviewing a submittal, it becomes apparent to County 
that the submittal contains unreasonable errors, omissions, or inconsistencies, County may cease 
its review and immediately return the submittal for appropriate action by A/E. 

A submittal returned to A/E for this reason is not a submittal for purposes of the submission 
schedule.  Rejected submittals shall neither impact the overall deadline of the Project nor the 
review period allotted to County officials.  A/E shall provide an updated schedule showing interim 
submission date changes to make-up for any lost time.  A/E shall not submit an invoice until 
County accepts the submittal as reasonably complete. 

Organization of Plan Sheets.  The PS&E package shall be complete and organized in a manner 
that is suitable for the bidding and awarding of a construction contract. 

Naming of Electronic Project Files and Organization of Design Project Folders.  A/E shall 
use succinct and understandable file names including project name, document content, and date 
created (i.e. “Project_DOCUMENT_yyyy.mm.dd”).  A/E shall maintain files in an organized folder 
structure that is readily understandable to outside users to facilitate communication and minimize 
complications in project close-out. 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Exhibit A – Scope Page 3 of 6 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 04/2024  1092-4100 

Referenced Documents.  County standardized design and procedure documents are provided 
for public reference at the following web address: 

https://www.wilcotx.gov/376/Facilities-Management 

SCOPE OF WORK:         

Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter 
1855 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
1092.4100 
 

A/E shall visit the site to evaluate existing site conditions. A/E shall provide a report with 
recommended upgrades, as well as an estimated construction cost of each. A/E shall review 
the draft report via Teams meeting and will incorporate comments into a final report. 

 

Design services shall be conducted in phases as outlined herein.  Phases may be combined to 
expedite design process when defined in Exhibit C – Production Schedule.  Individual phases 
or groups of phases shall be authorized herein or by fully executed Supplemental Agreement. 

Phase I - SCHEMATIC DESIGN - 30% Program, Plans, Outline Specifications and Estimate 

Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed, A/E shall accomplish the following: 

A. Investigate site/facility and verify known existing or available utility locations. 

B. Review International Building Code (IBC), ASHRAE 90.1, ASHRAE 62.1, 
International Mechanical Code (IMC), National Electric Code (NEC), International 
Energy Conservation Code (IECC), and any other applicable codes and 
ordinances. 

C. Advise County of any changes, additions, or corrections to the preliminary 
program, plans, specifications, and budget. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

Phase II - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT – 60% Plans, Specifications and Estimate 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following: 

A. Consult freely with County concerning the principal phases of the work and 
immediately advise County of any unusual requirements or features not apparent 
during execution of the Schematic Design Phase. 

B. Develop plans and specifications, which indicate materials, construction methods 
and buildings systems. These building systems may include (but are not limited to) 
structural, mechanical, plumbing, and electrical. 

C. Provide preliminary materials selection board to County for review with internal 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Exhibit A – Scope Page 4 of 6 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 04/2024  1092-4100 

departments.

D. Prepare a Design Development level cost estimate in a form acceptable to County. 

E. Submit Plans, Specifications, and all other required documentation for Site 
Development Permit application for the project with the local jurisdiction having 
review authority.  Notify County’s PM of any required submittal fees to be paid by 
County. 

F. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

Phase III - CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS – 100% Plans, Specifications, and Estimate

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following:

A. Prepare complete plans, specifications and engineering calculations (without 
professional seals) setting forth in detail the work required for the architectural, 
structural, civil, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, landscaping and irrigation, and 
site work. 

B. Consult freely with County concerning the principal phases of the work immediately 
advise County of any unusual requirements or features not apparent during 
execution of the Schematic Design and Design Development Phases. 

C. Prepare a detailed cost estimate of the project on a form acceptable to County.   

D. Prepare a construction schedule with a Gantt chart or other County approved 
format which lists the anticipated major activities required to complete the project. 

E. Complete the PS&E for the entire Project and its component parts. The Project 
detailed cost estimate shall not exceed the project construction budget as 
approved in writing by County. 

F. Update preliminary materials selection board or provide new for County project 
records. 

G. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

Phase IV – REGULATORY REVIEW AND PERMITS - Plans, Specifications, and Permits: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following: 

A. When applicable, register the project with the Texas Department of Licensing and 
Regulation (TDLR) and obtain an EABPRJ number for inclusion on the project 
coversheet prior to Permit application submittal to the local jurisdiction having 
review authority.  Register as the Owner’s Designated Agent for further 
correspondence with TDLR and Registered Accessibility Specialist (RAS). 

B. Participate in any Pre-submittal Meetings required by local jurisdiction prior to 
Permit application submittal. 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Exhibit A – Scope Page 5 of 6 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 04/2024  1092-4100 

C. Submit Plans, Specifications, and all other required documentation for construction 
Permit application for the project with the local jurisdiction having review authority.  
Notify County’s PM of any required submittal fees to be paid by County. 

D. Submit Construction Documents and Specifications to the Registered Accessibility 
Specialist (RAS) approved by County for Architectural Barriers plan review. 

E. Receive and respond to permitting comments by the local jurisdiction having 
review authority. 

F. Revise plans and specifications as necessary to conform to permitting, 
accessibility, and budget requirements without additional charge to County. 

G. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

Phase V – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BIDDING, AWARD, AND EXECUTION 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following: 

A. Participate in a Pre-bid Meeting, answer RFI’s from Contractors and suppliers, and 
prepare addenda items as required.  

B. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

Phase VI - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION - Project Observation 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall perform the following services: 

A. Provide general administration and be County’s representative during the 
construction of the project.  Advise, consult, and issue County’s instructions to 
Contractor in writing with copies furnished to all parties.  Prepare change orders 
and supplementary drawings. 

B. Provide conformed construction drawing and specification sets for each issuance 
of Architect’s Supplemental Instructions. 

C. Conduct and oversee pre-construction meeting. 

D. Process/ respond to Requests for Information, Change Proposals, Change Orders, 
Change Directives. 

E. Review/ approve shop drawings, submittals, samples and mock-ups.  Submit 
copies of each shop drawing and submittal of materials and equipment to County. 

F. Conduct and oversee bi-weekly progress meetings. 

G. Conduct site visits with personnel technically qualified by education and 
experience to competently observe relevant aspects of construction. Make 
necessary observations to determine if workmanship and quality of materials 
generally conform to the plans and specifications, and that provisions of the 
contract are complied with. 



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Exhibit A – Scope Page 6 of 6 0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 04/2024  1092-4100 

H. Reject work performed by Contractor which does not meet the requirements of the 
Construction Documents; and, order removal and replacement of such work. 

I. Review progress estimates of work performed and invoiced by Contractor. Within 
three (3) business days of receipt, submit written reviews to County. 

J. Coordinate Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) Inspection to be concurrent with 
Substantial Completion Inspection. 

K. Accompany County on Substantial Completion Inspection with appropriate staff 
and affiliates.  Prepare a punch list of items needing correction.  After Contractor 
has performed the required corrections, notify County in writing that the contract 
has been performed in general conformance with the plans and specifications and 
is ready for Final Inspection. 

L. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

Phase VII – PROJECT CLOSE-OUT – Final Inspection and Document Review: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall perform the following services: 

A. Accompany County on Final Inspection to determine if construction has been 
completed in general accordance with the Contract Documents.  

B. Review warranties, guarantees, bonds, equipment operating instructions, and 
similar deliverables to verify receipt, and general conformance to requirements of 
the Contract. 

C. After determining that the general requirements of the Plans and Specifications 
have been met, certify and approve Contractor's Final Application for Payment. 

D. Upon completion of construction and prior to the request for final payment, make 
changes in the original REVIT or model CAD files of the Project to show changes 
made and noted by Contractor of the work and final location of the mechanical 
service lines and outlets including outside utilities.  Develop project Record 
Construction Drawings and Specifications. 

E. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 



5/13/2024
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

51,900$       100%

0% Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC

51,900$       100%

Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC 51,900$       
Phase I - SCHEMATIC DESIGN

FEE SCHEDULE

This schedule indicates fees by Phase of the Basic Fee:

 EXHIBIT B

Exhibit B - Fee Schedule 
Form rev. 04/2024 Page 1 of 1

 0509-24-1092-06
1092-4100



5/13/2024
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

 Agreement Execution Date 06/04/24

All services shall be complete on, or before: 08/26/24

Phase I - SCHEMATIC DESIGN

Standard end-of-phase review periods for County shall be (21) calendar days.  

The above time limits may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the 

Project proceeds.

The schedule below indicates various project milestones and estimated target dates.

PRODUCTION SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT C

A/E agrees to complete the professional design services called for in Exhibit A of

date of this Agreement.

this Agreement within Eighty-Three (83) calendar days from the

Attachment / Exhibit C - Schedule
Form rev. 04/2024 Page 1 of 1

 0509-24-1092-06]
1092-4100



Page 1 March 29, 2023

Williamson County 
Vendor Reimbursement Policy 

The purpose of this Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy (“Policy”) is to provide clear 
guidelines to vendors on Williamson County’s expectations and requirements regarding allowable 
reimbursable expenditures and required backup. The Policy will also minimize conflicts related to 
invoice payments and define non-reimbursable items. This Policy is considered a guideline and is not a 
contract. 

This Policy may be altered, deleted or amended, at any time and without prior notice to vendors, by action 
of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Unenforceable provisions of this Policy, as imposed by 
applicable law, regulations, or judicial decisions, shall be deemed to be deleted. Any revisions to this 
Policy will be distributed to all current vendors doing business with the County. 

1. Invoices and Affidavits
1.1 Invoices must adequately describe the goods or services provided to County and include all

required backup (i.e. reimbursable expenses, mileage log, timesheets, receipts detailing 
expenses incurred etc.) that is in a form acceptable to the Williamson County Auditor. Invoices 
that do not adequately describe the goods or services provided to County or contain backup 
that is satisfactory to the Williamson County Auditor will be returned to vendor for revisions 
and the provision above relating to invoice errors resolved in favor of the County shall control 
as to the required actions of vendor and when such invoice must be paid by the County. 

1.2 In the event an invoice includes charges based upon hourly billing rates for services or any 
other rates based upon the amount of time worked by an individual or individuals in 
performing services, whether the charges are being billed directly to the County or whether 
they are the basis of invoices from subcontractors for which the vendor seeks reimbursement 
from the County, the charges shall be accompanied by an affidavit signed by an officer or 
principal of the vendor certifying that the work was performed, it was authorized by the 
County and that all information contained in the invoice that is being submitted is true and 
correct. 

1.3 Upon County’s request, vendor must submit all bills paid affidavits wherein vendor must 
swear and affirm that vendor has paid each of its subcontractors, laborers, suppliers and 
material in full for all labor and materials provided to vendor for or in connection with services 
and work performed for County and, further, vendor must swear and affirm that vendor is not 
aware of any unpaid bills, claims, demands, or causes of action by any of its subcontractors, 
laborers, suppliers, or material for or in connection with the furnishing of labor or materials, or 
both, for services and work performed for County. 

2. Travel Reimbursement
2.1 The County will only cover costs associated with travel for vendors outside a 45-mile radius

from the Williamson County Courthouse, 710 Main Street, Georgetown, Texas 78626.
2.2 The County will only cover costs associated with travel as documented work for County. If a

vendor is also doing business for another client, the travel costs must be split in proportion to 
the amount of work actually performed for the County and the other client. The only allowable 
travel expense will be for the specific days worked for Williamson County. 

2.3 No advance payments will be made to vendor for travel expenditures. The travel expenditure 
may only be reimbursed after the expenditure/trip has already occurred and vendor has 
provided the Williamson County Auditor with all necessary and required backup. 

Exhibit D - Vendor Reimbursement Policy



Page 2 March 29, 2023

2.4 Vendors must submit all travel reimbursement requests on each employee in full. Specifically, 
a travel reimbursement request must include all related travel reimbursement expenses relating 
to a particular trip for which vendor seeks reimbursement. Partial travel reimbursement 
requests will not be accepted (i.e. vendor should not submit hotel and mileage one month then 
the next month submit rental car and airfare). If the travel reimbursement appears incomplete, 
the invoice will be sent back to the vendor to be submitted when all information is ready to 
submit in full. 

2.5 Reimbursement for transportation costs will be at the most reasonable means of transportation 
(i.e.: airline costs will be reimbursed for coach rate, rental car costs will only be reimbursed if 
rental car travel was most reasonable means of travel as compared to travel by air). 

2.6 The County will not be responsible for, nor will the County reimburse additional charges due 
to personal preference or personal convenience of individual traveling. 

2.7 The County will not reimburse airfare costs if airfare costs were higher than costs of mileage 
reimbursement. 

2.8 Additional expenses associated with travel that is extended to save costs (i.e. Saturday night 
stay) may be reimbursed if costs of airfare would be less than the cost of additional expenses 
(lodging, meals, car rental, mileage) if the trip had not been extended. Documentation 
satisfactory to the Williamson County Auditor will be required to justify expenditure. 

2.9 County will only reimburse travel expense to necessary personnel of the vendor (i.e. no 
spouse, friends or family members). 

2.10 Except as otherwise set forth herein, a vendor must provide a paid receipt for all expenses. If a 
receipt cannot be obtained, a written sworn statement of the expense from the vendor may be 
substituted for the receipt. 

2.11 Sales tax for meals and hotel stays are the only sales taxes that will be reimbursed. Sales tax 
on goods purchased will not be reimbursed. A sales tax exemption form is available from the 
Williamson County Auditor’s Office upon request. 

2.12 The County will not pay for any late charges on reimbursable items. It is the responsibility of 
the vendor to pay the invoice first and seek reimbursement from the County. 

3. Meals
3.1 Meal reimbursements are limited to a maximum of $59.00 per day on overnight travel. On 

day travel (travel that does not require an overnight stay), meal reimbursements are limited to a 
maximum of $25.00 per day. The travel must be outside the Williamson County Courthouse, 
710 Main Street, Georgetown, Texas 78626 by a 45-mile radius. 

3.2 Receipts are required on meal reimbursement amounts up to the maximum per day amount 
stated for overnight or day travel. If receipts are not presented, the vendor can request per diem 
(per diem limits refer to 3.2). However, a vendor cannot combine per diem and meal receipts. 
Only one method shall be allowed. 

3.3 Meals are reimbursable only to vendors who do not have necessary personnel located within a 
45-mile radius of the Williamson County Courthouse, 710 Main Street, Georgetown, Texas
78626, who are capable of carrying the vendor’s obligations to the County. Meals will not be
reimbursed to vendors who are located within a 45-mile radius of the Williamson County
Courthouse.

3.4 County will not reimburse for alcoholic beverages. 
3.5 Tips are reimbursable but must be reasonable to limitation of meal allowance 
3.6 No meals purchased for entertainment purposes will be allowed.
3.7 Meal reimbursement must be substantiated with a hotel receipt.

Exhibit C - Vendor Reimbursement PolicyExhibit D - Vendor Reimbursement Policy



Page 3 March 29, 2023

4. Lodging
4.1 Hotel accommodations require an itemized hotel folio as a receipt. The lodging receipt should

include name of the motel/hotel, number of occupant(s), goods or services for each individual 
charge (room rental, food, tax, etc.) and the name of the occupant(s). Credit card receipts or 
any other form of receipt are not acceptable. 

4.2 Vendors will be reimbursed for a single room rate charge plus any applicable tax. If a single 
room is not available, the vendor must provide documentation to prove that a single room was 
not available in order to justify the expense over and above the single room rate. A vendor may 
also be required to provide additional documentation if a particular room rate appears to be 
excessive. 

4.3 Personal telephone charges, whether local or long distance, will not be reimbursed. 

5. Airfare
5.1 The County will only reimburse up to a coach price fare for air travel.
5.2 The County will exclude any additional charges due to personal preference or personal 

convenience of the individual traveling (i.e. seat preference charges, airline upgrades, etc. will 
not be an allowable reimbursement) 

5.3 Air travel expenses must be supported with receipt copy of an airline ticket or an itinerary with 
actual ticket price paid. If tickets are purchased through a website, vendor must submit a copy 
of the webpage showing the ticket price if no paper ticket was issued. 

5.4 Cancellation and/or change flight fees may be reimbursed by the County but vendor must 
provide the Williamson County Auditor with documentation in writing from a County 
department head providing authorization for the change. 

5.5 The County will not reimburse vendor for tickets purchased with frequent flyer miles. 

6. Car Rental
6.1 Vendors that must travel may rent a car at their destination when it is less expensive than other 

transportation such as taxis, airport shuttles or public transportation such as buses or subways. 
6.2 Cars rented must be economy or mid-size. Luxury vehicle rentals will not be reimbursed. Any 

rental costs over and above the cost of a mid-size rental will be adjusted.
6.3 Vendors will be reimbursed for rental cars if the rental car cost would have been less than the 

mileage reimbursement cost (based on the distance from vendor’s point of origin to 
Williamson County, Texas) had the vendor driven vendor’s car. 

6.4 Vendors must return a car rental with appropriate fuel levels as required by rental agreement to 
avoid the car rental company from adding fuel charges. 

6.5 Rental agreement and credit card receipt must be provided to County as back up for the request 
for reimbursement. 

6.6 Insurance purchased when renting vehicle may also be reimbursed. 
6.7 Car Rental optional extras such as GPS, roadside assistance, and administrative fees on Tolls 

will not be reimbursed. 

7. Personal Car Usage
7.1 Personal vehicle usage will be reimbursed in an amount equal to the standard mileage rate 

allowed by the IRS.
7.2 Per code of Federal Regulations, Title 26, Subtitle A, Chapter 1, Subchapter B, Part IX, 

Section 274(d), all expense reimbursement requests must include the following: 
7.2.1.1 Date 
7.2.1.2 Destination 
7.2.1.3 Purpose 

Exhibit D - Vendor Reimbursement Policy



Page 4 March 29, 2023

7.2.1.4 Name of traveler(s) 
7.2.1.5 Correspondence that verifies business purpose of the expense

7.3 The mileage for a personal vehicle must document the date, location of travel to/from, number 
of miles traveled and purpose of trip. 

7.4 Mileage will be reimbursed on the basis of the most commonly used route. 
7.5 Reimbursement for mileage shall not exceed the cost of a round trip coach airfare. 
7.6 Reimbursement for mileage shall be prohibited between place of residence and usual place of 

work. 
7.7 Mileage should be calculated from employee’s regular place of work or their residence, 

whichever is the shorter distance when traveling to a meeting or traveling to Williamson 
County, Texas for vendors who are located outside of the Williamson County Courthouse, 710 
Main Street, Georgetown, Texas 78626 by at least a 45-mile radius. 

7.8 When more than one person travels in same vehicle, only one person may claim mileage 
reimbursement. 

7.9 Tolls, if reasonable, are reimbursable. Receipts are required for reimbursement. If a receipt is 
not obtainable, then written documentation of expense must be submitted for reimbursement 
(administrative fees on Tolls will not be reimbursed). 

7.10 Parking fees, if reasonable are reimbursable for meetings and hotel stays. For vendors who 
contract with a third party for visitor parking at vendor’s place of business, Williamson County 
will not reimburse a vendor based on a percentage of its contracted visitor parking fees. 
Rather, Williamson County will reimburse Vendor for visitor parking on an individual basis 
for each time a visitor uses Vendor’s visitor parking. Receipts are required for reimbursement. 
If a receipt is not obtainable, then written documentation of expense must be submitted for 
reimbursement. 

7.11 Operating and maintenance expenses as well as other personal expenses, such as parking 
tickets, traffic violations, and car repairs and collision damage are not reimbursable. 

8. Other Expenses
8.1 Taxi fare, bus tickets, conference registrations, parking, etc. must have a proper original

receipt.

9. Repayment of Non-reimbursable Expense.
Vendors must, upon demand, immediately repay County for all inappropriately reimbursed expenses
whenever an audit or subsequent review of any expense reimbursement documentation finds that such
expense was reimbursed contrary to these guidelines and this Policy. Williamson County reserves the
right to retain any amounts that are due or that become due to a vendor in order to collect any
inappropriately reimbursed expenses that a vendor was paid.

10. Non-Reimbursable Expenses
In addition to the non-reimbursable items set forth above in this Policy, the following is a non- 
exhaustive list of expenses that will not be reimbursed by Williamson County:

10.1 Alcoholic beverages/tobacco products
10.2 Personal phone calls
10.3 Laundry service 
10.4 Valet service (excludes hotel valet)
10.5 Movie rentals 
10.6 Damage to personal items 
10.7 Flowers/plants 

Exhibit D - Vendor Reimbursement Policy



Page 5 March 29, 2023

10.8 Greeting cards 
10.9 Fines and/or penalties
10.10 Entertainment, personal clothing, personal sundries and services
10.11 Transportation/mileage to places of entertainment or similar personal activities 
10.12 Upgrades to airfare, hotel and/or car rental 
10.13 Airport parking above the most affordable rate available 
10.14 Excessive weight baggage fees or cost associated with more than two airline bags 
10.15 Auto repairs 
10.16 Babysitter fees, kennel costs, pet or house-sitting fees 
10.17 Saunas, massages or exercise facilities 
10.18 Credit card delinquency fees or service fees 
10.19 Doctor bills, prescription and other medical services 
10.20 Hand tools 
10.21 Safety Equipment (hard hats, safety vests, etc.) 
10.22 Office Supplies 
10.23 Lifetime memberships to any association 
10.24 Donations to other entities 
10.25 Any items that could be construed as campaigning 
10.26 Technology Fees 
10.27 Sales tax on goods purchased 
10.28 Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be inappropriate 

or unnecessary expenditures. 

Exhibit D - Vendor Reimbursement Policy



5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Exhibit E – Debarment Certification Page 1 of 2     0509-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 11/2021  1092-4100 

EXHIBIT E 

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

STATE OF TEXAS    § 
      § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON    § 
 
1. I, the undersigned, being duly sworn or under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United 

States and the State of Texas, certifies that A/E and its principals: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible 
or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or 
agency: 

b. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had 
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense 
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public* transaction 
or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or 
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity* with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
Paragraph 1(b) of this certification; 

d. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal, had one or 
more public transactions* terminated for cause or default; and 

e. Have not been disciplined or issued a formal reprimand by any State agency for 
professional accreditation within the past three years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





5/13/2024   
Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes

Exhibit F – Certificates of Insurance  Page 1 of 1  0905-24-1092-06 
Form rev. 01/2021  1092-4100 

EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE

A/E and Subconsultant Certificates of Insurance attached: 



  
 

1 Chisolm Trail, Suite 450 • Round Rock TX 78681 • (832) 261-1420 

Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-14781 

 

 
April 29, 2024 
 
Mr. Daniel Shea 
Williamson County Facilities Management 
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
 
SUBJECT:   Animal Shelter New Adoptions Building I, Kennel Building H, and Main 

        Building T Odor and Humidity Evaluation – Fee Proposal  

 
Dear Daniel, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide Mechanical, Electrical, and 

Plumbing (MEP) engineering services on this project.  This proposal describes our Project 

Understanding, Scope of Services, proposed Compensation, proposed Schedule and proposed 

Terms and Conditions for the work. 

 

Project Understanding 

 

Williamson County has expressed concerns over the smell and elevated humidity levels in the 

New Adoptions Building I, Kennel Building H, and Main Building T. Williamson County has 

requested Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC (RSE) to perform an evaluation of the building.  

The goal of this evaluation is to review the HVAC system in all buildings to determine the reason 

behind the intensity of the odor and humidity problem. The sanitary system shall also be 

examined in the New Adoptions building I and the Kennel Building H as part of the odor 

evaluation. In addition, RSE shall provide recommendations to remediate the smell and humidity 

as quickly as possible, if the findings of our study determine there are solutions such as 

adjustments to existing systems. RSE shall also evaluate the existing electrical utilities to 

determine the impact of adding an additional redundant freezer in Kennel Building H.  

 

The New Adoptions Building I is conditioned by four rooftop units with heat recovery wheels and 

one mini-split unit. One exhaust fan currently serves the restrooms. Trench drains are located 

between the kennels. Williamson County has expressed that RTU-3’s operation is currently 

intermittent and needs to be serviced. Additionally, Williamson County shared that the electrical 

service for the terminal unit electric heaters is not appropriately sized resulting in the breakers 

tripping. Williamson County also communicated that water ingress into the electrical room is 

occurring during the cleaning process of the kennels. 

 

The Kennel Building H is conditioned by four grade mounted packaged units with heat recovery 

wheels. One exhaust fan currently serves the dishwasher. Trench drains are located between 

the kennels.   

 

The Main Building T is conditioned by one grade mounted packaged unit with a heat recovery 

wheel and four mini-split units. Three exhaust fans currently serve the building along with two 

gas heaters.  

 

 



 Shea 
4/29/24 
Page 2 

 

1 Chisolm Trail, Suite 450 • Round Rock TX 78681 • (832) 261-1420 

Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-14781 

 

Scope of Services 

 

RSE shall visit the site to evaluate existing site conditions.  RSE shall provide a report with 

recommended upgrades, as well as an estimated construction cost of each.  RSE shall review 

the draft report via Teams meeting and will incorporate comments into a final report.   

 

Exclusions: 

• City Permit Application or TDLR Fees 

• Structural design 

• Sound/Vibration consultant 

• Architectural design  

• Commissioning services 

• Circuit tracing of existing electrical systems 

 

Compensation 

 

RSE shall perform the services described above for a lump sum of $51,900.     

 
Project Schedule 
 

RSE will provide a draft report within 8 weeks of our authorization to proceed. This assumes a 

notice to proceed from May 13, 2024.   

 
Terms and Conditions 

 

We will invoice monthly based on services provided.  If these terms are acceptable, please 

provide approval and authorization to proceed. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.  We look forward to working with you on 

this project.  Please contact me if you have any questions. 

 

Best Regards, 

 

RAMIREZ SIMON ENGINEERING, LLC 

 

 

 

Mark Claypool, PE       Steven Simon, PE 

Project Manager       Principal 

 



Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 05/14/2024

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC
Houston, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

Williamson County Facilities Department

MEP Engineering Services
24-022-1

2024-1160888

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

Simon, Steve Houston, TX United States X

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5

My address is __ ____________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _ ________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V4.1.0.d378aba0www.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission

Steven Simon

Harris TX 14 May 24

Houston TX 77095 US



Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 05/14/2024

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC
Houston, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

Williamson County Facilities Department

MEP Engineering Services
24-022-1

2024-1160888

05/14/2024

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

Simon, Steve Houston, TX United States X

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5

My address is _______________________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _______________________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V4.1.0.d378aba0www.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 14.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Award of RFSQ #21RFSQ2 for CHW System Evaluation at SO/JAIL to Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC, for Facilities
Management.
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Stacian Williams, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFSQ #21RFSQ2 to Ramirez Simon Engineering,
LLC, relating to the Chilled Water (CHW) System Evaluation at SO/JAIL for Facilities Management, in the amount
of $15,300.00 and authorize execution of the agreement.

Background
Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC, is recommended for award through RFSQ #21RFSQ2 which established a
pre-qualified consultant pool to be contracted on an as-needed basis.  Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC., is being
recommended for this project following a project specific evaluation of the firms from the 21RFSQ2 pool
wherein Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC received the highest score. This Service Agreement between
Williamson County and Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC, relates to CHW System Evaluation at SO/JAIL located
at 306 W 4th Street, Georgetown, TX 78626-4906. Detailed Scope of Basic/Additional Services is attached.
Funding Source is 01.0100.1008.004100. Point of contact is Christy Matoska.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Professional Consulting Services Agreement 
Form 1295 - Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 06/06/2024 07:27 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:26 AM
Form Started By: Stacian Williams Started On: 05/22/2024 03:00 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING  
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 
THIS PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement") between 
Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC, (hereinafter "Consultant"), and Williamson County, Texas, a 
political subdivision of the State of Texas (hereinafter "County"), having an address of 710 Main 
Street, Suite 101, Georgetown, Texas 78626, sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to 
which Consultant will provide certain services.  
 

I. 
PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

 
A Statement of Work (“SOW”) is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and the terms therein are 
incorporated in this Agreement. Consultant agrees to perform the Professional Consulting 
Services (“Services”) as set forth in the attached SOW, and in any subsequently approved SOW 
referencing this Agreement, in a professional manner. Consultant may provide the services 
described in the SOW by using Consultant personnel or selected independent contractors. 
Consultant agrees to provide the items described in the SOW (“Deliverables”).  
 

II. 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
A. The Consultant is expected to complete the Services by the Project Completion Date. The 

Project Completion Date is the date by which all Services and obligation outlined in the 
SOW shall be fully performed and delivered to the satisfaction of the County. The parties 
acknowledge and agree that the Project Completion Date is initially set to be September 30, 
2024, however this date may be amended at the sole discretion of the County. Upon 
successful completion of Services, this Agreement shall automatically terminate without 
further obligation from either party, except as otherwise expressly provided herein.  
 

B. If Consultant does not perform the Services in accordance with the SOW, then County shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement as set forth below. So long as the County elects 
not to terminate this Agreement, it shall continue from day to day until such time as the 
Services are completed in accordance with SOW. Consultant shall notify County in writing 
as soon as possible if he/she/it determines, or reasonably anticipates, that the Services will 
not be completed on or before the Project Completion Date and in full accordance with the 
terms of the SOW.  
 

C.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, upon not less than thirty 
(30) calendar day’s written notice to the opposite party. County shall pay Consultant for all 
Services performed prior to termination. 

 
D.  If either party commits an Event of Breach (a breach of any of the covenants, terms and/or 

conditions of this Agreement), the non-breaching party shall deliver written notice of such 
Event of Breach to the breaching party.  Such notice must specify the nature of the Event of 



Breach and inform the breaching party that unless the Event of Breach is cured within ten 
(10) days of receipt of the notice, additional steps may be taken to terminate this Agreement.  
If the breaching party begins a good faith attempt to cure the Event of Breach within said ten 
(10) days, then and in that instance, the said ten (10) day period may be extended by the non-
breaching party, so long as the breaching party continues to prosecute a cure diligently to 
completion and continues to make a good faith attempt to cure the Event of Breach.  If, in the 
opinion of the non-breaching party, the breaching party does not cure the Event of Breach 
within the above referenced ten (10) day period or otherwise fails to make any diligent 
attempt to correct the Event of Breach, the breaching party shall be deemed to be in breach 
and the non-breaching party may, in addition to seeking the remedies mentioned hereinafter 
and/or remedies available under the law, terminate this Agreement. 

 
III. 

PAYMENT, TAXES & EXPENSES 
 
A. Payment Terms.  County will pay Consultant a flat fixed fee for the Services, as set forth in 

the attached SOW.  
 
County’s payment of the Services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas 
Government Code.  Invoices shall be paid by County within thirty (30) days from the date of 
the Williamson County Auditor’s receipt of an invoice.  Interest charges for any late 
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 
2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate 
in effect on September 1 of County’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due.  The 
said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the 
prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal 
year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.  In the event that a discrepancy arises in 
relation to an invoice, such as an incorrect amount on an invoice or a lack of documentation 
that is required to be attached to an invoice to evidence the amount claimed to be due, 
County shall notify Consultant of the discrepancy.  Following County’s notification of any 
discrepancy as to an invoice, Consultant must resolve the discrepancy and resubmit a 
corrected or revised invoice, which includes all required support documentation, to the 
Williamson County Auditor.  County shall pay the invoice within thirty (30) days from the 
date of the Williamson County Auditor’s receipt of the corrected or revised invoice.  
County’s payment of an invoice that contains a discrepancy shall not be considered late, nor 
shall any interest begin to accrue until the thirty-first (31st) day following the Williamson 
County Auditor’s receipt of the corrected or revised invoice. 

  
B. County shall provide Consultant with a certificate acceptable to the taxing authorities 

exempting County from payment of such taxes. 
 

C. Expenses. In the event County authorizes, in advance and in writing, reimbursement of non-
labor expenses related to the Services subject of this Agreement, County will pay such actual 
non-labor expenses in strict accordance with the Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement 
Policy (as amended), which is incorporated into and made a part of this Contract by 
reference.  The Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy can be found at: 
WilliamsonCountyVendorReimbursementPolicyMarch2023.pdf (wilco.org). Invoices 

https://www.wilco.org/Portals/0/Departments/Auditor/WilliamsonCountyVendorReimbursementPolicyMarch2023.pdf?ver=2023-04-04-115048-310


requesting reimbursement for authorized non-labor expenses must be accompanied by copies 
of the provider’s invoice and clearly set forth the actual cost of the expenses, without 
markup. 

 
IV. 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
 
A. To the extent authorized by law, any business, operational, commercial, financial, or 

technical information furnished by Consultant to County under this Agreement will remain 
Consultant’s property, will be deemed proprietary, will be kept confidential to the extent 
allowed by law, and will be promptly returned at Consultant’s request.  Except as otherwise 
required by law, County may not disclose, without Consultant’s written permission, any such 
information or data to any third party, or use such information or data itself for any purpose 
other than performing its obligations under this Agreement.   The obligations set forth in this 
section will survive the cancellation, termination, or completion of this Agreement. 
 

B. To the extent authorized by law, any business, operational, commercial, financial, or 
technical information provided by County to Consultant will remain County’s property, will 
be deemed proprietary, will be kept confidential, and will be promptly returned at County’s 
request.  Consultant may not disclose, without County’s written permission or as required by 
law, any such information or data to any third party, or use such information or data itself for 
any purpose other than performing its obligations under this Agreement.   The obligations set 
forth in this Section will survive the cancellation, termination, or completion of this 
Agreement.  

 
C. To the extent, if any, that any provision in this Agreement is in conflict with Tex. Gov’t Code 

552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no force or 
effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that County, its officers and 
employees may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State 
of Texas in regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or 
information furnished to County as to whether or not the same must be made available to the 
public.  It is further understood that County, its officers and employees shall have the right to 
rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that County, its 
officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to Consultant for the disclosure to 
the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or information furnished to County by 
Consultant in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State 
of Texas.  

 
V. 

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES 
 
Each party to this Agreement, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an individual 
capacity and not as agents, employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The 
employees or agents of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employees or agents 
of the other party for any purposes whatsoever. 
 



VI. 
WARRANTY 

 
Consultant warrants that the Services provided pursuant to this Agreement will be performed 
consistent with generally accepted industry standards and as provided in Article 1. Consultant 
shall be responsible for the accuracy of his/her/its Services and shall promptly make necessary 
revisions or corrections to its work product resulting from errors, omissions, or negligent acts, 
and same shall be done without compensation. County shall determine Consultant’s 
responsibilities for all questions arising from errors and/or omissions, subject to the dispute 
resolution provisions set out herein.  
 

VII. 
INDEMNIFICATION 

  
CONSULTANT AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE COUNTY 
HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, 
DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) 
TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR OR OMISSION, 
NEGLIGENCE, OR INTENTIONAL TORT COMMITTED BY CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR ANY 
OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY UNDER AGREEMENT WITH CONSULTANT INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, 
CONSULTANT’S SUBCONSULTANTS, OR ANY OTHER ENTITY OVER WHICH CONSULTANT EXERCISES CONTROL.   
 
CONSULTANT FURTHER AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE 
COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, 
COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES 
ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM CONSULTANT’S FAILURE TO PAY CONSULTANT’S EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, 
SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, IN CONNECTION WITH ANY OF THE WORK PERFORMED OR TO BE PERFORMED UNDER 
THIS AGREEMENT BY CONSULTANT.   
 
CONSULTANT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, 
LOSSES, PENALTIES, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM THE INFRINGEMENT 
OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF ANY PLANS, DESIGN, DRAWINGS, OR SPECIFICATIONS 
FURNISHED BY CONSULTANT IN THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
THE LIMITS OF INSURANCE REQUIRED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT LIMIT 
CONSULTANT’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION.  THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION SHALL 
SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT OR THE SUSPENSION OF THE WORK HEREUNDER.  TO THE EXTENT 
THAT ANY LIABILITIES, PENALTIES, DEMANDS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES ARE 
CAUSED IN PART BY THE ACTS OF THE COUNTY OR THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM CONSULTANT IS NOT LEGALLY LIABLE, 
CONSULTANT’S OBLIGATIONS SHALL BE IN PROPORTION TO CONSULTANT’S FAULT.  THE OBLIGATIONS HEREIN SHALL 
ALSO EXTEND TO ANY ACTIONS BY THE COUNTY TO ENFORCE THIS INDEMNITY OBLIGATION. 
 
IN THE EVENT THAT CONTRACTORS INITIATE LITIGATION AGAINST THE COUNTY IN WHICH THE CONTRACTOR ALLEGES 
DAMAGES AS A RESULT OF ANY NEGLIGENT ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF CONSULTANT, ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, 
SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH CONSULTANT EXERCISES 
CONTROL, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DEFECTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS, THEN THE COUNTY SHALL HAVE THE 
RIGHT TO JOIN CONSULTANT IN ANY SUCH PROCEEDINGS AT THE COUNTY’S COST.  CONSULTANT SHALL ALSO HOLD 
THE COUNTY HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY THE COUNTY TO THE EXTENT THAT CONSULTANT, ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES, 
AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH CONSULTANT 
EXERCISES CONTROL, CAUSED SUCH DAMAGES TO CONTRACTOR, INCLUDING ANY AND ALL COSTS AND 
REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES INCURRED BY THE COUNTY IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS 



WHERE CONSULTANT, ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER 
ENTITIES OVER WHICH CONSULTANT EXERCISES CONTROL, ARE ADJUDICATED AT FAULT. 
 
TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY 
SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, CONSEQUENTIAL OR INDIRECT DAMAGES RESULTING IN ANY WAY FROM THIS AGREEMENT. 
 

VIII. 
INSURANCE 

 
Consultant must comply with the following insurance requirements at all times during this 
Agreement: 
 
A. Coverage Limits.  Consultant, at Consultant’s sole cost, shall purchase and maintain during 

the entire term while this Agreement is in effect the following insurance: 
 

1. Worker's Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements. 
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury and 

Property Damage limits of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in the 
aggregate.  

3. Business Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles 
with combined minimum limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage of $1,000,000.00 
each accident.  

4. Professional Liability Insurance in the amount of $2,000,000.00 per claim and annual 
aggregate. 

 
B. Certification of Coverage.  Prior to the performance of any Services, Consultant shall 

furnish County with a Certificate of Insurance issued by the insurer evidencing the required 
coverages and terms under this article.  As further set out below, Consultant shall not allow 
any subcontractor/subconsultant(s) to commence work to be performed in connection with 
this Agreement until all required insurance has been obtained and approved and such 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Approval of the insurance by County shall not 
relieve or decrease the liability of Consultant hereunder. 

  
 
C. Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.  “Williamson County, Texas, its 

directors, officers and employees” shall be added as additional insureds under policies 
listed under (2) and (3) above, and on those policies where “Williamson County, Texas, its 
directors, officers and employees” are additional insureds, such insurance shall be primary 
and any insurance maintained by County shall be excess and not contribute with it.  Such 
policies shall also include waivers of subrogation in favor of County. 
 

D. Certificate Holder.  The name of the Certificate Holder in the Certificate of Insurance 
issued by the insurer shall be as follows: 

 
Williamson County, Texas 
C/O: Williamson County Purchasing Department 
100 Wilco Way 



Suite P101 
Georgetown, TX. 78626 
Email:  purchase@wilco.org 

 
E. Insurance Policy Endorsements.  Each insurance policy shall include the following 

conditions by endorsement to the policy: 
 

1. County shall be notified ten (10) days prior to the expiration, cancellation, non-renewal 
or any material change in coverage, and such notice thereof shall be given to County by 
certified mail, and by email to: 
 
Williamson County, Texas 
C/O: Williamson County Purchasing Department 
100 Wilco Way 
Suite P101 
Georgetown, TX. 78626 
Email:  purchase@wilco.org 
 
With copy to:   
Williamson County Auditor’s Office  
Attn: Agreements Auditor  
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 
Email:  contractaudit@wilco.org 
 

2. The policy clause “Other Insurance” shall not apply to any insurance coverage currently 
held by County, to any such future coverage, or to County’s Self-Insured Retentions of 
whatever nature. 

 
F. Notices by Consultant.  Consultant shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit 

any insurance to lapse. In addition to any other notification requirements set forth 
hereunder, Consultant shall also notify County, within twenty-four (24) hours of 
receipt of any notices of expiration, cancellation, non-renewal, or material change in 
coverage it receives from its insurer. 
 

G. Premiums and Deductible.  Consultant shall be responsible for payment of premiums for 
all of the insurance coverages required under this section. Consultant further agrees that for 
each claim, suit or action made against insurance provided hereunder, with respect to all 
matters for which the Consultant is responsible hereunder, Consultant shall be solely 
responsible for all deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured 
retentions over $100,000 in the Consultant’s insurance must be declared and approved in 
writing by County in advance. 
 

H. Insurance Company Rating.  The required insurance must be written by a company 
approved to do business in the State or Texas with a financial standing of at least an A- 



rating, as reflected in Best’s insurance ratings or by a similar rating system recognized 
within the insurance industry at the time the policy is issued.  
 

I. No Arbitration.  It is the intention of the County and agreed to and hereby acknowledged 
by the Consultant, that no provision of this Agreement shall be construed to require the 
County to submit to mandatory arbitration in the settlement of any claim, cause of action or 
dispute, except as specifically required in direct connection with an insurance claim or threat 
of claim under an insurance policy required hereunder or as may be required by law or a 
court of law with jurisdiction over the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

J. Subcontractor/Subconsultant’s Insurance.  Without limiting any of the other obligations 
or liabilities of Consultant, Consultant shall require each subcontractor/subconsultant 
performing work under this Agreement (to the extent a subcontractor/subconsultant is 
allowed by County) to maintain during the term of this Agreement, at the 
subcontractor/subconsultant’s own expense, the same stipulated minimum insurance 
required in this Article, including the required provisions and additional policy conditions as 
shown below in this Article.  Any requests for consent to reduce any insurance coverage 
limits requirements for Consultant’s subcontractors/subconsultants must be provided to 
County in writing and must set forth reasoning and justifications for decreasing such 
coverage limits.  County may, at its sole discretion, consent to a reduction in the insurance 
coverage limits requirements for Consultant’s subcontractors/subconsultants; provided, 
however, consent by County must be in writing and such consent shall not relieve or 
decrease the liability of Consultant hereunder.  
 
Consultant shall obtain and monitor the Certificates of Insurance from each 
subcontractor/subconsultant in order to assure compliance with the insurance requirements. 
Consultant must retain the Certificates of Insurance for the duration of this Agreement and 
shall have the responsibility of enforcing these insurance requirements among its 
subcontractor/subconsultants. County shall be entitled, upon request and without expense, to 
receive copies of these Certificates of Insurance. 
 

K. Cost of Insurance.  The cost of all insurance required herein to be secured and maintained 
by Consultant shall be borne solely by Consultant. 

 
 
 

IX. 
CHANGE REQUESTS 

 
County or Consultant may request changes to the Services to be performed under the applicable 
SOW by written notice (“Change Requests”). The nature of these changes includes, but are not 
limited to, additions to or deletions from any services, changes to the schedule, prevention or loss 
of work due to inadequate facilities or technical infrastructure, or changes to key final decisions, 
or, any extra work by Consultant necessitated by County not meeting its obligations or 
preventing Consultant from meeting its obligations.  
 



All Change Requests shall be subject to the following terms:  
 

i.  Disputes regarding Change Requests shall be handled pursuant to applicable dispute 
resolution section contained herein below;  

ii.  Any changes to the terms of this Agreement shall be reduced to a written amendment and 
executed by both parties prior to such changes becoming effective; and 

iii. In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the 
terms and conditions of any amendment relating to a Change Request, the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement shall control.  

 
X. 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION; MEDIATION 
 
The parties to this Agreement will work together in good faith to resolve any controversy, 
dispute or claim between them which arises out of or relates to this Agreement, whether stated in 
tort, Agreement, statute, bad faith, professional liability or otherwise ("Claim").  If the parties are 
unable to resolve the Claim within thirty (30) days following the date in which one party sent 
written notice of the Claim to the other party, and if a party wishes to pursue the Claim, such 
Claim shall be addressed through non-binding mediation under the Commercial Mediation Rules 
of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”). A single mediator engaged in the practice of 
law, who is knowledgeable about subject matter of this Agreement, will conduct the mediation 
under the then current rules of the AAA.  Any mediation under this Agreement shall be 
conducted in Williamson County, Texas.  All costs involved in the mediation shall be borne 
equally between the parties, except that each party shall bear its own attorneys fees. Nothing 
herein is intended to prevent either party from seeking any other remedy available hereunder or 
at law, including seeking redress in a court of competent jurisdiction. This provision shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
The parties hereby expressly agree that no claims or disputes between the parties arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement or a breach thereof shall be decided by any arbitration proceeding, 
including without limitation, any proceeding under the Federal Arbitration Act (9 USC Section 
1-14) or any applicable state arbitration statute. 
 

XI. 
GENERAL 

 
A. Venue and Governing Law.  Each party to this Agreement hereby agrees and acknowledges 

that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action arising out of or in connection 
with this Agreement shall lie exclusively in Williamson County, Texas, and the parties hereto 
expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to the extent that this 
Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this Agreement shall be governed by 
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its 
choice of law rules. 
 

B. Force Majeure.  If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of 
war, order of legal authority, act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the 



fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall grant such party relief from the 
performance of this Agreement.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest 
upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party. 

 
C. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any 

court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any 
other provision hereof, but rather this entire Agreement will be construed as if not containing 
the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation 
of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties 
acknowledge that if any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or 
unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and 
construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to the 
intent of this Agreement and be deemed to be validated and enforceable. 

 
D. Successors and Assigns; Assignment.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.  No party to this 
Agreement may assign or transfer its interest in or obligations under this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of all parties to this Agreement.   

 
E. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is for the sole and exclusive benefit of the 

parties hereto and nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer or 
shall be construed as conferring upon any other person any rights, remedies or any other type 
or types of benefits. 

 
F. No Waiver of Immunities.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify, or 

amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to County, its past or present officers, 
employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party.  
County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the availability of the 
defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United 
States. 

 
G. County’s Right to Audit.  Consultant agrees that County or its duly authorized 

representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this 
Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, 
documents, papers and records of Consultant which are directly pertinent to the services to be 
performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, 
and transcriptions.  Consultant agrees that County shall have access during normal working 
hours to all necessary Consultant facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate 
workspace in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section.  
County shall give Consultant reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 

 
H. Appropriation of Funds by County.  County believes it has sufficient funds currently 

available and authorized for expenditure to finance the costs of this Agreement.  Consultant 
understands and agrees that the County’s payment of amounts under this Agreement is 
contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to 



allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to make 
payments under this Agreement. 

 
I. Conflicting Terms.  In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement and the terms and conditions of the SOW, as amended, the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement shall control.  

 
J. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which, 

when executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together 
shall constitute one and the same document. 

 
K. Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including any SOW attached hereto or subsequently 

approved by the parties) represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes 
any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements or representations. This Agreement may 
not be modified or amended except in a writing signed by an authorized representative of 
each party.  NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF THE 
COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO AMEND 
THIS AGREEMENT, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS 
MAY BE GRANTED BY THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT. It 
is agreed that the terms of this Agreement shall supersede the preprinted terms in any County 
purchase order or other ordering document. 

 
WITNESS WHEREOF each County and Consultant has caused its authorized representatives to 
execute and deliver this Agreement effective as of the date which this agreement is last signed 
below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RAMIREZ SIMON ENGINEERING, LLC (Consultant) 
 
By: _______________________________    
  
Name: ____________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ________________ ____, 20_____ 
 
 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (County)    
 
By: ____________________________   
 
Printed Name: ____________________ 
 
Capacity:   As Presiding Officer of the 
  Williamson County Commissioners Court 
 
Date: ________________ ____, 20_____ 

Steven Simon, PE

Principal

May 15 24



EXHIBIT “A” 
STATEMENT OF WORK  

 
The following describes the Services shall be provided and accomplished by Consultant pursuant 
to the terms and conditions of the Agreement and this SOW:  
 
 
Project Understanding  
 
Wilco has expressed concerns over the existing chilled water system operation and has requested 
Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC (RSE) to perform an evaluation of the system. The goal of 
this evaluation is to review design flows and balancing requirements to determine if current 
conditions are suitable/acceptable. In addition, RSE shall provide recommendations to remediate 
any existing mechanical issues found as well as to optimize system efficiency. This is for the 
three air cooled chillers located on the roof of the North side of the Williamson County Jail. The 
secondary pumps are located below on the fourth floor. No evaluation will be performed on the 
two air cooled chillers, installed at grade along Rock Street, as there was no indication of issues 
with that system.  
 
Scope of Services  
 
RSE shall visit the site to evaluate existing site conditions. RSE shall provide a report with 
recommended upgrades, as well as an estimated construction cost of each. RSE shall review the 
draft report via Teams meeting and will incorporate comments into a final report.  
Exclusions:  
• City Permit Application or TDLR Fees.  
• Sound/Vibration consultant  
• Architectural design.  
• Commissioning services.  
• Circuit tracing of existing electrical systems.  
 
Compensation  
 
RSE shall perform the services described above for a lump sum of $15,300. 
Project Schedule  
 
RSE will provide a draft report within 6 weeks of our authorization to proceed.  
 
Terms and Conditions  
 
We will invoice monthly based on services provided. If these terms are acceptable, please 
provide approval and authorization to proceed. 



  
 

1 Chisolm Trail, Suite 450 • Round Rock TX 78681 • (832) 261-1420 

Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-14781 

 

 
April 26, 2024 
 
Mr. Daniel Shea 
Williamson County Facilities Management 
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
 
SUBJECT:  North Jail CHW System Evaluation - Fee Proposal  

 
Dear Daniel, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide Mechanical, Electrical, and 

Plumbing (MEP) engineering services on this project.  This proposal describes our Project 

Understanding, Scope of Services, proposed Compensation, proposed Schedule and proposed 

Terms and Conditions for the work. 

 

Project Understanding 

 

Wilco has expressed concerns over the existing chilled water system operation and has 

requested Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC (RSE) to perform an evaluation of the system.  The 

goal of this evaluation is to review design flows and balancing requirements to determine if 

current conditions are suitable/acceptable.  In addition, RSE shall provide recommendations to 

remediate any existing mechanical issues found as well as to optimize system efficiency.  This 

is for the three air cooled chillers located on the roof of the North side of the Williamson County 

Jail.  The secondary pumps are located below on the fourth floor.  No evaluation will be 

performed on the two air cooled chillers, installed at grade along Rock Street, as there was no 

indication of issues with that system.  

 

Scope of Services 

 

RSE shall visit the site to evaluate existing site conditions.  RSE shall provide a report with 

recommended upgrades, as well as an estimated construction cost of each.  RSE shall review 

the draft report via Teams meeting and will incorporate comments into a final report.   

 

Exclusions: 

• City Permit Application or TDLR Fees. 

• Sound/Vibration consultant 

• Architectural design.  

• Commissioning services. 

• Circuit tracing of existing electrical systems. 

 

Compensation 

 

RSE shall perform the services described above for a lump sum of $15,300.   

 
  



 Shea 
4/26/24 
Page 2 

 

1 Chisolm Trail, Suite 450 • Round Rock TX 78681 • (832) 261-1420 

Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-14781 

 

Project Schedule 

 

RSE will provide a draft report within 6 weeks of our authorization to proceed.   

 
Terms and Conditions 

 

We will invoice monthly based on services provided.  If these terms are acceptable, please 

provide approval and authorization to proceed. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.  We look forward to working with you on 

this project.  Please contact me if you have any questions. 

 

Best Regards, 

 

RAMIREZ SIMON ENGINEERING, LLC 

 
Steven Simon, PE 

Principal 



Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 06/03/2024

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC
Houston, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

Williamson County

Engineering Services
001

2024-1169986

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5
X

My address is __ __________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _ _______________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V4.1.0.d378aba0www.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission

Steven Simon

Houston TX 77095 USA

Harris TX 3 June 24



Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 06/03/2024

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC
Houston, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

Williamson County

Engineering Services
001

2024-1169986

06/03/2024

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5
X

My address is _______________________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _______________________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V4.1.0.d378aba0www.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 15.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Approval of Rental Contract for Mechanical Sweeper with Kinloch Equipment & Supply, Inc. for Road and Bridge
Department
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Fernando Ramirez, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving rental Contract #2024208 with Kinloch Equipment &
Supply, Inc. to rent a heavy equipment mechanical sweeper in the amount of $36,000.00 for a 3-month term and
authorizing the execution of the lease agreement.

Background
Requisition #134608 was submitted by the Department of Infrastructure – Road & Bridge Division for the rental of
a mechanical sweeper as outlined in the Rental Agreement. The scope of work for this rental equipment is to
remove debris, dirt, and rock from County roadways. Three quotes were obtained. Funding source is
01.0200.0210.004620. Point of contact is Jenifer Favreau. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Kinloch Rental Agreement and Quote 
Form 1295 Kinloch 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/29/2024 02:33 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 05/30/2024 09:00 AM
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 06/06/2024 07:30 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:27 AM
Form Started By: Fernando Ramirez Started On: 05/24/2024 09:13 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 













Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 05/24/2024

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Kinloch Equipment & Supply
PASADENA, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

Williamson County

Mechanical sweeper rental
2024208

2024-1166072

05/24/2024

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5
X

My address is _______________________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _______________________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V4.1.0.d378aba0www.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission





   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 16.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Approval of Purchase Contract for Truck Mounted Attenuators with Traffic and Parking Control Co. Inc. for Road and
Bridge Department
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Fernando Ramirez, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the Purchase Contract #2024203 for truck mounted
attenuators for the Road and Bridge Department from Traffic & Parking Control Co. Inc. in the amount of
$74,826.00 pursuant to Co-Op OMNIA Partners Contract #2020-200 and authorizing the execution of the contract.

Background
Requisition #134664 was submitted by the Department of Infrastructure – Road & Bridge Division to purchase
two (2) truck-mounted attenuators as outlined in the sales quote. The scope of work for the truck mounted
attenuators will be to greatly enhance safety for road workers and motorists during roadway construction,
maintenance, and other roadside activities. Funding source is 01.0200.0210.005711. Point of contact is Jenifer
Favreau. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Purchase Contract and Quote 
Form 1295 - Traffic and Parking Control Co Inc 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 06/06/2024 07:32 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:29 AM
Form Started By: Fernando Ramirez Started On: 05/30/2024 03:27 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



 

1  

 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY  
PURCHASE CONTRACT 
(Traffic and Parking Control Co., Inc.)  

 

Important Notice: County Purchase Orders and Contracts constitute expenditures of public 
funds, and all vendors are hereby placed on notice that any quotes, invoices or any other 
forms that seek to unilaterally impose contractual or quasicontractual terms are subject to 
the extent authorized by Texas law, including but not limited to the Texas Constitution, the 
Texas Government Code, the Texas Local Government Code, the Texas Transportation 
Code, the Texas Health & Safety Code, and Opinions of the Texas Attorney General 
relevant to local governmental entities. 

THIS PURCHASE CONTRACT (hereinafter “Contract”) is made and entered into by and 
between Williamson County, Texas (“County”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
herein by and through its governing body, and Traffic and Parking Control Co., Inc. (hereinafter 
“Vendor”), both of which are referred to herein as the parties. The County agrees to engage Vendor 
as an independent contractor, to purchase goods described herein pursuant to the following terms, 
conditions, and restrictions: 
 

I. 
 

Goods: Vendor shall provide County the goods described in the attached Quote being 
marked as Exhibit “A,” which is incorporated herein.   
 

Should the County choose to purchase goods in addition to those described in Exhibit “A”, 
such additional goods shall be described in a separate written amendment to this Contract wherein 
the additional goods shall be described, and the parties shall set forth the amount of compensation 
to be paid by the County for the additional goods.  Vendor shall not provide any additional goods 
and the County shall not be obligated to pay for any additional goods unless a written amendment 
to this Contract has been signed by both parties. 
 

II. 
 

Effective Date: This Contract shall be in full force and effect as of the date of the last 
party’s execution below and shall continue for one (1) year.   

 
III. 

 
Consideration and Compensation: Vendor will be compensated based on a fixed sum for 

the specific project herein. The amount of compensation paid to Vendor for the goods shall be 
capped and paid in the amount set out in Exhibit “A”.  Payment for goods and services shall be 
governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue 
the 31st day after the later of (1) the date the County receives the goods under the contract; (2) the 
date the performance of the service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 39F24EF5-C130-404F-A261-E81B02336067



 

2  

County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue 
payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 
2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in 
effect on September 1 of the County’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate 
in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate 
published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday. 

IV. 
 

Tax Exemption: The County is a political subdivision under the laws of the State of Texas 
and claims exemption from sales and use taxes under Tex. Tax Code Ann. §151.309, as amended. 
The County agrees to provide exemption certificates to Vendor upon request. Likewise, the 
County is neither liable for any taxes, charges, or fees assessed against Vendor for the supplies or 
products provided or any Services rendered.  
 

V. 
 

No Agency Relationship & Indemnification: It is understood and agreed that Vendor 
shall not in any sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with the County, nor shall Vendor 
hold itself out as an agent or official representative of the County. Vendor shall be considered an 
independent contractor for the purpose of this Contract and shall in no manner incur any expense 
or liability on behalf of the County other than what may be expressly allowed under this Contract. 
The County will not be liable for any loss, cost, expense, or damage, whether indirect, incidental, 
punitive, exemplary, consequential of any kind whatsoever for any acts by Vendor or failure to 
act relating to the services being provided.  
 

VI. 
 

INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS:  TO THE FULLEST EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY LAW, THE VENDOR SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S 
CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, 
REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) 
AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF 
INDEMNITEES’ GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY CLAIM OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE 
PERSONAL INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY EMPLOYEE OF THE VENDOR, OR OF ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, 
OR OF ANY OTHER ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS 
ALLEGED TO HAVE OCCURRED ON THE WORK SITE OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE 
OF THE WORK.  VENDOR HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE EXTENT THAT 
SUCH PERSONAL INJURY WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE SOLE, 
COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY INDEMNIFIED 
PARTY.  THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES, COMPENSATION, OR 
BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, WORKERS COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY 
BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS:  TO THE FULLEST 

EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, VENDOR SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH COUNSEL OF THE 
COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 39F24EF5-C130-404F-A261-E81B02336067



 

3  

AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE 
“INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR ALLEGED TO BE RESULTING FROM THE 
PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED 
BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS OF VENDOR OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, 
ANYONE EMPLOYED BY THEM OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF 
WHETHER OR NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A 
PARTY INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER. 

 
VII. 

 
No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers: Nothing in this Contract will be deemed 

to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of the County, the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge. 
 

VIII.  
 

Termination: This Contract may be terminated at any time at the option of either party, 
without future or prospective liability for performance, upon giving thirty (30) days written notice 
thereof. 

IX. 
 

Venue and Applicable Law: Venue of this Contract shall be Williamson County, Texas, 
and the laws of the State of Texas shall govern all terms and conditions. 

 
X. 

 
Severability: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract shall for 

any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, 
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision in this Contract and this Contract shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained in it. 
 

XI. 
 

Right to Audit: Vendor agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, 
until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this Contract, have access to and 
the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of Vendor 
which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Contract for the purposes of 
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  Vendor agrees that the County shall 
have access during normal working hours to all necessary Vendor facilities and shall be provided 
adequate and appropriate workspace in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions 
of this section.  The County shall give Vendor reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 
 

XII. 
 

Good Faith Clause: Vendor agrees to act in good faith in the performance of this 
Contract. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 39F24EF5-C130-404F-A261-E81B02336067



 

4  

 
XIII. 

 
No Assignment: Vendor may not assign this Contract. 

 
XIV. 

 
Confidentiality: Vendor expressly agrees that he or she will not use any incidental 

confidential information that may be obtained while working in a governmental setting for his or 
her own benefit, and agrees that he or she will not enter any unauthorized areas or access 
confidential information and he or she will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times. 
 

XV. 
 

Foreign Terrorist Organizations: Vendor represents and warrants that it is not engaged in 
business with Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section 2252.152 of 
the Texas Government Code.  
 

XVI. 
 

Public Information: Vendor understands that County will comply with the Texas Public 
information Act as interpreted by judicial ruling and opinions of the Attorney General of the State 
of Texas. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with this Purchase Order or 
any resulting contract may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to the Texas Public Information 
Act.  
 

XVII. 
 

Entire Contract & Incorporated Documents; Conflicting Terms: This Contract 
constitutes the entire Contract between the parties and may not be modified or amended other than 
by a written instrument executed by both parties. Documents expressly incorporated into this 
Contract include the following: 
 

A. As described in the attached Quote, and being marked Exhibit “A,” which is 
incorporated herein; and  

B. The cooperative purchasing contract (OMNIA Contract # 2020-200).  
 

The County reserves the right and sole discretion to determine the controlling provisions 
where there is any conflict between the terms of this Contract and the terms of any other purchase 
order(s), contract(s) or any document attached hereto as exhibits relating to the services and goods 
subject of this Contract. 

 
XVIII. 

 
County Judge or Presiding Officer Authorized to Sign Contract: The presiding officer 

of the County’s governing body who is authorized to execute this instrument by order duly recorded 
may execute this Contract on behalf of the County. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 39F24EF5-C130-404F-A261-E81B02336067



 

5  

 
 
WITNESS that this Contract shall be effective as of the date of the last party’s execution below. 
 
 
 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY:    SERVICE PROVIDER: 
  
______________________________   Traffic and Parking Control Co., Inc 
Authorized Signature     Name of Service Provider 
 
 Judge Bill Gravell, Jr.,                          _______________________        ___    
Printed Name      Authorized Signature  
 
Date:             , 20                     

Printed Name 
 
       Date:            , 20              
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 39F24EF5-C130-404F-A261-E81B02336067

5/20/2024

Nick Hatch



Item/Description U/M Quantity Unit Price Total Price

Option 1: Center Support TMA 

SP TRAFFIC Each 1 35,645.08 35,645.08
Attenuator,Truck Mounted,Scorpion 2,MASH TL-3 TMA, Center Support, 12" Fast,For Flat Bed Trucks 

Option 2: Dump Truck Support TMA 

SP TRAFFIC Each 1 35,940.92 35,940.92
Attenuator,Truck Mounted,Scorpion 2,MASH TL-3 TMA, Dump Truck Side Support,2 12" Fast Track 

Furnish only quote. Installation is not included. 
Thank You - Amy Schmidt-Borden 
Email: amy.schmidtborden@tapconet.com 
Office Number: 262-649-5218 

TAPCO OMNIA Partners Contract # 2020-200 

3200-0000 1 3,240.00 3,240.00
FREIGHT SALES 

0.00

74,826.00

0.00

74826.00

Total:

Total Sales Tax:
Invoice Discount:

Subtotal:
74,826.00
0

Amount Exempt from Sales Tax
Amount Subject to Sales Tax

All prices are listed in US Dollar (USD)
For terms and conditions, please visit https://tapconet.com/terms-conditions

Page:

SALES QUOTE DATE

SALES QUOTE NUMBER

SALES QUOTE

SALESPERSON

CUSTOMER NO.

TERMSSHIP VIA

Q24004315

Amy Schmidt-Borden

C54091

United States of America
Georgetown, TX 78626
STE B
3151 SE Inner Loop
Jenifer Favreau
Unified Road System

Net 30 DAYSBEST RATE
Quoted

United States of America
Georgetown, TX 78626
3151 SE Inner Loop
Jenifer Favreau
Williamson County Road and Bridge

E-Mail: customerservice@tapconet.com
Phone No.:800-236-0112
Brown Deer, WI 53223
5100 West Brown Deer Rd
Traffic and Parking Control Co., Inc.

3/13/2024

1

BILL TO SHIP TO

VALID UNTIL
5/13/2024

1

Ext. Document No.
TMA

Exhibit A
DocuSign Envelope ID: 39F24EF5-C130-404F-A261-E81B02336067



Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 05/20/2024

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Traffic and Parking Contol Co.
Brown Deer, WI United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

Williamson County

Truck Mounted Attenuators.
2024203

2024-1163361

05/30/2024

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5
X

My address is _______________________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _______________________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V4.1.0.d378aba0www.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission





   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 17.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Texas Materials Group 23IFB91 O'Connor Dr Milling & Overlay
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Change Order No 1 to contract number 23IFB91 for Texas
Materials Group in the amount of -$307,923.76 for O'Connor Drive Milling and Overlay. Funding source:
01.0200.0210.003599.

Background
This Change Order No 1 is a balancing Change Order. All work has been completed. The original contract
amount was $1,546,417.84. With the addition of this Change Order No 1 in the amount of -$307,923.76, the final
contract amount will be $1,238,494.08.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Texas Materials Group 23IFB91 O'Connor Dr Milling & Overlay 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 09:43 AM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 06/05/2024 12:10 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 









   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 18.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Kimley-Horn 24RFSQ17 WA1 On Call Traffic Engineering Services
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 1 in the amount of $50,000.00 to expire
December 31, 2026 under Williamson County Contract for Engineering Services between Kimley-Horn and
Associates, Inc. and Williamson County dated March 19, 2024 for On Call Traffic Engineering Services. Funding
source: 01.0200.0210.004100.

Background

Missing Custom Expenditures Program, please contact Destiny Software

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Kimley-Horn 24RFSQ17 WA1 On Call Traffic Engineering Services 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 06/06/2024 09:45 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:07 AM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 06/06/2024 09:21 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.    1__ 
 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY ROAD & BRIDGE PROJECT: 
On-Call Traffic Engineering Services 

 
This Work Authorization is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Williamson County 
Contract for Engineering Services, being dated March 19, 2024 and entered into by and between 
Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas, (the "County") and 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (the "Engineer"). 
 
Part1. The Engineer will provide the following Engineering Services set forth in Attachment “B” 
of this Work Authorization. 
 
Part 2. The maximum amount payable for services under this Work Authorization without 
modification is $50,000.00. 
 
Part 3.  Payment to the Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization shall 
be made in accordance with the Contract. 
 
Part 4.  This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance and full 
execution of the parties hereto and shall terminate on December 31, 2026.  The Engineering 
Services set forth in Attachment “B” of this Work Authorization shall be fully completed on or 
before said date unless extended by a Supplemental Work Authorization. 
 
Part 5.  This Work Authorization does not waive the parties’ responsibilities and obligations 
provided under the Contract. 
 
Part 6.  County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for expenditure 
to finance the costs of this Work Authorization.  Engineer understands and agrees that County’s 
payment of amounts under this Work Authorization is contingent on the County receiving 
appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of 
reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to make payments under this Contract.  It is 
further understood and agreed by Engineer that County shall have the right to terminate this 
Contract at the end of any County fiscal year if the governing body of County does not appropriate 
sufficient funds as determined by County’s budget for the fiscal year in question.  County may 
effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to Engineer. 
 
Part 7.  This Work Authorization is hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 
 
 

Continued next page  



EXECUTED this ______________________. 
 

ENGINEER:      COUNTY: 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.   Williamson County, Texas 
 
 
By:__________________________   By:____________________________ 
               Signature       Signature 
 
 
               ___________                    _______________________________ 
    Printed Name      Printed Name 
      
 
               __________________________          ______________________________ 
    Title        Title 
 
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 

Attachment A - Services to be Provided by County 
 

Attachment B - Services to be Provided by Engineer 
 

Attachment C - Work Schedule 
 

Attachment D - Fee Schedule 
 

Trey Neal

Vice President



Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Attachment A Page 1 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.    1__ 
 

PROJECT: On-Call Traffic Engineering Services 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
Services to be provided by the County 

 
Williamson County will provide a Project Manager and will provide timely reviews and decisions 
necessary to enable the Engineer to maintain an agreed upon project schedule. 



Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Attachment B Page 1 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.    1__ 
 

PROJECT: On-Call Traffic Engineering Services 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
Services to be provided by the Engineer 

 
Services will be addressed as requested by Williamson County on a time and material basis. 



Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Attachment C Page 1 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.    1__ 
 

PROJECT: On-Call Traffic Engineering Services 
 

ATTACHMENT C 
Work Schedule 

 
The Engineer will provide a work schedule for the assigned tasks. 



Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Attachment D Page 1 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.    1__ 
 

PROJECT: On-Call Traffic Engineering Services 
 

ATTACHMENT D 
Fee Schedule 

 
RATE SCHEDULE 

 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 
 
Direct Labor Rate (per hour) 
Analyst $185.00 
Professional $225.00 
Senior Engineer I / Senior Professional I $265.00 
Senior Engineer II / Senior Professional II $325.00 
Senior Designer $195.00 
CAD Technician $150.00 
Senior Support Staff $145.00 
Support Staff $125.00 
  
Direct Expenses Rate & Unit of Measure 
Postage & shipping (metered/bulk) $180.00 per month 
Materials and shipping $50.00 per package 
Overnight mail – oversized box $50.00 per each 
Courier services $50.00 per each 
Photocopies B/W (8.5”x11”) $0.15 per each 
Photocopies B/W (11”x17”) $0.25 per each 
Photocopies color (8.5”x11”) $1.00 per each 
Photocopies color (11”x17”) $1.50 per each 
Digital ortho plotting $3.00 per sheet 
Plots (B/W on bond) $1.50 per square foot 
Plots (color on bond) $3.00 per square foot 
Plots (color on photographic paper) $7.50 per square foot 
Color graphics on foam board $7.50 per square foot 
Presentation board up to 48”x60” color mounted $100.00 per each 
Outside printing – reports (includes labor and supplies) $75.00 per each 
Report binding and tabbing (includes labor and supplies) $20.00 per each 
Reproduction of CD/DVD $40.00 per each 
CDs/DVDs $2.50 per each 
Cardstock color (8.5”x11”) $2.50 per each 
4”x6” digital color print $1.00 per each 
Historical aerial images (photographs, negatives, maps) $125.00 per each 
Aerial photographs (1” = 500’ scale) $100.00 per each 
Maps and map records $2.50 per each 
Environmental field supplies (lathes, stakes, flagging, spray $60.00 per day 



Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Attachment D Page 2 

paint, etc.) 
Noise meter rental $100.00 per day 
GPS receiver (rates applied to actual time GPS units are in use) $30.00 per hour 

 
Quality Counts, LLC 
 
Turning Movement Counts Cost Additional Hour 
2 Hour Minor Intersection $180.00 $55.00 
2 Hour Major Intersection  $280.00 $95.00 
   
Extended Duration Counts Cost  
13-Hour Minor Intersection $785.00  
13-Hour Major Intersection $1,325.00  
24-Hour Minor Intersection $1,390.00  
24-Hour Major Intersection $2,370.00  
   
ATR 1st 24 Hours Each Additional Day 
Volume ADT (1-3 Lanes) $220.00 $90.00 
Volume ADT (4+ Lanes) $440.00 $160.00 
Volume/Speed/Class ADT (1-3 Lanes) $240.00 $110.00 
Volume/Speed/Class ADT (4+ Lanes) $480.00 $220.00 
Mainline Radar (Volume/Length/Speed) $725.00 $150.00 
   
Unique Studies Cost Unit of Cost 
Spot Speed Study (Hand Held Radar) $280.00 2 hours or 125 cars 

each direction 
Stop Sign Delay Study $210.00 Per Hour 

 
McGray & McGray Land Surveyors, Inc. 
 
Conventional Field Crew Services Rate (per hour) 
1 man reconnaissance or data gathering $140.00 
2 man survey crew, with vehicle and data collection $190.00 
3 man survey crew, with vehicle and data collection $225.00 
Fixed wing flight crew (includes pilot and sensor operator) $225.00 
Helicopter flight crew (includes pilot and sensor operator) $225.00 
There is a minimum charge of 4 hours for above field crew services (unless otherwise agreed). 
  
Office/Professional/Technical Services Rate (per hour) 
Project Manager $201.50 
GIS Technician – Senior $107.17 
GIS Technician $87.32 
Abstractor $85.97 
Surveyor (RPLS) Senior $188.06 
Surveyor (RPLS) $166.57 
Survey Technician (Surveyor-In-Training) – SIT $115.53 



Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Attachment D Page 3 

Survey Technician $95.38 
Certified Photogrammetrist $107.47 
Aerial Mapping Technician $94.03 
Aerial Office Technician $90.00 
Aerial Processing Technician $91.35 
LiDAR Task Lead $107.47 
LiDAR Mapping Technician (Aerial) $96.72 
LiDAR Office Technician (Aerial) $96.72 
LiDAR Processing Technician (Helicopter, Fixed Wing, 
Mobile, UAS, Terrestrial) 

$96.72 

Mapping Editor (includes QA/QC, Finishing & Finalization) $102.09 
Orthophoto Specialist $91.35 
Survey Field Crew Coordinator $91.35 
Project Coordinator – Acquisition (Helicopter, Fixed Wing, 
Mobile, UAS, Terrestrial) 

$107.47 

Project Coordinator – Helicopter, Fixed Wing, Mobile, UAS, 
Terrestrial 

$107.47 

Administrative/Clerical $85.97 
  
Specialized Equipment  
ATV (All-Terrain Vehicle) $85.00 per day 
Additional Survey Vehicle $100.00 per day 
LiDAR Terrestrial Scanner $100.00 per hour 
UAV (Drone) Aerial Mapper $5,000.00 per day 
Mobile Mapper $9,000.00 per day 
Unusual equipment or additional service providers will be charged at cost. 

 
CPI Rate Adjustments: Rates will remain firm for the initial first year of the Contract and such 
rates shall be deemed the “Initial Base Rates”.  Engineer must request rate adjustments, in writing, 
at least thirty (30) days prior to each annual anniversary date of the Contract and any rate changes 
will take effect on the first day following the prior year.  If Engineer fails to request a CPI rate 
adjustment, as set forth herein, the adjustment will be effective thirty (30) days after the County 
receives Engineer’s written request.  No retroactive rate adjustments will be allowed.  
 
Price adjustments will be made in accordance with changes in the U.S. Department of Labor 
Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for All Urban Consumers, All Items, South Region (Base 1982-84 
= 100). 
  
The rate adjustment will be determined by multiplying the Initial Base Rates by a fraction, the 
numerator of which is the index number for most recently released index before each annual 
anniversary date of the Contract and the denominator of which is the index number for the first 
month of the Contract (the index number for the month in which the Contract was originally 
executed).  If the products are greater than the Initial Base Rates, County will pay the greater 
amounts as the rates during the successive year until the next rate adjustment.  Rates for each 
successive year will never be less than the Initial Base Rates. 
 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 19.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Bartlett Farms MUD
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Adam Boatright, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the submission of a formal protest/request for a
contested case hearing and written comments, information and recommendations by legal counsel for Williamson
County to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality relating to a petition for the creation of Bartlett Farms
MUD of Williamson County, Texas.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
TCEQ Comment Letter - Bartlett Farms MUD 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 11:58 AM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 06/06/2024 11:44 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



  

Williamson County Courthouse 
710 Main Street, Georgetown, TX 78626 
512.943.1100 

wilcotx.gov 

JUNE 11, 2024 

 
OFFICE OF THE CHIEF CLERK  
TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
MC-105, TCEQ 
P.O. BOX 13087 
AUSTIN, TX 78711-3087 
 
 

RE:  BARTLETT FARMS MUD 
TCEQ INTERNAL CONTROL NO. D-04012024-006 
CN: 606248904 RN: 111949616 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Williamson County writes in response to your notice dated May 1, 2024, copy attached, regarding the submission of a petition for the 
creation of the above-referenced Bartlett Farms MUD of Williamson County (“District”). The County opposes the creation of the proposed 
District unless certain conditions are met. 

The County is requesting a contested case hearing. 

The County understands that this is a formal protest proceeding and tenders its opinion, findings, conclusions, and any other information 
that would assist the TCEQ. 

The County has authority over various functions – including but not limited to transportation, emergency services, and health and safety – 
that may be affected by the creation of the District and that the petition fails to take into account. See, e.g., Tex. Local Gov’t Code §§ 
232.001-.011 (county authority for road construction in subdivisions as well as other subdivision regulations); Tex. Local Gov’t Code § 
251.003 (county order and rulemaking authority for roads); Tex. Local Gov’t Code, Chapter 233, Subchapter C (fire code in unincorporated 
areas); Tex. Local Gov’t Code, Chapter 232, Subchapter E (infrastructure planning provisions in certain urban counties); Texas Local Gov’t 
Code, Chapter 233, Subchapter B (building and set back lines); Tex. Local Gov’t Code, Chapter 233, Subchapter E (fire code in 
unincorporated area); Tex. Local Gov’t Code, Chapter 418 (emergency management); Tex. Transp. Code § 251.016 (general control over 
roads, highways and bridges); Tex. Transp. Code, Chapter 254 (drainage on public roads). Thus, the County has statutory authority under 
state law over numerous issues contemplated by this petition and is, therefore, an affected person. 30 Tex. Admin. Code § 55.256(b). 



  

Williamson County Courthouse 
710 Main Street, Georgetown, TX 78626 
512.943.1100 

wilcotx.gov 

For example, the County notes that, in your notice item (5), the District seeks traditional road powers including: 

“(5) design, acquire, construct, finance, improve, operate, and maintain macadamized, graveled, or paved roads, or 
improvements in aid of those roads; and (6) provide such other facilities, systems, plants, and enterprises as shall be consonant 
with the purpose for which the proposed District is created.” 

However, the District does not state that it will not convey the road, particularly the maintenance, to the County without limitation. 
Considering the recent legislative changes outlined below, the County no longer accepts roads from newly created MUDs into the County’s 
maintenance system without a corresponding obligation of the MUD to maintain the road after a specified time period. 

Since the 2017 and 2019 legislative sessions effectively ended unilateral annexations by cities, the fiscal burden of developmental control 
has fallen on counties in general. Historically in Williamson County, MUD creation included agreements between the County and the 
neighboring municipality that would lead to annexation of that MUD by the municipality after a stated time period, thus limiting the financial 
exposure of the County in relation to the MUDs. Now however, despite this legislatively created increase in financial exposure to the 
County by limiting the ability of cities to annex MUDs, the current tax laws cap county tax rates to such a degree that the ability to address 
growth by counties is severely hampered. Because of these fiscal constraints, new residents of the County, such as those residing in this 
proposed District, should not shift the cost of development onto the current residents and the County’s position and recommendation is that 
the proposed District help bear the continued cost of its development. This is consistent with recent efforts by the County to share costs 
between the County and legislatively created MUDs through the enacting legislation and/or Consent and Development Agreements. 

For legislatively created MUDs, Williamson County, with the help of Senator Schwertner, has addressed this increased fiscal burden on the 
County by successfully negotiating Consent and Development Agreements that provide cost sharing between the County, the property 
developer/owner, and the MUD. The following paragraphs include standard terms in these agreements that the County argues should also 
apply to the TCEQ created MUDs for equity and public health and safety. 

 

ROADS 

The County has adopted a Long-Range Transportation Plan (“LRTP”) which provides for the planning and future construction of 
certain road corridors within the County (“Corridor Project”). The County request that the Owner will convey, or cause to be 
conveyed, by special warranty deed, in fee simple and free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, to County, at no cost to the 
County, 100% of the right-of-way required for any roads which are shown within the boundaries of the Land as Corridor Projects 
in the LRTP within either 30 days after the final alignment for any Corridor Project is set; or, in the case that a final alignment for 
any Corridor Project has not been set, prior to the approval of any preliminary plat containing any Corridor Project within or 
directly adjacent to the Land. 



  

Williamson County Courthouse 
710 Main Street, Georgetown, TX 78626 
512.943.1100 

wilcotx.gov 

Furthermore, the Owner will dedicate to the County, in fee simple and free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, at no cost to 
the County, through plat or otherwise, as determined by the County, 100% of the right-of-way required for any roads which are 
shown within the boundaries of the Land as arterial roadways (“Arterial(s)”) in the LRTP. The County agrees that it or another 
governmental entity will be responsible for the design and construction of any Corridor Project and paying the cost for same. 
Commencing upon the tenth (10th) anniversary date from the date the County provisionally accepted a Subdivision Road, the 
District shall be solely responsible for any maintenance, repair or reconstruction or both of any Subdivision Road. 

 

LAW ENFORCEMENT 

Pursuant to the authority set forth in Section 49.216 of the Texas Water Code, the District and the County shall negotiate in good 
faith the terms of a contract pursuant to which the District shall provide funding to the County for the incremental costs incurred 
by the County for law enforcement services in that portion of the Land located in the County, including the costs of additional 
personnel, vehicles and equipment associated with the provision of law enforcement services to the Land within the County. 
Funding shall include per law enforcement position cost for compensation, benefits, vehicles and equipment, as kept by the 
Williamson County Budget Office. Owner and District acknowledge that any such funding would be used to enhance law 
enforcement services in Williamson County, as well as in, on and around the Land. Furthermore, the provision of such funding 
will not mandate or require County to designate, allocate or assign specific law enforcement personnel, vehicles, equipment or 
services to areas of the Land and that any additional County law enforcement personnel, vehicles, equipment or services funded 
by District will be assigned countywide. Owner and District understand and agree the County shall not be required to increase its 
budget for additional law enforcement personnel, vehicles, equipment and services in the event the County does not receive 
appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to do so. 

 

FIRE AND EMS SERVICES 

Pursuant to the authority set forth in Section 49.351 of the Texas Water Code, the District and the County shall negotiate in good 
faith the terms of a contract to provide for fire- fighting and emergency medical services within the District including providing for 
necessary buildings, facilities, land, and equipment for such services. As necessary to implement any such contract, the District 
shall develop a plan that describes the contract, including a presentation of the financial requirements under the contract, submit 
such contract to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality for approval, and conduct an election for approval of the plan 
and financing, all in accordance with the requirements of Section 49.351(g)-(i) of the Texas Water Code. 



  

Williamson County Courthouse 
710 Main Street, Georgetown, TX 78626 
512.943.1100 

wilcotx.gov 

Owner and the County agree to negotiate in good faith the terms of one or more agreements pursuant to which the Owner shall 
convey, or cause to be conveyed, to the County by special warranty deed one or more sites within the Land for establishment of 
necessary buildings for fire and/or emergency medical services at no cost to the County. The agreement(s) will set forth terms for 
timing of conveyance, identification of site(s) that do not materially impair development of the Land, and may provide for funding 
of construction of the buildings by Owner. 

 

ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 

The District and the County shall negotiate in good faith the terms of a contract pursuant to which the District will provide funding 
for the incremental costs incurred by the Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter for providing animal control services to that 
portion of the Land located in the County. For future planning purposes in relation to a contract to be executed between the 
County and District, the Parties acknowledge the firm of Jackson & Ryan Architects prepared a Capacity Study, dated December 
4, 2014 that cites that seven (7) cats and ten (10) dogs are attributed to every one-thousand (1,000) individuals, or 370 homes. 
As of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the average cost to provide shelter and care at the Williamson County Regional 
Animal Shelter is approximately $500.00 per animal. Based on the abovementioned Capacity Study and current cost estimations 
and projections, for every 370 homes constructed in the Land, the District would pay to the Williamson County Regional Animal 
Shelter for shelter and care of cats and dogs the amount of $185,000.00. The Parties acknowledge the Capacity Study is a 2014 
study and that the average cost to provide shelter and care per animal at the Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter is 
based on current day estimates and projections. Thus, the actual cost to provide shelter and care per animal at the Williamson 
County Regional Animal Shelter may be different than such estimates and projections; and that these amounts are only being 
provided for future planning purposes. 

Additionally, MUDs will place an even greater burden on law enforcement, emergency medical, fire and animal control services that are 
already very strained in the county and that, not only will the health and safety of the residents of the developer’s MUD be affected, all 
other residents that the county provides such services will also be affected. The first MUD came in 1974 and in the last 10 years the 
number of MUDs has almost doubled versus the previous 38 years, growing from 41 MUDs to 80 and acreage has increased by 15,620 
acres (72% increase) in the last 10 years. In the last 20 years the numbers of MUDs have grown by 627% (from 11 to 80 MUDs) and 
acreage has grown by 319% (8,926 to 37,373 acres). The burden is too great on the County without the long- term commitment of the 
MUDS to also bear the burden of growth on the services normally provided by cities and now attempting to be shifted to the County. 

In conclusion, the County believes that all MUDs created within the County should have the same or similar provisions regardless of 
whether it is created by the Legislature or created by the TCEQ. Therefore, the provisions required in either the legislation or Consent and 
Development Agreements should also be included in a TCEQ created MUD, thus allowing all County residents, especially those living in 
MUDs, to be treated fairly and equally. 



  

Williamson County Courthouse 
710 Main Street, Georgetown, TX 78626 
512.943.1100 

wilcotx.gov 

Therefore, as referenced above, the County opposes the creation of this MUD and requests a contested case hearing. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

Bill Gravell, Jr. 
Williamson County Judge 
 
 
Enc. 
 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 20.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Final plat for the Santa Rita Ranch Phase 6 Section 3 subdivision – Pct 2
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Adam Boatright, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Santa Rita Ranch Phase 6
Section 3 subdivision – Precinct 2.

Background
This is the next section of the Santa Rita Ranch Phase 6 development. It consists of 44 single family lots, 1 open
space/drainage/landscape/utility lot, 1 open space/drainage/landscape/utility/water quality lot and 2,097 feet of
new public roads. Roadway and drainage construction is not yet complete, but a performance bond in the
amount of $613,043.45 has been posted with the County to cover the cost of the remaining construction.

Timeline
2024-03-05 – initial submittal of the final plat
2024-04-04 – 1st review complete with comments
2024-05-06 – 2nd submittal of final plat
2024-05-21 – 2nd review complete with comments
2024-05-31 – 3rd submittal of final plat with signatures 
2024-06-05 – 3rd review complete with comments cleared
2024-06-06 – final plat placed on the June 11, 2024 Commissioners Court agenda for consideration

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Final Plat - SRR Ph 6 Sec 3 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 11:59 AM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 06/06/2024 11:51 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



FIRM ID #F3791

C B D

Carlson, Brigance & Doering, Inc.

      Civil Engineering                          Surveying
5501 West William Cannon          Austin, Texas 78749
Phone No. (512) 280-5160          Fax No. (512) 280-5165

REG. # 10024900FIRM ID #F3791

C B D

Carlson, Brigance & Doering, Inc.

      Civil Engineering                          Surveying
5501 West William Cannon          Austin, Texas 78749
Phone No. (512) 280-5160          Fax No. (512) 280-5165

REG. # 10024900

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
JATES FIELD BEND (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREAT LAWN BEND (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
74 O.S., W.Q.E., D.E., L.S.E., & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALANDRIA BLVD. (50' R.O.W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 1 DOCUMENT NO. 2022011059 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
REATA RIDGE LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
74

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS, DE, WQE, LSE & PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN (ATLAS 14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN (ATLAS 14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2 DOCUMENT NO. 2022083761 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 DOC. NO. 2021149800 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA KC, LLC. (118.212 ACRES) DOCUMENT NO.  2023033961 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PIPELINE ESMT) DOC NO 2016025615,  VOL. 851, PG. 705,   VOL. 2212, PG.294, AND VOL. 2241, PG. 447 (LOCATED EASEMENT LINES PER ENTERPRISE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH  PHASE 3, SECTION 1  DOC. NO. 2020163813 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR  FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 2 DOCUMENT NO. 2024011244 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONTECILO DRIVE (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1 DOCUMENT NO. 2023104032 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.E.M.A. MAP NO. 48491C0275E  WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS AND INCORPORATED AREAS.  DATED: SEPTEMBER 26, 2008

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\AC3D\5458\Survey\SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6 SEC 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 3 FINAL PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE SHEET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SUBMITTAL DATE: MARCH 5, 2024 DATE: MAY 23, 2024 OWNER: SANTA RITA KC, LLC 1700 CROSS CREEK LANE, STE. 100 LIBERTY HILL, TX 78642 DEVELOPER: SANTA RITA KC, LLC 1700 CROSS CREEK LANE, STE. 100 LIBERTY HILL, TX 78642 ENGINEER & SURVEYOR: CARLSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC. 5501 WEST WILLIAM CANNON DRIVE AUSTIN, TEXAS 78749 (512) 280-5160 PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL ACREAGE:  29.053 ACRES  SURVEY:  GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY,  ABSTRACT NO. 5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL OF LOTS       46        46    46    SINGLE FAMILY LOTS:    44 44 O.S., D.E., L.S.E. & P.U.E. LOTS:   1  1 O.S., D.E., W.Q.E., L.S.E., & P.U.E. LOTS:  1 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO. 1 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\AC3D\5458\Survey\SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6 SEC 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK: CAPPED IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CONTROL" N: 10212921.80 10212921.80 E:  3087472.14 3087472.14 ELEV: 979.79 979.79 (NAVD '88)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANTILLY  CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANTILLY WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REATA RIDGE LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REATA RIDGE LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REATA RIDGE LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
74 O.S., W.Q.E,, D.E., L.S.E. & P.U.E

AutoCAD SHX Text
49 O.S., L.S. & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYNFIELD LANE (64' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 O.S., L.S. & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
RONALD REAGAN BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAUFFMAN LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP APPROX. SCALE: 1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
154

AutoCAD SHX Text
155

AutoCAD SHX Text
152

AutoCAD SHX Text
156

AutoCAD SHX Text
153

AutoCAD SHX Text
132

AutoCAD SHX Text
134

AutoCAD SHX Text
136

AutoCAD SHX Text
135

AutoCAD SHX Text
137

AutoCAD SHX Text
133

AutoCAD SHX Text
139

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
142

AutoCAD SHX Text
141

AutoCAD SHX Text
143

AutoCAD SHX Text
144

AutoCAD SHX Text
147

AutoCAD SHX Text
148

AutoCAD SHX Text
149

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
151

AutoCAD SHX Text
170

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 O.S., W.Q.E., D.E., L.S.E., & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
170 O.S., W.Q.E., D.E., L.S.E., & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 O.S., L.S.E., & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
130

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
131

AutoCAD SHX Text
127

AutoCAD SHX Text
129

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
126

AutoCAD SHX Text
124

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
122

AutoCAD SHX Text
121

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
119

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
116

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
145

AutoCAD SHX Text
146

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYNFIELD LANE (64' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDONDA DRIVE   (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAITLYN CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLEMAN BEND (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLEMAN BEND (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYNFIELD LANE (64 R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENNINGTON DRIVE (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDONDA DRIVE (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENICIA COVE (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. SANTA RITA BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANTILLY  CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANTILLY WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REATA RIDGE LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REATA RIDGE LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REATA RIDGE LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
74 O.S., W.Q.E,, D.E., L.S.E. & P.U.E

AutoCAD SHX Text
49 O.S., L.S. & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYNFIELD LANE (64' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 O.S., L.S. & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
RONALD REAGAN BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAUFFMAN LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP APPROX. SCALE: 1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
154

AutoCAD SHX Text
155

AutoCAD SHX Text
152

AutoCAD SHX Text
156

AutoCAD SHX Text
153

AutoCAD SHX Text
132

AutoCAD SHX Text
134

AutoCAD SHX Text
136

AutoCAD SHX Text
135

AutoCAD SHX Text
137

AutoCAD SHX Text
133

AutoCAD SHX Text
139

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
142

AutoCAD SHX Text
141

AutoCAD SHX Text
143

AutoCAD SHX Text
144

AutoCAD SHX Text
147

AutoCAD SHX Text
148

AutoCAD SHX Text
149

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
151

AutoCAD SHX Text
170

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 O.S., W.Q.E., D.E., L.S.E., & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
170 O.S., W.Q.E., D.E., L.S.E., & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 O.S., L.S.E., & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
130

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
131

AutoCAD SHX Text
127

AutoCAD SHX Text
129

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
126

AutoCAD SHX Text
124

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
122

AutoCAD SHX Text
121

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
119

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
116

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
145

AutoCAD SHX Text
146

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYNFIELD LANE (64' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDONDA DRIVE   (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAITLYN CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLEMAN BEND (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLEMAN BEND (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYNFIELD LANE (64 R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENNINGTON DRIVE (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDONDA DRIVE (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENICIA COVE (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. SANTA RITA BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD TABLE STREET NAMES         LINEAR FOOTAGE     R.O.W. WIDTH    PAVEMENT WIDTH   DESIGN SPEED  DESIGNATION  CLASSIFICATION         LINEAR FOOTAGE     R.O.W. WIDTH    PAVEMENT WIDTH   DESIGN SPEED  DESIGNATION  CLASSIFICATION  IRVINE PASS    1,089'    50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL 1,089'    50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL   50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL 33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL 25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL PUBLIC  LOCAL LOCAL JATES FIELD BEND   158'    50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL 158'    50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL   50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL 33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL 25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL PUBLIC  LOCAL LOCAL      KISER ROAD     850'         50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL       850'         50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL   850'         50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL           50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL     50' R.O.W.  33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL   33' FOC-FOC  25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL   25 M.P.H. PUBLIC  LOCAL   PUBLIC  LOCAL   LOCAL   TOTAL     2,097' 2,097' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
north

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK DESIGNATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER QUALITY EASEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WQE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPPED 1/2" IRON ROD FOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPPED 1/2" CAPPED IRON ROD SET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAMPED"CBD SETSTONE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAMPED"CBD SETSTONE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN (ATLAS 14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YEAR FLOODWAY



FIRM ID #F3791

C B D

Carlson, Brigance & Doering, Inc.

      Civil Engineering                          Surveying
5501 West William Cannon          Austin, Texas 78749
Phone No. (512) 280-5160          Fax No. (512) 280-5165

REG. # 10024900FIRM ID #F3791

C B D

Carlson, Brigance & Doering, Inc.

      Civil Engineering                          Surveying
5501 West William Cannon          Austin, Texas 78749
Phone No. (512) 280-5160          Fax No. (512) 280-5165

REG. # 10024900

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
76

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
74

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
JATES FIELD BEND (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRVINE CIRCLE  (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
84 O.S., L.S.E., & P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIG ROSE DRIVE (60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST SANTA RITA BLVD. (90' R.O.W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST SANTA RITA BLVD. (90' R.O.W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA CALETA BEND (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA CALETA BEND (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JATES FIELD BEND (50' R.O.W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1 DOCUMENT NO. 2023104032 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA KC, LLC. (118.212 ACRES) DOCUMENT NO. 2023033961 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS, DE, WQE, LSE & PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KISER ROAD (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
KISER ROAD (50'R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRVINE PASS (50' R.O.W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JATES FIELD BEND  (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1 DOCUMENT NO. 2023104032 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN (ATLAS 14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 100-YR W.S.E. (ATLAS 14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH  PHASE 3, SECTION 1  DOC. NO. 2020163813 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA KC, LLC (59.909 ACRES) DOCUMENT NO. 2023033962 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA KC, LLC. (118.212 ACRES) DOCUMENT NO. 2023033961 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA KC, LLC. (118.212 ACRES) DOCUMENT NO.  2023033961 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS, DE, WQE, LSE & PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN (ATLAS 14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS, DE, LSE & PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 100-YR  FLOODPLAIN (ATLAS 14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR  FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR  FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 2 DOCUMENT NO. 2024011244 O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY TURNAROUND ESMT. (0.202 ACRES) DOC. NO. 2024042904

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\AC3D\5458\Survey\SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6 SEC 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO. 2 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\AC3D\5458\Survey\SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6 SEC 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 3 FINAL PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
north

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE SHEET 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK DESIGNATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.W.C.TX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER QUALITY EASEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WQE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPPED 1/2" IRON ROD FOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPPED 1/2" CAPPED IRON ROD SET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAMPED"CBD SETSTONE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAMPED"CBD SETSTONE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN (ATLAS 14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YEAR FLOODWAY



FIRM ID #F3791

C B D

Carlson, Brigance & Doering, Inc.

      Civil Engineering                          Surveying
5501 West William Cannon          Austin, Texas 78749
Phone No. (512) 280-5160          Fax No. (512) 280-5165

REG. # 10024900

“ ”

”

” ”
”
”
”

”

”
”

”
”
”

”

”
”

”
”

”

”
”

”
”

”
”

”
”

”
”

” “ ”
”

”

”
”
”
”

”

”
”
”
”

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO. 3 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\AC3D\5458\Survey\SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6 SEC 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 3 FINAL PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL: 1. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, CENTRAL ZONE (4203), NAD83. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, CENTRAL ZONE (4203), NAD83. 2. THIS SUBDIVISION LIES WITHIN THE CITY OF LIBERTY HILL EXTRA-TERRITORIAL JURISDICTION. THIS SUBDIVISION LIES WITHIN THE CITY OF LIBERTY HILL EXTRA-TERRITORIAL JURISDICTION. 3. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF  WITH PROVISIONS OF WITH PROVISIONS OF  PROVISIONS OF PROVISIONS OF  OF OF ALL APPLICABLE STATE, FEDERAL AND LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND  APPLICABLE STATE, FEDERAL AND LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND APPLICABLE STATE, FEDERAL AND LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND  STATE, FEDERAL AND LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND STATE, FEDERAL AND LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND  FEDERAL AND LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND FEDERAL AND LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND  AND LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND AND LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND  LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND LOCAL LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND  LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND LAWS, AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND  AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND  REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND  RELATING TO PLATTING AND RELATING TO PLATTING AND  TO PLATTING AND TO PLATTING AND  PLATTING AND PLATTING AND  AND AND DEVELOPMENT OF THIS PROPERTY. THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF  OF THIS PROPERTY. THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF OF THIS PROPERTY. THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF  THIS PROPERTY. THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THIS PROPERTY. THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF  PROPERTY. THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF PROPERTY. THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF  THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF  COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF  ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF  NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF  RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF  FOR THE ACCURACY OF FOR THE ACCURACY OF  THE ACCURACY OF THE ACCURACY OF  ACCURACY OF ACCURACY OF  OF OF REPRESENTATIONS BY OTHER PARTIES IN THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  BY OTHER PARTIES IN THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS BY OTHER PARTIES IN THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  OTHER PARTIES IN THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS OTHER PARTIES IN THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  PARTIES IN THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS PARTIES IN THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  IN THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS IN THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS THIS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS PLAT. FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS FLOODPLAIN DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS DATA, IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS  MAY CHANGE. IT IS MAY CHANGE. IT IS  CHANGE. IT IS CHANGE. IT IS  IT IS IT IS  IS IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD THAT THE OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  UNDERSTOOD THAT THE OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL UNDERSTOOD THAT THE OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  THAT THE OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL THAT THE OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  THE OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL THE OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL  PLAT MUST INSTALL PLAT MUST INSTALL  MUST INSTALL MUST INSTALL  INSTALL INSTALL AT THEIR OWN EXPENSE ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  THEIR OWN EXPENSE ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE THEIR OWN EXPENSE ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  OWN EXPENSE ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE OWN EXPENSE ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  EXPENSE ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE EXPENSE ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  REQUIRED BEFORE THE REQUIRED BEFORE THE  BEFORE THE BEFORE THE  THE THE ROADS IN THE SUBDIVISION HAVE FINALLY BEEN ACCEPTED FOR MAINTENANCE BY THE COUNTY. 4. ALL PUBLIC ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE FREE OF LIENS. DRAINAGE AND FLOODPLAIN:  1. EXCEPT IN CERTAIN ISOLATED AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM EXCEPT IN CERTAIN ISOLATED AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM  IN CERTAIN ISOLATED AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM IN CERTAIN ISOLATED AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM  CERTAIN ISOLATED AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM CERTAIN ISOLATED AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM  ISOLATED AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM ISOLATED AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM  AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM  REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM  TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM  MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM  ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM  REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS, THE MINIMUM  THE MINIMUM THE MINIMUM  MINIMUM MINIMUM LOWEST FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  FLOOR ELEVATION SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT FLOOR ELEVATION SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  ELEVATION SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT ELEVATION SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT  SPOT ELEVATION THAT SPOT ELEVATION THAT  ELEVATION THAT ELEVATION THAT  THAT THAT IS LOCATED WITHIN FIVE FEET OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  LOCATED WITHIN FIVE FEET OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, LOCATED WITHIN FIVE FEET OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  WITHIN FIVE FEET OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, WITHIN FIVE FEET OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  FIVE FEET OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, FIVE FEET OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  FEET OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, FEET OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, OUTSIDE THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  FOOT ABOVE THE BFE, FOOT ABOVE THE BFE,  ABOVE THE BFE, ABOVE THE BFE,  THE BFE, THE BFE,  BFE, BFE, WHICHEVER IS HIGHER. 2. A DE FACTO CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION A DE FACTO CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  DE FACTO CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION DE FACTO CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  FACTO CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION FACTO CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION  THIS SUBDIVISION THIS SUBDIVISION  SUBDIVISION SUBDIVISION EXCEPT LOTS 45-55, BLOCK A.  THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  LOTS 45-55, BLOCK A.  THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY LOTS 45-55, BLOCK A.  THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  45-55, BLOCK A.  THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY 45-55, BLOCK A.  THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  BLOCK A.  THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY BLOCK A.  THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  A.  THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY A.  THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY   THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY TIME AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY AS FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY FEMA REVISES OR NEWLY  REVISES OR NEWLY REVISES OR NEWLY  OR NEWLY OR NEWLY  NEWLY NEWLY ADOPTS FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARIES IN THIS AREA. 3. THE PROPOSED 100-YR WATER SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED THE PROPOSED 100-YR WATER SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  PROPOSED 100-YR WATER SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED PROPOSED 100-YR WATER SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  100-YR WATER SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED 100-YR WATER SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  WATER SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED WATER SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED PER ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED ATLAS 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED 14 SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED SHOWN ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED ON THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED THE PLAT WAS DETERMINED  PLAT WAS DETERMINED PLAT WAS DETERMINED  WAS DETERMINED WAS DETERMINED  DETERMINED DETERMINED BY A STUDY PREPARED BY CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  A STUDY PREPARED BY CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE A STUDY PREPARED BY CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  STUDY PREPARED BY CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE STUDY PREPARED BY CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  PREPARED BY CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE PREPARED BY CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  BY CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE BY CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE CALRSON, BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE BRIGANCE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE & DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE DOERING, INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE INC., DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE DATED DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE DECEMBER 9, 2021.  THE  9, 2021.  THE 9, 2021.  THE  2021.  THE 2021.  THE  THE THE MINIMUM FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  FLOOR ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT FLOOR ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  SHOWN ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT SHOWN ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT ON THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT THE PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT PLAT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT WERE DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT DETERMINED BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT BY ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  ADDING ONE (1) FOOT ADDING ONE (1) FOOT  ONE (1) FOOT ONE (1) FOOT  (1) FOOT (1) FOOT  FOOT FOOT TO THE PROPOSED 100-YR WATER SURFACE ELEVATION PER ATLAS 14. 4. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON  SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON  IS SUBJECT TO STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON IS SUBJECT TO STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON  SUBJECT TO STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON SUBJECT TO STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON  TO STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON TO STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON  STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON STORM-WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON  MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON MANAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON  CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON  AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON  REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON  BY WILLIAMSON BY WILLIAMSON  WILLIAMSON WILLIAMSON COUNTY SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, SECTION B11.1, ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH  SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, SECTION B11.1, ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, SECTION B11.1, ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH  REGULATIONS, SECTION B11.1, ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH REGULATIONS, SECTION B11.1, ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH  SECTION B11.1, ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH SECTION B11.1, ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH  B11.1, ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH B11.1, ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH  ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH  NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH  DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH  THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH  WOULD EVOKE SUCH WOULD EVOKE SUCH  EVOKE SUCH EVOKE SUCH  SUCH SUCH CONTROLS BEYOND EXISTING CONDITIONS. 5. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  FOR DRAINAGE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT FOR DRAINAGE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  DRAINAGE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT DRAINAGE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT  OTHER THAN THAT OTHER THAN THAT  THAN THAT THAN THAT  THAT THAT ACCEPTED IN CONNECTION WITH DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE  IN CONNECTION WITH DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE IN CONNECTION WITH DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE  CONNECTION WITH DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE CONNECTION WITH DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE  WITH DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE WITH DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE  DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE  OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE  PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE  THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE THE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE  ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE ROAD SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE  SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE SYSTEM.  MAINTENANCE   MAINTENANCE  MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY FOR STORM WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS WILL REMAIN WITH THE OWNER. 6. ANY PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT THAT OBSTRUCTS OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT ANY PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT THAT OBSTRUCTS OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT THAT OBSTRUCTS OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT THAT OBSTRUCTS OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  DEVELOPMENT THAT OBSTRUCTS OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT DEVELOPMENT THAT OBSTRUCTS OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  THAT OBSTRUCTS OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT THAT OBSTRUCTS OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  OBSTRUCTS OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT OBSTRUCTS OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT OR DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT DIVERTS FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT FLOW WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT A DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT MAY NOT  EASEMENT MAY NOT EASEMENT MAY NOT  MAY NOT MAY NOT  NOT NOT BE PERMITTED AND IS AT THE DISCRETION OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR. WATER AND WASTEWATER: 1. NO LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC NO LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC CONNECTION IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC IS MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC MADE TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC TO AN APPROVED PUBLIC  AN APPROVED PUBLIC AN APPROVED PUBLIC  APPROVED PUBLIC APPROVED PUBLIC  PUBLIC PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM. 2. NO LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION NO LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION WATER SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION SATISFACTORY FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION  HUMAN CONSUMPTION HUMAN CONSUMPTION  CONSUMPTION CONSUMPTION IS AVAILABLE FROM A SOURCE IN ADEQUATE AND SUFFICIENT SUPPLY. 3. WATER SERVICE IS PROVIDED BY: WILLIAMSON COUNTY MUD 19F/ GEORGETOWN UTILITY SYSTEMS WATER SERVICE IS PROVIDED BY: WILLIAMSON COUNTY MUD 19F/ GEORGETOWN UTILITY SYSTEMS 4. WASTEWATER SERVICE IS PROVIDED BY: WILLIAMSON COUNTY MUD 19F/CITY OF LIBERTY HILL WASTEWATER SERVICE IS PROVIDED BY: WILLIAMSON COUNTY MUD 19F/CITY OF LIBERTY HILL 5. ELECTRIC SERVICE IS PROVIDED BY: PEC ELECTRIC SERVICE IS PROVIDED BY: PEC ROADWAY AND RIGHT-OF-WAY: 1. IN APPROVING THIS PLAT BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS IN APPROVING THIS PLAT BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  APPROVING THIS PLAT BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS APPROVING THIS PLAT BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  THIS PLAT BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS THIS PLAT BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  PLAT BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS PLAT BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS  TEXAS, IT IS TEXAS, IT IS  IT IS IT IS  IS IS UNDERSTOOD THAT THE BUILDING OF ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  THAT THE BUILDING OF ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES THAT THE BUILDING OF ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  THE BUILDING OF ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES THE BUILDING OF ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  BUILDING OF ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES BUILDING OF ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  OF ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES OF ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES ALL ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES  AND ANY BRIDGES AND ANY BRIDGES  ANY BRIDGES ANY BRIDGES  BRIDGES BRIDGES OR CULVERTS NECESSARY TO BE CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  CULVERTS NECESSARY TO BE CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF CULVERTS NECESSARY TO BE CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  NECESSARY TO BE CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF NECESSARY TO BE CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  TO BE CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF TO BE CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  BE CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF BE CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER(S) OF  OF THE OWNER(S) OF OF THE OWNER(S) OF  THE OWNER(S) OF THE OWNER(S) OF  OWNER(S) OF OWNER(S) OF  OF OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  COVERED BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS COVERED BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  AND SPECIFICATIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS  SPECIFICATIONS SPECIFICATIONS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT  BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT  THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT  COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT  COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT  OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT  WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT  COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT  TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT  SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT SAID COMMISSIONERS COURT  COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMISSIONERS COURT  COURT COURT ASSUMES NO OBLIGATION TO BUILD ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  NO OBLIGATION TO BUILD ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS NO OBLIGATION TO BUILD ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  OBLIGATION TO BUILD ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS OBLIGATION TO BUILD ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  TO BUILD ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS TO BUILD ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  BUILD ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS BUILD ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS ANY OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS OF THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS THE ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS ROADS, OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS  SHOWN ON THIS SHOWN ON THIS  ON THIS ON THIS  THIS THIS PLAT, OR OF CONSTRUCTING ANY OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  OR OF CONSTRUCTING ANY OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION OR OF CONSTRUCTING ANY OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  OF CONSTRUCTING ANY OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION OF CONSTRUCTING ANY OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  CONSTRUCTING ANY OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION CONSTRUCTING ANY OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  ANY OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION ANY OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION OF THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION  IN CONNECTION IN CONNECTION  CONNECTION CONNECTION THEREWITH. THE COUNTY WILL ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE  THE COUNTY WILL ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE THE COUNTY WILL ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE  COUNTY WILL ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE COUNTY WILL ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE  WILL ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE WILL ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE  ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE  NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE  RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE  FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE  DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE  WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE WAYS OR EASEMENTS IN THE  OR EASEMENTS IN THE OR EASEMENTS IN THE  EASEMENTS IN THE EASEMENTS IN THE  IN THE IN THE  THE THE SUBDIVISION, OTHER THAN THOSE DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD SYSTEM.  2. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION. 3. DRIVEWAY ACCESS TO LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION FROM SIDE STREETS IS PROHIBITED. DRIVEWAY ACCESS TO LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION FROM SIDE STREETS IS PROHIBITED. 4. IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING, IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING,  WITHIN THE COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING, WITHIN THE COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING,  THE COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING, THE COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING,  COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING, COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING,  ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING, ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING,  RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING, RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING,  INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING,  BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING,  NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING, NOT LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING,  LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING, LIMITED TO LANDSCAPING,  TO LANDSCAPING, TO LANDSCAPING,  LANDSCAPING, LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, LIGHTING, CUSTOM SIGNS, ARE PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE  LIGHTING, CUSTOM SIGNS, ARE PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE LIGHTING, CUSTOM SIGNS, ARE PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE  CUSTOM SIGNS, ARE PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE CUSTOM SIGNS, ARE PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE  SIGNS, ARE PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE SIGNS, ARE PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE  ARE PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE ARE PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE  PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE PROHIBITED WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE  WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE  FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE FIRST OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE  OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE OBTAINING AN EXECUTED LICENSE  AN EXECUTED LICENSE AN EXECUTED LICENSE  EXECUTED LICENSE EXECUTED LICENSE  LICENSE LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH WILLIAMSON COUNTY. 5. NO CONSTRUCTION, PLANTING OR GRADING SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS NO CONSTRUCTION, PLANTING OR GRADING SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  CONSTRUCTION, PLANTING OR GRADING SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS CONSTRUCTION, PLANTING OR GRADING SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  PLANTING OR GRADING SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS PLANTING OR GRADING SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  OR GRADING SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS OR GRADING SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  GRADING SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS GRADING SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS BE PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS PERMITTED TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS TO INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS INTERFERE WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS WITH SIGHT EASEMENTS  SIGHT EASEMENTS SIGHT EASEMENTS  EASEMENTS EASEMENTS BETWEEN THE HEIGHTS OF THREE AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  THE HEIGHTS OF THREE AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT THE HEIGHTS OF THREE AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  HEIGHTS OF THREE AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT HEIGHTS OF THREE AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  OF THREE AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT OF THREE AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  THREE AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT THREE AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT AND EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT EIGHT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT FEET AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT AS MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT MEASURED FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT FROM THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT THE CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT CROWNS OF THE ADJACENT  OF THE ADJACENT OF THE ADJACENT  THE ADJACENT THE ADJACENT  ADJACENT ADJACENT STREETS. 6. THE OWNER SHALL CREATE A MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE OWNER SHALL CREATE A MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  OWNER SHALL CREATE A MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OWNER SHALL CREATE A MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  SHALL CREATE A MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SHALL CREATE A MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  CREATE A MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CREATE A MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  A MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR A MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MANDATORY HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ASSOCIATION THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  BE RESPONSIBLE FOR BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  RESPONSIBLE FOR RESPONSIBLE FOR  FOR FOR THE MAINTENANCE AND LIABILITY OF ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION  MAINTENANCE AND LIABILITY OF ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION MAINTENANCE AND LIABILITY OF ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION  AND LIABILITY OF ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION AND LIABILITY OF ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION  LIABILITY OF ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION LIABILITY OF ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION  OF ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION OF ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION  ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION ANY LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION  LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION LANDSCAPING, IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION  IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION IRRIGATION, SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION  SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION SIDEWALKS, ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION  ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION ILLUMINATION, SUBDIVISION  SUBDIVISION SUBDIVISION IDENTIFICATION SIGNS, WATER QUALITY FEATURES, ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY  SIGNS, WATER QUALITY FEATURES, ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY SIGNS, WATER QUALITY FEATURES, ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY  WATER QUALITY FEATURES, ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY WATER QUALITY FEATURES, ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY  QUALITY FEATURES, ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY QUALITY FEATURES, ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY  FEATURES, ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY FEATURES, ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY  ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY ETC.  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY   PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY  PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY PLACED WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY  WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY WITHIN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY  THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY  WILLIAMSON COUNTY WILLIAMSON COUNTY  COUNTY COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY.  THIS ASSOCIATION SHALL HAVE ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING   THIS ASSOCIATION SHALL HAVE ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING  THIS ASSOCIATION SHALL HAVE ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING THIS ASSOCIATION SHALL HAVE ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING  ASSOCIATION SHALL HAVE ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING ASSOCIATION SHALL HAVE ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING  SHALL HAVE ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING SHALL HAVE ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING  HAVE ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING HAVE ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING  ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING  AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING AUTHORITY TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING  TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING TO ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING  ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING ENSURE THE PROPER FUNDING  THE PROPER FUNDING THE PROPER FUNDING  PROPER FUNDING PROPER FUNDING  FUNDING FUNDING FOR MAINTENANCE.   7. A PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 10 FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET A PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 10 FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 10 FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 10 FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  UTILITY EASEMENT 10 FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET UTILITY EASEMENT 10 FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  EASEMENT 10 FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET EASEMENT 10 FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  10 FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET 10 FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET FEET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET WIDE IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET DEDICATED ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  ADJACENT TO ALL STREET ADJACENT TO ALL STREET  TO ALL STREET TO ALL STREET  ALL STREET ALL STREET  STREET STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
METES AND BOUNDS BEING ALL OF THAT CERTAIN 29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  ALL OF THAT CERTAIN 29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE ALL OF THAT CERTAIN 29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  OF THAT CERTAIN 29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE OF THAT CERTAIN 29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  THAT CERTAIN 29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE THAT CERTAIN 29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  CERTAIN 29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE CERTAIN 29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE 29.053 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE OR PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE OF LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE LAND OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE OUT OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE OF THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE ABSTRACT NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE NUMBER 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE 5, SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE A PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE PORTION OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE OF A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  A CALLED 118.212 ACRE A CALLED 118.212 ACRE  CALLED 118.212 ACRE CALLED 118.212 ACRE  118.212 ACRE 118.212 ACRE  ACRE ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  OF LAND CONVEYED TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OF LAND CONVEYED TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  LAND CONVEYED TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LAND CONVEYED TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  CONVEYED TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND KC, LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LLC, BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND NUMBER 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND 2023033961, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND (O.P.R.W.C.TX.), SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SAID 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND 29.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND  ACRE TRACT OF LAND ACRE TRACT OF LAND  TRACT OF LAND TRACT OF LAND  OF LAND OF LAND  LAND LAND BEING MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING, AT A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  AT A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, AT A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, ROD FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, FOUND STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  “CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, CBD SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SETSTONE” ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SOUTH LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, LINE OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, 118.212 ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, ACRE TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, TRACT, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, AND BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, NORTH LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, LINE OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, OF LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, LOT 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, 59, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, BLOCK A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, A, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  RITA RANCH PHASE 5, RITA RANCH PHASE 5,  RANCH PHASE 5, RANCH PHASE 5,  PHASE 5, PHASE 5,  5, 5, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2022083761, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR CORNER AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND, THENCE, N83°39'12”W, WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  N83°39'12”W, WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF N83°39'12”W, WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF W, WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF PHASE 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF 5, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF 2, A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF A DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF DISTANCE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF 740.46 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF "CBD SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF SETSTONE" ON THE NORTH LINE OF  ON THE NORTH LINE OF ON THE NORTH LINE OF  THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTH LINE OF  NORTH LINE OF NORTH LINE OF  LINE OF LINE OF  OF OF LOT 74, BLOCK A, SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  74, BLOCK A, SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, 74, BLOCK A, SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  BLOCK A, SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, BLOCK A, SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  A, SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, A, SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, RITA RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, RANCH PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, PHASE 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, 5, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, SECTION 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, 2, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, ON THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, LOT 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, 74, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, BLOCK F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, F, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, 3, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, SECTION 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, 2, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800, DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021149800,  NUMBER 2021149800, NUMBER 2021149800,  2021149800, 2021149800, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, FOR THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND, THENCE, OVER AND ACROSS SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  OVER AND ACROSS SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND OVER AND ACROSS SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  AND ACROSS SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND AND ACROSS SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  ACROSS SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND ACROSS SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND TRACT OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND OF LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND LAND, AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND FOLLOWING THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND SOUTHEAST LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND LINE OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND PHASE 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND 3, SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND SECTION 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND 2 THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND  FOUR (4) COURSES AND FOUR (4) COURSES AND  (4) COURSES AND (4) COURSES AND  COURSES AND COURSES AND  AND AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 THROUGH 4, 1) N39°00'22”E, A DISTANCE OF 389.53 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE” FOR CORNER, N39°00'22”E, A DISTANCE OF 389.53 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE” FOR CORNER, E, A DISTANCE OF 389.53 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE” FOR CORNER,  FOR CORNER, 2) N88°00'22”E, A DISTANCE OF 408.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, N88°00'22”E, A DISTANCE OF 408.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, E, A DISTANCE OF 408.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 3) N25°00'22”E, A DISTANCE OF 355.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, N25°00'22”E, A DISTANCE OF 355.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, E, A DISTANCE OF 355.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 4) N03°59'38”W, A DISTANCE OF 588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, N03°59'38”W, A DISTANCE OF 588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, W, A DISTANCE OF 588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  A DISTANCE OF 588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A DISTANCE OF 588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  DISTANCE OF 588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, DISTANCE OF 588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  OF 588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, OF 588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, 588.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, SETSTONE" AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, CORNER OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, OF LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, LOT 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, 74, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, BLOCK F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, F, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2, RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  PHASE 3, SECTION 2, PHASE 3, SECTION 2,  3, SECTION 2, 3, SECTION 2,  SECTION 2, SECTION 2,  2, 2, AND ON THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 77, BLOCK F OF SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 3, SECTION 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2020163813, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, THENCE, WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 77, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 THROUGH 5, 1) S83°59'38”E, A DISTANCE OF 387.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, S83°59'38”E, A DISTANCE OF 387.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, E, A DISTANCE OF 387.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 2) N30°00'22"E, A DISTANCE OF 265.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, N30°00'22"E, A DISTANCE OF 265.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 3) N04°59'38"W, A DISTANCE OF 360.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND, N04°59'38"W, A DISTANCE OF 360.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND, 4) N87°00'22"E, A DISTANCE OF 225.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, AND N87°00'22"E, A DISTANCE OF 225.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, AND 5) S69°59'38"E, A DISTANCE OF 276.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE S69°59'38"E, A DISTANCE OF 276.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  A DISTANCE OF 276.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE A DISTANCE OF 276.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  DISTANCE OF 276.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE DISTANCE OF 276.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  OF 276.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE OF 276.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  276.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE 276.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE CORNER OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE OF SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE SAID LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE LOT 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE 77, BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE ON THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE THE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE WEST LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE LINE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE OF A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  A CALLED 59.909 ACRE A CALLED 59.909 ACRE  CALLED 59.909 ACRE CALLED 59.909 ACRE  59.909 ACRE 59.909 ACRE  ACRE ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BY DEED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023033962, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, THENCE, WITH THE WEST LINE OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 AND 2,  1) N69°00'19”E, A DISTANCE OF 133.18 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND, AND  N69°00'19”E, A DISTANCE OF 133.18 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND, AND  E, A DISTANCE OF 133.18 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND, AND  2) S09°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA S09°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA E, A DISTANCE OF 356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  A DISTANCE OF 356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA A DISTANCE OF 356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  DISTANCE OF 356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA DISTANCE OF 356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  OF 356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA OF 356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA 356.90 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA "CBD SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA SETSTONE" AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA CORNER OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA OF SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA SAID 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA 59.909 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA ACRE TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA TRACT OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA OF LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA LAND, AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA ON THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA THE NORTH LINE OF SANTA  NORTH LINE OF SANTA NORTH LINE OF SANTA  LINE OF SANTA LINE OF SANTA  OF SANTA OF SANTA  SANTA SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  PHASE 6, SECTION 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' PHASE 6, SECTION 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  6, SECTION 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' 6, SECTION 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  SECTION 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' SECTION 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' 1, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' DOCUMENT NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' NUMBER 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' 2023104032, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' TEXAS, BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  LINE OF KISER ROAD (50' LINE OF KISER ROAD (50'  OF KISER ROAD (50' OF KISER ROAD (50'  KISER ROAD (50' KISER ROAD (50'  ROAD (50' ROAD (50'  (50' (50' R.O.W.), FOR CORNER,  THENCE, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 THROUGH 4,  1) S80°12'32”W, A DISTANCE OF 13.57 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE NORTH TERMINUS OF SAID KISER ROAD, S80°12'32”W, A DISTANCE OF 13.57 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE NORTH TERMINUS OF SAID KISER ROAD, W, A DISTANCE OF 13.57 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE NORTH TERMINUS OF SAID KISER ROAD, 2) S09°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE SOUTH TERMINUS OF SAID KISER ROAD,  S09°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE SOUTH TERMINUS OF SAID KISER ROAD,  E, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE SOUTH TERMINUS OF SAID KISER ROAD,  3) N80°12'32”E, A DISTANCE OF 23.57 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, AND N80°12'32”E, A DISTANCE OF 23.57 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, AND E, A DISTANCE OF 23.57 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, AND 4) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CHORD THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THAT BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND BEARS S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND S54°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND E, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  INCH IRON ROD FOUND INCH IRON ROD FOUND  IRON ROD FOUND IRON ROD FOUND  ROD FOUND ROD FOUND  FOUND FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD (90' R.O.W.), SAME BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1,  THENCE, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  THE WEST LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 THE WEST LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  WEST LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 WEST LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 LINE OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 OF SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 SAID SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 RITA RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 RANCH PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 PHASE 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 6, SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 SECTION 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 1, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 SANTA RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 RITA BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 BOULEVARD, THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 (5) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1  NUMBERED 1 NUMBERED 1  1 1 THROUGH 5,  1) S09°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 506.37 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT,  S09°47'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 506.37 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT,  E, A DISTANCE OF 506.37 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT,  2) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET HAVING A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET RADIUS OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 1200.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET AN ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET ARC LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET LENGTH OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 303.63 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CHORD THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET THAT BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET BEARS S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET S17°02'23”E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET E, A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET DISTANCE OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 302.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  INCH IRON ROD SET INCH IRON ROD SET  IRON ROD SET IRON ROD SET  ROD SET ROD SET  SET SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 3) S24°17'19”E, A DISTANCE OF 101.31 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  S24°17'19”E, A DISTANCE OF 101.31 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  E, A DISTANCE OF 101.31 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  4) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET HAVING A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET RADIUS OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 1900.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET AN ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET ARC LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET LENGTH OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 172.58 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CHORD THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET THAT BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET BEARS S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET S21°41'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 172.52 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  INCH IRON ROD SET INCH IRON ROD SET  IRON ROD SET IRON ROD SET  ROD SET ROD SET  SET SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, AND 5) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ARC LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND LENGTH OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 26.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CHORD THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THAT BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND BEARS S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND S30°59'20”W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND W, A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND DISTANCE OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 23.01 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  INCH IRON ROD FOUND INCH IRON ROD FOUND  IRON ROD FOUND IRON ROD FOUND  ROD FOUND ROD FOUND  FOUND FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST SANTA RITA BOULEVARD AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JATES FIELD BEND (50' R.O.W.),  THENCE, OVER AND ACROSS SAID 118.212 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, THE FOLLOWING TWENTY-TWO (22) COURSES AND DISTANCES, NUMBERED 1 THROUGH 22,  1) S81°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 154.10 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  S81°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 154.10 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  W, A DISTANCE OF 154.10 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  2) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CHORD THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THAT BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND BEARS N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND N53°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  INCH IRON ROD FOUND INCH IRON ROD FOUND  IRON ROD FOUND IRON ROD FOUND  ROD FOUND ROD FOUND  FOUND FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 3) N08°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 11.35 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT,  N08°56'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 11.35 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT,  W, A DISTANCE OF 11.35 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT,  4) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND HAVING A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RADIUS OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 500.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ARC LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND LENGTH OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 21.23 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CHORD THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THAT BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND BEARS N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND N10°09'16”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND W, A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND DISTANCE OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 21.23 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  INCH IRON ROD FOUND INCH IRON ROD FOUND  IRON ROD FOUND IRON ROD FOUND  ROD FOUND ROD FOUND  FOUND FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER,  5) S78°37'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  S78°37'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  W, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  6) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND HAVING A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RADIUS OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 450.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AN ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ARC LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND LENGTH OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 19.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CHORD THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THAT BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND BEARS S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND S10°09'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND E, A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND DISTANCE OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 19.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  INCH IRON ROD FOUND INCH IRON ROD FOUND  IRON ROD FOUND IRON ROD FOUND  ROD FOUND ROD FOUND  FOUND FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 7) S08°56'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 11.35 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  S08°56'16”E, A DISTANCE OF 11.35 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  E, A DISTANCE OF 11.35 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  8) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 15.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ARC LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND LENGTH OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 23.56 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CHORD THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THAT BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND BEARS S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND S36°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND W, A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND DISTANCE OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 21.21 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  INCH IRON ROD FOUND INCH IRON ROD FOUND  IRON ROD FOUND IRON ROD FOUND  ROD FOUND ROD FOUND  FOUND FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 9) S81°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 120.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT, AND S81°03'44”W, A DISTANCE OF 120.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT, AND W, A DISTANCE OF 120.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT, AND 10) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND HAVING A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND RADIUS OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 525.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AN ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND ARC LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND LENGTH OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 4.11 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CHORD THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND THAT BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND BEARS S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND S80°50'17”W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND W, A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND DISTANCE OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND OF 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 4.11 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND 1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND  INCH IRON ROD FOUND INCH IRON ROD FOUND  IRON ROD FOUND IRON ROD FOUND  ROD FOUND ROD FOUND  FOUND FOUND STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 11) N20°09'40”W, A DISTANCE OF 320.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” FOR CORNER,  N20°09'40”W, A DISTANCE OF 320.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” FOR CORNER,  W, A DISTANCE OF 320.82 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED “CBD SETSTONE” FOR CORNER,  CBD SETSTONE” FOR CORNER,   FOR CORNER,  12) N00°32'15”E, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  N00°32'15”E, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  E, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT,  13) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 235.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET AN ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET ARC LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET LENGTH OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 33.22 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET AND A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CHORD THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET THAT BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET BEARS N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET N85°24'47”W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET W, A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET DISTANCE OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 33.19 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  INCH IRON ROD SET INCH IRON ROD SET  IRON ROD SET IRON ROD SET  ROD SET ROD SET  SET SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 14) N09°47'28”W, A DISTANCE OF 278.13 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, N09°47'28”W, A DISTANCE OF 278.13 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, W, A DISTANCE OF 278.13 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 15) N72°36'48”W, A DISTANCE OF 278.74 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, N72°36'48”W, A DISTANCE OF 278.74 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, W, A DISTANCE OF 278.74 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 16) N77°31'39”W, A DISTANCE OF 316.14 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, N77°31'39”W, A DISTANCE OF 316.14 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, W, A DISTANCE OF 316.14 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 17) S10°56'49”W, A DISTANCE OF 150.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT,  S10°56'49”W, A DISTANCE OF 150.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT,  W, A DISTANCE OF 150.00 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, BEING AT THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT,  18) ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 50.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET AN ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET ARC LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET LENGTH OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 24.72 FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET, AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CHORD THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET THAT BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET BEARS S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET S51°43'01”W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET W, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET DISTANCE OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET OF 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 24.47 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET  INCH IRON ROD SET INCH IRON ROD SET  IRON ROD SET IRON ROD SET  ROD SET ROD SET  SET SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 19) N52°26'40”W, A DISTANCE OF 170.27 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, N52°26'40”W, A DISTANCE OF 170.27 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, W, A DISTANCE OF 170.27 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 20) S66°04'40”W, A DISTANCE OF 28.65 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, S66°04'40”W, A DISTANCE OF 28.65 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, W, A DISTANCE OF 28.65 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, 21) S04°36'00”W, A DISTANCE OF 320.65 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, AND S04°36'00”W, A DISTANCE OF 320.65 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, AND W, A DISTANCE OF 320.65 FEET TO A CAPPED 1/2 INCH IRON ROD SET STAMPED "CBD SETSTONE" FOR CORNER, AND 22) S10°56'49”W, A DISTANCE OF 693.84 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, AND CONTAINING 29.053 ACRES OF LAND.S10°56'49”W, A DISTANCE OF 693.84 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, AND CONTAINING 29.053 ACRES OF LAND.W, A DISTANCE OF 693.84 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, AND CONTAINING 29.053 ACRES OF LAND.





   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 21.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Final plat for the BC 207 subdivision – Pct 2
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Adam Boatright, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the BC 207 subdivision – Precinct 2.

Background
This subdivision consists of 1 lot and no new roads.  It meets the requirements of a minor plat as defined in the
subdivision regulations.

Timeline
2024-02-26 – initial submittal of the final plat
2024-03-27 – 1st review complete with comments
2024-04-22 – 2nd submittal of final plat
2024-05-06 – 2nd review complete with comments
2024-05-06 – 3rd submittal of final plat
2024-05-21 – 3rd review complete with comments clear
2024-06-04 – receipt of final plat with signatures
2024-06-06 – final plat placed on the June 11, 2024 Commissioners Court agenda for consideration

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Final (minor) Plat - BC 207 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 12:00 PM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 06/06/2024 11:54 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 









   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 22.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Final plat – The Cove Phase 2
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Adam Boatright, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for The Cove Phase 2 subdivision –
Precinct 4.

Background
This is the 2nd phase of The Cove development.  It consists of 4 single family lots and no new roads.

Timeline
2023-12-01 – initial submittal of the final plat
2023-12-29 – 1st review complete with comments
2024-05-17 – 2nd submittal of final plat
2024-05-24 – 2nd review complete with comments 
2024-05-31 – 3rd submittal of final plat with signatures
2024-06-05 – 3rd review complete with comments clear
2024-06-06 – final plat placed on the June 11, 2024, Commissioners Court agenda for consideration

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Final Plat - The Cove Ph 2 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 11:59 AM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 06/06/2024 11:53 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 









   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 23.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Final plat for the Beyersville Expanse subdivision – Pct 4
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Adam Boatright, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the final plat for the Beyersville Expanse subdivision
– Precinct 4.

Background
This subdivision consists of 4 lots and no new roads. It meets the requirements of a minor plat as defined in the
subdivision regulations.

Timeline
2024-02-01 – initial submittal of the final plat
2024-02-29 – 1st review complete with comments
2024-03-11 – 2nd submittal of final plat
2024-03-26 – 2nd review complete with comments
2024-05-31 – 3rd submittal of final plat with signatures
2024-06-05 – 3rd review complete with comments clear
2024-06-06 – final plat placed on the June 11, 2024 Commissioners Court agenda for approval

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Final (minor) Plat - Beyersville Expanse 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 12:00 PM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 06/06/2024 11:57 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 









   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 24.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Final plat for the Firefly Pointe Phase 1 subdivision – Pct 4
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Adam Boatright, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on ratifying and approving the final plat for the Firefly Pointe Phase
1 subdivision – Precinct 4.

Background
This is the first section of the Firefly Pointe development.  It consists of 148 residential lots, 1 open
space/drainage easement lot, 2 open space lots, 1 amenity center lot and 6,388 linear feet of new public roads.
 Roadway and drainage construction is not yet complete, but a performance bond in the amount of
$4,411,900.85 has been posted with the County to cover the cost of the remaining construction.  Pursuant to the
Commissioners Court action taken September 10, 2019, the County Engineer has approved this final plat in order
to meet the review timelines set forth in House Bill 3167.

Timeline
2023-06-22 – initial submittal of the final plat
2023-07-21 – 1st review complete with comments
2023-08-23 – 2nd submittal of final plat
2023-09-06 – 2nd review complete with comments
2023-09-12 – 3rd submittal of final plat 
2023-09-27 – 3rd review complete with comments 
2024-01-12 – 4th submittal of final plat
2024-01-27 – 4th review complete with comments clear
2024-05-16 – receipt of final plat with signatures
2024-05-31 – County Engineer approval letter sent
2024-06-06 – final plat placed on the June 11, 2024 Commissioners Court agenda for ratification

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Final Plat - Firefly Pointe Ph 1 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 12:00 PM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 06/06/2024 11:56 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 













   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 25.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Juneteenth Proclamation 2024
Submitted For: Terry Cook  Submitted By: Garry Brown, Commissioner Pct. #1
Department: Commissioner Pct. #1
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a proclamation celebrating that most Texan of holidays,
Juneteenth.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Juneteenth Proclamation 2024 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 05/23/2024 03:47 PM
Form Started By: Garry Brown Started On: 05/16/2024 04:24 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/23/2024 



 PROCLAMATION 
 

WHEREAS, an excerpt from the Emancipation Proclamation by President Abraham 
Lincoln on January 1, 1863 states: 

And by virtue of the power, and for the purpose aforesaid, I do order and declare that all 
persons held as slaves within said designated States, and parts of States, are, and 
henceforward shall be free; and that the Executive government of the United States, 
including the military and naval authorities thereof, will recognize and maintain the 
freedom of said persons. 

And I hereby enjoin upon the people so declared to be free to abstain from all violence, unless 
in necessary self-defence; and I recommend to them that, in all cases when allowed, they 
labor faithfully for reasonable wages. 

And I further declare and make known, that such persons of suitable condition, will be 
received into the armed service of the United States to garrison forts, positions, stations, and 
other places, and to man vessels of all sorts in said service. 

And upon this act, sincerely believed to be an act of justice, warranted by the Constitution, 
upon military necessity, I invoke the considerate judgment of mankind, and the gracious 
favor of Almighty God. 

WHEREAS, an excerpt from the statement from Union Major General Gordon Granger 
declared in Galveston, Texas an end to slavery on June 19, 1865 and which serves as the 
origin for Juneteenth: 

The people of Texas are informed that, in accordance with a proclamation from the Executive 
of the United States, all slaves are free. This involves an absolute equality of personal rights 
and rights of property between former masters and slaves, and the connection heretofore 
existing between them becomes that between employer and hired labor.  

WHEREAS, the 13th Amendment to the U.S. Constitution was ratified on December 6, 
1865 and provides that: 

Neither slavery nor involuntary servitude, except as a punishment for crime whereof the 
party shall have been duly convicted, shall exist within the United States, or any place 
subject to their jurisdiction. 

WHEREAS, this simple, but profound, statement by General Granger became a 
celebration, first in Galveston, then across the state of Texas, then throughout the South, 
picking up local traditions and music along the way, like this excerpt from Lift Every Voice 
and Sing, first premiering in 1900: 



Lift every voice and sing, 
’Til earth and heaven ring, 
Ring with the harmonies of Liberty; 
Let our rejoicing rise 
High as the listening skies, 
Let it resound loud as the rolling sea. 
Sing a song full of the faith that the dark past has taught us, 
Sing a song full of the hope that the present has brought us; 
Facing the rising sun of our new day begun, 
Let us march on ’til victory is won. 

WHEREAS, Juneteenth spread to the rest of America through the Great Migrations north 
and west between 1910 and 1970; and 

WHEREAS, Texas became the 1st state to designate Juneteenth as a state holiday in 1980; 
and 

WHEREAS, 45 states recognized Juneteenth by 2016, and in 2021, it became an official 
federal holiday, and in 2022, thanks to the proposal brought forward by Williamson County 
Commissioner Cynthia Long, the Commissioners Court approved adding Juneteenth to its 
list of official holidays; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Williamson County Commissioners Court does hereby proclaim 

June 19, 2024 
As 

Juneteenth, AKA Emancipation Day, in Williamson County 
And 

Ask our residents to celebrate this most Texan of holidays by continuing along the long 
path of the moral universe as it arcs towards justice. 

 

Passed by Commissioners Court and Signed on this date:  _________________ 
 

___________________________________ 

Bill Gravell, County Judge 

On behalf of the Williamson County Commissioners Court Members 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 26.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
HUD ESG and HOME Funds
Submitted By: Sally Bardwell, HUD Grants
Department: HUD Grants
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action on Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) funding and HOME Investment
Partnerships Program (HOME) funding from the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Background
This request is to determine if the Commissioners Court will accept or decline ESG and HOME funds from HUD.
 
HUD headquarters has not yet provided the official award letter to Williamson County regarding these
funds.  However, once received, the county will have 30 days to respond.  The county is currently developing the
CDBG Five-Year Consolidated Plan.  This plan should include information regarding these funds IF the county
chooses to accept them.  Understanding how the court would like to proceed with ESG and HOME funds will
allow for a more efficient process and submission of the Consolidated Plan to HUD by the required deadline.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
ESG and HOME Funds 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/05/2024 03:43 PM
Form Started By: Sally Bardwell Started On: 06/05/2024 01:43 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/05/2024 



Emergency Solutions Grants Program (ESG) 
Estimated Amount:  $162,125 
7.5% max for Administration 

 
Eligible Activities: 
Engage homeless individuals and families living on the street; 
Improve the number and quality of emergency shelters for homeless individuals and families; 
Help operate these shelters; 
Provide essential services to shelter residents; 
Rapidly re-house homeless individuals and families; and 
Prevent families and individuals from becoming homeless. 
ESG funds may be used for five program components: street outreach, emergency shelter, homelessness 
prevention, rapid re-housing assistance, and HMIS; as well as administrative activities (up to 7.5% of a 
recipient’s allocation can be used for administrative activities). 
 
Matching Fund Requirement: 
Metropolitan city and urban county recipients must match grant funds with an equal amount of contributions, 
which may include cash, donated buildings or materials, and volunteer services.  Match requirement can be 
fulfilled by subrecipient. 
 
  



 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) 

Estimated Amount: $594,780 
10% max for Administration 

 
To get started: 
If the jurisdiction receives a final HOME allocation of $500,000 or more, but less than $750,000, it may qualify 
as a HOME participating jurisdiction only if the State in which the jurisdiction is located authorizes HUD to 
transfer to the jurisdiction a portion of the State's HOME allocation or the State, the jurisdiction, or both, make 
available their own resources to make up the difference between jurisdiction's formula allocation and 
$750,000 (24 CFR § 92.102(b)).  This participation threshold is a one-time requirement.  Estimated amount 
needed from State and/or County is $155,220. 
 
Eligible Activities: 
Participating jurisdictions may choose among a broad range of eligible activities, using HOME funds to provide 
home purchase or rehabilitation financing assistance to eligible homeowners and new homebuyers; build or 
rehabilitate housing for rent or ownership; or for "other reasonable and necessary expenses related to the 
development of non-luxury housing," including site acquisition or improvement, demolition of dilapidated 
housing to make way for HOME-assisted development, and payment of relocation expenses. PJs may use 
HOME funds to provide tenant-based rental assistance contracts of up to 2 years if such activity is consistent 
with their Consolidated Plan and justified under local market conditions. This assistance may be renewed. Up 
to 10 percent of the PJ's annual allocation may be used for program planning and administration. 

HOME-assisted rental housing must comply with certain rent limitations. HOME rent limits are published each 
year by HUD. The program also establishes maximum per unit subsidy limits and homeownership value 
limits. 

 
Matching Funds Requirement: 
All Participating Jurisdictions (PJs) must contribute or match no less than 25 cents for each dollar of HOME 
funds spent on affordable housing. As PJs draw funds from HOME Investment Trust Funds, they incur a match 
liability, which must be satisfied by the end of each federal fiscal year. The matching contribution adds to the 
resources available for HOME-assisted or HOME-eligible projects, and must come in the form of a permanent 
contribution to affordable housing. Generally, investments from state or local governments or the private 
sector qualify as matching contributions, whereas federal funds (such as CDBG) do not qualify. Eligible sources 
of a match for HOME funds include: cash; donated construction materials or volunteer labor; value of donated 
land or real property; value of foregone interest, taxes, fees, or charges levied by public or private entities; 
investments in on-or offsite improvements; proceeds from bond financing; the cost of supportive services 
provided to families living in HOME units; and the cost of homebuyer counseling to families purchasing HOME-
assisted units. 

https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/2315/home-per-unit-subsidy/
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/2312/home-maximum-purchase-price-after-rehab-value/
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/2312/home-maximum-purchase-price-after-rehab-value/


   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 27.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Expo Center Road Naming
Submitted For: Russell Fishbeck  Submitted By: Russell Fishbeck, Parks
Department: Parks
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on naming two roads at the Williamson County Exposition Center.

Background
Two interior roads at the Williamson County Exposition Center that provide direct access to Bill Pickett Trail are
not currently named.  The primary purpose for naming these roads is to enhance directional access for both
emergency personnel and the visiting public. Proposed names as reflected in the attached map are: (1) Wilco
Rodeo Drive, and (2) Howdy Lane.  The Williamson County Addressing Coordinator has confirmed that both of
these names are currently available for use.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Expo Center road names map 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/05/2024 03:42 PM
Form Started By: Russell Fishbeck Started On: 06/04/2024 02:17 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/05/2024 





   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 28.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Secretariat Eng - River Ranch Proj
Submitted By: Hal Hawes, General Counsel
Department: General Counsel
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the engagement of the firm of Secretariat Advisors, LLC to
provide expert litigation consulting services in relation to the matter of Williamson County, Texas vs. Ritter Botkin
Prime Construction, Inc and Great American Insurance Company of New York in the 368th Judicial District Court,
Williamson County, Texas; and exemption of those services from the competitive bid/proposal requirements of
the County Purchasing Act pursuant to the discretionary exemption for personal or professional services, as set
forth under Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code § 262.024(a)(4).

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Secretariat Engagement Letter - River Ranch Park Project 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:39 AM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 06/06/2024 08:14 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



 

 
 

 

Experience Above All 

secretariat-intl.com 
 

1175 Peachtree Street NE 
100 Colony Square 
Suite 400 
Atlanta, Georgia 30361 
 

 
  

 
June 5, 2024 
 

 
Via Email Only (kerrie@chapmanfirmtx.com) 
 
Mr. Hal Hawes, 
General Counsel 
Williamson County Commissioners Court 
710 Main Street, Suite 200 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
 
c/o Kerrie Taylor, Esq. and Jeff Chapman, Esq. 
The Chapman Firm PLLC 
3410 Far West Blvd, Suite 210 
Austin, Texas 78731 
 
Re:  Williamson County, Texas vs. Ritter Botkin Prime Construction, Inc and Great American 

Insurance Company of New York in the 368th Judicial District Court, Williamson County, 
Texas 
Letter of Engagement for Secretariat Advisors LLC. 
      

Dear Ms. Taylor: 
 
This letter shall confirm and establish the terms of the engagement of Secretariat Advisors LLC, 
(“Secretariat”) by Williamson County, Texas (“Client”) in the above referenced matter (the “Engagement”). 
The Chapman Firm, PLLC (“Counsel”) has been retained by Client to represent its interests in the above 
referenced matter. Secretariat will work at the direction of Counsel under this Engagement.  

 
Secretariat is retained to provide consulting services, which may include advice, review, analysis, opinions, 
expert witness reports, expert testimony, and any other tasks or work requested or directed by Counsel 
in connection with the Engagement (“Services”).   
 
I will maintain overall administrative responsibility for the Engagement, including billing and client 
relations.  I will be actively involved in the performance of the Services and will use such other 
professionals and staff for assistance as I deem necessary.  Secretariat’s work will be billed on a monthly 
basis at established hourly rates applied to productive hours engaged in providing the Services 
(“Professional Fees”), plus out-of-pocket expenses described in Paragraph 2 of the Additional Terms and 
Conditions of Engagement herein (“Expenses”).  The hourly rates for Secretariat’s professionals and staff 
are based upon the experience and skills of the personnel involved. 
 
The current hourly rates for Secretariat’s professionals and staff, which are subject to adjustment effective 
January 1, 2024, are as follows:  
 

  



Williamson County, Texas vs. Ritter Botkin Prime Construction, Inc and Great American Insurance 
Company of New York in the 368th Judicial District Court, Williamson County, Texas 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

Managing Director $525 
Director $450 
Associate Director $350 
Manager $325 
Senior Associate $300 
Associate $250 
Project Assistant $250 

  
Secretariat, Counsel, and Client understand and agree that Client will be solely responsible for payment 
of Secretariat’s Professional Fees and Expenses.  As such, Secretariat will submit invoices for its 
Professional Fees and Expenses incurred in connection with this Engagement to Counsel for review and 
forwarding to Client.  The name and address of Counsel to receive and forward Secretariat’s invoices to 
Client is provided on the signature page of this letter. 
 
Additional Terms and Conditions of Engagement 
 

1. Secretariat’s rates are subject to adjustment from time to time and at least annually effective 
January 1, 2025. Any adjustments to Secretariat’s rates will be reviewed with and agreed to by 
the Client in writing before becoming effective under the terms contained herein.     
 

2. Secretariat will invoice Client c/o Counsel, and Client will be responsible for paying Secretariat, 
all Professional Fees and Expenses incurred in connection with the Services under this 
Engagement.  These Expenses include, but are not limited to, reasonable and customary out-of-
pocket costs that are directly incurred by Secretariat in connection with the Services or 
Engagement, such as messenger, travel, meals, accommodations, and other expenses, and will 
be invoiced by Secretariat to Client at cost.    Further, if Secretariat or any of its employees are 
compelled to testify or provide evidence relating to its Services under this Engagement at or in 
connection with any judicial or administrative proceeding other than this Engagement, Client will 
compensate Secretariat at its regular hourly rates and reimburse Secretariat for reasonable direct 
and allocated expenses (including counsel fees) with respect thereto.  

 
3. All Professional Fees, Expenses, and other amounts payable to Secretariat will be due in 

accordance with Government Code Chapter 2251.  Secretariat’s Taxpayer Identification Number 
is 82-4596089.   

 
4. Without limiting any of Secretariat’s other rights and remedies, in the event any payment is not 

paid by Client within thirty (30) days of the submission of the invoice, then interest shall accrue in 
accordance with Government Code Chapter 2251.  Nothing herein shall be construed as 
extending the due date of payments to be made by Client under this Engagement.  In addition to 
any other remedies set forth above, and any other remedies available at law, upon ten (10) days’ 
written notice to Counsel and Client, Secretariat reserves the right to stop and withhold Services 
under this or any other Engagement with Client until payment is received on past-due invoices 
and amounts.  It is Secretariat’s normal practice to be paid in full for all work performed to date 
prior to issuance of a report, appearing for deposition, or testifying at a trial or hearing. In a judicial 
action to collect an invoice payment or interest due under Chapter 2251, the opposing party, 
which may be Client or Secretariat, shall pay the reasonable attorneys’ fees of the prevailing party.   



Williamson County, Texas vs. Ritter Botkin Prime Construction, Inc and Great American Insurance 
Company of New York in the 368th Judicial District Court, Williamson County, Texas 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 
5. Secretariat’s Professional Fees and Expenses are not contingent upon the final result of the 

matter, Services or Engagement, nor does Secretariat guarantee any result or resolution in 
connection with this Engagement.   

 
6. Other professionals of Secretariat may be engaged by parties with interests that are adverse to 

and may not be consistent with the interests of Client.  During the pendency of this Engagement, 
the Secretariat professionals providing Services under this Engagement will not provide services 
to a party that is adverse to Client in the matter that is the subject of this Engagement.    

 
7. To the extent allowed by law and in accordance with the Texas Government Code Chapter 552, 

the Texas Public Information Act, the parties hereto agree that any confidential information 
received from the other party or parties shall only be used for the purposes of providing or 
receiving Services under this Engagement. Except as provided below, Secretariat will not disclose 
any the Client’s confidential information to any third party without the Client’s prior written 
consent. Secretariat understands that confidential information, as well as its work product and 
files, may become subject to discovery; however, until such materials are sought by subpoena or 
other process, they will be maintained by Secretariat as confidential.  It is agreed that those 
materials and all other working papers and other documents prepared by Secretariat pursuant to 
this Engagement will be maintained as confidential materials and will not be disclosed to third 
parties without Secretariat’s consent, except as may be required by law, regulation, or judicial or 
administrative process.  Unless prohibited by law, Secretariat agrees to notify Client promptly of 
any of the following events: (a) a request by anyone to examine, inspect, or copy such documents 
or records; or (b) any attempt to serve, or the actual service of, any court order, subpoena, or 
summons upon Secretariat that requires the production of such documents or records.  
Confidential information shall not include information that is or becomes generally available to 
the public other than as a result of a breach of a non-disclosure obligation hereunder, is acquired 
from a third party who, to the recipient party’s knowledge, owes no obligation of confidence in 
respect of the information, or is or has been independently developed by the recipient. 

 
8. In consideration for Secretariat providing the Services and undertaking the Engagement described 

herein, Client agrees that Secretariat and its members, owners, officers, directors, counsel, 
attorneys, employees, agents, and representatives (collectively referred to as “Secretariat 
Parties”) shall not be liable to Client or its respective successors, assigns, or affiliates for damages 
in excess of the total amount of the Professional Fees actually paid to Secretariat under this 
Engagement. In no event shall Counsel, Client, Secretariat or the Secretariat Parties be liable for 
punitive or consequential damages of any kind.   

 
9. This Engagement and the Services provided under it shall be governed by and interpreted in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without giving effect to the choice of law 
provisions thereof.  State courts of the State of Texas sitting in Williamson County, Texas 
(collectively, the “Courts”) shall have exclusive jurisdiction in relation to any claim or dispute 
arising out of or relating to the Engagement or Services.  The parties submit to the jurisdiction of 
such Courts and irrevocably waive any right they may have to object to any action being brought 
in these Courts to claim that the action has been brought in an inconvenient forum or to claim that 
those Courts do not have personal or subject matter jurisdiction. 



Williamson County, Texas vs. Ritter Botkin Prime Construction, Inc and Great American Insurance 
Company of New York in the 368th Judicial District Court, Williamson County, Texas 

Page 4 of 4 

Counsel and Client acknowledge their respective acceptance and agreement with this Engagement as 
evidenced by their signatures below.  Please return to Secretariat a signed copy of this engagement letter. 

Very truly yours, 

SECRETARIAT ADVISORS LLC 

By: 
_________________________________________ 
David Todd 
Director 

Accepted by: The Chapman Firm, PLLC.  (Counsel) 

Signature: 

Name: Kerrie Taylor 

Title: Attorney 

Date:  

Accepted by:  Williamson County, Texas 

Signature: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date:  

Name and address of Client representative designated to receive invoices related to this Engagement: 

Name: 
Mr. Jeff Chapman,  
The Chapman Firm, PLLC. 

Address: 3410 Far West Boulevard, Suite 210 

Austin, TX 78731 

Phone: 512-872-3840

Email: jeff@chapmanfirmtx.com 

June 5, 2024



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 29.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Dec Action - PIA
Submitted By: Hal Hawes, General Counsel
Department: General Counsel
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on directing the Williamson County Attorney's office to file a
Declaratory Judgment Action on a Public Information Act request based on conflicting rulings.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 09:44 AM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 06/06/2024 08:37 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 30.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
engagement letter - white epsey
Submitted By: Shannon Francis, General Counsel
Department: General Counsel
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the engagement of the law firm of White Espey, PLLC to
provide legal representation as it relates to workers’ compensation matters on behalf of Williamson County; and
exemption of these services from the competitive bid/proposal requirements of the County Purchasing Act
pursuant to the discretionary exemption for personal or professional services, as set forth under Tex. Loc. Gov’t
Code § 262.024(a)(4).

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
engagement letter - white epsey 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:46 AM
Form Started By: Shannon Francis Started On: 06/06/2024 09:57 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



ENGAGEMENT LETTER FOR WORKERS’ COMPENSATION LEGAL SERVICES 

 

Williamson County  

401 W 6th Street 

Georgetown, TX 78626 

 

Dear Williamson County,  

 

This Engagement Letter for Legal Services (“Letter”) is made effective as of June 6, 2024 between 

the law firm of White Espey, PLLC and Williamson County. Parties agree herein that White Espey, 

PLLC will provide legal representation as it relates to workers’ compensation matters on behalf of 

Williamson County.  

 

Services. White Espey, PLLC agrees to provide legal representation in all workers’ compensation 

matters assigned by Williamson County and/or its designated Third-Party Administrator (“TPA”) 

of workers’ compensation matters.  

 

Term. The legal representation shall commence on June 6, 2024 and end upon the thirtieth day 

following written notice to terminate this Letter by either party.  

 

Compensation. In consideration for the legal representation provided, White Espey, PLLC is to 

be paid according to the attached description of “Services” in Exhibit A. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Letter on the dates written 

hereunder: 

 

 

Agreed on June 6, 2024:     Agreed on June 6, 2024: 

 

 
Timothy R. White      Bill Gravell, Jr. 

White Espey, PLLC      County Judge 

Williamson County 

 



 
 

Exhibit A 

 
  



Services 
 

AUSTIN CARRIER REPRESENTATIVE SERVICE 
• There is no charge for the Austin Carrier Representative Service if White Espey, 

PLLC represents Williamson County at all administrative hearings (BRC’s, CCH’s, 
Appeals Panel Briefs) at which Williamson County is represented by legal 
counsel.  If Williamson County retains other legal counsel to represent their 
interests at any administrative hearing, the cost for Austin Carrier 
Representative Service is $250/month.   

• Services include daily trips, as necessary, to the DWC to deliver, sign for, and pick 
up mail, date-stamp, sort, and electronically redistribute the mail to a 
distribution list selected by the client. This is a same-day service to Williamson 
County also includes receipt of and signing for DWC mail and Compliance 
materials. Austin Carrier Representative services additionally include managing 
the on-line carrier information requirements of Rule 124.2 through TXCOMP, 
responding to general questions on matters that do not require a written 
opinion, in-office claims representative training, notifications of significant DWC 
Advisories or rule changes that may result in possible violations and/or penalties 
against Williamson County, and monitoring and tracking all workers’ 
compensation legislation filed in the Texas Legislature. Other administrative 
services (designated doctor analysis letters, submission of response to requests 
for information, etc.) will be billed on a time and expense basis. 

 
DWC ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING SERVICES 
Benefit Review Conferences 

• Attorney:  Time & Expense at $175.00/hour.   

• Paralegal or Licensed Legal Assistant:  Time and Expense $60.00/hour. 

• Services include review of claim file, preparation of Rule 141 Exchange of 
Documentary Evidence, submission of reports as necessary at least two weeks 
prior to the conference, communications with adjuster before and after the 
Benefit Review Conference (BRC), communications with opposing counsel if an 
agreement may be reached, preparation for BRC, legal research, 
communications with witnesses and experts as necessary, maintain accurate 
information in the file regarding efforts to conclude the claim, offers of 
settlement/resolution made, and responses received, obtain 
resolution/settlement authority (as needed) from senior workers’ compensation 
management prior to any conference, attend all Benefit Review Conferences, 
make recommendations as to whether adjusters need to be present at the BRC, 
and submit a post-BRC report within 48 business hours of the hearing including 
any claimant/attorney offers and any recommendations.   



Contested Case Hearings/Arbitration 

• Attorney:  Time & Expense at $175.00/hour.   

• Paralegal or Licensed Legal Assistant:  Time and Expense $60.00/hour. 

• Services include review of claim file, preparation of Contested Case Hearing 
(CCH) Exchange of Documentary Evidence, Witness List, and Interrogatories, 
preparation of CCH Exhibits, communications with adjuster before and after the 
CCH, submission of reports as necessary at least two weeks prior to the hearing, 
communications with opposing counsel, preparation for CCH, requests for and 
preparation of subpoenas, depositions, or other discovery, legal research, 
communications with witnesses and experts as necessary, obtain 
resolution/settlement authority (as needed) from senior workers’ compensation 
management prior to any hearing, attend all Contested Case Hearings, make 
recommendations as to whether adjusters need to be present at the CCH, and 
submit a post-CCH report within 48 business hours of the hearing including any 
claimant/attorney offers and any recommendations. Actual expenses, such as 
expert witness fees, fees for service of subpoenas or deposition questions, 
private investigator fees, copying fees for copies in excess of 100 pages, express 
delivery postage, and vendor fees for preparation of expert reports, will be 
additional. No experts will be hired without prior approval from the workers’ 
compensation claims handler. No claims settlements/resolutions will be made 
without approval by senior workers’ compensation management, and evidence 
of settlement authority and documentation of all attempts to settle will be fully 
documented in the claims file.  
 

Appeals Panel Briefs 
• Attorney:  Time & Expense at $175.00/hour  

• Paralegal or Licensed Legal Assistant:  Time and Expense $60.00 

• Services include obtaining authority from the senior workers’ compensation 
management for filing an appeal, drafting and filing a written appeal no later 
than the 15th day after the decision of the Hearing Officer is received (or as 
required by the TDI/DWC rules), and filing a written response with the Appeals 
Panel no later than the 15th day after request for appeal is served on Williamson 
County should the employee file an appeal.  

 
 
MEDICAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION HEARINGS 
At the DWC level through the IRO Process 

• Attorney:  Time & Expense at $175.00/hour  

• Paralegal or Licensed Legal Assistant:  Time and Expense $60.00/hour  

• Services include the same services listed above for administrative hearings 
 
 
 



Judicial Review in District Court/Representation before SOAH  

• Attorney:  Time & Expense at $250.00/hour  

• Paralegal or Licensed Legal Assistant:  Time and Expense $70.00/hour  

• Services include the same services listed above for administrative hearings with 
the addition of representation in Austin before SOAH. 

 
Actual expenses, such as expert witness fees, fees for service of subpoenas or 
deposition questions, court reporter’s fees, fees for copies, express delivery postage, 
fees for obtaining records from medical providers, fees for copies of DWC files, and 
vendor fees for preparation of expert reports, will be additional. 
 
  
SYSTEM MONITORITING AND OVERSIGHT (including audits) 

• Attorney:  Time & Expense at $225.00/hour  

• Paralegal or Licensed Legal Assistant:  Time and Expense $70.00/hour  

• Services include review and assistance with responses to requests for 
documents, negotiation of enforcement actions, and assistance with reduction 
of any proposed fines or penalties.  

• An annual audit of the claims administration of the workers’ compensation 
program assesses the efficiency, effectiveness, and the consistency of the claims 
adjusting unit and ensures all provisions of the contract for services are being 
adhered to.  

• Additional performance reviews and audits may be performed upon request of 
the client. The engagement letter for any audit or compliance matter will include 
the scope of the audit, the purpose of the audit, delineation of the types and 
numbers of files to be reviewed, and the location and times for the 
reviews. Audits for Williamson County may include preauthorization 
performance audits, audits for timely payments of medical bills and/or 
indemnity benefits or DWC Audits. Additional audits include biannual audit for 
compliance with TDI’s Performance Based Oversight measures or Electronic Data 
Interchange requirements in accordance with Texas Administrative Code 
Sections 134.800 et. seq., and will include outcome analysis. The EDI audits may 
include analysis or whether EDI forms are filed timely and with proper 
identification, testing, and TDI approval, and may include ensuring compliance 
with all data elements, including recent changes to data elements. 
 

LITIGATION/SUBROGATION FEE SCHEDULE 
• Partner:  Time & Expense at $250.00/hour 

• Associate:  Time & Expense at $200.00/hour 

• Paralegal or Licensed Legal Assistant $70.00/hour 
 
All Litigation Expenses are charged on an actual basis, except for copies ($.20 per page), 
overnight mail ($25.00) and postage (Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested $5.00) 



OTHER LEGAL SERVICES 
Other Attorney Services, including trial preparation, litigation services statewide, written 
Legal Opinions, and work before the DWC not itemized above, are available at the 
hourly rates listed below: 

• Attorney:  Time & Expense at $200.00/hour  

• Paralegal or Licensed Legal Assistant:  Time and Expense $60.00/hour  
Actual expenses will be charged, except on hearings where mileage is required versus 
actual airfare, etc. 
 
 
*Currently, there is no applicable sales tax or other governmental tax for legal services. In the event such 
a tax is imposed on these services, the tax will be added to the amounts charged unless you obtain a 
lawful exemption. 
 

 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 31.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Award of RFP #24RFP36 Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring Services for Williamson County via Office of
Emergency Management
Submitted By: Kerstin Hancock, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding RFP #24RFP36 Countywide Disaster Related Debris
Monitoring Services to the highest scoring proposer, Tetra Tech, Inc. and authorizing the execution of associated
documents.

Background
Williamson County sent out four thousand five hundred and one (4,501) notifications with thirty-seven (37)
document takers and received five (5) submittals to provide Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring
Services.  The primary purpose of this contract is to create at-the-ready resources, at established prices, for the
County’s disaster response and recovery operations in the event of a weather event or disaster situation. The
contract is to be utilized on an “as-needed” basis to provide clean-up, demolition, removal, reduction, and
disposal of debris as directed by the County following a natural or man-made disaster.  The evaluation team’s
recommendation is Tetra Tech, Inc. who is the highest scoring proposer.  Funding source and contract amounts
will depend on the type of disaster and will be allocated at the time of an event. Bruce Clements and Bill Zito
are the points of contact.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Redacted Score Sheet 
Tetra Tech Agreement 
Tetra Tech FEMA Addendum 
Form 1295 Tetra Tech 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 06/06/2024 07:04 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 08:33 AM
Form Started By: Kerstin Hancock Started On: 06/04/2024 10:11 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 





MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made this    day of     , 2024, by and between 
Williamson County, Texas, located at 100 Wilco Way, Suite P101, Georgetown, TX 78626 (hereinafter 
referred to as (“CLIENT”) and Tetra Tech, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as (“CONTRACTOR”), located at 2301 
Lucien Way, Suite 120, Maitland, FL 32751. 
 

WHEREAS, Client has issued RFP No. 24RFP36 for Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring 
Services which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

 
WHEREAS, Client has reviewed Contractor’s response to RFP No. 24RFP36 and wishes to enter into a 

contractual agreement with Contractor to provide countywide disaster related debris monitoring services 
which the Technical Approach and Rate Schedule are attached hereto as Exhibit B and C.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the promises herein and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Scope of Services: Contractor and Client agree Contractor will perform countywide disaster related 
debris monitoring services as described in Exhibit A and B (Client’s RFP and Contractor’s Technical 
Approach), attached hereto. Task Orders shall be issued for specific deliverables under this 
Agreement. Such deliverables to be provided by Contractor will be determined by Client and 
specified in writing on each Task Order. 
 

2. Term:  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date written above and be in effect for four (4) 
years with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional periods of one (1) year each by mutual 
consent.  
 

3. Independent Contractor: Contractor is an independent contractor and is not an employee of Client.  
Services performed by Contractor under this Agreement are solely for the benefit of the Client.  
Nothing contained in this Agreement creates any duties on the part of Contractor toward any person 
not a party to this Agreement. 

 
4. Standard of Care: Contractor will perform services under this Agreement with the degree of skill and 

diligence normally practiced by professional engineers or contractors performing the same or similar 
services.  No other warranty or guarantee, expressed or implied, is made with respect to the services 
furnished under this Agreement and all implied warranties are disclaimed. 
 

5. Federal Requirements: Contractor must comply with all applicable federal regulations from 2 C.F.R. § 
200.326 and 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II which are attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

 
6. Uncontrollable Forces: Neither the Client nor Contractor shall be considered to be in default of this 

Agreement if delays in or failure of performance shall be due to Uncontrollable Forces, the effect of 
which, by the exercise of reasonable diligence, the non-performing party could not avoid.  The term 
"Uncontrollable Forces" shall mean any event which results in the prevention or delay of 
performance by a party of its obligations under this Agreement and which is beyond the reasonable 
control of the nonperforming party.  It includes, but is not limited to fire, flood, earthquakes, 
explosion, strike, transportation, or equipment delays, act of war, Act of God, lightning, epidemic, 
war, riot, civil disturbance, sabotage, acts of terrorism and governmental actions outside the control 
of the Client.  The schedule or payment under the Agreement shall be equitably adjusted, if 
necessary, to compensate Contractor for any additional costs due to the delay. 

 
Neither party shall, however, be excused from performance if nonperformance is due to forces 
which are foreseeable, preventable, removable, or remediable, and which the nonperforming party 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

could have, with the exercise of reasonable diligence, prevented, removed or remedied with 
reasonable dispatch.  The nonperforming party shall, within a reasonable time of being prevented or 
delayed from performance by an uncontrollable force, give written notice to the other party 
describing the circumstances and uncontrollable forces preventing continued performance of the 
obligations of this Agreement. 
 

7. Fee for Services: The fee for the services under this Agreement will be based on the actual hours of 
services furnished multiplied by Contractor's Billing Rates plus all authorized project related 
expenses reimbursed to Contractor as set forth below and in Exhibit C. 

 
Authorized Expenses: In the event County authorizes, in advance and in writing, reimbursement of 
non-labor expenses related to the services subject of this Contract, County will pay such actual non-
labor expenses in strict accordance with the Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy (as 
amended), which is incorporated into and made a part of this Contract by reference. The Williamson 
County Vendor Reimbursement Policy can be found at: 
WilliamsonCountyVendorReimbursementPolicyMarch2023.pdf (wilco.org). Invoices requesting 
reimbursement for authorized non-labor expenses must be accompanied by copies of the provider’s 
invoice and clearly set forth the actual cost of the expenses, without markup. 
 
The hourly rates shall remain firm for the initial term of the agreement. The hourly rates for any 
extended terms shall be subject to an annual adjustment based on the latest yearly percentage 
increase of the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) (All Items) as published by the 
Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor. 
 

8. Compensation: Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas 
Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date 
the Client receives the goods under the agreement; (2) the date the performance of the service 
under the agreement is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice 
for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the Client in 
accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest 
that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the Client’s fiscal year in 
which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of 
one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July 
of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday. 
 
All invoices shall be delivered to: 
 Williamson County Auditor 
 710 Main Street 
 Suite 101 
 Georgetown, TX 78626 
 
Payment shall be made to and delivered to:   
 Tetra Tech, Inc. 
 PO Box 911642 
 Denver, CO 80291-1642 
 

9. Indemnity: Contractor shall save harmless the Client from all claims and liability due to activities of 
itself, its agents, or employees, performed under this Agreement to the extent caused by the 
negligent act, error or omission of the Contractor or of any person employed by the Contractor. 
Contractor shall also save harmless the Client from reasonable attorney fees which might be incurred 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES 

by the Client in litigation or otherwise resisting said claims or liabilities which might be imposed on 
the Client as result of such activities by the Contractor, its agents, or employees. 

10. Insurance: During the course of performance of the services under this agreement, Contractor will
maintain the following insurance coverages:

Worker's Compensation         Statutory  
Employer's Liability      U.S. $1,000,000 per occurrence 

Commercial General Liability      U.S. $1,000,000 per occurrence
 U.S. $2,000,000 aggregate  

Comprehensive General Automobile        U.S. $1,000,000 combined single limit
Professional Liability      U.S. $1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate

Before beginning any work, Contractor shall deliver to Client, a Certificate of Insurance evidencing 
that the above coverages are in effect as well as naming Client as an Additional Insured. An 
Additional Insured Endorsement must accompany the Certificate of Insurance. Such coverage will 
not be canceled or materially changed without thirty (30) days written notice. 

11. Work Product: Client shall have the unrestricted right to use the documents, analyses and other data
prepared by Contractor under this Agreement ('Work Products'); provided, however Client shall not
rely on or use the Work Products for any purpose other than the purposes under this Agreement and
the Work Products shall not be changed without the prior written approval of Contractor.  If Client
releases the Work Products to a third party, other than Client’s auditors, without Contractor's prior
written consent, or changes or uses the Work Products other than as intended hereunder, (a) Client
does so at its sole risk and discretion, and (b) Contractor shall not be liable for any claims or damages
resulting from the change or use or connected with the release or any third party's use of the Work
Products.

12. Limitation of Liability: No employee of Contractor shall have individual liability to Client.  To the
extent permitted by law, the total liability of Contractor, its officers, directors, shareholders,
employees and Subcontractors for any and all claims arising out of this Agreement, including
attorneys’ fees, and whether caused by negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of
contract or contribution, or indemnity claims based on third party claims, shall not exceed the
greater of one million dollars (U.S. $1,000,000) or the amount actually paid to Contractor under this
Agreement.

13. No Consequential Damages: In no event and under no circumstances shall Contractor be liable to
Client for any principal, interest, loss of anticipated revenues, earnings, profits, increased expense of
operation or construction, loss by reason of shutdown or non-operation due to late completion, or
for any other economic, consequential, indirect or special damages.

14. Information Provided by Others: Client shall provide to Contractor in a timely manner any
information Contractor indicates is needed to perform the services hereunder.  Contractor may
reasonably rely on the accuracy of information provided by Client and its representatives.

15. Safety and Security: Contractor has established and maintains programs and procedures for the
safety of its employees.  Unless specially included as a service to be provided under this Agreement,
Contractor specially disclaims any authority or responsibility for job site safety and safety of persons
other than Contractor's or Subcontractor's employees.



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

16. Termination: Either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to 
the other party.  Client shall pay Contractor for all services rendered to the date of termination plus 
reasonable expenses for winding down the services.  If either party defaults in its obligations under 
this Agreement, the non-defaulting party, after giving ten (10) days written notice of its intention to 
terminate or suspend performance under this Agreement, may, if cure of the default is not 
commenced and diligently continued by the defaulting party, terminate this Agreement or suspend 
performance under this Agreement.   

 
17. Dispute Resolution: Contractor and Client shall attempt to resolve conflicts or disputes under this 

Agreement in a fair and reasonable manner, and that if resolution cannot be made, the parties agree 
to attempt to mediate the conflict by a professional mediator. If mediation does not settle any 
dispute or action which arises under this Agreement, either party may pursue litigation after 
notifying the other party of its intentions. 

 
18. Successors and Assigns: This Agreement is binding upon and will inure to the benefit of Client and 

Contractor and their respective successors and assigns. Neither party may assign its rights or 
obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party. 

 
19. Notices: Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement to be given shall be deemed to have 

been duly given if in writing and delivered personally or five (5) days after mailing by first-class, 
registered, or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 

 
Client: 
Williamson County Judge 
710 S. Main Street 
Ste. 101 
Georgetown, TX 78626 

Contractor: 
Contracts Department 
Tetra Tech, Inc. 
2301 Lucien Way, Suite 120 
Maitland, FL 32751 
(407) 803-2551 (Betty Kamara) 
TDR.Contracts@tetratech.com 

   
20. Severability: The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement, or the 

occurrence of any event rendering any portion or provision of this Agreement void, shall in no way 
affect the validity or enforceability of any other portion or provision of the Agreement.  Any void 
provision shall be deemed severed from the Agreement and the remainder of the Agreement shall 
be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular portion or provision 
held to be void.  The parties further agree to reform the Agreement to replace any stricken provision 
with a valid provision that comes as close as possible to the intent of the stricken provision. The 
provisions of this section shall not prevent the entire Agreement from being void should a provision 
which is of the essence of the Agreement be determined to be void. 

 
21. Governing Law and Venue: This Agreement shall be construed under and governed by the laws of 

the State of Texas without giving effect to its principles on conflicts of law and applicable federal 
laws and regulations.  Any disputes arising thereunder may only be brought in the appropriate state 
court in Williamson County, TX.  

 
22. Access and Audits: County’s Right to Audit: Contractor agrees that County or its duly authorized 

representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this 
Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, 
papers and records of Contractor which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed and 
amounts expended under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, 
and transcriptions. Contractor agrees that County shall have access during normal working hours to 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

all necessary Contractor facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate workspace in 
order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section.  County shall give 
Contractor reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 

 
23. Non-Discrimination:  The Contractor warrants and represents that all of its employees will be 

treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, gender, age or national 
origin. 

 
24. Waiver: A waiver by either the Client or Contractor of any breach of this Agreement shall not be 

binding upon the waiving party unless such waiver is in writing.  In the event of a written waiver, 
such a waiver shall not affect the waiving party's rights with respect to any other or further breach.  
The making or acceptance of a payment by either party with knowledge of the existence of a default 
or breach shall not operate or be construed to operate as a waiver of any subsequent default or 
breach. 

 
25. Modification: The Agreement may not be modified unless such modifications are evidenced in 

writing and signed by both the Client and Contractor.  Such modifications shall be in the form of a 
written Amendment executed by both parties. 

 
26. Contingent Fees: The Contractor warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or 

person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor to solicit or secure this 
Agreement and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual or 
firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor, any fee, commission, 
percentage, gift or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making 
of this Agreement. 

 
27. Confidentiality: No reports, information, computer programs, documentation, and/or data given to, 

or prepared or assembled by the Contractor under this Agreement shall be made available to any 
individual or organization by the Contractor without prior written approval of the Client unless such 
disclosure is required by a federal or Texas law or regulation. 

 

28. Miscellaneous:  Client expressly agrees that all provisions of the Agreement, including the clause 
limiting the liability of Contractor, were mutually negotiated. In any action to enforce or interpret 
this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its judgment, reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs from the other party. 

 
29. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed to be an original instrument, but all of which taken together shall constitute one instrument. 
 

30. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity: Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a 
waiver of sovereign immunity of powers of the Client. 
 

31. Public Information: Tetra Tech understands that Client will comply with the Texas Public information 
Act as interpreted by judicial ruling and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas. 
Information, documentation, and other material in connection with this Agreement may be subject 
to public disclosure pursuant to the Texas Public Information Act. 

 
 
 
 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Contractor has caused this Agreement to be signed in its corporate name by its 
authorized representative, and the Client has caused this Agreement to be signed in its legal name by 
persons authorized to execute this Agreement as of the day and year first written above. 
 
CONTRACTOR:      CLIENT:     
TETRA TECH, INC.     WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TX 
 
 
             
By:  Jonathan Burgiel      By:  
Title: Business Unit President    Title:  
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
 
             
Kayla Lemaire, Contract Administrator I    
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Exhibit A: Client RFP No. 24RFP36 for Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring Services 
 Exhibit B: Tetra Tech Technical Approach 
 Exhibit C: Tetra Tech Fee Schedule 
 Exhibit D: Federal Provisions (2CFR200) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 Williamson County, TX RFP #24RFP36 for Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Tetra Tech Technical Approach 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Tetra Tech Fee Schedule 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

EXHIBIT D 
FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 
FEMA CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR NON-FEDERAL ENTITY UNDER FEDERAL AW ARDS REQUIRED  

BY 2 C.F.R. §200.326 APPENDIX II TO 2 CFR §200 
 

REMEDIES 
(For all awarded contracts with a value greater than $150,000.00) 
Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the Contractor or the Contractor's subcontractors 
may result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that may be necessary to enforce 
the rights of the parties of this contract. The duties and obligations imposed by the contract documents and the 
rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, 
rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. Any violation or breach of terms of this contract of the 
Contractor or the Contractor's sub-contractors will be subject to the remedies, including liquidated damages, 
described in the bid specifications or Request for Proposal and the Client rules and regulations and special 
conditions which are incorporated herein by reference in their entirety. 
 
TERMINATION FOR CAUSE AND CONVENIENCE 
(For all awarded contracts with a value greater than $10,000.00) 
The Client reserves the right to terminate this contract for cause or convenience pursuant to the rules and 
regulations and special conditions which are incorporated herein by reference in their entirety. 
 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
(For all awarded contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" provided in 41 CFR 
Part 60-1.3) Contractor must complete enclosed certification 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 
1. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 

color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or 
national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination 
clause. 

2. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 
contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to 
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

3. The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant 
for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the 
compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not 
apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other 
employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation 
of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such 
information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an 
investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is 
consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information. 

4. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective 
bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor 
union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. 
5. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of 

the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 
6. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 

24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will 
permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor 
for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

7. In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with 
any of the said rules, regulations, or orders this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in 
whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or 
federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary 
of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

8. The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the 
provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, 
regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 
of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The 
contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering 
agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: 

Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a 
subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the 
United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 
The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own 
employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, that if the applicant 
so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, 
instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract. 
The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of 
Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the 
rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and 
the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will 
otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing 
compliance. 
The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to 
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated 
eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order 
and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed 
upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, 
Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these 
undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend 
in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance 
to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory 
assurance of future compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of 
Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 
 
DAVIS-BACON ACT AND COPELAND "ANTI-KICKBACK" ACT 
(The Davis-Bacon Act only applies to the Emergency Management Preparedness Grant Program, Homeland 
Security Grant Program, Nonprofit Security Grant Program, Tribal Homeland Security Grant Program, Port Security 
Grant Program, and Transit Security Grant Program. It DOES NOT apply to other FEMA grant and cooperative 
agreement programs, including the Public Assistance Program. 

1. Minimum wages. 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

i. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work ( or under the United 
States Housing Act of 193 7 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of 
the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without 
subsequent deduction or rebate on any account ( except such payroll deductions as are permitted by 
regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount 
of wages and bona fide fringe benefits ( or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment 
computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage dete1mination of the Secretary of Labor 
which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which 
may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics. 
Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1 
(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such 
laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (a)(l)(iv) of this section; also, regular 
contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than 
quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to 
be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be 
paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of 
work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in §5.5(a)( 4). Laborers or 
mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified 
for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, that the employer's payroll 
records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The 
wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 
paragraph (a)(l)(ii) of this section) and the Davis Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times 
by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place 
where it can be easily seen by the workers. 

ii. (A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, 
which is not listed in the wage determination, and which is to be employed under the contract shall 
be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an 
additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria 
have been met: 

1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification 
in the wage determination; and 

2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 
3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable 

relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination. 
(B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), 
or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate 
(including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken 
shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, 
Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The 
Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional 
classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the 
contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. 
(C)In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their 
representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage 
rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer 
shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the 
contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized 
representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting 
officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 
(a)(l)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification 
under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification. 
i. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics 

includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either 
pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe 
benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 

ii. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may 
consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably 
anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the 
Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable 
standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the 
contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the 
plan or program. 

2. Withholding. 
The Federal Agency and/or Client shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 
representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under 
this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted 
contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime 
contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers 
and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any 
subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer 
or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work ( 
or under the United States Housing Act of 193 7 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or 
development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, the (Agency) may, after 
written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to 
cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have 
ceased. 

3. Payrolls and basic records. 
i. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the 

course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and 
mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or 
under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records 
shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her 
correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs 
anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in 
section l (b) (2) (B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, 
deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 
CFR 5.5(a)(l)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs 
reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 
l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the 
commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially 
responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or 
mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in 
providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved 
programs shall of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the 
ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. 

ii. (A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a 
copy of all payrolls to the federal agency if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency 
is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant, sponsor, or owner, as 
the case may be, for transmission to the federal agency. The payrolls submitted shall set out 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 
5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on 
weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying 
number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). 
The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form 
WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at 
http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd(forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is 
responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and 
subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered 
worker, and shall provide them upon request to the federal agency if the agency is a party to the 
contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit them to the applicant, 
sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the federal agency, the contractor, or 
the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit 
of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime 
contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the 
prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the sponsoring government 
agency (or the applicant, sponsor, or owner). 
(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the 
contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the 
persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following: 

1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided 
under §5.5 (a) (3) (ii) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being 
maintained under §5.5 (a) (3) (i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, and that such information 
is correct and complete; 

2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) 
employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages 
earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been 
made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible 
deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3; 

3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates 
and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as 
specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract. 

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of 
Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of 
Compliance" required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section. 
(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or 
subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of 
title 31 of the United States Code. 

i. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph 
(a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by 
authorized representatives of the federal agency or the Department of Labor, and 
shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on 
the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to 
make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the 
contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to 
cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. 
Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such 
records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. 

4. Apprentices and trainees- 
i. Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work 

they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide 

http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd(forms/wh347instr.htm


MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training 
Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State 
Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days 
of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not 
individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship 
Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be 
eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to 
journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to 
the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a 
payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, 
shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification 
of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of 
the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate 
on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing 
construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and 
wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's 
or subcontractors registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less 
than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as 
a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. 
Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship 
program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid 
the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If 
the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice 
classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of 
Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized 
by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be 
permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work 
performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

ii. Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the 
predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually 
registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the 
U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to 
journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the 
Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate 
specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of 
the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid 
fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does 
not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the 
wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is 
an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage 
determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed 
on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by 
the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on 
the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee 
performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall 
be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually 
performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a 
training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the 
applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

iii. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this 
part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 
11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30. 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. 
The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference 
in this contract. 

6. Subcontracts. 
The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a) (l) 
through (10) and such other clauses as FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause 
requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor 
shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the 
contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5. 

7. Contract termination: debarment. 
A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for 
debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. 
All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 
are herein incorporated by reference in this contract. 

9. Breach. 
A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for 
debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12. 

10. Disputes concerning labor standards. 
Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general 
disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the 
Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause 
include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the 
U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 

11. Certification of eligibility. 
1) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any 

person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be 
awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis Bacon Act or 29 CFR 
5.12(a)(l). 

2) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a 
Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(l). 

3) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 
U.S.C. 1001. 

CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT 

(For all awarded contracts related to "mechanics and laborers" with a value greater than $100,000.00) 

1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work 
which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such 
laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of 
forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek. 

2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set 
forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be 
liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United 
States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District 
or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to 
each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such 
individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without 
payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section. 

3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The (write in the name of the Federal agency or 
the loan or grant recipient) shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 
representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable 
on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other 
Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as 
may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid 
wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(2) of this section. 

4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in 
paragraph (b)(1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these 
clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (b)(1) through (4) of 
this section. 
 

RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT 

(This requirement does not apply to the Public Assistance, Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, Fire Management 
Assistance Grant Program, Crisis Counseling Assistance and Training Grant Program, Disaster Case Management 
Grant Program, and Federal Assistance to Individuals and Households - Other Needs Assistance Grant Program, as 
FEMA awards under these programs do not meet the definition of "funding agreement." If FEMA federal award 
meets definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2(a), for all awarded contracts related to 
experimental, developmental, or research work type contracts) 

(a) Definitions 
(1) Invention means any invention or discovery which is or may be patentable or otherwise 

protectable under Title 35 of the United States Code, or any novel variety of et seq.). 
(2) Subject invention means any invention of the contractor conceived or first actually reduced to 

practice in the performance of work under this contract, provided that in the case of a variety of 
plant, the date of determination (as defined in section 41(d) of the Plant Variety Protection Act, 7 
U.S.C. 240l (d)) must also occur during the period of contract performance. 

(3) Practical Application means to manufacture in the case of a composition or product, to practice in 
the case of a process or method, or to operate in the case of a machine or system; and, in each 
case, under such conditions as to establish that the invention is being utilized and that its benefits 
are, to the extent permitted by law or government regulations, available to the public on 
reasonable terms. 

(4) Made when used in relation to any invention means the conception or first actual reduction to 
practice of such invention. 

(5) Small Business Firm means a small business concern as defined at section 2 of Pub. L. 85-536 (15 
U.S.C. 632) and implementing regulations of the Administrator of the Small Business 
Administration. For the purpose of this clause, the size standards for small business concerns 
involved in government procurement and subcontracting at 13 CFR 121.3-8 and 13 CFR 121.3- 12, 
respectively, will be used. 

(6) Nonprofit Organization means a university or other institution of higher education or 
an organization of the type described in section 501 (c) {3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (26 

U.S.C. 501(c) and exempt from taxation under section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (25 

U.S.C. 501(a)) or any nonprofit scientific or educational organization qualified under a state 
nonprofit organization statute. 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

(b) Allocation of Principal Rights 
The Contractor may retain the entire right, title, and interest throughout the world to each subject 
invention subject to the provisions of this clause and 35 U.S.C. 203. With respect to any subject 
invention in which the Contractor retains title, the Federal government shall have a nonexclusive, 
nontransferable, irrevocable, paid-up license to practice or have practiced for or on behalf of the 
United States the subject invention throughout the world. 

(c) Invention Disclosure, Election of Title and Filing of Patent Application by Contractor 
(1) The contractor will disclose each subject invention to the Federal Agency within two months after 

the inventor discloses it in writing to contractor personnel responsible for patent matters. The 
disclosure to the agency shall be in the form of a written report and shall identify the contract 
under which the invention was made and the inventor(s). It shall be sufficiently complete in 
technical detail to convey a clear understanding to the extent known at the time of the disclosure, 
of the nature, purpose, operation, and the physical, chemical, biological or electrical characteristics 
of the invention. The disclosure shall also identify any publication, on sale or public use of the 
invention and whether a manuscript describing the invention has been submitted for publication 
and, if so, whether it has been accepted for publication at the time of disclosure. In addition, after 
disclosure to the agency, the Contractor will promptly notify the agency of the acceptance of any 
manuscript describing the invention for publication or of any on sale or public use planned by the 
contractor. 

(2) The Contractor will elect in writing whether or not to retain title to any such invention by notifying 
the Federal agency within two years of disclosure to the Federal agency. However, in any case 
where publication, on sale or public use has initiated the one-year statutory period wherein valid 
patent protection can still be obtained in the United States, the period for election of title may be 
shortened by the agency to a date that is no more than 60 days prior to the end of the statutory 
period. 

(3) The contractor will file its initial patent application on a subject invention to which it elects to retain 
title within one year after election of title or, if earlier, prior to the end of any statutory period 
wherein valid patent protection can be obtained in the United States after a publication, on sale, 
or public use. The contractor will file patent applications in additional countries or international 
patent offices within either ten months of the corresponding initial patent application or six 
months from the date permission is granted by the Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks to 
file foreign patent applications where such filing has been prohibited by a Secrecy Order. · 

(4) Requests for extension of the time for disclosure, election, and filing under subparagraphs (1), (2), 
and (3) may, at the discretion of the agency, be granted. 

(d) Conditions When the Government May Obtain Title 
The contractor will convey to the Federal agency, upon written request, title to any subject invention- 
(1) If the contractor fails to disclose or elect title to the subject invention within the times specified in 

(c), above, or elects not to retain title; provided that the agency may only request title within 60 
days after learning of the failure of the contractor to disclose or elect within the specified times. 

(2) In those countries in which the contractor fails to file patent applications within the times specified 
in (c) above; provided, however, that if the contractor has filed a patent application in a country 
after the times specified in (c) above, but prior to its receipt of the written request of the Federal 
agency, the contractor shall continue to retain title in that country. 

(3) In any country in which the contractor decides not to continue the prosecution of any application 
for, to pay the maintenance fees on, or defend in reexamination or opposition proceeding on, a 
patent on a subject invention. 

(e) Minimum Rights to Contractor and Protection of the Contractor Right to File 
(1) The contractor will retain a nonexclusive royalty-free license throughout the world in each subject 

invention to which the Government obtains title, except if the contractor fails to disclose the 
invention within the times specified in (c), above. The contractor's license extends to its domestic 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

subsidiary and affiliates, if any, within the corporate structure of which the contractor is a party 
and includes the right to grant sublicenses of the same scope to the extent the contractor was 
legally obligated to do so at the time the contract was awarded. The license is transferable only 
with the approval of the Federal to which the invention pertains. 

(2) The contractor's domestic license may be revoked or modified by the funding Federal agency to the 
extent necessary to achieve expeditious practical application of the subject invention pursuant to 
an application for an exclusive license submitted in accordance with applicable provisions at 37 CFR 
part 404 and agency licensing regulations (if any). This license will not be revoked in that field of 
use or the geographical areas in which the contractor has achieved practical application and 
continues to make the benefits of the invention reasonably accessible to the public. The license in 
any foreign country may be revoked or modified at the discretion of the funding Federal agency to 
the extent the contractor, its licensees, or the domestic subsidiaries or affiliates have failed to 
achieve practical application in that foreign country. 

(3) Before revocation or modification of the license, the funding Federal agency will furnish the 
contractor a written notice of its intention to revoke or modify the license, and the contractor will 
be allowed thirty days (or such other time as may be authorized by the funding Federal agency for 
good cause shown by the contractor) after the notice to show cause why the license should not be 
revoked or modified. The contractor has the right to appeal, in accordance with applicable 
regulations in 37 CFR part 404 and agency regulations (if any) concerning the licensing of 
Government-owned inventions, any decision concerning the revocation or modification of the 
license. 

(f) Contractor Action to Protect the Government's Interest 
(1) The contractor agrees to execute or to have executed and promptly deliver to the Federal agency 

all instruments necessary to 

(i) establish or confirm the rights the Government has throughout the world in those subject 
inventions to which the contractor elects to retain title, and 

(ii) convey title to the Federal agency when requested under paragraph (d) above and to enable the 
government to obtain patent protection throughout the world in that subject invention. 

(2) The contractor agrees to require, by written agreement, its employees, other than clerical and 
nontechnical employees, to disclose promptly in writing to personnel identified as responsible for 
the administration of patent matters and in a format suggested by the contractor each subject 
invention made under contract in order that the contractor can comply with the disclosure 
provisions of paragraph ( c ), above, and to execute all papers necessary to file patent applications 
on subject inventions and to establish the government's rights in the subject inventions. This 
disclosure format should require, as a minimum, the information required by (c) (l), above. The 
contractor shall instruct such employees through employee agreements or other suitable 
educational programs on the importance of reporting inventions in sufficient time to permit the 
filing of patent applications prior to U.S. or foreign statutory bars. 

(3) The contractor will notify the Federal agency of any decisions not to continue the prosecution of a 
patent application, pay maintenance fees, or defend in a reexamination or opposition proceeding 
on a patent, in any country, not less than thirty days before the expiration of the response period 
required by the relevant patent office. 

(4) The contractor agrees to include, within the specification of any United States patent applications 
and any patent issuing thereon covering a subject invention, the following statement, "This 
invention was made with government support under (identify the contract) awarded by (identify 
the Federal agency). The government has certain rights in the invention." 

(g) Subcontracts 
(1) The contractor will include this clause, suitably modified to identify the parties, in all subcontracts, 

regardless of tier, for experimental, developmental or research work. The subcontractor will retain 
all rights provided for the contractor in this clause, and the contractor will not, as part of the 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

consideration for awarding the subcontract, obtain rights in the subcontractor's subject inventions. 
(2) In the case of subcontracts, at any tier, when the prime award with the Federal agency was a 

contract (but not a grant or cooperative agreement), the agency, subcontractor, and the 
contractor agree that the mutual obligations of the parties created by this clause constitute a 
contract between the subcontractor and the Federal agency with respect to the matters covered 
by the clause; provided, however, that nothing in this paragraph is intended to confer any 
jurisdiction under the Contract Disputes Act in connection with proceedings under paragraph (i) of 
this clause. 

(h) Reporting on Utilization of Subject Inventions 
The Contractor agrees to submit on request periodic reports no more frequently than annually on the 
utilization of a subject invention or on efforts at obtaining such utilization that are being made by the 
contractor or its licensees or assignees. Such reports shall include information regarding the status of 
development, date of first commercial sale or use, gross royalties received by the contractor, and such 
other data and information as the agency may reasonably specify. The contractor also agrees to provide 
additional reports as may be requested by the agency in connection with any march-in proceeding 
undertaken by the agency in accordance with paragraph (i) of this clause. As required by 35 U.S.C. 
202(c) (5), the agency agrees it will not disclose such information to persons outside the government 
without permission of the contractor. 

(i) Preference for United States Industry 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this clause, the contractor agrees that neither it nor any 
assignee will grant to any person the exclusive right to use or sell any subject inventions in the United 
States unless such person agrees that any products embodying the subject invention or produced 
through the use of the subject invention will be manufactured substantially in the United States. 
However, in individual cases, the requirement for such an agreement may be waived by the Federal 
agency upon a showing by the contractor or its assignee that reasonable but unsuccessful efforts have 
been made to grant licenses on similar terms to potential licensees that would be likely to manufacture 
substantially in the United States or that under the circumstances domestic manufacture is not 
commercially feasible. 

(j) March-in Rights 
The contractor agrees that with respect to any subject invention in which it has acquired title, the 
Federal agency has the right in accordance with the procedures in 37 CFR 401.6 and any supplemental 
regulations of the agency to require the contractor, an assignee or exclusive licensee of a subject 
invention to grant a nonexclusive, partially exclusive, or exclusive license in any field of use to a 
responsible applicant or applicants, upon terms that are reasonable under the circumstances, and if the 
contractor, assignee, or exclusive licensee refuses such a request the Federal agency has the right to 
grant such a license itself if the Federal agency determines that: 

(1) Such action is necessary because the contractor or assignee has not taken or is not expected to take 
within a reasonable time, effective steps to achieve practical application of the subject invention in 
such field of use. 

(2) Such action is necessary to alleviate health or safety needs which are not reasonably satisfied by the 
contractor, assignee or their licensees; 

(3) Such action is necessary to meet requirements for public use specified by Federal regulations and 
such requirements are not reasonably satisfied by the contractor, assignee or licensees; or 

(4) Such action is necessary because the agreement required by paragraph (i) of this clause has not 
been obtained or waived or because a licensee of the exclusive right to use or sell any subject 
invention in the United States is in breach of such agreement. 

(k) Special Provisions for Contracts with Nonprofit 
Organizations If the contractor is a nonprofit organization, 
it agrees that: 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

(1) Rights to a subject invention in the United States may not be assigned without the approval of the 
Federal agency, except where such assignment is made to an organization which has as one of its 
primary functions the management of inventions, provided that such assignee will be subject to the 
same provisions as the contractor; 

(2) The contractor will share royalties collected on a subject invention with the inventor, including 
Federal employee co-inventors (when the agency deems it appropriate) when the subject 
invention is assigned in accordance with 35 U.S.C. 202(e) and 37 CFR 401.10; 

(3) The balance of any royalties or income earned by the contractor with respect to subject inventions, 
after payment of expenses (including payments to inventors) incidental to the administration of 
subject inventions, will be utilized for the support of scientific research or education; and 

(4) It will make efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances to attract licensees of subject 
invention that are small business firms and that it will give a preference to a small business firm 
when licensing a subject invention if the contractor determines that the small business firm has a 
plan or proposal for marketing the invention which, if executed, is equally as likely to bring the 
invention to practical application as any plans or proposals from applicants that are not small 
business firms; provided, that the contractor is also satisfied that the small business firm has the 
capability and resources to carry out its plan or proposal. The decision whether to give a 
preference in any specific case will be at the discretion of the contractor. However, the contractor 
agrees that the Secretary applicants, and the contractor will negotiate changes to its licensing 
policies, procedures, or practices with the Secretary when the Secretary's review discloses that the 
contractor could take reasonable steps to implement more effectively the requirements of this 
paragraph (k)(4). 

(l) Communication 
Any communications to be given hereunder by either party to the other shall be deemed to be duly 
given if set forth in writing and personally delivered or sent by mail, registered or certified, postage 
prepaid with return receipt requested, as follows: 

CONTRACTOR  CLIENT 
Tetra Tech, Inc.  Williamson County, TX 
2301 Lucien Way, Suite 120  710 S. Main Street, Ste. 101 
Maitland, FL 32751  Georgetown, TX 78626 

Written notices hereunder delivered personally shall be deemed communicated as of actual receipt; 
mailed notices shall be deemed communicated five (5) days after deposit in the mail, post prepaid, 
certified, in accordance with this Paragraph. 

CLEAN AIR ACT 

(For all awarded contracts with a value greater than $150,000.00) 

(m) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 

(n) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the (name of applicant entering into the contract) 
and understands and agrees that the (name of the applicant entering into the contract) will, in turn, 
report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, 
and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

(o) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA. 

FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT 

(For all awarded contracts with a value greater than $150,000.00) 

(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 etseq. 

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the (name of the applicant entering into the 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

contract) and understands and agrees that the (name of the applicant entering into the contract) will, in 
turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA. 

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor must complete enclosed certification 

(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, 
the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor’s principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 
180.995) or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) 
or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 

(2) The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and 
must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it 
enters into. 

(3) This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by Client. If it is later determined 
that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in 
addition to remedies available to (insert name of recipient/subrecipient/applicant), the Federal 
Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 

(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 
C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may 
arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such 
compliance in its lower tier covered transactions. 

 
BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT 

(For all awarded contracts with a value greater than $100,000.00. Contractor must complete enclosed certification 

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended) Contractors who apply or bid for an award of 
$100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has 
not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence 
an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 
U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with 
obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will 
forward the certification(s) to the awarding agency. 

The Contractor certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, 
the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in 
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the contractor shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with 
its instructions. 

(3) Contractor will include language of this certification in all subcontract awards at any tier and 
require that all recipients of subcontract awards in excess of $150,000.00 shall certify and disclose 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

accordingly. 
PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS 

(The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the EPA at 40 

C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with 
maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or 
the value of the quantity acquired by the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste 
management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an 
affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.) 

(1) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products 
containing recovered materials that are EPA designated items unless the product cannot be 
acquired: 

a) Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract 
performance schedule; 

b) Meeting contract performance requirements; or 
c) At a reasonable price. 

(2) Information about this requirement is available at EPA's Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines 
web site, http://www.epa.gov/cpg/. The list of EPA-designate items is available at 
http://www.epa.gov/cpg/products.htm. 

(3) The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of 
the Solid Waste Disposal Act.” 

 
ACCESS TO RECORDS 

The following access to records requirements apply to this contract: 

(1) The Contractor agrees to provide the Client, the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller General of 
the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, 
papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes 
of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 

(2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means 
whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 

(3) The Contractor agrees to provide the FEMA Administrator or his authorized representatives access 
to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract. 

(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the Client and the Contractor acknowledge 
and agree that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the 
FEMA Administrator or the Comptroller General of the United States. 

CHANGES 

To be eligible for FEMA assistance under the non-Federal entity’s FEMA grant or cooperative agreement, the cost 
of the change, modification, change order, or constructive change must be allowable, allocable, within the scope 
of its grant or cooperative agreement, and reasonable for the completion of project scope. 

FEMA recommends, therefore, that a non-Federal entity include a changes clause in its contract that describes 
how, if at all, changes can be made by either party to alter the method, price, or schedule of the work without 
breaching the contract. The language of the clause may differ depending on the nature of the contract and the 
end-item procured. 

DHS SEAL, LOGO, AND FLAGS 

The contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency 
officials without specific FEMA pre-approval. 

COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LAW, REGULATIONS, AND EXECUTIVE ORDERS 

http://www.epa.gov/cpg/
http://www.epa.gov/cpg/products.htm


MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund all or a portion of the contract. The 
contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, 
and directives. 

NO OBLIGATION BY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 

The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the non-
Federal entity, contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract. 

PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS 

The Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) 
applies to the Contractor’s actions pertaining to this contract. 

PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTING FOR COVERED TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT OR SERVICES 

2 C.F.R. § 200.216, as implemented by FEMA Policy 405-143-1, prohibits the Contractor from using equipment, 
services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential 
component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. 

DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENTS 

As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Contractor agrees, to the greatest extent practicable, 
prefer the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including 
but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). 

AFFIRMATIVE SOCIOECONOMIC STEPS 

If subcontracts are to be let, the prime contractor is required to take all necessary steps identified in 2 C.F.R. § 
200.321(b)(1)-(5) to ensure that small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus 
area firms are used when possible. 

COPYRIGHT AND DATA RIGHTS 

“License and Delivery of Works Subject to Copyright and Data Rights” 

The Contractor grants to the Client a paid-up, royalty-free, nonexclusive, irrevocable, worldwide license in data 
first produced in the performance of this contract to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, including prepare 
derivative works, distribute copies to the public, and perform publicly and display publicly such data. For data 
required by the contract but not first produced in the performance of this contract, the Contractor will identify 
such data and grant to the Client or acquires on its behalf a license of the same scope as for data first produced in 
the performance of this contract. Data, as used herein, shall include any work subject to copyright under 17 U.S.C. 
§ 102, for example, any written reports or literary works, software and/or source code, music, choreography, 
pictures or images, graphics, sculptures, videos, motion pictures or other audiovisual works, sound and/or video 
recordings, and architectural works. Upon or before the completion of this contract, the Contractor will deliver to 
the Client data first produced in the performance of this contract and data required by the contract but not first 
produced in the performance of this contract in formats acceptable by the Client.” 

BUILD AMERICA, BUY AMERICA ACT 
Contractors and their subcontractors who apply or bid for an award for an infrastructure project subject to the 
domestic preference requirement in the Build America, Buy America Act (“BABAA”) shall file the required 
certification to the non-federal entity with each bid or offer for an infrastructure project, unless a domestic 
preference requirement is waived by FEMA. Contractors and subcontractors certify that no federal financial 
assistance funding for infrastructure projects will be provided unless all the iron, steel, manufactured projects, and 
construction materials used in the project are produced in the United States. BABAA, Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-
52. Contractors and subcontractors shall also disclose any use of federal financial assistance for infrastructure 
projects that does not ensure compliance with BABAA domestic preference requirement. Such disclosures shall be 
forwarded to the recipient who, in turn, will forward the disclosures to FEMA, the federal awarding agency; 
subrecipients will forward disclosures to the pass-through entity, who will, in turn, forward the disclosures to 
FEMA.   



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATION 

 
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements-The undersigned certifies, to the best of his 
or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 

1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of 
any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its 
instructions. 

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in 
the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, 
subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and 
that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the 
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

The Contractor,  Tetra Tech, Inc., certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each 
statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees 
that the provisions of 31 U.S.C.Chap. 38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements, apply 
to this certification and disclosure, if any. 
 

 
 

             
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
Jonathan Burgiel, Business Unit President         
Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
 6/3/2024           
Date 

 

 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

 
DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 

 
Non-Federal entities and contractors are subject to the debarment and suspension regulations implementing 
Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive Order 12689, Debarment and Suspension 
(1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and the Department of Homeland Security’s regulations at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (No 
procurement Debarment and Suspension). 
 
This requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative agreement programs. 
 
Federal Executive Order (E .O.) 12549 "Debarment" requires that all contractors receiving individual awards, using 
federal funds, and all sub recipients certify that the organization and its principals are not debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any Federal department or agency from 
doing business with the Federal Government. By signing this document, you certify that your organization and its 
principals are not debarred. Failure to comply or attempts to edit this language may disqualify your bid. 
Information on debarment is available at the following websites: www.sam.gov and 
https://acguisition.qov/far/index.html see section 52.209-6. 
 
The Contractor, Tetra Tech, Inc., certifies or affirms by your signature that neither you nor your principal is 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. 
 

 
 

 
             
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
Jonathan Burgiel, Business Unit President         
Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
 6/3/2024           
Date 

https://acguisition.qov/far/index.html%20see%20section%2052.209-6


MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

 
CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE PROVISIONS 

 
1. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (Equal Opportunity Clause) 

(For all awarded contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" provided in 41 
CFR Part 60-1.3) 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 

1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will 
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated 
during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. 

2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 
contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without 
regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or 
disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This 
provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation 
information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions 
discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not 
otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal 
complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an 
investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish 
information. 

4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a 
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising 
the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section 
and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 
employment. 

5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and 
of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant 
thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and 
the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, 
regulations, and orders. 

7) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or 
with any of the said rules, regulations, or order this contract may be canceled, terminated, or 
suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government 
contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in 
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and 
remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, 
regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

8) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the 
provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive 
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor 
or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as 
the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for 
noncompliance: 
Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, 
litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the 
contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the 
United States. 
The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect 
to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: 
Provided, that if the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above equal 
opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government 
which does not participate in work on or under the contract. 
The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the 
Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal 
opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it 
will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require 
for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in 
the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance. 
The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract 
modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor debarred 
from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted 
construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and 
penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and 
subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of 
the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these 
undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, 
terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain 
from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the 
failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from 
such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 

 

 
 

 
             
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
Jonathan Burgiel, Business Unit President         
Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
 6/3/2024           
Date 



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR COUNTYWIDE DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES  

 

 

BUILD AMERICA BUY AMERICA ACT SELF-CERTIFICATION 
 
The undersigned certifies, to the best of their knowledge and belief, that: The Build America, Buy America Act 
(BABAA) requires that no federal financial assistance for “infrastructure” projects is provided “unless all of the iron, 
steel, manufactured products, and construction materials used in the project are produced in the United States.” 
section 70914 of Public Law No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52. The undersigned certifies that the iron, steel, manufactured 
products, and construction materials used in this contract are in full compliance with the BABAA requirements 
including:  
 

1. All iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States. This means all manufacturing 
processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United 
States. 

2. All manufactured products purchased with FEMA financial assistance must be produced in the United 
States. For a manufactured product to be considered produced in the United States, the cost of the 
components of the manufactured product that are mined, produced, or manufactured in the United 
States is greater than 55% of the total cost of all components of the manufactured product, unless 
another standard for determining the minimum amount of domestic content of the manufactured 
product has been established under applicable law or regulation.   

3. All construction materials are manufactured in the United States. This means that all manufacturing 
processes for the construction material occurred in the United States.  
 

The Contractor, Tetra Tech, Inc., certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its 
certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 
U.S.C. Chap. 38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements, apply to this certification and 
disclosure, if any. 
 

 
 

 
             
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
Jonathan Burgiel, Business Unit President         
Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
 6/3/2024           
Date 
 
 











o
o



































85%

95%

70%

45%
A

B

C

D

85%

95%

70%

45%

85%85%

95%95%

70%70%

45%45%
A

B

C

D





























–









ITEM DESCRIPTION Unit Unit Price

1 Project Manager per hour $72.00
2 Debris Monitor Supervisor per hour $45.00
3 Loading Site Monitor per hour $34.00
4 Debris Management Site Monitor per hour $34.00
5 Roving Debris Monitor per hour $5.00
6 Debris Management Consultant per hour $5.00
7 Clerical/Administrative Suppport per hour $33.00

$228.00

BID FORM
The following list of labor rates are to be fully burdened and all inclusive of all taxes, benefits, fringe benefits and profits, insurance, hand 

tools, supervision, fuel, and any other incidental costas in hourly labor rates

Total

In the event a rate increase adjustment is agreed to by the County, rates for the subsequent years after the first term of the agreement 
and any extension term years shall be subject to an annual adjustment on the anniversary date of the contract in accordance with the U.S.
Consumer Price Index.



 

1 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  § 

 

 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY  

ADDENDUM 

 FOR  

FEMA RELATED PURCHASES 

(Required FEMA Contract Provisions) 

 

 

 

THE UNDERSIGNED CONTRACTOR AGREES TO COMPLY WITH THE 

FOLLOWING FEMA REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS TO THE EXTENT THAT 

SUCH PROVISIONS ARE APPLICABLE UNDER THE CONTRACT DESCRIBED 

HEREINBELOW, WHICH IS BETWEEN CONTRACTOR AND WILLIAMSON 

COUNTY, TEXAS (“County”). CONTRACTOR AND COUNTY HEREBY AGREE THE 

CONTRACT SHALL BE AMENDED TO INCORPORATE THE TERMS AND 

CONDITIONS OF THIS ADDENDUM.  AS AMENDED, THE CONTRACT SHALL 

REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ACCORDING TO ITS TERMS AND 

CONDITIONS. THIS ADDENDUM SUPERSEDES ANY AND ALL PRIOR 

UNDERSTANDINGS AND AGREEMENTS, ORAL OR WRITTEN, RELATING TO THE 

SUBJECT MATTER.  IN THE EVENT THERE IS A CONFLICT BETWEEN THE 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT AND THE TERMS AND 

CONDITIONS OF THIS ADDENDUM, THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

OF THIS ADDENDUM SHALL CONTROL:    

  

SECTION I. TERMINATION   

a. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the 

Contract for default if Contractor breaches any of the Contract specifications, 

terms and conditions, including warranties of the Contractor, if any, or if the 

Contractor becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of 

termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies the County 

may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided 

hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver 

the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to 

properly perform any and all other requirements to the County's satisfaction, 

and/or to meet all other obligations and requirements.  

b. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract for 

convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty 

(30) calendar days written notice to Contractor.  The County reserves the 

right to extend this period if it is in the best interest of the County.   In the 



 

2 
 

event the County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 

understood and agreed that only the amounts due to Contractor for goods, 

commodities and/or services provided, and expenses incurred to and 

including the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will 

be assessed for the County's termination for convenience.  

SECTION II. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY  

a. The following Section (Equal Employment Opportunity) is applicable for 

construction contracts.  

i. Construction Work. The regulation at 41 C.F.R.§60-1.3 defines 

“construction work” as the construction, rehabilitation, alteration, 

conversion, extension, demolition or repair of buildings, highways, or other 

changes or improvements to real property, including facilities providing 

utility services. The term also includes the supervision, inspection, and 

other onsite functions incidental to the actual construction. 

b. During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:  

1. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or 

applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 

sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The 

Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are 

employed, and that employees are treated during employment 

without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 

gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not 

be limited to the following:  

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or 

recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other 

forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 

apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, 

available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 

provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination 

clause. 

2. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for 

employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all 

qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment 

without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 

gender identity, or national origin. 

3. The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner 

discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, 

or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or 

another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to 



 

3 
 

instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation 

information of other employees or applicants as a part of such 

employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of 

such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not 

otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is 

in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an 

investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an 

investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the 

Contractor's legal duty to furnish information. 

4. The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of 

workers, with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or 

other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the 

said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's 

commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice 

in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 

employment. 

5. The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 

11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and 

relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

6. The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by 

Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, 

regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant 

thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts 

by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes 

of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, 

and orders. 

7. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the 

nondiscrimination clauses of this Contract or with any of the said 

rules, regulations, or orders, this Contract may be canceled, 

terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may 

be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally 

assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures 

authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and 

such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 

provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by 

rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise 

provided by law. 

8. The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately 

preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) 

through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted 

by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued 



 

4 
 

pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 

1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 

subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with 

respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering 

agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, 

including sanctions for noncompliance: 

Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved 

in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as 

a result of such direction by the administering agency, the 

Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation 

to protect the interests of the United States. 

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal 

opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices 

when it participates in federally assisted construction work: 

Provided, That if the applicant so participating is a State or local 

government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to 

any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government 

which does not participate in work on or under the Contract. 

The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with 

the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the 

compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal 

opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of 

the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency 

and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for 

the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist 

the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's primary 

responsibility for securing compliance. 

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into 

any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 

11246 of September 24, 1965, with a Contractor debarred from, or 

who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and 

federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive 

Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation 

of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors 

and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of 

Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In 

addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with 

these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of 

the following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in 

part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from 

extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program 



 

5 
 

with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory 

assurance of future compliance has been received from such 

applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for 

appropriate legal proceedings. 

SECTION III. DAVIS-BACON ACT (Applicable for Construction Contracts over $2,000) 

a. All transactions regarding this Contract shall be done in compliance with the 

Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) and the 

requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as may be applicable. The Contractor shall 

comply with 40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 and the requirements of 

29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as applicable. 

b. Contractors are required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not 

less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the 

Secretary of Labor.  

c. Additionally, contractors are required to pay wages not less than once a week.   

SECTION IV. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT (Applicable for Construction Contacts over 

$2,000) 

a. Contractor. The Contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. §874, 40 

U.S.C.§3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be applicable, 

which are incorporated by reference into this Contract.  

b. Subcontracts. The Contractor or its subcontractor shall insert in any 

subcontracts the clause above and such other clauses as FEMA may by appropriate 

instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these 

clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible 

for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all of these 

Contract clauses. 

c. Breach. A breach of the Contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of 

the Contract, and for debarment as a Contractor and subcontractor as provided in 

C.F.R. § 5.122.  

SECTION V. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT  

a. The following Section (Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act) is 

applicable for contracts awarded in excess of $100,000 that involve the 

employment of mechanics or laborers.  

b. Overtime requirements. No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of 

the Contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or 

mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek 

in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in 

such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate 

not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in 

excess of forty hours in such workweek. 



 

6 
 

c. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any 

violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (b) of this section the Contractor and 

any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In 

addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in 

the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to 

such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages 

shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including 

watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 

(b) of this section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual 

was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty 

hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in 

paragraph (b) of this section. 

d. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The County shall upon its 

own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the 

Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable 

on account of work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such 

contract or any other federal contract with the same prime Contractor, or any other 

federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety 

Standards Act, which is held by the same prime Contractor, such sums as may be 

determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or 

subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause 

set forth in paragraph (c) of this section. 

e. Subcontracts. The Contractor or its subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts 

the clauses set forth in paragraph (b) through (e) of this section and also a clause 

requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any of its subcontractors or 

lower tier subcontractors with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (b) through (e) of 

this section. 

SECTION VI. CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT 

(Applicable to Contracts over $150,000)  

a. Clean Air Act: 

i. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or 

regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 

7401 et seq. 

ii. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the County and 

understands and agrees that the County will, in turn, report each violation 

as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA), and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency 

Regional office.  



 

7 
 

iii. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract 

exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with federal assistance 

provided by FEMA.  

b. Federal Water Pollution Act:  

i. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or 

regulations issued pursuant to the federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 

amended, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq. 

ii. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the County and 

understands and agrees that the County will, in turn, report each violation 

as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA), and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency 

Regional office.  

iii. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract 

exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with federal assistance 

provided by FEMA.  

SECTION VII. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (Applicable to Contracts over $25,000)  

a. This Contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and 2 

C.F.R. Part 3000. As such, the Contractor is required to verify that none of the 

Contractor’s principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its affiliates (defined at 

2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified 

(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 

b. The Contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 180, subpart C and 2C.F.R 

Part 3000, subpart C, and must include a requirement to comply with these 

regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.  

c. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by County. 

If it is later determined that the Contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R Part 

180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. Part 3000, subpart C, in addition to the remedies 

available to County, the federal government may pursue available remedies, 

including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.  

SECTION VIII. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT (Applicable to Contracts over $100,000)  

a. Contractors who apply or bid for an award of more than $100,000 shall file the 

required certification with the County. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it 

will not and has not used federally appropriated funds to pay any person or 

organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 

any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an 

employee of a Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal 

contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall 

also disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that takes place in connection 

with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier 



 

8 
 

up to the recipient who in turn will forward the certification(s) to the federal 

awarding agency. 

SECTION IX. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS (Applicable to Contracts over 

$10,000 and involves use of certain materials designated by EPA)  

a. In the performance of this Contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of 

products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the 

product cannot be acquired:  

i. Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the 

Contract performance schedule; 

ii. Meeting contract performance requirements; or 

iii. At a reasonable price.  

b. Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is 

available at EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines webpage: 

https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-guideline-cpg-program. 

c. Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 

6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act.  

SECTION X. PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTING FOR COVERED TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

EQUIPMENT OR SERVICES  

a. Definitions. As used in this clause, the terms backhaul; covered foreign country; 

covered telecommunications equipment or services; interconnection arrangements; 

roaming; substantial or essential component; and telecommunications equipment 

or services have the meaning as defined in FEMA Policy 405-143-1, Prohibitions 

on Expending FEMA Award Funds for Covered Telecommunications Equipment 

or Services (Interim), as used in this clause.  

b. Prohibitions: 

i. Section 889(b) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization 

Act for Fiscal Year 2019, Pub. L. No. 115-232, and 2 C.F.R. §200.216 

prohibit the head of an executive agency on or after Aug. 13, 2020, 

from obligating or expending grant, cooperative agreement, loan, or 

loan guarantee funds on certain telecommunications products or from 

certain entities for national security reasons.  

ii. Unless an exception in paragraph (c) of this clause appl ies, the 

Contractor and its subcontractors may not use grant, cooperative 

agreement, loan, or loan agreement from the Federal Emergency 

Management Agency to:  

1. Procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses 

covered telecommunications equipment or services as a 

substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical 



 

9 
 

technology of any system, or as critical technology of any 

system;  

2. Enter into, extend, or renew a contact to procure or obtain any 

equipment, system, or service that uses covered 

telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or 

essential component of any system, or as critical technology of 

any system; 

3. Enter into, extend, or renew contracts with entities that use 

covered telecommunications equipment or services as a 

substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical 

technology as part of any system; or  

4. Provide, as part of its performance of this Contract, 

subcontract, or other contractual instrument, any equipment, 

system, or service that uses covered telecommunications 

equipment or services as a substantial or essential component 

of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.  

c. Exceptions: 

i. This clause does not prohibit contractors from providing:  

1. A service that connects to the facilities of a third-party, such 

as backhaul, roaming, or interconnection arrangements; or  

2. Telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect 

user data traffic or permit visibility into any user data or 

packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles.  

ii. By necessary implication and regulation, the prohibitions also do not 

apply to:  

1. Covered telecommunications equipment or services that:  

a. Are not used as a substantial or essential component of 

any system; and  

b. Are not used as critical technology of any system.  

2. Other telecommunications equipment or services that are not 

considered covered telecommunications equipment or services.  

d. Reporting Requirement.  

i. In the event the Contractor identifies covered telecommunications 

equipment or services used as a substantial or essential component of 

any system, or as critical technology as part of any system, during 

contact performance, or the Contractor is notified of such by a 

subcontractor as any tier or by any other source, the Contractor shall 



 

10 
 

report the information in paragraph (d)(ii) of this clause to the 

recipient or subrecipient, unless elsewhere in this contact are 

established procedures for reporting the information.  

ii. The Contractor shall report the following information pursuant to 

paragraph (d)(i) of this clause:  

1. Within one business day from the date of such identification or 

notification: The Contract number; the order number(s), if 

applicable; supplier name; supplier unique entity identifier (if 

known) supplier Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) 

code (if known); brand; model number (original equipment 

manufacturer number, manufacturer part number; or 

wholesaler number); item description; and any readily 

available information about mitigation  actions undertaken or 

recommended.  

2. Within 10 business days of submitting the information in 

paragraph (d)(ii)(1) of this clause: Any further available 

information about mitigation actions undertaken or 

recommended. In addition, the Contractor shall describe the 

efforts it undertook to prevent use or submission of covered 

telecommunications equipment or services, and any additional 

efforts that will be incorporated to prevent future use or 

submission od covered telecommunications equipment or 

services.  

e. Subcontracts. The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this 

paragraph (e), in all subcontracts and other contractual instruments. 

SECTION XI. DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENTS 

a. As appropriate, and to the extent consistent with law, the Contractor should, to the 

greatest extent practicable, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or 

use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States. This includes, 

but is not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured 

products. 

b. For purposes of the clause:  

i. Produced in the United States means, for iron and steel products , that 

all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the 

application of coatings, occurred in the United States.  

ii. Manufactured products means items and construction materials 

composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; 

plastic and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; 



 

11 
 

aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and 

lumber.  

 

Contract: 

Name of Contract:  ____________________________________________________________ 

Effective Date of Contract:  _____________________ _____, 20____ 

Williamson County Solicitation (if applicable):  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WITNESS that this Addendum shall be effective as of the date of the last party’s execution 

below. 

 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY:    CONTRACTOR: 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Authorized Signature     Name of Contractor  

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Printed Name      Authorized Signature  

 

Date:             , 20                     

Printed Name 

 

       Date:             , 20              

 

 

RFP #24RFP36 Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring Services

Tetra Tech, Inc.

Jonathan Burgiel

May 2 24

TBD

Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring Services





Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 04/26/2024

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Tetra Tech, Inc.
Houston, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

Williamson County, Texas

Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring Services
RFP #24RFP36

2024-1152839

06/04/2024

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5
X

My address is _______________________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _______________________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V3.5.1.5b35d027www.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 32.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Award of RFP # 24RFP46 HVAC Air Filter Maintenance Services for Williamson County, Texas, to Tex-Air Filters for
Facilities Management
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Stacian Williams, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFP #24RFP46 for the HVAC Air Filter Maintenance
Services for Williamson County, Texas, to Tex-Air Filters and authorizing execution of the agreement.

Background
Williamson County sent out over two thousand, one hundred and twenty (2,120) notifications and had
fifty-three (53) document takers with two (2) firms submitting a response. The vendors were evaluated, and the
Evaluation Committee recommends that the County award Tex-Air Filters the HVAC Air Filter Maintenance
Services for Williamson County, Texas, contract under RFP # 24RFP46. The solicitation documents and vendor’s
response will serve as the contract documents per General Counsel's advice. The initial contract term shall be
for a period beginning on the date of award and shall expire on or before September 30, 2026. Funding source is
01.0100.0509.004500 and 01.0100.0509.004510 with a total budget of $550,000.00. The point of contact is
Shantil Moore.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Letter of Recommendation 
Scoring Matrix 
Form 1295 - Tex-Air Filters 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 06/06/2024 09:13 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 09:42 AM
Form Started By: Stacian Williams Started On: 05/21/2024 02:30 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 









Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 05/24/2024

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Williamson County
Georgetown, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

Williamson County

HVAC Air Filter Maintenance Services for Williamson County, Texas.
24RFP46

2024-1166094

05/31/2024

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5
X

My address is _______________________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _______________________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V4.1.0.d378aba0www.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 33.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Historic Courthouse Exterior Painting - Change Order #1
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Christy Matoska, Facilities Management
Department: Facilities Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Receive and acknowledge approval of Change Order No. 1 from J.T. Vaughn Construction Co. for the Historic
Courthouse - Exterior Painting Project in the amount of $13,327.00, which was approved by Williamson County
Facilities County Architect, Trenton Jacobs pursuant to the Commissioners Court’s prior delegation of change
order approval authority pursuant to Loc. Gov’t Code Sec. 262.031.

Background
This change order is to compensate the contractor for additional services.  Williamson County
Facilities County Architect, Trenton Jacobs was delegated change order approval authority for this
project on March 22, 2022 by the Commissioners Court pursuant to Williamson County Facilities
pursuant to Loc. Gov’t Code Sec. 262.031.  This item is to acknowledge such approval and record same
into the minutes of the Commissioners Court.  

Missing Custom Expenditures Program, please contact Destiny Software

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Historic Courthouse - Exterior Painting CO1 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 06/06/2024 08:10 AM
Facilities Management (Originator) Christy Matoska 06/06/2024 08:56 AM
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 06/06/2024 09:06 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:43 AM
Form Started By: Christy Matoska Started On: 06/05/2024 09:26 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 





   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 34.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Park Donations BA Rev 06-11-24
Submitted For: Ganae Hempe  Submitted By: Ganae Hempe, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due to
unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge additional revenues for Park
Donations.

Background
This is for donation collections for January 01, 2024 through March 31, 2024.  Donations include $441.00 in
general donations.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367403 Park Donations $441.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:43 AM
Form Started By: Ganae Hempe Started On: 06/05/2024 03:44 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 35.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Park Donations BA Exp 06-11-24
Submitted For: Ganae Hempe  Submitted By: Ganae Hempe, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due to
unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge additional expenditures for Park
Donations.

Background
This is for donation collections for January 01, 2024 through March 31, 2024.  Donations include $441.00 in
general donations.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0510.003670 Use of Donations  $441.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:43 AM
Form Started By: Ganae Hempe Started On: 06/05/2024 03:50 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 36.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
LIT for the Park's Department
Submitted By: Roxanne Salone, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Park's Department. 

Background
Transfer of funds is necessary to fully fund construction of the parking lot paving project at the
Southwest Williamson County Regional Park disc golf and trailhead parking area. 
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0510.004509 Facility Enhancements $60,000.00
From 0100.0510.004510 Facility Repairs $20,000.00
From 0100.0510.004542 Grounds Maintenance $25,000.00
From 0100.0510.005711 Heavy Equipment >$5,000 $30,000.00
To 0100.0510.004514 Park Maint-Roads & Parking Lot $135,000.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:45 AM
Form Started By: Roxanne Salone Started On: 06/06/2024 09:36 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 37.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
2019 Road Bond Transfer 
Submitted By: Roxanne Salone, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on transferring $40,000 from P374 (Thrall Street) to P371 (East
Wilco Highway Corridor E2) and move the remaining amount of $20,344.80 from P374 (Thrall Street) to P372
(East Wilco Highway Corridor E3). Also to transfer $2,000,000 from P399 (2019 Road Bond Non-Departmental)
to P366 (CR 332 Realignment).  

Background
Please see the attached memo for further details.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
2019 Road Bond Memo 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 09:43 AM
Form Started By: Roxanne Salone Started On: 06/06/2024 07:46 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



HNTB Corporation  101 E Old Settlers Blvd  Telephone (512) 744‐9082 
Engineers  Architects  Planners Suite 225  www.hntb.com 

  Round Rock, TX 78664   

    
 

Ms. Tomika Lynce 
Williamson County Auditor’s Office 
Historic County Courthouse 
710 Main Street, Ste. 301  
Georgetown, TX 78626 
 

June 4, 2024 
 

 
Re:        2019 Road Bond Budget Transfer and Project Close-Out 

 
Dear Ms. Lynce, 
 
Please make the following budget allocations for the 2019 Road Bond Program: 
 

 Move $40,000.00 from P374 Thrall Street to P371 East Wilco Highway (Corridor E2); 
 Close P374 Thrall Street and move remainder estimated at $20,344.80 to P372 East Wilco 

Highway (Corridor E3); 
 Move $2,000,000.00 from P399 2019 Unallocated Interest to P366 CR 332 Realignment. 

 
 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
 
Thank you. 
 

 
 
Kate Wilder, P.E.  
 
 
Cc: Pam Navarrette, Williamson County Auditor’s Office 
 Julie Kiley, Williamson County Auditor’s Office 
 Robert B. Daigh, P.E., Williamson County Senior Director of Infrastructure 
 Christen A. Eschberger, P.E. 

Michael J. Weaver., HNTB 
 Marie Walters, HNTB 
 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 38.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
LTP Transfer
Submitted By: Roxanne Salone, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on transferring $145,000 from P457 (LTP ROW) to P600
(Chandler Corridor Segment 2).

Background
Please see attached memo for more details.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
FY24 LTP Memo 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 09:44 AM
Form Started By: Roxanne Salone Started On: 06/06/2024 08:32 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



HNTB Corporation  101 E Old Settlers Blvd  Telephone (512) 744‐9082 
Engineers  Architects  Planners Suite 225  www.hntb.com 

  Round Rock, TX 78664   

    
 

Ms. Tomika Lynce 
Williamson County Auditor’s Office 
Historic County Courthouse 
710 Main Street, Ste. 301  
Georgetown, TX 78626 
 

June 4, 2024 
 

 
Re:        FY 2024 Transportation Corridor Budget Adjustment  

 
 
Dear Ms. Lynce, 
 
Please make the following budget adjustment for the Long-Term Planning Projects: 
 

 Move $145,000.00 from P457 LTP ROW to P600 Chandler Corridor Segment 2. 
 
 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Thank you. 
 

 
 
Kate Wilder, P.E. 
 
 
Cc: Julie Kiley, Williamson County Auditor’s Office 

Pam Navarrette, Williamson County Auditor’s Office 
 Robert B. Daigh, P.E., Williamson County Senior Director of Infrastructure 
 J. Terron Evertson, P.E., Williamson County Engineer 
 Christen A. Eschberger, P.E., HNTB 
 Michael J. Weaver, HNTB 
 Marie Walters, HNTB 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 39.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
2021 Hail Storm Transfer
Submitted By: Roxanne Salone, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on transferring $24,649.54 from P592 (Blackland Hailstorm) and
$42,926.46 from P589 (Berry Springs Hailstorm) to P696 (SWRP Parking Lot Paving).

Background
Transfer of funds is necessary to create P696 (SWRP Parking Lot Paving) and to fully fund construction of the
parking lot paving project at the Southwest Williamson County Park disc golf and trailhead parking area. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:44 AM
Form Started By: Roxanne Salone Started On: 06/06/2024 09:12 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 40.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
CR 133 Development Agreement with Hutto 525 Development Partners – Pct 4
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Adam Boatright, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Development Agreement with Hutto 525 Development
Partners for improvements to CR 133.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
CR 133 Development Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 11:58 AM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 06/06/2024 11:46 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
CR 133 ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 
 This Development Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the Effective Date 
(as defined below), by and between Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision, (“County”) 
and Hutto 525 Development Partners, a Delaware limited partnership (“Owner”). The County and 
Owner are each sometimes individually referred to herein as a “Party” and they are sometimes 
collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”. 
 

RECITALS 
 

 A. Owner is developing land located adjacent to CR 133 south of FM 1660 in the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”) of the city of Hutto in Williamson County, Texas (the “Land”).  
 
 B. Owner desires to construct a residential community on the Land and, in connection 
therewith, is seeking the County’s support and assurances regarding the Owner’s ability to 
construct certain road improvements within the County’s portion of the CR 133 right-of-way. 
 
 C. Owner and the County desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth the terms and 
conditions upon which Owner will construct the aforementioned road improvements. 
 

AGREEMENTS 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and mutual agreements of 
the Parties set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein for all 
purposes. 
 
 2. Certain Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the 
following respective meanings: 
 
   
  a. “Effective Date” means the date on which this Agreement becomes signed 

by both Parties, as established by reference to the latest of the dates set forth in the 
acknowledgments of the Parties, below. 

 
  b. “Project” means the Flora development, a residential community consisting 

of approximately 2,700 units, 
 



 
2. 

  c. “Property” means the Land, together with all minerals, improvements and 
personal property located in, on, under or at the Land, whether such minerals, 
improvements or personal property are owned, leased or possessed by Owner. 

 
  d. “Road Project” means the construction and widening of CR 133 to include 

a turning and deceleration lane to facilitate left turns into the Project by vehicles heading 
southbound on CR 133 at the proposed Flora Blvd.  A location map generally depicting the 
Road Project is attached as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes. A drawing 
generally depicting the Road Project located within County’s and City’s portions of the CR 
133 right-of-way is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
  e. “Road Project Improvements” means the completed widening of,  and 

improvements to, CR 133 located within the County’s portion of the existing CR 133 right-
of-way, to be constructed during the Road Project, as shown generally on Exhibit “B” 
attached hereto. 

 
 3. County Consideration. In return for Owner’s construction of the Road Project 
Improvements and subsequent dedication of such improvements to the County, County agrees to 
allow Owner to utilize the County’s portion of the CR 133 right-of-way for access to the Project. 
Upon completion of the Road Project Improvements and passing all inspections, the Road Project 
Improvements within the County’s portion of the CR 133 right-of-way, will be owned, operated, 
and maintained by the County, until such time as another political entity is obligated to take over 
maintenance.  
 

4.  Term and Termination. 
 
  a. This Agreement shall be effective for a term (the “Term”) commencing on 

the Effective Date and expiring upon completion of the Road Project and the County’s 
acknowledgment of completion of the Road Project Improvements, unless terminated 
earlier in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  In any event, however, the Owner 
will commence the construction of the Road Improvement Project after the execution of 
this Agreement by both parties, and shall complete construction of the Road Improvement 
Project by December 31, 2024 unless an extension of the Term is granted pursuant to the 
terms set out herein. 

 
  b. The County understands and acknowledges that Owner will not commence 

construction of the Road Project unless and until Owner has obtained all requisite licenses, 
permits, consents, approvals and authorizations from the appropriate governmental 
authorities necessary for the lawful construction of the Road Project (collectively, the 
“Governmental Authorizations”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Agreement, Owner shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by written notice to 
the County if Owner has not obtained all Governmental Authorizations by July 1, 2024. 
Upon any termination of this Agreement by either Party, this Agreement shall become null 
and void and neither Party shall have any further rights or obligations hereunder.  

 
  c. The Term of this Agreement may be extended for an additional period or 

periods of time upon mutual written agreement of the Parties hereto. 



 
3. 

 
   
 
 5. Development Standards. Owner agrees to design and construct the Road Project in 
full compliance with the plans and specifications as prepared by BGE, Inc. on March 7, 2024 and 
April 11, 2024 (the “Plans and Specs”), which such Plans and Specs are incorporated herein by 
reference. Owner agrees to submit all final design plans (the “Final Design Plans”) to County prior 
to commencement of construction of the Road Project and the construction of the Road Project 
Improvements will be subject to County inspection and testing in accordance with the County’s 
normal subdivision inspection policies and procedures.   
 
 6. Road Project Improvements and Warranty.  Upon completion of the Road Project 
in accordance with the Plans and Specs and Final Design Plans, and passing all inspections, County 
will own, operate, and maintain the Road Project Improvements, unless and until another political 
entity is obligated to take over maintenance. Owner shall cause the contractor constructing the 
Road Project (the “Contractor”) to provide to the County, upon completion of the Road Project,  a 
maintenance bond, in the amount of 10% of the cost of the Road Project Improvements.  This 
security must be payable to the County Judge, or his successors in office, of Williamson County, 
Texas. The maintenance bond shall be valid for two years from the date of completion of the Road 
Project The Contractor will be notified of any deficiencies and given the opportunity to repair such 
deficiencies. If the Contractor does not provide repairs within 90 days, the bond will be used by 
the County to repair these deficiencies. 
 

8. Default. Should either Party default in any of its obligations hereunder, the non-
defaulting party shall provide the defaulting party notice of the default within thirty (30) days of 
discovery of the default. The defaulting party shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of written 
notice thereof from the non-defaulting Party to cure such default.  If the defaulting party does not 
cure the default within such 30-day period, then the non-defaulting Party shall be entitled to 
terminate this Agreement by written notice to the other Party and pursue any other remedies that 
may be available to the non-defaulting Party at law or in equity (including suit for specific 
performance or other equitable relief, if appropriate); provided, however, that with respect to any 
default other than failure to pay any sum when due hereunder, if such default is susceptible of cure 
but cannot reasonably be cured with the aforesaid 30-day period, and if the defaulting Party has 
commenced to cure such default within said 30-day period and is diligently prosecuting such cure, 
then the defaulting Party shall be afforded an additional reasonable period of time (not to exceed 
ninety (90) additional days) to effect such cure. The provisions of this Section 8 are in addition to, 
and not in lieu of, any other rights and remedies expressly set forth elsewhere in this Agreement. 
 
 9. Insurance and Indemnification. 

 
a.  Insurance. Owner shall cause the Contractor to obtain and maintain 

throughout the construction of the Road Project the insurance coverages stated in this 
Section. Prior to commencement of construction on the Road Project, Owner shall cause 
the Contractor to provide an insurance certificate acceptable to the County reflecting such 
insurance policies. Contractor shall not cause or permit any insurance policy to lapse or be 
cancelled prior to or during the Road Project and shall pay all premiums, deductibles and 



 
4. 

self-insured retentions, if any, stated in the policies. The County, its officials, employees 
and agents shall be named as additional insureds on all coverages required by this Section.  
Owner shall cause the Contractor to obtain and maintain the following insurance 
coverages: 
 

(i) Commercial general liability insurance with a minimum combined 
single limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence and a minimum $1,000,000 aggregate 
including products and completed operations and contractual liability coverage.  

 
(ii)  Comprehensive business automobile liability insurance with a 

minimum combined single limit of $500,000 including coverage for all owned, 
non-owned and hired autos. 

 
Only insurance written by a company with an AM Best rating of no less than a B+ VII and 
in good standing with the Texas State Board of Insurance shall be acceptable to the County. 

 
b.  Indemnity.  Owner shall cause the Contractor to indemnify, and hold the 

County, its officers, employees and elected officials harmless from and against all suits, 
actions, legal proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses, attorney’s fees, and 
any and all other costs or fees arising out of, or incident to, concerning or resulting from 
the negligence or willful misconduct of Contractor, or its agents, employees or 
subcontractors, or any participant or attendee of the Road Project arising from, associated 
with, or otherwise relating to the construction of the Road Project, no matter how, or to 
whom, such loss may occur.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the rights of County 
(including, but not limited to the right to seek contribution) against any third party who 
may be liable for an indemnified claim. Maintenance of the insurance required hereunder 
shall not limit Contractor’s obligations under this paragraph. 

 
 10. Miscellaneous Provisions. 
 
  a. Successors and Assigns. 
 
  i. Owner shall not be entitled to assign this Agreement or any of 

Owner’s rights or obligations hereunder to any other person or entity without the 
prior written consent of the County, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
conditioned, withheld or delayed; provided that Owner shall have the right (with 
notice to, but without having to obtain the consent of, the County) to assign its 
rights and obligations under this Agreement to any Affiliate of Owner to whom 
Owner transfers title to all, but not less than all, of the Owner’s Property thereon. 
As used in the immediately preceding sentence, the term “Affiliate” means any 
entity that controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Owner, where 
the term “control” and its derivatives means the power to direct the overall 
management and policies of an entity, whether through the ownership of a voting 
majority of the ownership interests in such entity, by contact, or otherwise.  

 
b. Force Majeure.   

 



 
5. 

i. In the event either party is rendered unable by force majeure to carry 
out any of its obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in part, then the 
obligations of that party, to the extent affected by the force majeure will be 
suspended during the continuance of the inability, provided however, that due 
diligence is exercised to resume performance at the earliest practical time. As soon 
as reasonably possible after the occurrence of the force majeure relied upon to 
suspend performance, the party whose contractual obligations are affected thereby 
must give notice and full particulars of the force majeure to the other party. The 
cause, as far as possible, must be remedied with all reasonable diligence. 

 
 ii. The term “force majeure” includes acts of God, strikes, lockouts or 
other industrial disturbances, acts of the public enemy, orders of the government of 
the United States or the State of Texas or any civil or military authority, 
insurrections, riots, epidemics, landslides, lightening, earthquakes, fires, 
hurricanes, storms, floods, washouts, droughts, restraints of government and civil 
disturbances, explosions, breakage or accidents to equipment, pipelines or canals, 
partial or complete failure of water supply, and any other inabilities of either party, 
whether similar to those enumerated or otherwise, that are not within the control of 
the party claiming the inability and that could not have been avoided by the exercise 
of due diligence and care. It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes 
and lockouts is entirely within the discretion of the party having the difficulty and 
that the requirement that any force majeure be remedied with all reasonable 
dispatch will not require the settlement of strikes and lockouts by acceding to the 
demands of the opposing party if the settlement is unfavorable in the judgment of 
the party having the difficulty. 

 
c. Entirety. This Agreement comprises the entire agreement between the 

County and Owner and there are no conversations, understandings, agreements, conditions 
or representations, express or implied with reference to the subject matter hereof that are 
not merged herein or superseded hereby. 

 
  d. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to conflicts of laws, rules or 
principles as applied in Texas. Venue for any action brought under or in connection with 
this Agreement shall lie exclusively in the courts of competent jurisdiction of Williamson 
County, Texas, and any appellate courts with jurisdiction over matters brought in such 
courts. 

 
  e. Amendment. This Agreement cannot be amended or modified, nor can any 

provision hereof be waived, except by a written instrument duly executed by both Parties 
(in the case of an amendment or modification) or by the Party to be charged (in the case of 
a waiver). 

 
  f. Non-waiver. Failure of either Party to insist on the strict performance of any 

of the agreements herein or to exercise any rights or remedies accruing hereunder upon 
default or failure of performance shall not be considered a waiver of the right to insist on 
and to enforce by any appropriate remedy, strict compliance with any other obligation 



 
6. 

hereunder or to exercise any right or remedy occurring as a result of any future default or 
failure of performance. 

 
  g. Notices. All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be 

given by (i) prepaid first-class mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, or (ii) 
recognized overnight courier with tracking capability. All notices hereunder shall be 
addressed as follows: 

 
  If to the County: 
 
  County Judge 
  710 Main Street, Suite 101 
  Georgetown, Texas 78626 
 
  If to Owner: 
 
   Hutto 525 Development Partners LP 
  10235 West Little York, Suite 300 
  Houston, Texas 77040 
  Attention: Matthew Janke, Vice President 
 

Notices made by registered or certified mail shall be deemed given two (2) days (excluding 
Saturdays, Sundays and postal holidays) after deposit with the U.S. Postal Service, properly 
addressed and prepaid. Notices given by recognized overnight delivery service shall be 
deemed given when delivery actually occurs. Either Party may change its address for notice 
by providing the other Party notice thereof in accordance herewith. 

 
  h. Authority. Each Party represents and warrants that the person executing this 

Agreement on behalf of such Party has been duly authorized to do so by all requisite actions 
on the part of such Party (and in the case of the County, in full compliance with all 
applicable County ordinances), and in so doing shall bind such Party to all of the provisions 
hereof. 

 
  i. Construction. Each Party is sophisticated in the matters covered by this 

Agreement and was represented by counsel of such Party’s choosing in connection with 
the drafting and negotiation of this Agreement. As such, each Party waives any rule of 
construction or interpretation that would require any provision of this Agreement to be 
construed in favor of or against either Party on the basis of which Party drafted such 
provision. 

 
  j. Savings Clause. In the event any provision herein shall be judicially 

interpreted or held to be invalid, illegal or otherwise unenforceable by reason of any rule 
of law or public policy, then (i) the other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect, and (ii) the provision held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable shall, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, be reformed to the minimum extent necessary to render 
such provision valid, legal and enforceable and in such a manner as to preserve to the fullest 
extent possible the original economic and legal intent of the Parties. 



 
7. 

 
  k. Rules of Construction. The following rules of construction shall apply to 

this Agreement: (i) words in the singular shall include the plural, and vice versa; (ii) the 
words “include”, “includes” and “including” are not limiting; (iii) references herein to a 
“Section” shall mean the corresponding section of this Agreement and are included for 
convenience of reference only and not to enlarge or limit the scope or meaning of any 
sections; (iv) the words “hereof”, “herein” and “hereunder” and words of similar import 
shall refer to this Agreement as a whole, and not to any particular provision of this 
Agreement; and (v) the “$” sign refers to currency of the United States of America. 

 
  l. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, all 

of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
  m. Time. Time is of material importance to this Agreement. In computing the 

number of days for purposes of this Agreement, all days will be counted, including 
Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays; however, if the final day of any time period falls 
on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, then the final day will be deemed to be the next 
day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. 

 
n. No Joint Venture.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the 

terms hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create any partnership or joint 
venture among the Parties.  The County, its past, present and future officers, elected 
officials, employees and agents of the County, do not assume any responsibilities or 
liabilities to any third party in connection with the construction of the Road Project 
Improvements. 

  



 
8. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 
duly authorized representatives as of the dates set forth in the acknowledgments of the Parties 
below, to be effective, however, as of the Effective Date. 
 
 
 
 
      County 
      Williamson County, Texas 
 
 
      By:         
       Bill Gravell, Jr. 
       County Judge 
 
  





 
10. 

Exhibit A 
Location Map 

 
  



 
11. 

 
Exhibit B 

Road Project General Depiction 

 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 41.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Corridor C SH29 Bypass ATKINS Contract Amendment No. 4
Submitted By: Marie Walters, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Contract Amendment No. 4 to the Corridor C (SH 29 Bypass)
contract between Williamson County and AtkinsRéalis relating to the Road Bond Program. Project: P459 Fund
Source: Road Bonds

Background
This Contract Amendment No. 4 amends the Exhibit D - Rate Schedule in the Master Contract
using the CPI Adjustment Calculation for the sub-consultant K Friese & Associates, Inc. No
other changes are proposed at this time.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
CorridorC(SH29Bypass)-ATKINS Amendment04 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 11:08 AM
Form Started By: Marie Walters Started On: 05/29/2024 07:08 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 





































   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 42.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Hero Way Purchase Contract
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a purchase contract with LCRA Transmission Services for 8.396
acres needed as right of way on the Hero Way project. Funding Source: TANS P588

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:02 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 06/05/2024 05:16 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



1 

 

REAL ESTATE CONTRACT 

Hero Way Right of Way 

 

 THIS REAL ESTATE CONTRACT (“Contract”) is made by and between LCRA 

TRANSMISSION SERVICES CORPORATION (referred to in this Contract as “Seller”, 

whether one or more) and WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (referred to in this Contract as 

“Purchaser”), upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract. 

 

 

ARTICLE I 

PURCHASE AND SALE 

 

 Subject to the terms, provisions, and conditions set forth in this Contract, Seller sells and 

agrees to convey in fee, and Purchaser purchases and agrees to pay for, that certain tract of land 

described as follows:  

 

Being an 8.396-acre tract of land out of the Milton Hicks Survey, Abstract No. 287, 

Williamson County, Texas; being more fully described in Exhibit A attached hereto and 

incorporated herein; 

 

together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances pertaining to the property, including 

any right, title, and interest of Seller in and to adjacent streets, alleys, or rights-of-way and any 

improvements and fixtures situated on and attached to the Property described herein, but not 

including oil, gas, or other minerals, all of which oil, gas and minerals Seller reserves for itself, 

for the consideration and upon and subject to the terms, provisions, and conditions set forth 

below. All property, rights, and appurtenances sold by this Contract are collectively referred to 

herein as the “Property”. The Property is being sold AS-IS and with all faults, and Seller makes no 

warranty, express or implied, as to the condition of the Property or the suitability of the Property 

for any particular use. 

 

ARTICLE II 

PURCHASE PRICE 

 

Purchase Price 

 

 2.01. The Purchase Price for the Property shall be the sum of TWO MILLION SIX 

HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED NINETY-THREE and 00/100 Dollars 

($2,661,593.00). 

 

Payment of Purchase Price  

 

 2.02. The Purchase Price shall be payable in cash or other readily available funds at the 

closing. 

 



2 

ARTICLE III 

PURCHASER’S OBLIGATIONS 

Conditions to Purchaser’s Obligations 

3.01. The obligations of Purchaser hereunder to consummate the 

transactions contemplated hereby are subject to the satisfaction of each of the following 

conditions (any of which may be waived in whole or in part by Purchaser at or prior to the 

closing). 

Miscellaneous Conditions 

3.02. Driveway Reconstruction. As an obligation that shall survive the closing of this 

transaction, Purchaser agrees that as part of the proposed construction of improvements to the 

expansion of Ranch Road 2243 (the “Project”) upon the Property, Purchaser shall cause a 

replacement driveway to be built between the edge of proposed roadway improvements and the 

remaining property of Seller. The driveway shall be constructed in the location and according to 

the specifications as shown in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein. By execution of 

this Agreement, Seller shall allow Purchaser, its agents, and contractors to temporarily access the 

immediately adjacent property of Seller solely in the location and for the purposes and time period 

necessary to carry out the obligations of this paragraph. 

3.03 Acknowledgment of Access.  Purchaser acknowledges the existence and validity 

of that certain Access Easement dated October 4, 2022, by and between Seller and ZamZam Kam, 

LLC, recorded as Document Number 2022118387 in the Official Public Records of Williamson 

County, Texas (as may be amended, the “Easement”).  As obligations to survive the closing of the 

transaction contemplated by this Contract, (i) Purchaser shall cooperate in good faith with Seller 

and take any additional actions to revise the Easement as deemed necessary by Seller in 

connection with the Project, and (ii) at closing Seller shall deliver a duly executed and 

acknowledged partial release in a form agreeable to the parties and suitable for recording in the 

real property records for locations of the Easement impacting the Property described in Exhibit A 

and sold to Purchaser. As a condition surviving closing of this Contract, Seller shall have 
uninterrupted access to and from the existing right-of-way and to and from Seller's adjacent 
property at all times during construction of the Project, unless otherwise mutually agreed in 
advance of any anticipated access interruption.

3.04. Seller shall have performed, observed, and complied with all of the covenants, 

agreements, and conditions required by this Contract to be performed, observed, and complied 

with by Seller prior to or as of the closing.  

Indemnification 

3.05 To the extent allowed by law, Purchaser agrees to indemnify, defend, 

discharge, release, reimburse, and hold harmless Seller, its officers, directors, agents, and 

employees from and against any and all claims, demands, losses, damages, liabilities, 



3 

causes of action, judgment, penalties, costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and 
court costs) of any and every kind of character, known or unknown, fixed or contingent, 

imposed on, asserted against or incurred by Seller at any time and from time to time by 

reason of, in connection with, or arising out of any environmental condition of the 

Property, including, without limitation, the presence on the Property or release from 

the Property of hazardous substances, hazardous materials, solid wastes, crude oil, 

natural gas, or petroleum hydrocarbons in any state, or any other substances regulated 

under Environmental Laws, as defined herein, regardless of whether the presence or 

release of such material occurred prior to or after the Effective Date. To the extent 

allowed by law, Purchaser agrees that its obligations under this section shall survive the 

closing. 

3.06 As used herein, “Environmental Laws” shall mean all applicable federal or state 

statutes, regulations, orders, or common law, pertaining to health or the environment, 

including without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, 

and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the Superfund Amendments and Response, 

Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the Superfund Amendments and 

Reauthorization Act of 1986 (as amended, hereinafter called “CERCLA”), the Resource 

Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended by the Used Oil Recycling Act of 1980, 

the Solid Waste Disposal Act Amendments of 1980, and the Hazardous and Solid Waste 

Amendments of 1984 (as amended, hereinafter called “RCRA”), the Texas Water Code and the 

Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act, as each of said laws may be amended from time to time. 

ARTICLE IV 

CLOSING 

Closing Date 

4.01. The closing shall be held at the office of Texas National Title Inc. on or before July 
15, 2024, or at such time, date, and place as Seller and Purchaser may agree upon (which date is 

herein referred to as the “Closing Date”). 

Seller’s Obligations at Closing 

4.02. At the closing Seller shall: 

(1) Deliver to Purchaser a duly executed and acknowledged Special Warranty Deed in

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

(2) Deliver evidence of Seller’s capacity and authority for the closing, if required by

Purchaser, or its title company (the “Title Company”). 

(3) Deliver to Purchaser possession of the Property if not previously done.



 

 4 

 (4) Deliver all signed releases, affidavits, and other necessary documents reasonably 

required by Purchaser to close this transaction or by the Title Company to issue an Owner’s 

Policy of Title Insurance on the Property, provided however that at the request and sole cost of 

Purchaser: 

 

(a) The boundary and survey exceptions shall be deleted. 

 

(b) The exception as to restrictive covenants shall be endorsed “None of 

Record”, if applicable; and 

 

(c) The exception to the lien for taxes shall be limited to the year of closing and 

shall be endorsed “Not Yet Due and Payable”. 

 

Purchaser’s Obligations at Closing 

 

 5.03. At the closing, Purchaser shall:  

 

(a) Pay the cash portion of the Purchase Price to Seller.. 

 

Prorations 

 

 5.04. General real estate taxes for the then current year relating to the Property shall be 

prorated as of the Closing Date and shall be adjusted in cash at the closing, collected by the Title 

Company and submitted to the Williamson County Tax office according to the provisions of 

Texas Tax Code Section 26.11. If the closing shall occur before the tax rate is fixed for the then 

current year, the apportionment of taxes shall be upon the basis of the tax rate for the next 

preceding year applied to the latest assessed valuation. Agricultural roll-back taxes or any 

additional assessment, if any, which directly result from this Contract and conveyance shall be 

paid by Purchaser.   

 

Closing Costs 

 

 5.05. All costs and expenses of closing in consummating the sale and purchase of the 

Property shall be borne and paid as follows: 

 

(1) Owner’s Title Policy and survey to be paid by Purchaser. 

 

 (2) Deed, tax certificates, and title curative matters, if any, paid by Purchaser. 

 

(3) All other closing costs shall be paid by Purchaser. 

 

(4) Attorney’s fees paid by each respectively. 

 

 



 

 5 

ARTICLE VI 

BREACH BY SELLER 

 

 In the event Seller shall fail to fully and timely perform any of its obligations hereunder or 

shall fail to consummate the sale of the Property for any reason, except Purchaser’s default, 

Purchaser’s sole remedy shall be to terminate the Contract.  

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE VII 

BREACH BY PURCHASER 

 

 In the event Purchaser should fail to consummate the purchase of the Property, the 

conditions to Purchaser’s obligations set forth in Article III having been satisfied and Purchaser 

being in default and Seller not being in default hereunder, Seller’s sole remedy shall be to 

terminate the Contract, provided, however, Purchaser’s obligations in Section 3.03 shall survive 

any termination of this Contract.  

 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

Notice 

 

 8.01. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be deemed received 

when sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, 

addressed to Seller or Purchaser, as the case may be, at the address set forth opposite the signature 

of the party. 

 

Texas Law to Apply 

 

 8.02. This Contract shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State 

of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in Williamson 

County, Texas. 

 

Assignment; Parties Bound 

 

 8.03. This Contract may not be assigned by Purchaser without Seller’s written 

consent.  

This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective 

heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns where permitted by 

this Contract. 

 



 

 6 

Legal Construction 

 

 8.04. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract shall for any 

reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, this invalidity, illegality, or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Contract shall be construed as 

if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

 

 

Prior Agreements Superseded 

 

 8.05. This Contract constitutes the sole and only agreement of the parties and supersedes 

any prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the within 

subject matter. 

 

Time of Essence 

 

 8.06. Time is of the essence in this Contract. 

 

Gender 

 

 8.07. Words of any gender used in this Contract shall be held and construed to include any 

other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, and vice versa, 

unless the context requires otherwise. 

 

Attorney’s Fees 

 

 8.08. Either party to this Contract who is the prevailing party in any legal proceeding 

against the other party brought under or with relation to this Contract shall be additionally entitled 

to recover court costs and reasonable attorney's fees from the non-prevailing party. 

 

 

Compliance 

 

 8.09 In accordance with the requirements of Section 20 of the Texas Real Estate License 

Act, Purchaser is hereby advised that it should be furnished with or obtain a policy of title 

insurance or Purchaser should have the abstract covering the Property examined by an attorney of 

Purchaser’s own selection. 

 

 Effective Date 

 

 8.10 This Contract shall be effective as of the date it is approved by the Williamson 

County Commissioners’ court, which date is indicated beneath the County Judge’s signature 

below. 

 



 

 7 

Counterparts 

 

8.11 This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts, which may together 

constitute the Contract.  Signatures transmitted by facsimile or electronic mail may be considered 

effective as originals for purposes of this Contract. 

 

 

 

 

[signature page follows] 

 

 



8 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Contract to be executed by their 

duly authorized representatives as of the dates set forth below. 

 

SELLER: 

 

LCRA TRANSMISSION SERVICES CORPORATION 

 

By: _______________________________   

 

Its:  _______________________________       

 

Date: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PURCHASER: 

 

 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

 

 

By: _____________________    Address:  710 Main Street, Suite 101 

      Bill Gravell, Jr.           Georgetown, Texas 78626 

      County Judge 

      

         

Date: ______________ 

 

Authorized Agent

6/5/2024

AHERZOG
ACH



Exhibit A 

Page 1 of 6 

EXHIBIT 

County: — Williamson 
Parcel: 200 
Highway: FM 2243 

METES & BOUNDS DESCRIPTION FOR PARCEL 200 
  

METES & BOUNDS DESCRIPTION FOR A 8.396 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OUT OF THE MILTON 

HICKS SURVEY. ABSTRACT NO. 287, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS: BEING A PORTION OFA 
CALLED 20.92 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS CONVEYED TO LCRA TRANSMISSION SERVICES 
CORPORATION BY GENERAL WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 
2016061302 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS: SAID 

8.396 ACRE TRACT OF LAND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND 
BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS AND SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED SKETCH: 

BEGINNING at a 9/8-inch iron pipe (NAD-83, Central Zone Grid Coordinates: N: 10,188,859.31, 
E: 3,092,986.90) (Latitude: N 30°35°38.67", Longitude: W 97°48°06.57") found on the northwest right- 
of-way line of FM 2243 (80 feet wide right-of-way) as dedicated by instruments recorded in Volume 409, 
Page 78 and Volume 409, Page 377, both of the Deed Records of Williamson County, Texas, at the most 

easterly corner of the above described LCRA Tract and at the south comer of a called 6.00 acre tract of 
land described as Tract | as conveyed to J&M, LLC by Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien recorded in 
Document Number 2018103155 of the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, for the most 

easterly corner and POINT OF BEGINNING of the herein described tract, from which a TXDOT Type I 
concrete monument found on the northwest right-of-way line of said FM 2243, bears N 34°06'25" Ea 
distance of 147.13 feet: 

THENCE, with the northwest right-of-way line of said FM 2243 and the southeast line of said LCRA 
Tract, S 34°06'25" W a distance of 153.48 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with cap stamped “WILCO ROW 
5777” (NAD-83, Central Zone Grid Coordinates: N: 10,188.732.25, E: 3,092,900.85) set for the southeast 

comer of the herein described tract, 264.00 feet right of FM 2243 baseline station 219+81.46, from which 
a 1/2-inch iron rod found at the most southerly corner of said LCRA Tract and at the most easterly corner 
of a called 95.096 acre tract of land as conveyed to Roy Kuchera and wife, Alice Kuchera by General 
Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 2640, Page 64 of the Official Records of Williamson County, Texas, 

bears S 34°06'25" W a distance of 282.91 feet: 

THENCE, departing the northwest nght-of-way line of said FM 2243, over and across said LCRA Tract, 

N 82°24'00" W a distance of 108.04 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with cap stamped “WILCO ROW 5777” 
set for an angle point. 264.00 feet right of FM 2243 baseline station 218+73.42: 

THENCE, continuing over and across said LCRA Tract, N 77°49'34" W a distance of 150.48 feet to a 1/2- 
inch iron rod with cap stamped “WILCO ROW 5777” set for an angle point, 252.00 feet right of FM 2243 
baseline station 217+23.42: 

THENCE, continuing over and across said LCRA Tract, N 82°24'00" W a distance of 254.55 feet to a 1/2- 
inch iron rod with cap stamped “WILCO ROW 5777” set on the southwest line of said LCRA Tract and 
the northeast line of said Kuchera Tract, for the southwest corner of the herein described tract, 252.00 feet 

right of FM 2243 baseline station 214+68.87: 

Exhibit AExhibit A 

 

Exhibit A 

 
    



Page 2 of 6 

THENCE, with the southwest line of said LCRA Tract and northeast line of said Kuchera Tract, 

N 47°56'04" W a distance of 850.01 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with cap stamped “WILCO ROW 5777” 
set for the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the nght and the northwest corner of the herein described 
tract, 241.43 feet left of FM 2243 baseline station 207+81.68, from which a I/2-inch iron rod found on 

the northeast line of said Kuchera Tract, at the most westerly corner of said LCRA Tract, bears 
N 47°56'04" W a distance of 350.48 feet: 

THENCE, departing the northeast line of said Kuchera Tract, over and across said LCRA Tract, along 

said curve to the right, an are distance of 611.83 feet, having a radius of 8,147.00 feet, a central angle of 
04°18'L0" and a chord which bears $ 84°33'06" E a distance of 611.69 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with cap 
stamped “WILCO ROW 5777” set for a point of tangency, 252.00 feet left of FM 2243 baseline station 
213+79.33: 

THENCE, continuing over and across said LCRA Tract, § 82°24'01" E a distance of 113.85 feet to a 1/2- 
inch iron rod with cap stamped “WILCO ROW 5777” set on a northeast line of said LCRA Tract and the 

southwest line of said J&M Tract, for the northeast corner of the herein described tract. 252.00 feet left of 

FM 2243 baseline station 214+93.18, from which a 3/8-inch iron pipe found at an interior comer of said 
LCRA Tract, and at the most westerly corner of said J&M Tract, bears N 48°10'53" W a distance of 54.84 
feet: 

THENCE, with a northeast line of said LCRA Tract and southwest line of said J&M Tract, S 48°10'53" E 
a distance of 673.33 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 8.396 acres of land, more or 

less. 

Bearing orientation is based on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System NAD-83, Central Zone 4203. All 

distances are surface and may be converted to grid by dividing by a scale factor of 1.00012. 

I hereby certify that these notes were prepared by BGE from a survey made on the ground under my 

supervision on May 12, 2022 and are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. A sketch accompanies 
this description. 

n= 0. e— 
Jonathan O. Nobles RPLS Number 5777 

BGE., Inc. 

101 West Louis Henna Blvd., Suite 400 

Austin, TX 78728 

Telephone: 512-879-0400 

TBPELS Licensed Surveying Firm Number 10106502 

1/18/2024 

Date 
  

  

Client: Williamson County 
Date: August 5, 2022 

Revised: January 18, 2024 
Project Number: 7473-00 

Exhibit AExhibit A 

 

   



  

  

M
A
T
C
H
L
I
N
E
 

P
A
G
E
 

4 
OF

 
5 

REVISEO 1/18/2024: ADDED GRIO js 

COORDINATES ANDO LAT. /LONG. TO °.0.B. 

SKETCH TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

           

  

    

J&w, LLC —~+ 

CALLED 1.00 ACRES =, 
(TRACT 2) \ 

DOC, NO. 2018103155 O.P.R.W.C, 

       

  
d&t, LLC 

     

  

  

    
   

       

CALLED 6.00 ACRES 

(TRACT 1) 
DOC, NO, 2018103155 O.P.R.W.C 

— o_ T + 

POpaan 7 
M94 ~ 

LOR4 TRA 

10° UNDERGROUN 
TELECOVVUNICATION ESMT. 

STA 214468.87 VOL. 570, PG. 702 D.R.W.C   
  

  

=. 5 101 West Louls Henna Sivd, Suite 400, Austin, TX 78725 

—— Tel: 512-873-0400 © www.bdgelnc.com 
TBPLS Licensed Surveying Firm No. 10106502 

  

ROY KUCHERA & WIFE, AUCE KUCHERA ——_   

        

ALLED 95.096 ACRES 
VOL. 2640, PG. 64 O.R.W.C b- / - PARCEL PLAT 

SHOWING PARCEL 200 
8.596 ACRES 

FM 2243 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
  

Sede: Job No.: Date: Page: 

1"=100' 7473-00 |08/05/2022| 3 of 6 

  

            

Exhibit AExhibit A 

 



  

  

2. SKETCH TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

  

5 J
 

    
7OY KUCHERA & WIFE, AUCE KUCHES4 

“ALLED 95.096 ACR 

SH
LI
NE
 

P
A
G
E
 

3 
OF

 
M
A
T
C
 

  
  

BGE, Ino. 
101 West Louls Henna Sivd, Suite 400, Austin, TX 78728 
Tel: 512-879-0400 @ www.Dgeinc.com 

TBPLS Ucensed Surveying Firm No. 10106502 

PARCEL PLAT 
SHOWING PARCEL 200 

8.396 ACRES 
FM 2243 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
cde: eb Ne Date: Page: 

| 
Comrie 2224 

  

            
  

Exhibit AExhibit A 

 



  

  

    

    

    

      
          
          

  

  

  

                

LINE TABLE RECORD UNE TABLE 

NUMBER | BEARING DISTANCE NUMBER | GEARING DISTANCE 

Li S 34°06'25" W | 282.91" (L1} (S 340619" W) 

L2 N 4810°53" W | 54.84" <Li> <S 35°22" W> 

(L2) (N 48°11'25" W) 

<Li> [N 48°11'25" Ww] 

CURVE TABLE 

NUMBER | ARC LENGTH] RADIUS | DELTA | CHORD GEARING | CHORD DISTANCE 

c1 611.83 8,147.00' | 41810" |S 84°33'06" E | 611.69" 

LEGEND. 

B. BOLLARD 
BLDG. BUILDING 
B.W.F. BARBED WIRE FENCE 
CMP CORRUGATED METAL PIPE 
CONC CONCRETE 
DOC DOCUMENT 
D.R.W.C DEED RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY 
E.M. ELECTRIC METER 
ESMT. EASEMENT 
G.P. GATE POST 
H.V.F. HOG WIRE FENCE 
O.P.R.W.C. OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY 
O.P.R.W.C. OFFICIAL RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY 
PED. PEDESTAL 
P.0.8 POINT OF BEGINNING 
P.0.€ POINT OF COMMENCING 
P,P, POWER POLE 
PYC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE 
TEL. TELEPHONE 
TRANS TRANSFORMER 
W.W. WATER WELL 
( ) RECORD INFO FOR DOC. NO. 2016061302 O.P.R.W.C 

[ ] RECORD INFO FOR DOC. NO. 2018103155 O.P.R.W.C. 
i t RECORD INFO FOR VOL. 2640, PG. 64 O.R.W.C. 
< > RECORD INFO FOR TXDOT FM 2243 R.O.W. MAP 

DATED MAY 1955 & VOL 409, PG. 78 

e FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 

© FOUND 3/8" IRON PIPE 

: SET 1/2" IRON ROD W/CAP “WILCO ROW 5777" 
CALCULATED POINT 

—*— WIRE FENCE 
METAL FENCE 

— ar OVERHEAD TELEPHONE 
—or— OVERHEAD POWER 

REVISED 1/18/2024: ADDED GRIO 

COORDINATES AND LAT. /LONG. TO P.0.B. 

  

EDGE OF ASPHALT 

101 West Louls Henna Stvd, Suite 400, Austin, TX 78725 
Tel: 512-873-0400 @ www.Dgeinc.com 
TBPLS Ucensed Surveying Firm No. 10106502 
  

PARCEL PLAT 
SHOWING PARCEL 200 

8.396 ACRES 
FM 2243 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS   
Sede: 

1"=100' 
Jeb No.: 

7473-00       

Date: 

08/05/2022   

Page: 

5 of 6     

Exhibit AExhibit A 

 



V qlyxs 

      
— pos 

Syxal INNO NOSWYVITIIM 
voc W4 

SAYOV 96E'8 
00¢€ 140uV¥d OINIMOHS 

iV1d W0eVvd 
TOSSOLOL ON wus Cusruns pesuson Stel 

WOT DUSOT MM @ OOPO-SLE-TIS “HL 4 = 
STLEL ML UREN "OOF SHNS "PS SUusH 5/NO7 ISM. EOF = 

“oul ‘308 

bese WAS 

ovo—-6z8 (ZIS) “ANOHaaTaL 

dys O2 L99OD pup enn st pup ; 

  

  

  

“L 24D UMOUS 5S KS 30 

{Dwpbod oyqnd Bb o. ssacob spy “ytedoud 3 

I qos <q puhowd ays uo spbul sb doauns 

  

MNSNI an 
GSW SYM L¥1d WOM¥e SIHL 

TINSIAC 

\ a 

IHL HLA" 

al 

ONO LY ONY S3SLYNIOe 

yo Re $300 ana 

Baan HL” OS 
qr 

ol 3) Wa 
SOx7 N¥ 2 

INISTAL 

Woasda CALT« 
Ny ANY 

O4 La) ALUNIMO 

5 

& 

 
Exhibit A 

 



Exhibit B 

  

PREL IMINARY 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

LEGEND 

~~ PROPERTY LINE 

PROPOSED R.0.W. 

FRONTAGE ROAD 

ULTIMATE LAYOUT 

RETAINING WALL 

  

    

RM 2243 
PARCELS RO32147 SHEET 1 OF 1 

DRIVEWAY CONFIGURATION     
Exhibit BExhibit B 

 

Exhibit B 

 

 
 



Exhibit C 

Exhibit CExhibit C 

 

Exhibit C 

 

 



Parcel 200 

 DEED 

Hero Way Right of Way 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

 § 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

 

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY 

REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM THIS 

INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS 

FILED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR 

DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

 That LCRA TRANSMISSION SERVICES CORPORATION, a Texas non-profit 

corporation, hereinafter referred to as Grantor, whether one or more, for  and in consideration of 

the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration to Grantor in hand 

paid by Williamson County, Texas, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, and for which no lien is retained, either expressed or implied, have this day 

Sold and by these presents do Grant, Bargain, Sell and Convey unto WILLIAMSON 

COUNTY, TEXAS, all that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the 

County of Williamson, State of Texas, along with any improvements thereon, being more 

particularly described as follows (the “Property”): 

 

That certain tract of land consisting of an 8.396-acres out of the Milton Hicks Survey, 

Abstract No. 287, Williamson County, Texas; being more fully described by metes and 

bounds in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 

SAVE AND EXCEPT, HOWEVER, it is expressly understood and agreed that Grantor is 

retaining title to the following improvements located on the Property, to wit:  NONE 

 

RESERVATIONS FROM AND EXCEPTIONS TO CONVEYANCE AND WARRANTY:   

 

 Visible and apparent easements not appearing of record; 

 

 Any discrepancies, conflicts, or shortages in area or boundary lines or any 

encroachments or any overlapping of improvements which a current survey would show;  

 

 Easements, restrictions, reservations, covenants, conditions, oil and gas leases, mineral 

severances, and encumbrances for taxes and assessments (other than liens and conveyances) 

presently of record in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, that affect the 

property, but only to the extent that said items are still valid and in force and effect at this time.  

 

 

DonChilds
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "C"



 

 2. 

 Grantor reserves all of the oil, gas and other minerals in and under the land herein conveyed but 

waives all rights of ingress and egress to the surface thereof for the purpose of exploring, developing, 

mining or drilling or pumping the same; provided, however, that operations for exploration or recovery 

of any such minerals shall be permissible so long as all surface operations in connection therewith are 

located at a point outside the acquired parcel and upon the condition that none of such operations shall 

be conducted so near the surface of said land as to interfere with the intended use thereof or in any way 

interfere with, jeopardize, or endanger the facilities of Williamson County, Texas or create a hazard to 

the public users thereof; it being intended, however, that nothing in this reservation shall affect the title 

and the rights of Grantee to take and use without additional compensation any, stone, earth, gravel, 

caliche, iron ore, gravel or any other road building material upon, in and under said land for the 

construction and maintenance of Hero Way. 

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the property herein described and herein conveyed together with 

all and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any wise be longing unto Williamson 

County, Texas and its assigns forever; and Grantor does hereby bind itself, its heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns to Warrant and Forever Defend all and singular the said 

premises herein conveyed unto Williamson County, Texas and its assigns against every person 

whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof by, through or under 

Grantor, but not otherwise. 

 
EXCEPT FOR THE WARRANTY OF TITLE EXPRESSED ABOVE, THIS CONVEYANCE IS 

MADE ON AN “AS-IS, WHERE-IS” BASIS ONLY, WITHOUT REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, 

EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, BY OPERATION OF LAW OR OTHERWISE, AS TO CONDITION 

(INCLUDING ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITION), FITNESS, SUITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY 

OR HABITABILITY THEREOF OR AS TO USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR COMPLIANCE 

WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ENVIRONMENTAL 

LAWS. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed on this the        day of                        , 

2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

[signature page follows] 

 



 

 3. 

GRANTOR:  

 

LCRA TRANSMISSION SERVICES CORPORATION 

 

 

By:      _ 

 

 

Name:____________________________ 

 

 

Its:______________________________ 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

 § 

COUNTY OF ________________ § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on _________________________, 2024 

by _______________________, in the capacity and for the purposes and consideration recited 

therein. 

 

   

               

      Notary Public, State of Texas  
 

PREPARED IN THE OFFICE OF: 

     Sheets & Crossfield, P.L.L.C. 

     309 East Main 

     Round Rock, Texas 78664 

      

GRANTEE’S MAILING ADDRESS: 

     Williamson County, Texas 

     Attn: County Auditor 

     710 Main Street, Suite 101 

     Georgetown, Texas 78626 

      

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

     Texas National Title 

     305 Denali Pass, Suite A 

     Cedar Park, Texas  78613 

 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 43.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Ronald Reagan Widening Correction Deed
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a correction deed with Santa Rita Commercial LLC regarding
0.1956 AC required as right of way on the Ronald Reagan Widening construction project (Parcel 14P1). Funding
Source: Road Bonds P366

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
deed 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 09:59 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 06/05/2024 12:43 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 

























   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 44.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Corridor A-2 Resolution for Condemnation
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution determining the necessity and authorizing the use
of eminent domain to condemn (Lot 1 of Teichelman acres and 2.69 acres out of the Jacob Ebberly survey)
required for the construction of Corridor A-2. (2600 Bluebonnets LLC) Funding Source: TANS P588

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Resolution 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:37 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 06/05/2024 12:47 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



Corridor A-2 

IN THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT 
OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas, has found 

and determined that in order to promote the public safety, to facilitate the safety and 

movement of traffic, and to preserve the financial investment of the public in its 

roadways, public necessity requires acquisition of fee simple title to that certain tract of 

land being Lot 1 of Teichelman acres and 2.69 acres legally described in Exhibits 

“A & B” and owned by 2600 BLUEBONNETS, LLC a Texas 

limited liability company, for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, 

maintaining, and operating the Corridor A-2 roadway improvements (“Project”), 

excluding all the oil, gas, and sulphur which can be removed from beneath said 

real property, without any right whatever remaining to the owner of such oil, 

gas, and sulphur of ingress to or egress from the surface of said real property for 

the purpose of exploring, developing, or mining of the same, as a part 

of the improvements to the Project, at such locations as are necessary 

and that such constructing, reconstructing, maintaining, and operating shall 

extend across and upon, and will cross, run through, and be upon the hereinafter 

described real properties; and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas, 

has, through agents employed by the said office, entered into bona fide good faith 

negotiations with the owners of the hereinafter described properties and has failed to 

agree with the owners on the compensation and damages, if any, due to said owners.  

Now, therefore, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas is 

authorizing the use of its power of eminent domain to condemn property. 



2 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT OF THE COUNTY 

OF WILLIAMSON, that the County Attorney or his designated agent be and he is hereby 

authorized and directed to file or cause to be filed against the owners of any interest in, 

and the holders of any lien secured by, the following described tracts of land, described in 

Exhibits “A & B” attached hereto, a suit in eminent domain to acquire the property 

interests for the aforesaid purposes; and 

It is the intent of the Commissioners’ Court that this resolution authorizes the 

condemnation of all property interests required to complete the construction and 

maintenance of the Project and associated public purposes.  If it is later determined that 

there are any errors in the descriptions contained herein or if later surveys contain more 

accurate revised descriptions, the County Attorney is authorized to have such errors 

corrected or revisions made without the necessity of obtaining a new resolution of the 

Commissioners’ Court authorizing the condemnation of the corrected or revised Property. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Attorney or his designated agent 

be and he is hereby authorized and directed to incur such expenses and to employ such 

experts as he shall deem necessary to assist in the prosecution of such suit in eminent 

domain, including, but not limited to, appraisers, engineers, and land use planners or 

other required expert consultants. 

Adopted this ___________________________. 

____________________________ 
Bill Gravell, Jr. 
Williamson County Judge 



Exhibit “A” 

Tract One: Lot 1, Teichelman Acres, an addition to Williamson County, Texas, 
according to the Map or Plat recorded in Cabinet I, slide 277, Plat Records, 
Williamson County, Texas; also, being the same as tract of land owned by 2600 
Bluebonnets, LLC as shown in General Warranty Deed recorded in Clerk's File No. 
2023075568, Official Public Records, Williamson County, Texas. CAD: R314139  



EXHIBIT B 

2.69 ACRES 

BEING 2.69 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, OUT OF THE JACOB EBBERL Y 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 923, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING THE 
REMAINDER OF A TRACT CONVEYED TO HOWARD E. TEICHELMAN, JR., ET 
UX, AND DESCRIBED AS TRACT 2 INADEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 
2011011311, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, AS 
SURVEYED ON THE GROUND BY TEXAS LAND SURVEYING, INC. ON JUNE 
14TH, 2023, AND FURTHER DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING at-a 1/2 inch iron rod with pink cap stamped "TLS" set in the west right-of
way margin of FM 973, marking the southeast comer of a tract conveyed to Samsung 
Austin Semiconductor, LLC, and described in deed recorded in Document No. 
2021184141, of said Official Public Records, for the northeast comer of said Howard 
Teichelman tract and this tract, from which an iron rod with yellow cap stamped "Atwell 
LLC" found, bears N 07°42'06" E 253.40 feet, also from which an iron rod with yellow 
cap stamped "Atwell LLC" found, bears N 49°06'45" E, 2.00 feet; 

THENCE: S 07°26'1 l "  W, 262.79 feet with the said west margin of said FM 973 and the 
east line of said Howard Teichelman tract to a 1/2 inch iron rod found, for the southeast 
comer of said Howard Teichelman tract and this tract; 

THENCE: N 82°27'22" W, with the east-west running west margin of said FM 973 and 
the south line of said Howard Teichelman tract at 20.00 feet passing a 1/2 inch iron rod 
with pink cap stamped "TLS" set, marking the northeast corner of Lot 1, Teichelman 
Acres, said plat recorded in Cabinet I, Slide 277, Plat Records, Williamson County, 
Texas, continuing with the north line of said Lot 1 and the south line of said Howard 
Teichelman tract in all 447.09 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found, marking the northwest 
corner of said Lot 1, for the southwest corner of said Howard Teichelman tract and this 
tract, from which a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the east-west running east line of a tract 
conveyed to the M. Moore Family Farms, LLC, and described in deed recorded in 
Document No. 20180972261 of said Official Public Records, marking the southwest 
corner of said Lot 1, bears S 07°20'23" W, 299.67 feet; 

THENCE: N 08°18'14" E, 263.72 feet with the west line of said Howard Teichelman tract 
to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the south line of said Samsung tract, marking the northeast 
comer of said Moore tract, for the northwest corner of said Howard Teichelman tract and 
this tract, from which a 1/2 inch iron rod found, marking an angle point of said Moore 
tract, bears N 82°11'40" W, 1462.58 feet; 

THENCE: S 82°20'21" E, 443.10 feet with the south line of said Samsung tract and the 
north line of said Howard Teichelman tract to the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 
2.69 acres of land, more or less. 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 45.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Wilco Donation Deed to City of Liberty Hill
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Donation Deed of 0.576 acres on Stubblefield Lane owned by
Williamson County to the City of Liberty Hill in exchange for right of way required for the construction of the
Liberty Hill Bypass construction project. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
deed 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:01 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 06/05/2024 01:02 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



  

 DEED 

Liberty Hill Bypass Surplus Right of Way  

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

 § 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

 

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY 

REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM THIS 

INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL 

SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

 That WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, hereinafter referred to as Grantor, whether one 

or more, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00), the donation to Grantor of 

certain right of way required for Grantor’s proposed Ronald Reagan Widening Segment B  

roadway project, and other good and valuable consideration to Grantor in hand paid or provided 

by the City of Liberty Hill, Texas, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, and for which no lien is retained, either expressed or implied, have this day 

Sold and by these presents do Grant, Bargain, Donate, Sell and Convey unto CITY OF 

LIBERTY HILL, TEXAS, a Texas Type A general law municipality, all that certain tract or 

parcel of land lying and being situated in the County of Williamson, State of Texas, along with 

any improvements thereon, being more particularly described as follows  (the “Property”): 

 

Being a 0.576-acre (25,074 square foot) parcel of land out of the Henry Field Survey, 

Abstract No. 233 in Williamson County, Texas; said parcel of land being more 

particularly described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a 

part hereof. (Parcel 43REM)  

 

SAVE AND EXCEPT, HOWEVER, it is expressly understood and agreed that Grantor is 

retaining title to the following improvements located on the Property, to wit:  NONE 

 

RESERVATIONS FROM AND EXCEPTIONS TO CONVEYANCE AND WARRANTY:   

 

 Visible and apparent easements not appearing of record; 

 

 Any discrepancies, conflicts, or shortages in area or boundary lines or any 

encroachments or any overlapping of improvements which a current survey would show;  

 

 Easements, restrictions, reservations, covenants, conditions, oil and gas leases, mineral 

severances, and encumbrances for taxes and assessments (other than liens and conveyances) 

presently of record in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, that affect the 

property, but only to the extent that said items are still valid and in force and effect at this time.  

 

 

   



 

 2. 

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the property herein described and herein conveyed together with 

all and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any wise belonging unto City of Liberty 

Hill, Texas and its assigns forever; and Grantor does hereby bind itself, its heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns to Warrant and Forever Defend all and singular the said 

premises herein conveyed unto City of Liberty Hill, Texas and its assigns against every person 

whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof. 

 

 As a material part of the Consideration for this deed, Grantor and Grantee agree that Grantee is 

taking the Property "AS IS" with any and all latent and patent defects and that there is no warranty by 

Grantor that the Property has a particular financial value or is fit for a particular purpose.  Grantee 

acknowledges and stipulates that Grantee is not relying on any representation, statement, or other assertion 

with respect to the Property condition but is relying on Grantee's examination of the Property.  Grantee 

takes the Property with the express understanding and stipulation that there are no express or implied 

warranties except for limited warranties of title set forth in this deed. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed on this the        day of                        , 

2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

[signature on following page] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 3. 

GRANTOR:  

 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

 

 

 

 

By:________________________________ 

     Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

 § 

COUNTY OF ________________ § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ______________________, 2024 by 

Bill Gravell, Jr. in the capacity and for the purposes and consideration recited therein.  

 

 

 

               

 

      Notary Public, State of Texas  
 

 

 



 

 4. 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND ACCEPTED:  

 

CITY OF LIBERTY HILL, TEXAS 

 

 

 

By:________________________________ 

 

 

Name:_____________________________ 

 

 

Its:_________________________________ 

  

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

 § 

COUNTY OF ________________ § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the  ___ day of         , 

2024 by ___________________________ in the capacity and for the purposes and 

consideration recited therein. 

 

 

               

 

      Notary Public, State of Texas  
 

 

PREPARED IN THE OFFICE OF: 

     Sheets & Crossfield, PLLC 

     309 East Main 

     Round Rock, Texas 78664     

 

GRANTEE’S MAILING ADDRESS: 

     City of Liberty Hill 

     Attn: City Secretary 

     926 Main Street 

     Liberty Hill, Texas  78642     

 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

      

 



County:  Williamson 
Parcel No.: 45REM 
Tax ID:  R021981 
Highway:  SH 29 Liberty Hill Bypass 
Limits:        From: CR 279 
 To: R.M. 1869 
 

 1

 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION FOR PARCEL 45REM 

 

FOR A 0.576 ACRE (25,074 SQ. FT.) TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE HENRY 
FIELD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 233, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING 
THE REMNANT PORTION OF A CALLED 1.0 ACRE TRACT OF LAND (FIRST TRACT) 
AND THE REMNANT PORTION OF A CALLED 1.0 ACRE TRACT OF LAND (SECOND 
TRACT), CONVEYED TO RAYMOND G. CANTRELL AND WIFE, PAMELA L. 
CANTRELL, RECORDED IN VOLUME 2179, PG. 659 OF THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID 0.576 ACRE TRACT OF LAND BEING 
SURVEYED ON THE GROUND BY DIAMOND SURVEYING DURING THE MONTH OF 
NOVEMBER 2020, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND 
BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod found with cap marked “Land Dev” (Surface Coordinates: 
N=10211877.80, E=3055297.86) monumenting the northwest corner of said 1.0 acre 
Cantrell First Tract and the southwest corner of the called 1.06 acre tract of land conveyed 
to Liberty Hill Water Supply Corp., recorded in Document No. 2000053600 of the Official 
Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, same being on the east right-of-way line of 
Stubblefield Lane, for the northwest corner and POINT OF BEGINNING hereof; 
 
THENCE, N 70°06’31” E with the north boundary line of said 1.0 acre Cantrell First Tract 
and the south boundary line of said 1.06 acre Liberty Hill Water Supply Corp. tract for a 
distance of 207.94 feet to 1/2" iron rod found with cap marked “Land Dev” monumenting 
the northeast corner of said 1.0 acre Cantrell First Tract and the southeast corner of said 
1.06 acre Liberty Hill Water Supply Corp. tract, same being on the west boundary line of 
the called 6.50 acre tract of land conveyed to James Wayne Mather, recorded in 
Document No. 2006068763 of the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, 
for the northeast corner hereof; 
 
THENCE, S 21°03’34” E with the east boundary lines of said Cantrell First Tract and said 
Cantrell Second Tract, in part with the west boundary line of said 6.50 acre Mather tract, 
and in part with the west boundary line of the called 54.068 acre tract (Tract 2) conveyed 
to J. Patrick Harlow and Lisa M. Harlow, recorded in Document No. 9639594 of the 
Official Records of Williamson County, Texas, passing at a distance of 196.99 feet a 60D 
nail found in concrete at a fence post 0.38 feet west of this line, in all a total distance of 
213.62 feet to a 1/2" iron rod set with cap marked "Diamond Surveying" for the southeast 
corner hereof, from which a 1/2" iron rod found monumenting the southeast corner of said 

DonChilds
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "A"



County:  Williamson 
Parcel No.: 45REM 
Tax ID:  R021981 
Highway:  SH 29 Liberty Hill Bypass 
Limits:        From: CR 279 
 To: R.M. 1869 
 

 2

Cantrell Second Tract and the northeast corner of the called 1.224 acre tract of land 
conveyed to Williamson County, Texas, recorded in Document No. 2016043602 of the 
Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, same being an angle point on said 
west boundary line of the 54.068 acre Harlow Tract, bears S 21°03’34” E for a distance of 
203.87 feet; 
 
THENCE, through the interior of said Cantrell First Tract and said Cantrell Second Tract 
with a curve to the right an arc length of 287.61 feet, said curve having a radius of 
2350.00 feet, a delta angle of 7°00’44” and a chord which bears N 67°24’03” W for a 
distance of 287.43 feet to a 1/2" iron rod set with cap marked "Diamond Surveying" on the 
west boundary line of said 1.0 acre Cantrell First Tract and said east right-of-way line of 
Stubblefield Lane, for the southwest corner hereof, from which a 80D nail found 
monumenting the southwest corner of said Cantrell First Tract and the northwest corner of 
said Cantrell Second Tract, same being on said east right-of-way line of Stubblefield Lane, 
bears S 20°53’36” E for a distance of 187.35 feet; 
 
THENCE, N 20°53’36’ W with the west boundary line of said 1.0 acre Cantrell First Tract 
and said east right-of-way line of Stubblefield Lane for a distance of 19.43 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING hereof and containing 0.576 acre of land more or less. 
 
Bearing Basis: NAD-83, Texas Central Zone (4203) State Plane System. Coordinates and 
Distances shown hereon are surface based on a combined surface adjustment factor or 
1.00014. 
 
A drawing has been prepared to accompany this metes and bounds description. 
  

<><><><>    DIAMOND SURVEYING, INC. 
              116 SKYLINE ROAD, GEORGETOWN, TX 78628 
               (512) 931-3100 
             T.B.P.L.S.  FIRM NUMBER 10006900 

 

 

                    November 16, 2020 

_____________________________________________ 
SHANE SHAFER, R.P.L.S. NO. 5281 DATE 
 

Z:\WILLIAMSON COUNTY PSA PROJECTS\__2020 Liberty Hill SH 29 Bypass WA#1\_PARCELS FINAL LTS 

SURVEYS\PARCEL 45 ROW AND REM LTS\PARCEL 45REM SH 29 BYPASS LH m&b.doc 
 



  

® Ve 

{ 

  

DRAWING TO ACCUMPANY METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION FOR A 0.576 ACRE (25,074 SQ. FT. TRACT OF LAND 
SITUATED IN THE HENRY FIELD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 233, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING THE 
REMNANT PORTION OF A CALLED 1.0 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ¢<FIRST TRACT) AND THE REMNANT PORTION OF A 

CALLED 1.0 ACRE TRACT OF LAND «SECOND TRACT), CUNVEYED TO RAYMOND G. CANTRELL AND WIFE, PAMELA L. 
CANTRELL, RECORDED IN VOLUME 2179, PG 659 OF THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 901 STUBBLEFIELD LN, LIBERTY HILL, TX 78642 

| 

    

    
     

    

       

      

LIBERTY HILL WATER SUPPLY CORP. 
CALLED 1.06 AC. 

  

   

  

{ 
N 

  

       

  

     

  

         

    

    
   

    

            

  

  
  

   
  
                

   

      

       
        

  

      

  
        

  

     

W/CAP DOC. NO. 2000053600 W/CAP 
. LAND DEV. ” ’ i | |¢ ) WIRE FENCE —= (LAND DEV) SCALE: 1"= 60 

N70°06'31"E 2 1 oS P.0.B. } 
‘ SURFACE COORDINATES: 

| >I N=10211877.80 
U. E=3055297.86 

pp | a = 
| Q\ RAYMOND G. CANTRELL mi 0 

eo} LE AND WIFE, PAMELA L. CANTRELL a] a 
m4 = w CALLED 1.0 ACRE (FIRST TRACT) 9 a JAMES WAYNE MATHER 
wv, |m| Oo VOL. 2179, PG. 659 w CALLED 6.50 AC 

5 a a\ ot * DOC. NO. 2006068763 fe) > e . 5 2} laa RO21981 m 
|] aS > FZ _ Lo 

Pan | a; l™ z Z », PARCEL 45REM 8 Va 
° . RV S Az =| : g 2 2, 0.576 AC. io yw 

QO) a ° 

as iH ; Sq re ° a wo 
7h ‘4 Kl4 la zy 8 7 : Y 60D NAIL FOUND IN ~ 

6 6 | ) oa O S CONCRETE AT FENCE A 
POST 

~ Qe 14 |e Ns eC ONDUIT 0.38" WEST 4 
N | : wD + 
Ze | | < PROPOSED RIGHT—OF—WAY 4 

S lx |! PARCEL 45ROW ~ 
< @ : 80D NAIL TO BE CONVEYED BY 
5 | | FOUND SEPARATE. INSTRUMENT \ , 
< |\P le| 4% DEED LINE SEE DETAIL 'A 

Kp i 0p SO ro ° | SHEET 2 OF 3 
PP ! PP J 

N 
fi l ” aN 

(oe) PENIZE, LLC | nd loa NN 
CALLED 9.1965 ACRES a| ix N 
DOC. NO. 2018012436- | 3) 1% 102 Oo XQ 

s : cn 
N i m r nm 

2 ON GS aw |q eo 
_ a : z me S| B= 2 e eR Lae Ves, > “ => 

A = L $ 
=| \¢ om SJ. PATRICK HARLOW ANDNOy 

> n CONC . ° Z QA Ww LISA M. HARLOW . 
o ZR 2 |* CALLED 54.068 ACRES 

N o| | °3: COVERED GATE m (TRACT 2) 
\. si ne COVERED 38 CONC. DOC. NO. 9639594 
\ 3 | je 1S PORCH os ¥ COVERED 

S|) 1315 ti zs [~—_ OVERHANG 
\. = a|~ om ROCK we 

\ fe R Roziga1 ™ (2 78 
\ oF x Ww POSSIBLE LOCATION OF 

\ ; RAYMOND G. CANTRELL @ 150° RADIUS 
\Y | AND WIFE, PAMELA L. CANTRELL Se? we \ TN SANITARY CONTROL EASEMENT 

. CALLED 1.0 ACRE (SECOND TRACT) oy an 
x! | VOL. 2179, PG. 659 cE NG, | OF fe 
L272 ko * Te _— 

T NY ~ 

‘Very | pew | \ APPROX. LOCATION OF ~~ 
{ N \ a \ 

Non a Te: Cc 

| ty | “ \ SHARED WELL EASEMENT 
> | WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS” \\ DOC. NO. 2016052588 

CALLED 1.224 ACRES ,/ , 
\ | on DOC. NO. 2016043602" e \ 4 PARCEL 45REM 

aN / \ \ \ SHEET 10F 3 
\ | N\ / 

/     
< > DIAMOND SURVEYING, INC. 

116 SKYLINE ROAD, GEORGETOWN, TEXAS 78628 
(512) 931-3100     T.B.P.L.S. FIRM NO. 10006900 

  
Z: \WLLIAMSON COUNTY PSA PROJECTS\__2020 Liberty Hill SH 29 Bypass WA#1\_PARCELS FINAL LTS SURVEYS\ PARCEL 45 ROW AND REM LTS\PARCEL 45REM SH 29 BYPASS LH.dwg



  

EASEMENT INFORMATION 
(SEE SHEET 1 OF 3) 
  

FIDEL G. LOZA 
TRACT 2 — ACCESS EASEMENT 

DOC. NO. 2016039911 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
30’ ACCESS EASEMENT 
DOC. NO. 2016043602 

DRAWING TO ACCOMPANY METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION FOR A 0.576 ACRE (25,074 SQ. FT.) TRACT OF LAND 
SITUATED IN THE HENRY FIELD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 233, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING THE 
REMNANT PORTION OF A CALLED 1.0 ACRE TRACT OF LAND <FIRST TRACT) AND THE REMNANT PORTION OF A 

CALLED 1.0 ACRE TRACT OF LAND <SECOND TRACT), CUNVEYED TO RAYMOND G, CANTRELL AND WIFE, PAMELA L., 
CANTRELL, RECORDED IN VOLUME 2179, PG 659 OF THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 901 STUBBLEFIELD LN, LIBERTY HILL, TX 78642 

OWNERSHIP. INFORMATION 
(SEE SHEET 1 OF 3) 
  

  

@) CAR-MA FAMILY 
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
CALLED 90.451 ACRES 

(TRACT 1) 
DOC. NO. 2018093046     

    
  

  

  

            

  

  

  

                

  

  

  

    
    

    

   
  

  

LINE TABLE 
LINE BEARING DISTANCE 
1 N20°53'36"W 19.43’ 
L2 S69°08'46"W 29.65” 

CURVE TABLE 
CURVE | RADIUS ARC LENGTH DELTA ANGLE | CHORD BEARING | CHORD LENGTH 

C1 2350.00° 287.61° 7°00°44” N67°24'03"W 287.43° 

a_ s>o~ 

LEGEND > o| 3 
as oO 

oT o aN 
® IRON ROD FOUND 7... 60D _NAIL_ FOUND IN ¢ 

CONCRETE AT FENCE POST = vA \ 

A NAIL FOUND / 0.38 WEST \ 

O IRON ROD SET WITH CAP / \ 
MARKED "DIAMOND SURVEYING | { N \ 

= Ww 

Vv CALCULATED POINT | a] o | 
pp \ (FIRST TRACT) 2 nN 
opEN POWER POLE eee AINE... - —4.____ SEARCHED FOR 

jo! POWER POLE WITH ELECTRIC METER NO MONUMENT 
\(SECOND TRACT) }W FOUND / 

-_ DOWN GUY \ J® 

Tt? TELEPHONE PEDESTAL \ N S y 
MB MAIL BOX \ o ye y 
agEM ELECTRIC METER SL Nil 7 

o WF WATER FAUCET ~~ Ht 
CONDUIT DETAIL 'A’ 

CONDUIT (NOT TO SCALE) 
aPT PROPANE TANK 

—— X —— X —— X —— WIRE FENCE 

ou ou OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE 

EDGE OF PAVEMENT 

See — APPROXIMATE SURVEY LINE 

— -— — —— — — — PROPOSED RIGHT—OF—WAY 

OVH OVERHANG 
CONC CONCRETE PARCEL 45REM 

R.O.W RIGHT—OF—WAY SHEET 2 OF 3 
P.O.B POINT OF BEGINNING <> DIAMOND SURVEYING, INC. 

116 SKYLINE ROAD, GEORGETOWN, TEXAS 78628 

(512) 931-3100 
T.B.P.L.S. FIRM NO. 10006900 

    Z: \WLLIAMSON COUNTY PSA PROJECTS\__2020 Liberty Hill SH_ 29 Bypass WA#1\_PARCELS FINAL LTS SURVEYS\PARCEL 45 ROW AND REM LTS\PARCEL 45REM SH 29 BYPASS LH.dwg 
 



  

DRAWING TO ACCOMPANY METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION FOR A 0.576 ACRE ¢25,074 SQ. FT.2 TRACT OF LAND 
SITUATED IN THE HENRY FIELD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 233, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING THE 
REMNANT PORTION OF A CALLED 1.0 ACRE TRACT OF LAND (FIRST TRACT) AND THE REMNANT PORTION OF A 

CALLED 1.0 ACRE TRACT OF LAND (SECOND TRACT), CONVEYED TO RAYMOND G, CANTRELL AND WIFE, PAMELA L., 
CANTRELL, RECORDED IN VOLUME 2179, PG. 659 OF THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 901 STUBBLEFIELD LN, LIBERTY HILL, TX 78642 

GENERAL NOTES: 

1) ALL DOCUMENTS LISTED HEREON ARE RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF 
THE COUNTY CLERK OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. 

2) BEARING BASIS: NAD-83, TEXAS CENTRAL ¢4203) STATE PLANE 
SYSTEM, COORDINATES AND DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE 
BASED ON A COMBINED SURFACE ADJUSTMENT FACTOR OF 1.00014, 

3) THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON LIES WITHIN ZONE X CUNSHADED) AREA 
OF MINIMAL FLOOD HAZARD, ACCORDING TO F.E.MA, FLOOD INSURANCE 
RATE MAP FOR WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, MAP NO. 48491C0245F, 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF DECEMBER 20, 2019, 

TITLE COMMITMENT NOTES: 

Only those easements and restrictions listed in Schedule B of Title 
Resources Guaranty Company, Commitment for Title Insurance GF No. 
2049393-KFO, which bears an effective date of September 4, 2020 
and an issued date of September 17, 2020 were reviewed by the 
Surveyor. No other easement record research was performed by 
Diamond Surveying, Inc. 

10g) Easement granted to Texas Power & Light Company by 
instrument recorded in Volume 235, Page 91, Deed Records, Williamson 
County, Texas. Not a part of subject tract, 

10h) Easement granted to the Liberty Hill Water Supply Corporation 
by instrument recorded in Document No. 2000052340, Official Public 
Records, Williamson County, Texas. The possible location of the 150 
Foot radius Sanitary Control Easement is shown hereon. 

10 Terns, conditions and stipulations of that certain License 
Agreement recorded in Document No. 2016052588, Of ficial Public 
Records, Williamson County, Texas. The subject tract is a part of 
said License Agreement, the approximate location of the 0171 acre 
Water Line and Shared Well Easement is shown hereon. 

To: Williamson County, Texas and Title Resources Guaranty Company, exclusively. 

|, Shane Shafer, Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Texas, hereby certify that this 
drawing represents a survey made on the ground under my direct supervision completed on 
November 13, 2020. At the time of this survey there were no encroachments, conflicts or 
protrusions apparent on the ground, EXCEPT AS SHOWN. This survey substantially complies with the 
standards for a Category 1A, Condition Ill Land Title Survey per the current Manual of Practice for 
Land Surveying in the State of Texas, issued by the Texas Society of Professional Surveyors. USE OF 
THIS SURVEY BY OTHER PARTIES SHALL BE AT THEIR OWN RISK AND UNDERSIGNED SURVEYOR IS NOT 
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY LOSS RESULTING THEREFROM. 

  

  

Ap PARCEL 45REM 

NOVEMBER 16, 2020 SHEET 3 OF 3 

SHANE SHAFER, R.P.L.S. NO. 5281 DATE <> DIAMOND SURVEYING, INC. 
116 SKYLINE ROAD, GEORGETOWN, TEXAS 78628 

(512) 931-3100 
T.B.P.L.S. FIRM NO. 10006900 

          Z: \WLLIAMSON COUNTY PSA PROJECTS\__2020 Liberty Hill SH 29 Bypass WA#1\_PARCELS FINAL LTS SURVEYS\PARCEL 45 ROW AND REM LTS\PARCEL 45REM SH 29 BYPASS LH.dwg



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 46.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Interlocal Agreement with City of Copeland for CR 458
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an Interlocal Agreement regarding the participation of the City
of Copeland, Texas and Williamson County, Texas in the design and construction costs related to the CR 458
project. Funding Source: Road Bonds P678

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
ILA 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 09:58 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 06/05/2024 01:54 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
REGARDING THE PARTICIPATION OF THE CITY OF COUPLAND, TEXAS, AND 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IN THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION COSTS 

RELATED TO THE COUNTY ROAD 458 PROJECT 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

O
r
 

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into between the City 
of Coupland, Texas (“City”), a Texas general law Type-B municipality, and Williamson Co unty,   a political subdivision of the State of Texas (“County”). In this Agreement, City and the County 
are sometimes individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 

WHEREAS, V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 791, the Texas Interlocal Cooperation 

Act, provides that any one or more public agencies may contract with each other for the 
performance of governmental functions or services for the promotion and protection of the health 
and welfare of the inhabitants of this State and the mutual benefit of the parties; 

WHEREAS, the County is and has been in the process of designing and constructing 
improvements to County Road 458 from the Williamson / Travis County Line to SH 95, as shown 
in Exhibit “A” attached hereto (“County Project”); 

WHEREAS, the City desires to cooperate with the County to facilitate the constructi 
the County Project; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, and for other goo 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the County and 
agree as follows: 

PURPOSE 

1.01 General. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the City’s particip 
in the design, right-of-way acquisition, utility relocation, and construction of the County Pro 

II. 
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF COUNTY PROJECT 

on of 

d and 
City 

ation 

ject. 

2.01 Design of County Project. The County shall be responsible for contracting with a 
firm (“Design Firm”) regarding the engineering and design for the County Project and shall ensure 
that the design includes the following: 

Reconstruction of existing CR 458 to a two-lane facility with drainage 

improvements. 

2.02 Design and Construction Costs. The County shall be responsible for all costs 

associated with the preliminary and final design, right-of-way acquisition, relocation of utilities 
not owned by the City, construction bidding, project management, and all other costs related to the 
County Road 458 ILA Wilco & City of Coupland, Texas  



County Project (“Project Cost”). The estimated Project Cost is $7,333,000, which includes all costs   related to the County Project; except that City is solely responsible for the relocation of any 
utilities. 

City 

2.03 Construction Plans. The County Project plans and specifications, including any 
amendments, for the improvements shall be provided to the City for review and comment prior to 
construction. 

2.04 Inspection. City may inspect all aspects of the County Project during construction. 
Upon receipt of notification from City that City’s inspectors determine the construction by the 
County is not in accordance with the approved project plans, the County shall cease constru tion 

until the deficiency can be identified and a corrective plan of construction implemented with the 
agreement of City. 

2.05 Permits. The County shall be responsible for obtaining permits, if any, require 
the construction of the County Project. 

the County Project to name the City as an additional insured on any policies related to the C 
Project. The County shall require all performance and maintenance bonds in favor of the Ci 

2.06 Insurance, Bonds and Warranties. The County shall require the tiie Cy 

d for 

unty 
in 

amounts satisfactory to the City. All applicable warranties shall be transferred to City upon final 
completion and acceptance of the County Project. 

Il. 
CITY OBLIGATIONS 

3.01 Permission to Construct. City agrees to allow the County to construct the County 

Project on and within City property. 

3.02 Permission to Acquire ROW. The City agrees to allow the County to acc 
easements and right-of-way for the County Project, through condemnation or otherwise, wi 
the City’s boundaries. The City further agrees to provide the right-of-way footprint to pote 
developers and acquire the right-of-way through the development process to the extent possik 

3.03 Operation and Maintenance After Acceptance. City agrees to be responsibl 

the operation and maintenance of the County Project improvements within the City’s territ 

limits after completion and acceptance by the City. 

3.04 City Payment. The City shall pay the County for the County Project in an am 
not to exceed ONE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND and No/100 DOLLARS ($150,000.00 

juire 
ithin 
ntial 
ple. 

e for 

orial 

ount 
) for 

the design, right-of-way acquisition, and construction, including relocation costs utilities not 
owned by the City (together “City Participation Amount”). The County will submit an invoic 
the City Participation Amount upon award of the construction contract. 

e for  



3.05 Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance. Payment for goods and services shall 
be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue 
the 31st day after the later of (1) the date Customer receives the goods under the contract; (2) the 
date the performance of the service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the City Auditor 
receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be 
paid by City in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the 
rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of City fiscal 
year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to 
the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the 
first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday. 

  

  

   

   

   

3.06 NO LIABILITY OR WARRANTY OF SERVICES. CITY AGREES 

ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE COUNTY DOES NOT ASSUME ANY LIABILITY FOR, 

OR WARRANT, THE SERVICES THAT A THIRD PARTY PROVIDES PURSUANT TO 

THIS AGREEMENT OR CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT. CITY AGREES 

ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE COUNTY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY CL. 

OR CAUSE OF ACTION THAT CITY MAY HAVE NOW OR IN THE F 

AGAINST AN ENGINEER OR THIRD PARTY FOR ANY DAMAGES OF ANY NATURE 

WHATSOEVER ALLEGEDLY SUSTAINED BY CITY, OR ANYONE HAVING A 

CLAIM BY, THROUGH OR UNDER CITY RELATED IN ANY WAY, DIRECTLY|OR 

INDIRECTLY, WITH THE SERVICES PROVIDED BY A THIRD-PARTY PURSUANT 

THIS AGREEMENT. 

IV. 
DISPUTES 

4.01 Material Breach; Notice and Opportunity to Cure. 

(a) In the event that one Party believes that another Party has materially breached one 
of the provisions of this Agreement, the non-defaulting Party will make written demand to cure 
and give the defaulting Party up to 30 days to cure such material breach or, if the curative action 
cannot reasonably be completed within 30 days, the defaulting Party will commence the curative 
action within 30 days and thereafter diligently pursue the curative action to completion. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any matters specified in the default notice which may be cured 
solely by the payment of money must be cured within 10 days after receipt of the notice. 
applicable time period must pass before the non-defaulting Party may initiate any remedies 
available to the non-defaulting party due to such breach. 

    

  

(b) Any non-defaulting Party will mitigate direct or consequential damages 
from any breach or default to the extent reasonably possible under the circumstances. 

sing 

 



  (c) The Parties agree that they will negotiate in good faith to resolve any disputes and 
may engage in non-binding mediation, arbitration, or other alternative dispute resolution methods 
as recommended by the laws of the State of Texas. 

4.02 Equitable Relief. In recognition that failure in the performance of the Parties’ 
respective obligations could not be adequately compensated in monetary damages alone, the 
Parties agree that after providing notice and an opportunity to cure in accordance with Section 4.01 
above, the Parties shall have the right to request any court, agency or other governmental authority 
of appropriate jurisdiction to grant any and all remedies which are appropriate to assure 
conformance to the provisions of this Agreement. The defaulting Party shall be liable to the other 
for all costs actually incurred in pursuing such remedies, including reasonable attorney’s fees, and 
for any penalties or fines as a result of the failure to comply with the terms including, without 
limitation, the right to obtain a writ of mandamus or an injunction requiring the governing body of 
the defaulting party to levy and collect rates and charges or other revenues sufficient to pay the 
amounts owed under this Agreement. 

4.03 Agreement’s Remedies Not Exclusive. The provisions of this Agreement 
providing remedies in the event of a Party’s breach are not intended to be exclusive remedies.| The 
Parties retain, except to the extent released or waived by the express terms of this Agreement, all 
rights at law and in equity to enforce the terms of this Agreement. 

Vv. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

5.01 Authority. This Agreement is made in part under the authority conferred in 
Chapter 791, Texas Government Code. 

5.02 Term. This Agreement shall commence upon execution of this Agreement| and 
shall end upon the completion of the County Project and acceptance of the public improvements 
by the City. 

  
5.03 Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable and, if any provision 

of this Agreement is held to be invalid for any reason by a court or agency of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement will not be affected and this Agreement will be 
construed as if the invalid portion had never been contained herein. 

5.04 Payment from Current Revenues. Any payments required to be made by a Party 
under this Agreement will be paid from current revenues or other funds lawfully available to the 

Party for such purpose. 

5.05 Cooperation. The Parties agree to cooperate at all times in good faith to effectuate 
the purposes and intent of this Agreement. 

5.06 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Patties 
regarding the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous understandings 

 



or representations, whether oral or written, regarding the subject matter and only relates to those 
portions of the County Project shown in Exhibit A. 

5.07 Amendments. Any amendment of this Agreement must be in writing and will be 
effective if signed by the authorized representatives of the Parties. 

5.08 Applicable Law; Venue. This Agreement will be construed in accordance with 
Texas law. The venue for any action arising hereunder will be in Williamson County, Texas. 

5.09 Notices. Any notices given under this Agreement will be effective if (i) forwarded 
to a Party by hand-delivery; (ii) transmitted to a Party by confirmed telecopy; or (iii) deposited 
with the U.S. Postal Service, postage prepaid, certified, to the address of the Party indicated below: 

  

COUPLAND: C+ ot. Co plawd . 

acd R Kucs ell Ave 
tO Bec ssl 

{ 

    

  _ 

S 
  

COUNTY: 710 S. Main Street 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 
Attn: Bill Gravell, Jr. 
Telephone: (512) 943-1550 

Facsimile: (512) 943-1662 

5.10 Counterparts; Effect of Partial Execution. This Agreement may be executed 
simultaneously in multiple counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but all of which 

will constitute the same instrument. 

5.11 Authority. Each Party represents and warrants that it has the full right, power, and 
authority to execute this Agreement. | 

5.12 Effective Date. This Agreement is executed to be effective on the date the last 

Party signs this Agreement. 

5.13 No Joint Venture. The County Project is a sole project of the County and is not a 

joint venture or other partnership with the City. 

(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE)



THE CITY OF COUPLAND, TEXAS 

_ Mayor of Coup) ann 
Name: Russel) Salmond 

Its: ~7 

  

  

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ | 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § | 
4j 

a THIS INSTRUMENT was acknowledged petort me on _ this e, q day of 
AWC , 2024, by Nu ssc / [ Delenee as Mayor of the City of Coupland, 

wil, MACHELLE SANDBULTE 

Texas, on behalf of said City. 

ee Notary Public, State of Texas ill holt Aedllty 

= Comm. Expires 07-11-2026 Notary Public, State of Texas 

orks Notary ID 133851875 
AMT 

    

  
  

  

  

Wh
iz

, 
w
y
,
 

i
e
e
e
 

             



WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

By: 
  

Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge 

ATTEST: 

By: 
  

Nancy Rister, County Clerk 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

O
r
 

Or
 

Or
 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON 

THIS INSTRUMENT was _ acknowledged before me on | this 
, by Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge of Williamson County, 

  

Texas, on behalf of said County. 

  

Notary Public, State of Texas 

 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 47.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Bagdad Rd. @ CR 278 Purchase Contract
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a purchase contract with JBS Holdings LP for 3.854 acres
needed as right of way on the Bagdad Rd. @ CR 278 project. (parcel 6). Funding Source: Road Bond P438

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:06 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 06/06/2024 09:17 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 

















































































   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 48.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Executive Session
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072 Deliberation
Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position
of the governmental body in negotiations with third person.)
A.    Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
   Preliminary discussions relating to the proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned by third
parties
          
        a)   Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 332
        b)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 143
        c)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
        d)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 255. 
        e)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 195 @ Ronald Reagan.
         f)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor. 
        g)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Hero Way.
        h)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for E. Wilco Highway.
         i)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor A. 
         j)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor B     
        k)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
         l)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.
       m)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor E.
        n)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F
        o)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor H
        p)   Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Corridor J.
        q)   Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Corridor K.
        r)   Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Corridor I.
        s)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Ronald Reagan Widening.
         t)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for CR 313.
        u)   Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Bagdad Road/CR 279.
        v)   Discuss the acquisition of right of way for CR 314. 
       w)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Seward Junction Loop   
        x)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 110N
        y)   Discuss acquisition of real property located near 6531 RM 2243, Leander, Texas 
        z)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Long Range Transportation Plan. 

B.   Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
      Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by the County
    
    a)    Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.
    b)    Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St. between 3rd and 4th Streets.
(Formerly occupied by WCCHD)        
    c)    Sale of property located 747 County Rd. 138 Hutto, Texas
    d)    Discuss Blue Springs Blvd. property

Background



Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:01 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 06/05/2024 01:06 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 



   
Commissioners Court - Regular Session 49.        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
Economic Development 
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.087:
        Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
      
  a) Project Skyfall  
  b) Project Soul Train  
  c) Project School Bus

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 06/06/2024 10:01 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 06/05/2024 01:17 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/06/2024 


	Agenda
	AI_34355_Constable 4 Line Item Transfer
	AI_34351_Approval of Line Item Transfer to cover additional membership expenses
	AI_34352_Line item transfer for the Road and Bridge Division
	AI_34375_Compensation Items
	       ATT_Merit Report
	       ATT_Merit LIT
	AI_34371_Property Tax Refunds – Over 2500 – Thru 06/06/2024
	       ATT_041224-060624 Refunds Over 2500
	041224-060624 Refunds Over 2500.pdf
	over 2500

	AI_34373_Justice of the Peace 4 May 2024 Monthly Report
	       ATT_JP4 EOM MAY 2024
	AI_34360_Best Friends Agreement and Investment
	       ATT_Best Friends Agreement
	AI_34323_Termination of Service Contract with Keith Pajestka
	       ATT_Notice of Termination Letter
	       ATT_Service Contract
	AI_34377_Santa Rita Master Community Vehicle Reimbursement Agreement for County Sheriff
	       ATT_Santa Rita Master Community
	AI_34358_Reject RFP #24RFP35 and Reissue #24RFP60 Countywide Disaster Related Debris Removal Services for County via Office of Emergency Management
	       ATT_Award Recommendation Letter
	AI_34280_Award of RFSQ #21RFSQ2 for Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes to Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC., for Facilities Management
	       ATT_Agreement 
	Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes_Ramirez-Simon_PSA_202
	Williamson County - Animal Shelter HVAC Fixes-Proposal

	       ATT_Form 1295 - Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC
	AI_34293_Award of RFSQ #21RFSQ2 for CHW System Evaluation at SO/JAIL to Ramirez Simon Engineering, LLC, for Facilities Management.
	       ATT_Professional Consulting Services Agreement 
	Jail North Chill Water Evaluation_PSA_Ramirez-Simon Engineering_2024.05.10 (1)
	Wilco SO-Jail CHW System Evaluation - 

	       ATT_Form 1295 - Ramirez-Simon Engineering, LLC
	AI_34297_Approval of Rental Contract for Mechanical Sweeper with Kinloch Equipment & Supply, Inc. for Road and Bridge Department
	       ATT_Kinloch Rental Agreement and Quote
	Williamson Co. - Rental Quote (3 months) (1)
	Williamson County Rental Agreement_revSigned by vendor

	       ATT_Form 1295 Kinloch
	AI_34350_Approval of Purchase Contract for Truck Mounted Attenuators with Traffic and Parking Control Co. Inc. for Road and Bridge Department
	       ATT_Purchase Contract and Quote
	Purchase Contract - TAPCO - 5.17.24
	THIS PURCHASE CONTRACT (hereinafter “Contract”) is made and entered into by and between Williamson County, Texas (“County”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting herein by and through its governing body, and Traffic and Parking Contro...
	I.
	Goods: Vendor shall provide County the goods described in the attached Quote being marked as Exhibit “A,” which is incorporated herein.
	Should the County choose to purchase goods in addition to those described in Exhibit “A”, such additional goods shall be described in a separate written amendment to this Contract wherein the additional goods shall be described, and the parties shall ...
	II.
	III.
	IV.
	V.
	VII.
	X.
	XI.
	XII.
	XIV.
	XV.
	XVI.
	A. As described in the attached Quote, and being marked Exhibit “A,” which is incorporated herein; and
	B. The cooperative purchasing contract (OMNIA Contract # 2020-200).

	Sales Quote Q24004315

	       ATT_Form 1295 - Traffic and Parking Control Co Inc
	AI_34361_Texas Materials Group 23IFB91 O'Connor Dr Milling & Overlay
	       ATT_Texas Materials Group 23IFB91 O'Connor Dr Milling and Overlay
	AI_34384_Kimley-Horn 24RFSQ17 WA1 On Call Traffic Engineering Services
	       ATT_Kimley-Horn 24RFSQ17 WA1 On Call Traffic Engineering Services
	KH WA-1 On-Call Cover Page
	KH WA-1 On-Call Attachment A
	KH WA-1 On-Call Attachment B
	KH WA-1 On-Call Attachment C
	KH WA-1 On-Call Attachment D

	AI_34387_Bartlett Farms MUD
	       ATT_TCEQ Comment Letter - Bartlett Farms MUD
	AI_34390_Final plat for the Santa Rita Ranch Phase 6 Section 3 subdivision – Pct 2
	       ATT_Final Plat - SRR Ph 6 Sec 3
	Sheets and Views
	SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6 SEC 3-SHEET 1
	SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6 SEC 3-SHEET 2
	SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6 SEC 3-SHEET 3
	SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 6 SEC 3-SHEET 4


	AI_34392_Final plat for the BC 207 subdivision – Pct 2
	       ATT_Final (minor) Plat - BC 207
	AI_34391_Final plat – The Cove Phase 2
	       ATT_Final Plat - The Cove Ph 2 
	2024-06-05 - Final Plat - The Cove Ph 2 - OSSF signed
	HPSCANNER3462
	HPSCANNER3463

	HPSCANNER3471

	AI_34394_Final plat for the Beyersville Expanse subdivision – Pct 4
	       ATT_Final (minor) Plat - Beyersville Expanse
	HPSCANNER3472
	HPSCANNER3473
	HPSCANNER3474

	AI_34393_Final plat for the Firefly Pointe Phase 1 subdivision – Pct 4
	       ATT_Final Plat - Firefly Pointe Ph 1
	AI_34281_Juneteenth Proclamation 2024
	       ATT_Juneteenth Proclamation 2024
	AI_34367_HUD ESG and HOME Funds
	       ATT_ESG and HOME Funds
	AI_34357_Expo Center Road Naming
	       ATT_Expo Center road names map
	Slide 1

	AI_34376_Secretariat Eng - River Ranch Proj
	       ATT_Secretariat Engagement Letter - River Ranch Park Project
	AI_34379_Dec Action - PIA
	AI_34386_engagement letter - white epsey
	       ATT_engagement letter - white epsey
	AI_34356_Award of RFP #24RFP36 Countywide Disaster Related Debris Monitoring Services for Williamson County via Office of Emergency Management
	       ATT_Redacted Score Sheet
	       ATT_Tetra Tech Agreement
	WIlliamson County, TX_Tetra Tech - Debris Monitoring - Contract_FINAL (TT_Signed)
	PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS
	Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements-The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
	1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress...
	2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employe...
	3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all ...
	This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1...
	The Contractor, Tetra Tech, Inc., certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C.Chap. 38, Administra...
	Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official
	Jonathan Burgiel, Business Unit President
	Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official
	6/3/2024
	Date
	DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION
	Non-Federal entities and contractors are subject to the debarment and suspension regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive Order 12689, Debarment and Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and the De...
	This requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative agreement programs.
	Federal Executive Order (E .O.) 12549 "Debarment" requires that all contractors receiving individual awards, using federal funds, and all sub recipients certify that the organization and its principals are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarme...
	The Contractor, Tetra Tech, Inc., certifies or affirms by your signature that neither you nor your principal is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction ...
	Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official
	Jonathan Burgiel, Business Unit President
	Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official
	6/3/2024
	Date
	CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE PROVISIONS
	Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official
	Jonathan Burgiel, Business Unit President
	Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official
	6/3/2024
	Date
	BUILD AMERICA BUY AMERICA ACT SELF-CERTIFICATION
	Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official
	Jonathan Burgiel, Business Unit President
	Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official
	6/3/2024
	Date

	EXHIBIT B - Tetra Tech Technical Approach
	EXHIBIT C - Tetra Tech Fee Schedule
	TetraTech_BAFO_RFP #24RFP36.pdf
	BID FORM



	       ATT_Tetra Tech FEMA Addendum
	       ATT_Form 1295 Tetra Tech
	AI_34289_Award of RFP # 24RFP46 HVAC Air Filter Maintenance Services for Williamson County, Texas, to Tex-Air Filters for Facilities Management
	       ATT_Letter of Recommendation 
	       ATT_Scoring Matrix
	       ATT_Form 1295 - Tex-Air Filters 
	AI_34359_Historic Courthouse Exterior Painting - Change Order #1
	       ATT_Historic Courthouse - Exterior Painting CO1
	AI_34369_Park Donations BA Rev 06-11-24
	AI_34370_Park Donations BA Exp 06-11-24
	AI_34385_LIT for the Park's Department
	AI_34374_2019 Road Bond Transfer 
	       ATT_2019 Road Bond Memo
	AI_34378_LTP Transfer
	       ATT_FY24 LTP Memo
	AI_34382_2021 Hail Storm Transfer
	AI_34388_CR 133 Development Agreement with Hutto 525 Development Partners – Pct 4
	       ATT_CR 133 Development Agreement
	n. No Joint Venture.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the terms hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create any partnership or joint venture among the Parties.  The County, its past, present and future officers, elec...

	AI_34328_Corridor C SH29 Bypass ATKINS Contract Amendment No. 4
	       ATT_CorridorC(SH29Bypass)-ATKINS Amendment04
	AI_34372_Hero Way Purchase Contract
	       ATT_contract
	AI_34362_Ronald Reagan Widening Correction Deed
	       ATT_deed
	AI_34363_Corridor A-2 Resolution for Condemnation
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_34364_Wilco Donation Deed to City of Liberty Hill
	       ATT_deed
	AI_34368_Interlocal Agreement with City of Copeland for CR 458
	       ATT_ILA
	AI_34383_Bagdad Rd. @ CR 278 Purchase Contract
	       ATT_contract
	AI_34365_Executive Session
	AI_34366_Economic Development 

		2024-05-20T14:33:20-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




